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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Report of the Directors

The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Principal Activities

The Bank is a licensed bank authorised under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance. The principal activities of the Group are the
provision of banking and related financial services. An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business segments is set
out in Note 44 to the Financial Statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 51.

On 28 August 2018, the Board declared an interim dividend of HK$0.125 per ordinary share amounting to approximately HK$5,380
million, which was paid on 24 September 2018.

On 17 December 2018, the Board declared an interim dividend of HK$0.140 per ordinary share amounting to approximately
HK$6,026 million, which was paid on 31 December 2018.

On 29 March 2019, the Board declared an interim dividend of HK$0.110 per ordinary share amounting to approximately HK$4,735
million. This declared interim dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable in the financial statements, but will be reflected as an
appropriation of retained earnings for the year ending 31 December 2019.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year 2018.

Donations
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year amounted to approximately HK$79 million.

Note: These donations do not include the donations and sponsorships made by BOCHK Charitable Foundation (“the Foundation”). The Foundation is a

separate legal entity established in Hong Kong and is a charitable institution exempt from tax under the Inland Revenue Ordinance.

Other Equity Instruments Issued

During the year, BOCHK issued the following instruments to raise funds for general corporate purposes and to improve its Tier 1
capital level in accordance with the requirements of the Banking (Capital) Rules (Cap. 155L).

Class Amount issued Consideration received

Undated non-cumulative subordinated Additional
Tier 1 capital securities USD3,000,000,000 USD3,000,000,000

Details of the issued other equity instruments are set out in Note 38 to the Financial Statements.
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Report of the Directors (continued)
Directors

The Directors of the Bank during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Chairman CHEN Siqing*
Vice Chairmen LIU Liange® (appointment effective from 15 December 2018)
GAO Yingxin (re-designation as Executive Director and appointment as
Vice Chairman effective from 1 January 2018)
Directors LIN Jingzhen* (appointment effective from 24 August 2018)
CHENG Eva*

CHOI Koon Shum*

KOH Beng Seng*

LAW Yee Kwan Quinn* (appointment effective from 13 March 2019)
TUNG Savio Wai-Hok*

REN Deq;i* (resignation effective from 12 June 2018)

LIU Qiang® (appointment effective from 24 August 2018 and resignation effective
from 18 September 2018)

LI Jiuzhong (resignation effective from 15 March 2019)

# Non-executive Directors

* Independent Non-executive Directors

In accordance with Article 87 of the Articles of Association, the terms of office of Mdm CHENG Eva and Dr CHOI Koon Shum will expire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. All the retiring Directors being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. Further, pursuant to Article 85 of the Articles of Association, any Director appointed by the Board shall hold office
only until the next following general meeting or the next following annual general meeting, and shall then be eligible for re-election at such
meeting. Accordingly, the terms of office of Mr LIN Jingzhen, Mr LIU Liange and Mr LAW Yee Kwan Quinn, who were appointed on 24
August 2018,15 December 2018 and 13 March 2019 respectively, will expire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election.
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Report of the Directors (continued)
Directors (continued)

Save for the list of Directors of the Bank as set out above, other directors of the Bank’s subsidiaries during the year ended 31
December 2018 are as follows:

YUAN Shu

CHAI Woon Chew
CHAN Siu Ping Chordio
CHU Wing Yiu

HUANG Jinyue

LEUNG Yuen Hong

LIU Guizhen

LO Wai Man Mary

NG Leung Sing

TANG Fong Chai Francis
WANG Yunchao

WONG Man Yee
Chatchai VIRAMETEEKUL*

ZHONG Xiangqun

Chaiyuth SUDTHITANAKORN
CHENG Po Kee

DATO' LOW Kian Chuan
Krish FOLLETT

LI Feng

LIU Min

MOK Chung Man

QIU Hengchang

Thiraphong TANGTHIRASUNAN
WONG Chun Keung

WU Lin

WANG Hongwei*

KUNG YEUNG Ann Yun Chi
CHAN Chi Fai

CHEUNG Wing Shing Vincent

Eugene KHOO Kong Hooi
KWONG Shu Ming

LI Jun

LIU Yalin

Neil Anthony TORPEY
SHING Sze Yee

WANG Jian

WONG Kine Yuen

YIP Kwun Hung

GUAN Xuefei*

ZHU Yanlai
CHAN Hing Wah
CHEW Lee Lin
GWEE Siew Ping
LAU Tim

LI Siu Ling

LO Ping Wa

NG Chor Chu
SZE Ying Tat
WANG Tong
WONG Man Chiu
ZHANG Zhao

KAN Wai Hung Victor*

LIU Qiang*

* Resigned/ceased as a director of the relevant subsidiary(ies) during the year.

* Resigned/ceased as a director of the relevant subsidiary(ies) after the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this Annual Report.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance, in relation to the Group’s business to which the Bank, its holding
companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or his/her connected entity had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Bank were
entered into or existed during the year.

Equity-linked Agreements

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Bank during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be indemnified out of funds of the Bank against all liabilities incurred by
him/her to the extent permitted by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The Bank has maintained insurance for the benefit of the
Directors against liability which may lawfully be insured by the Bank.
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Report of the Directors (continued)
Compliance with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules

This Annual Report complies with the applicable requirements set out in the Banking (Disclosure) Rules under the Banking
Ordinance.

Auditor

The financial statements for the year 2018 have been audited by Ernst & Young who will retire and offer themselves for
re-appointment at the 2019 annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

CHEN Siqing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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Corporate Governance

The Bank is committed to maintaining and upholding high standards of corporate governance in order to safeguard the interests of
shareholders, customers and employees. It abides strictly by the relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong, and observes the rules
and guidelines issued by regulatory authorities including the HKMA and Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission. The Bank
has followed the guidelines as set out in the Supervisory Policy Manual module CG-1 entitled “Corporate Governance of Locally
Incorporated Authorised Institutions” (“SPM CG-1") issued by the HKMA.

To further enhance corporate governance standard, the Bank will revamp its corporate governance system and strengthen relevant
measures by referencing to market trend as well as guidelines and requirements issued by regulatory authorities.

Corporate Governance Policy

The Bank recognises the importance of high standards of corporate governance and maintains an effective corporate governance
framework which delivers long-term success of the Bank. The Bank is also strongly committed to embracing and enhancing sound
corporate governance principles and practices. The established well-structured corporate governance framework directs and
regulates the business ethical conduct of the Bank, thereby protects and upholds the interests of shareholders and stakeholders as a
whole in a sustainable manner.

Corporate Governance Framework

Responsibilities of the Board and Management

The Board is at the core of the Bank’s corporate governance framework and there is a clear division of responsibilities between the
Board and the Management. The Board is responsible for providing high-level guidance and effective oversight of the Management.
Generally, the Board is responsible for:

» formulating the Group’s mid and long-term strategies and monitoring the implementation thereof;
* reviewing and approving the annual business plans and financial budgets;

» approving the annual results, interim results and quarterly financial and business reviews;

» reviewing and monitoring the Group’s risk management and internal control;

» ensuring good corporate governance of the Group and effective compliance; and

* monitoring the performance of the Management.

Six physical Board meetings were held during the year. Major agenda items reviewed and approved included important matters such
as the Group’s strategies, business plans, financial budget, disclosure of financial results, risk management and internal controls.
Besides physical meetings, the Board also approved written resolutions on certain changes of senior management, and important
work such as the commencement of assessment of individual Directors’ performance pursuant to the HKMA's guideline on
Empowerment of Independent Non-Executive Directors in the Banking Industry in Hong Kong.

The Board authorises the Management to implement the strategies as approved by the Board. The Management is responsible for
the day-to-day operations of the Group and reports to the Board. For this purpose, the Board has formulated clear written guidelines
which stipulate the circumstances whereas the Management should report to and obtain prior approval from the Board before making
decisions or entering into any commitments on behalf of the Group. The Board will conduct regular review on these authorisation and
guidelines.

Roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive

To avoid concentration of power in any single individual, the positions of the Chairman and the Chief Executive of the Bank are held
by two different individuals. Their roles are distinct, clearly established and stipulated in the Board’s Mandate.

The Chairman is responsible for ensuring that the Board properly discharges its responsibilities and conforms to good corporate
governance practices and procedures. In addition, as the Chairman of the Board, he is also responsible for ensuring that all Directors
are properly briefed on all issues currently on hand, and that all Directors receive adequate, accurate and reliable information in a
timely manner.
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Corporate Governance (continued)
Corporate Governance Framework (continued)

Roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive (continued)

The Chief Executive is responsible for providing leadership for the whole management and implementing important policies and
development strategies as adopted by the Board. Led by the Chief Executive, the Management Committee fulfils responsibilities
including management of the Group’s routine operation, implementation of business development strategies and realisation of the
Group’s long-term targets and strategies.

Board Committees

Taking into consideration the latest regulatory requirements, guidelines as well as market practices and international best practices,
the Board has established four standing Board Committees to assist in performing its responsibilities, namely the Audit Committee,
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Risk Committee, and the Strategy and Budget Committee. In addition, the Board
will authorise an Independent Board Committee comprising all the Independent Non-executive Directors as and when required to
review, approve and monitor connected transactions (including continuing connected transactions) in accordance with relevant rules
and regulations that should be approved by the Board.

Each of the Board Committees has a well-defined Mandate and makes recommendations to the Board on relevant matters within its
scope of responsibilities or makes decisions under appropriate circumstances in accordance with the power delegated by the Board.
All Board Committees are assigned a professional secretarial department which ensures that the Board Committees have adequate
resources to perform their duties effectively and properly. All Board Committees adopt the same governance process as the Board as
far as possible and report regularly to the Board on their decisions and their recommendations. The Board and Board Committees will
participate in the annual performance appraisal of those professional secretarial departments to warrant and enhance the services
provided and ensure that adequate and efficient supports are provided to the Board and Board Committees. In addition, according to
their respective Mandates, the Board and each of the Board Committees will evaluate and review their work process and
effectiveness annually, with a view to identifying areas for further improvements.

The Board of

Directors

Audit Nomination and Risk Strategy and Budget
) Remuneration . .
Committee Committee Committee Committee

Details including the Bank’s corporate governance principles and framework adopted by the Board, the composition of the Board and
each of the Board Committees and their respective Mandates, Corporate Governance Policy and Information Disclosure Policy are
available under the sub-section “Corporate Governance” of the section headed “About Us” on the Bank’s website at www.bochk.com.
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Corporate Governance (continued)
Board of Directors
Composition and Terms of Office of the Board

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board is composed of nine Directors, of whom one is Executive Director, three are
Non-executive Directors and five are Independent Non-executive Directors. The Board maintains an appropriate level of checks and
balances to ensure independence and objectivity of the decisions of the Board, as well as the impartial oversight of the Management.
The Board acts honestly and in good faith so that decisions are made objectively with a view to delivering long-term and maximum
shareholder value and fulfilling its corporate responsibility to other stakeholders of the Group.

Mr GAO Yingxin has been re-designated from Non-executive Director to Executive Director, appointed as Vice Chairman, Chief Executive
and ceased to be a member of the Risk Committee effective from 1 January 2018, but remained as a member of the Strategy and Budget
Committee. Mr REN Deqi resigned as Non-executive Director and ceased as Chairman of the Strategy and Budget Committee and a
member of the Risk Committee with effect from 12 June 2018. Mr LIU Qiang was appointed as Non-executive Director, a member of each of
the former Remuneration Committee and the Strategy and Budget Committee on 24 August 2018, and resigned such positions with effect
from 18 September 2018. Mr LIN Jingzhen was appointed as Non-executive Director and a member of the Strategy and Budget Committee
on 24 August 2018. Upon the re-organisation of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee into the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee on 29 October 2018, Dr CHOI Koon Shum was appointed as Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, and other members are Mr CHEN Siqging, Mr KOH Beng Seng and Mr TUNG Savio Wai-Hok. Mr LIU Liange was appointed as
Vice Chairman and Non-executive Director with effect from 15 December 2018; and was appointed as Chairman of the Strategy and Budget
Committee with effect from 17 December 2018. Mr LAW Yee Kwan Quinn was appointed as Independent Non-executive Director and a
member of each of the Audit Committee and the Risk Committee with effect from 13 March 2019. Mr LI Jiuzhong resigned as Executive
Director and Chief Risk Officer with effect from 15 March 2019. Save as disclosed above, there are no other changes to the
composition of the Board and Board Committees during the year and up to the date of this Annual Report.

All Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors of the Bank have been appointed for a fixed term of
approximately three years, with formal letters of appointment setting out the key terms and conditions of their appointment. In
accordance with Article 87 of the Articles of Association, the terms of office of Mdm CHENG Eva and Dr CHOI Koon Shum will expire
at the forthcoming annual general meeting, and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. Further, pursuant to Article 85 of the
Articles of Association, any Director appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the next following general meeting or the next
following annual general meeting of the Bank, and shall then be eligible for re-election at such meeting. Accordingly, the terms of
office of Mr LIN Jingzhen, Mr LIU Liange and Mr LAW Yee Kwan Quinn, who were appointed on 24 August 2018, 15 December 2018
and 13 March 2019 respectively, will expire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

Further details regarding the proposed re-election of Directors are set out in the section headed “Report of the Directors”. In addition,
the Bank has also established a written and formal process for the appointment of the Independent Non-executive Directors to
ensure that the appointment procedures are standardised, thorough and transparent.

Selection, Diversity and Independence of Board Members

The Bank recognises the importance and benefits of board diversity. In order to promote the Board’s effectiveness and standards of
corporate governance, the Bank has adopted the “Board Diversity Policy” which will be considered in identifying suitable and qualified
candidates to be a Board member. The said policy provides that in designing the Board’s composition, board diversity should be
considered in a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
geographical location, professional experience, skills and knowledge, etc., to ensure an appropriate diversity of skills, backgrounds
and viewpoints. At the same time, all Board appointments are made on merit, in the context of the skills and experience the Board as
a whole required. The various perspectives of Board diversity elements as mentioned above shall also be adequately considered
during the selection process of new Board members.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall be responsible for the identification, nomination and selection of Directors.
Potential candidates of Executive Directors could be sourced and selected amongst the senior management. Potential candidates of
Independent Non-executive Directors could be recruited through global selection. Pursuant to the provisions of the Bank’s Articles of
Association and relevant regulations, shareholders could also nominate a person other than a retiring Director for election as a
Director (including Non-executive Director) at a general meeting. Where necessary, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
may appoint external advisors to assist in recruiting appropriate individuals. The appointment of Directors shall be eventually
approved by the Board and/or shareholders at general meetings.
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Under the current board membership, all Directors possess extensive experience in banking and/or management. In addition, over
one-third of them are Independent Non-executive Directors, of whom possess experience in banking and financial industry as well as
expertise in strategic development and risk management. The Board has formulated the “Policy on Independence of Directors” which
stipulates the criteria on independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors. The Bank has received from each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her independence by reference to the said independence policy.
Based on the information available to the Bank, it considers that all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.
Moreover, all Directors have disclosed to the Bank their significant commitments and have undertaken and confirmed that they are
able to devote sufficient time to the affairs of the Bank.

An analysis of the Board’s composition as at the date of this Annual Report is set out below:

Number of Directors

° Female United States
8 .
Over 65 Singapore
— Independe_nt Over 6 years Below 90%
7 Non-executive
Director
6 .
China
5
2 Male 1-6 years
56 - 65
—_T 0,
3 Non-executive Ll
Director Hona Kon
2 9 9 Less than
— 1 year
1 Exgcutlve 45 - 55
Director
Gender Designation Age Group Geographical Directorship Attendance
location with the rate at Board
Bank meetings in
(Number of 2018*
years)

* Mr LAW Yee Kwan Quinn was appointed as Independent Non-executive Director with effect from 13 March 2019. Accordingly, attendance rate at
Board meetings in 2018 is not applicable to him.

Mr CHEN Siqging, Mr LIU Liange and Mr LIN Jingzhen are Executive Directors of BOC. Mr GAO Yingxin was former Executive
Director of BOC (he resigned such position with effect from 24 January 2018). During the year, Mr REN Degi and Mr LIU Qiang were
Executive Vice Presidents of BOC (they resigned such positions with effect from 12 June 2018 and 18 September 2018 respectively).
Save as disclosed above, there are no other relationships between the Board members, including financial, business, family or other
material relationships.
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In addition, it is expressly provided in the Board’'s Mandate that, unless the applicable laws or regulations allow otherwise, if a
substantial shareholder or Director has a conflict of interest in the matter to be considered by the Board, a Board meeting must be
convened and attended by the Independent Non-executive Directors who have no material interest, and give professional advice to
the subject matter for further consideration and approval.

Directors’ Liability Insurance Policy

During the year, the Bank has arranged for appropriate cover on Directors’ Liability Insurance Policy to indemnify the Directors for
liabilities arising from the corporate activities. The coverage and the amount insured under such policy are reviewed annually by the
Bank.

Self-evaluation of the Board

During the year, the Board conducted annual self-evaluation pursuant to the “Regulations on Self-Evaluation of the Board and
Individual Evaluation of the Directors”. With the endorsement of the former Nomination Committee, the annual self-evaluation
questionnaire was distributed to Directors for completion. Based on the completed questionnaire, the Bank analysed the results and a
report delineated the results and recommendation has been submitted to the Board for review and consideration.

Review of Effectiveness of the Individual Directors

During the year, the Bank has also engaged an external professional consultant to conduct independent review of the effectiveness of
the individual Directors. A questionnaire was distributed to all Directors for their completion and included Directors’ self-assessment in
areas such as their time commitment and participation, interaction and communication with senior management, as well as evaluation
of other members of the Board and Board Committees, and other factors that impact director effectiveness. Based on the completed
questionnaire and other available information, the external consultant assessed the effectiveness of individual Directors and prepared
a report setting out its observations and recommendations, which has been submitted to the Board for review and follow up actions.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

To ensure the newly appointed Directors have adequate understanding of the Bank’s business operations and to enable all Directors
to update their knowledge regularly so as to provide informed recommendation and advice and make contribution to the Bank, the
Board has established a set of written policies specifying guidelines on Directors’ induction and training upon appointment.

The Bank arranges appropriate Directors induction through the use of induction handbook, face to face meetings and other means,
and in accordance with the needs of individual Directors. Topics include but not limited to:

- governance structure;

- standing agenda of the Board;

- regulatory requirements on corporate governance;

- focus of concern of regulators; and

- business operation, development plan and focus of internal control.

The Bank also provides regular updates to Board members on material changes to regulatory requirements applicable to the
Directors and the Group on a timely basis; and the Bank arranges regular meetings with the Management to facilitate the
understanding of its latest business development. In addition, Board members are encouraged to participate actively in continuous
training programmes. The Bank also arranges relevant professional training programmes for Board members at the expense of
BOCHK (Holdings).
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During the year, all Directors have participated in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. In 2018, the Bank invited expert to conduct seminar to the Directors and senior management with regard to cyber security.

Furthermore, each of the Directors has received a series of training locally or overseas as he/she thought fit, hosted or attended
briefings, meetings, seminars, forums and conferences organised by the Bank or regulatory authorities, including conference for
independent non-executive directors organised by the HKMA which covered bank culture and technology impact; and regulator's
dialogue on recent developments in supervision of anti-money laundering and counter terrorist financing. Areas of relevant training
included, among others:

— risk management and internal control;

— business conduct, anti-corruption and ethical standards;
— independent directors' role in corporate governance;

— anti-money laundering;

— corporate governance and bank culture transformation;
— developments of technology;

— regulatory updates; and

— banking industry development trend, etc.
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The Directors’ records of annual training information have been entered in the register of directors’ training records maintained and
updated by the Bank from time to time. As at year end, the participation of all Directors on continuous professional development is
summarised as follows:

Business Conduct,
Anti-Corruption

and Ethical Risk Management
Standards/ and Internal
Corporate Control/Regulatory Banking Industry
Directors "°° Governance Updates Development Trend
Non-executive Directors
Mr CHEN Siqing v v v
Mr LIU Liange  (appointment effective from 15 December 2018) v v v
Mr LIN Jingzhen (appointment effective from 24 August 2018) v v v
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mdm CHENG Eva v v v
Dr CHOI Koon Shum v v v
Mr KOH Beng Seng v v v
Mr TUNG Savio Wai-Hok v v v
Executive Directors
Mr GAO Yingxin (re-designation from Non-executive Director to
Executive Director effective from 1 January 2018) 4 v v/
Mr LI Jiuzhong  (resignation effective from 15 March 2019) 4 v v

Note: The training records for those Directors who have resigned during the year and appointed after year end are not included herein. Please refer to
the section headed “Composition and Terms of Office of the Board” under “Board of Directors” for details of changes in Directors during the year
and up to the date of this Annual Report.

Directors’ Attendance of the Meetings of the Board of Directors, Board Committees and General Meeting

Six Board meetings were held during 2018 with an average attendance rate of 96%. Regular meeting schedule for the year was
prepared and approved by the Board in the preceding year. Formal notices of regular Board meetings were sent to all Directors at
least 14 days before the date of the scheduled meetings and Board agenda and meeting materials were despatched to all Board
members for review at least 7 days prior to the scheduled meetings. Board agendas were approved by the Chairman following
consultation with other Board members and the senior management.

In addition, in order to facilitate open discussion with all the Non-executive Directors and on their requests, the Chairman met with all
the Non-executive Directors (including the Independent Non-executive Directors) in the absence of the Executive Directors and the
senior management, during the discussion session after each Board meeting. Relevant practice has been incorporated in the
Working Rules of the Board.
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Details of respective Directors’ attendance at the Board meetings, Board Committee meetings and annual general meeting in 2018
are set out as follows:

Number of meetings attended/Number of meetings convened during Directors’ term of office

General
Board Committees Meeting

Nomination and Strategy

Annual

Audit Nomination Remuneration Remuneration Risk and Budget General

Note

Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Committee  Committee  Committee

Meeting

Number of meetings held
during the year 6 5 2 1 1 5 5

Non-executive Directors

CHEN Siqing (Chairman) 5/6 - 1/2 0/1 17 - -

LIU Liange (Vice Chairman) 11
(appointed with effect
from 15 December 2018)

LIN Jingzhen 3/3
(appointed with effect
from 24 August 2018)

(appointed with effect
from 24 August 2018,
resigned effective from
18 September 2018)

(resigned effective from
12 June 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors

- - - - - 03

- - - - - 0/1

- - - - 01 01

CHENG Eva 6/6 5/5 - - - - 5/5
CHOI Koon Shum 5/6 2/5 2/2 7 17 - -
KOH Beng Seng 6/6 5/5 2/2 11 17 5/5 -

TUNG Savio Wai-Hok 6/6 5/5 2/2 11 1M 5/5 5/5
Executive Directors

GAO Yingxin 6/6
(re-designated as
Executive Director and
appointed as Vice
Chairman and Chief
Executive effective from
1 January 2018)

LI Jiuzhong ' 6/6
(resigned effective from
15 March 2019)

Average Attendance
Rate 96% 85% 88% 75% 100% 93% 77%

- - - - - 5/5

7
01
7
7

7

7

86%

Note: The attendance record for Director who has been appointed after year end is not included herein. Please refer to the section headed
“Composition and Terms of Office of the Board” under “Board of Directors” for details of changes in Directors during the year and up to the date of
this Annual Report.

Apart from formal Board meetings and annual general meeting, the Bank has set up a system of pre-communication meeting for the
Independent Non-executive Directors, where major agenda items have been presented to the Independent Non-executive Directors
before each Board meeting, and their comments have been timely conveyed to the Management for follow up actions so as to
enhance the effectiveness of deliberation at Board meetings.
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Moreover, the Bank has arranged, on a regular basis, other informal events for the Board members and the senior management to
facilitate their communication and interactions. For example, the Bank has organised working meals from time to time, Board
members and the senior management have been invited to join and share insights on the Bank’s business and strategic issues. In
consideration of the schedule of Directors (in particular the Independent Non-executive Directors), a board retreat will be held to
enhance communication between the Board and the senior management.

Board Committees
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprised 4 members at the end of the year, all of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors. lts
composition, main duties and major works performed during the year are as follows:

Composition Main duties

Mr TUNG Savio Wai-Hok (Chairman) + integrity of financial statements and financial reporting process
Mdm CHENG Eva
Dr CHOI Koon Shum
Mr KOH Beng Seng

* monitoring of risk management and internal control systems

+ effectiveness of internal audit function and performance appraisal of the General
Manager of Group Audit

» appointment of external auditor and assessment of its qualification, independence
and performance and, with authorisation of the Board and shareholders at general
meeting, determination of its remuneration

» periodic review and annual audit of the Bank’s and the Group’s financial statements,
and financial and business review

« compliance with applicable accounting standards as well as legal and regulatory
requirements on financial disclosures

» corporate governance framework of the Group and implementation thereof

Major works performed during the year (included the review and, where
applicable, approval of)

» the Bank’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 and the
annual results announcement that were recommended to the Board for approval

» the Bank’s interim financial statements for the six months ended 30 June 2018 and
the interim results announcement that were recommended to the Board for approval

» the audit reports and report on internal control recommendations submitted by
external auditor, the audit reports submitted by internal audit, and the on-site
examination reports issued by regulators

» the proposed appointment of external auditor, the fees payable to external auditor
for the annual audit, interim review and other non-audit services

» the Group’s audit plan for next year and key areas identified

+ the organisation structure, deployment of human resources and pay level of the
Internal Audit, its budget for next year

« annual review of the effectiveness of the internal audit function

» the 2017 performance appraisal and key performance indicators for the General
Manager of Group Audit and the Group Audit for next year

» the annual review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk control and internal control
systems

» annual review of the “Policy on External Auditor Management”, the “Policy on Staff
Reporting of Irregularities” and the “Internal Audit Charter”
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Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee have been re-organised into Nomination and Remuneration
Committee with effect from 29 October 2018 (the “Re-organisation”), which comprised 4 members at the end of the year, including 1
Non-executive Director and 3 Independent Non-executive Directors. Immediately before the Re-organisation, each of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee comprised 4 members, including 1 Non-executive Director and 3 Independent

Non-executive Directors.

The composition, main duties and major works of the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee performed during the year are as follows:

Composition Main duties

Dr CHOI Koon Shum' (Chairman) Main duties of the Nomination Committee before the Re-organisation

Mr CHEN Siging® » review of overall human resources strategies of the Group

Mr KOH Beng Seng® » selection and nomination of Directors, Board Committee members and Senior
Mr TUNG Savio Wai-Hok® Management

» regular monitoring and review of structure, size and composition (including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, geographical
location, professional experience, skills and knowledge, etc.) of the Board and Board
Committees

+ review of the effectiveness of the Board and Board Committees

» ensuring the participation in training and continuous professional development of
Directors and Senior Management

Main duties of the Remuneration Committee before the Re-organisation

* review and recommendation of remuneration strategy and incentive framework of the
Group

+ setting of the remuneration of Directors, Board Committee members, Senior
Management and Key Personnel

» oversight of corporate culture of the Group

* regular review of code of conduct applicable to employees

Main duties of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

» All the duties of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee have
been assigned to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee upon the
Re-organisation
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Major works performed during the year (included the approval, review and

proposal to the Board)

Performed by the Nomination Committee before the Re-organisation

» formulation, review and amendment on the major human resources policies

» consideration of the matters related to the appointment of directors

» consideration of the matters relating to the appointment and dismissal of Senior
Management

» consideration of the re-organisation of the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee

» set the tenure limit for the members of Board committees

» coordination and oversight of the annual self-evaluation of the Board and individual
evaluation of the directors

» annual review on the “Policy on Independence of Directors”

Performed by the Remuneration Committee before the Re-organisation

» formulation, review and amendment on the major remuneration policies

» performance appraisal result of the Executive Director and Senior Management for
year 2017

» proposal on staff bonus for year 2017 and salary adjustment for year 2018 for the
Group, including Senior Management

» annual review on the “Policy on Directors’ Remuneration”

+ annual review on the “Staff Code of Conduct”

» implementation of the HKMA bank culture reform

Performed by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

» formulation, review and amendment on the major human resources and
remuneration policies

» consideration of the matters related to the appointment of directors

+ consideration of the matters relating to the appointment and remuneration of Senior
Management

» key performance indicators of the Group and the Senior Management for year 2019

+ proposal on human resources budget of the Group for year 2019

Notes:

1. Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman of the former Remuneration Committee and a member of the former Nomination Committee,
appointed as Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee with effect from 29 October 2018

2. Non-executive Director, Chairman of the former Nomination Committee and a member of the former Remuneration Committee, a member of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee with effect from 29 October 2018

3. Independent Non-executive Director, member of the former Nomination Committee and former Remuneration Committee, member of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee with effect from 29 October 2018
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Risk Committee

The Risk Committee comprised 2 members at the end of the year, both of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors. Its
composition, main duties and major works performed during the year are as follows:

Composition Main duties
Mr KOH Beng Seng (Chairman) « formulation of the risk appetite and risk management strategy of the Group and
Mr TUNG Savio Wai-Hok determination of the Group’s risk profile

+ identification, assessment and management of material risks faced by various
business units of the Group

+ review and assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management policies, systems and internal controls

* review and monitoring of the Group’s capital management

» review and approval of the Group’s target balance sheet

* review and monitoring of the Group’s compliance with risk management policies,
systems and internal controls, including the Group’s compliance with prudential, legal
and regulatory requirements governing the businesses of the Group

» review and approval of high-level risk-related policies of the Group

* review and approval of significant or high risk exposures or transactions

* review of key reports, including risk exposure reports, model development and
validation reports, and credit risk model performance reports

Major tasks performed during the year

+ review and approval of key risk management policies of the Group, including the risk
appetite, the “Operating Principles”, the “Risk Management Policy Statement”, the
“Capital Management Policy”, the “Financial Instruments Valuation Policy”, the “Risk
Data Aggregation and Risk Reporting Policy”, the “Policy for Validating Internal Rating
Systems”, the “Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing Policy”, the
“Product Development and Risk Monitoring Management Policy”, the “Connected
Transactions Management Policy”, the “Sharing and Use of Credit Data Management
Policy”, the “Data Management Policy”, the “Stress Test Policy” and stress test
scenarios, and a range of risk management policies covering credit risk, market risk,
liquidity risk, interest rate risk, operational risk, technology risk, legal, compliance and
reputation risk, strategic risk, etc.

» review and approval of the proposal for the annual review of the Group's recovery
plan, the proposal for the annual review of the market risk stressed VaR model
parameter, the risk adjustment method for group bonus funding mechanics and the
approval of the results of risk adjustment of the Group for 2017

» review and approval of the Group’s operating plans, including the Group’s target
balance sheets, the banking book investment plans and portfolio key risk indicators,
medium term capital planning, as well as risk management limits

» review and monitoring of Basel Accord implementation, including review of model
validation reports, model performance reports, and receiving the status reports of the
allocation of risk-weighted assets and update

» review of various risk management reports, including the Group’s risk management
reports, reports on assessment of the impact of market volatility on the Bank's
business and its credit risk, market risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk, the report
on comparison of the expected credit loss under the HKFRS 9 and the
collective/individual impairment under HKAS 39, the report on the “Guidelines on Risk
Management, Compliance and Internal Control of ASEAN entities” and its
implementation status and the 2017 institutional money laundering/terrorist financing
risk assessment report, etc.
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The Strategy and Budget Committee comprised 5 members at the end of the year, including 2 Non-executive Directors, 2
Independent Non-executive Directors as well as the Chief Executive and Executive Director of the Bank. Its composition, main duties
and major works performed during the year are as follows:

Composition Main duties
Mr LIU Liange' * review the Group’s medium to long-term strategic plan for Board approval
Mr GAO Yingxin® * monitor the Group’s implementation of medium to long-term strategy, provide
Mr LIN Jingzhen® guidance on strategy direction for management
Mdm CHENG Eva* * review of major investments, capital expenditure and strategic commitments of the
Mr TUNG Savio Wai-Hok* Group, and make recommendations to the Board

» review and monitoring of the Group’s regular/periodic (including annual) business

plan

+ review of budget for Board’s approval and monitoring of performance against
budgeted targets

Major works performed during the year

* review of the Group’s capital injection to Southeast Asian entities for Board’s
approval

* review of the Group’s acquisition of certain Southeast Asian branches of BOC and
setting up the Southeast Asian business operation centre for Board’s approval

» review of the proposals for fintech projects and capital injection in order to promote
the Group’s digital development for Board’s approval

» received and discussed on the Group's medium and long-term development
strategy plan

+ received and discussed on the strategic positioning, deployments and key
measures determined by the Group around the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
Greater Bay Area Plan

* review of the Group’s proposal of property redevelopment and adjustment of the
cap on charitable donations for Board’s approval

+ review and monitoring of the implementation of 2018 Financial Budget and
Business Plan of the Group, and also review and endorsement of the Financial
Budget and Business Plan of the Group submitted by the Management for the year
2019 and recommendation of the same to the Board

Notes:

1. Non-executive Director and appointed as Chairman of Strategy and Budget Committee with effect from 17 December 2018
2. Executive Director

3. Non-executive Director

4. Independent Non-executive Director
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BOCHK (Holdings) has established and implemented the “Code for Securities Transactions by Directors” to govern the Directors’
dealings in securities transactions of BOC, its subsidiary, BOC Aviation Limited and BOCHK (Holdings).

Upon specific enquiry by the BOCHK (Holdings), all Directors confirmed that they have strictly complied with the provisions as set out
in both the said Code and the “Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” as contained in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules throughout year 2018.

Directors’ Remuneration

Pursuant to the “Policy on Directors’ Remuneration” adopted by the Bank, when recommendation of the remuneration of Directors is
made, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee should benchmark against companies of comparable business type or scale,
the role (chairmanship or membership) they played, job nature and workload at both the Board and Board Committee levels
(including frequency of meetings and nature of agenda items) in order to compensate Directors fairly. The remuneration of Directors is
subject to regular review based on market practices, regulatory requirements and inflation, etc. No individual Director is allowed to
participate in the procedures for deciding his/her individual remuneration package. The remuneration of the Independent
Non-executive Directors is not linked with the performance of the Bank. Information relating to the remuneration of each Director for
2018 is set out in Note 19 to the Financial Statements. Director’s fees, including additional fees for membership of Board Committees,
paid to or receivable by the Directors in respect of their services rendered in year 2018 for the Bank is given below:

Board of Directors:

All Directors HK$400,000 p.a.
Board Committees:

Chairman HK$100,000 p.a.

Other Committee members HK$50,000 p.a.

Note: For the year ended 31 December 2018, all Non-executive Directors (excluding Independent Non-executive Directors) have not received their
Directors’ fees as mentioned above and Executive Directors did not receive any fees for being members of the Board and its Committees.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee also has the delegated responsibility from the Board to determine the remuneration
packages of the Executive Directors and the Senior Management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments (including any compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment, early payout of deferred
remuneration), as well as the performance-based remuneration. Moreover, it will recommend to the Board on their remuneration
package upon joining, sign-on bonus and contract guaranteed bonus, etc.
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The Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism of the Group is based on the principles of “effective motivation” and “sound
remuneration management”. It links remuneration with performance and risk factors closely. It serves to encourage staff to enhance
their performance, and at the same time, to strengthen their awareness of risk so as to achieve sound remuneration management.

The Remuneration and Incentive Policy of the Group is generally in line with the broad principles set out in the HKMA's “Guideline on
a Sound Remuneration System” and applicable to the Bank and all of its subsidiaries (including the branches and entities in and out
of Hong Kong).

* “Senior Management” and “Key Personnel”

The Remuneration and Incentive Policy of the Group defines “Senior Management” and “Key Personnel” as follows:

+ “Senior Management”: The senior executives designated by the Board who are responsible for oversight of the firm-wide
strategy or material business lines, including the Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executives, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Risk
Officer, Chief Operating Officer, Board Secretary and General Manager of Group Audit.

* “Key Personnel”: The employees whose individual business activities involve the assumption of material risk which may have
significant impact on risk exposure, or whose individual responsibilities are directly and materially linked to the risk
management, or those who have direct influence to the profit, including heads of material business lines, heads of major
subsidiaries, senior executives of Southeast Asian entities, head of trading, as well as heads of risk control functions.

¢ Determination of the Remuneration Policy

To fulfil the above-mentioned principles and to facilitate effective risk management within the framework of the Remuneration
Policy of the Group, the Remuneration Policy of the Group is initiated by Human Resources Department with consultation of the
risk control units including risk management, financial management and compliance in order to balance the needs for staff
motivations, sound remuneration and prudent risk management. After the proposed Remuneration Policy is cleared by the
Management Committee, it will be submitted to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee for review and thereafter to the
Board for approval. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board will seek opinions from other Board
Committees (e.g. Risk Committee, Audit Committee, etc.) where they consider necessary under the circumstances.

* Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism

1. Performance Management Mechanism

To reflect the “performance-driven” corporate culture, the Group has put in place a performance management mechanism to
formalise the performance management at the levels of the Group, units and individuals. The annual targets of the Group will be
cascaded down under the framework of balanced scorecard whereby the performance of the “Senior Management” and different
units (including business units, risk control units and other units) would be assessed from the perspectives of financial, customer,
building blocks/key tasks, human capital, risk management and compliance. For individual staff at different levels, annual targets
of the Group will be tied to their job requirements through the performance management mechanism. Performance of individuals
will be appraised on their achievement against targets, their contribution towards performance of their units, fulfilment of risk
management duties and compliance and adherence to the Group’s corporate culture, etc. Not only is target accomplishment taken
into account, but also the values-based behaviours and sufficient risk management during the course of work, ensuring prudent
operation and sustainable development of the Group.

2. Risk Adjustment of Remuneration

To put the principle of aligning performance and remuneration with risk into practice, based on “The Risk Adjustment Method”, the
key risk modifiers of the Bank have been incorporated into the performance management mechanism of the Group. Credit risk,
market risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, legal risk, compliance risk and reputation risk form the framework of
“The Risk Adjustment Method”. The size of the bonus pool of the Group is calculated according to the risk adjusted performance
results approved by the Board and is subject to the Board’s discretion. This method ensures the Group to fix the Group’s bonus
pool after considering risk exposures and changes and to maintain effective risk management through the remuneration
mechanism.
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Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)

3. Performance-based and Risk-adjusted Remuneration Management
The remuneration of staff is composed of “fixed remuneration” and “variable remuneration”. The proportion of one to the other for
individual staff members depends on job grades, roles, responsibilities and functions of the staff with the prerequisite that balance
has to be struck between the fixed and variable portion. Generally speaking, the higher the job grades and/or the greater the
responsibilities, the higher will be the proportion of variable remuneration so as to encourage the staff to follow the philosophy of
prudent risk management and sound long-term financial stability.

Every year, the Group will conduct periodic review on the fixed remuneration of the staff with reference to various factors like
remuneration strategy, market pay trend and staff salary level, and will determine the remuneration based on the affordability of
the Group as well as the performance of the Group, units and individuals. As mentioned above, performance assessment criteria
include quantitative and qualitative factors, as well as financial and non-financial indicators.

According to the “BOCHK Group Bonus Funding Policy”, the size of the bonus pool of the Group is determined by the Board on the
basis of the financial performance of the Group and the achievement of non-financial strategic business targets under the
long-term development of the Group. Thorough consideration is also made to the risk factors in the determination process. The
size of the bonus pool is reached based on pre-defined formulaic calculations but the Board can make discretionary adjustment to
it if deemed appropriate under prevailing circumstances. When the Group’s performance is relatively weak (e.g. failed to meet the
threshold performance level), no bonus will be paid out that year in principle. However, the Board reserves the rights to exercise its
discretion.

As far as individual units and individual staff are concerned, allocation of the variable remuneration is closely linked to the
performance of the units, and that of each individual staff as well as the unit he/she is attaching to, and the assessment of which
should include risk modifiers. The performance and remuneration arrangement of risk control personnel are determined by the
achievement of their core job responsibilities, independent from the business they oversee; for front-line risk controllers, a
cross-departmental reporting and performance management system is applied to ensure the suitability of performance-based
remuneration. Within the acceptable risk level of the Group, the better the performance of the unit and the individual staff, the
higher will be the variable remuneration for the individual staff. The allocation of variable remuneration to staff should also consider
individual behaviour comprehensively. For behaviour which is positive and adhering to the Group’s corporate culture, the variable
remuneration should be tilted forward; for misconduct or behaviour which is negative and not adhering to the Group’s corporate
culture, the variable remuneration should be forfeited or reduced.

4. Linking the payout of the variable remuneration with the time horizon of the risk to reflect the long-term value creation of the Group
To work out the principle of aligning remuneration with the time horizon of risk and to ensure that sufficient time is allowed to
ascertain the associated risk and its impact before the actual payout, payout of the variable remuneration of staff is required to be
deferred in cash if such amount reaches certain prescribed threshold. The Group adopts a progressive approach towards deferral.
The longer the time horizon of risk in the activities conducted by the staff and the higher amount of the variable remuneration, the
higher will be the proportion of deferral. Deferral period lasts for 3 years.

The vesting of the deferred variable remuneration is linked with the long term value creation of the Group. The vesting conditions
are closely linked to the annual performance of the Group in the next 3 years and the individual behaviour of the staff concerned.
When the Group’s performance has met the threshold requirement, the deferred variable remuneration would be vested following
the corresponding schedule. However, if a staff is found to have committed fraud, or any financial or non-financial factors used in
performance measurement or variable pay determination are later proven to have been manifestly worse than originally
understood in a particular year, or individual behaviour/management style pose negative impacts to the business unit and even the
Group, including but not limited to improper or inadequate risk management, significant incident and economic loss incurred by
improper management, etc., the unvested portion of the deferred variable remuneration of the relevant staff would be forfeited.
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Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)

¢ Annual Review of Remuneration Policy

The Remuneration Policy of the Group is subject to annual review with reference to changes on external regulatory requirements,
market conditions, organisational structure and risk management requirements, etc. Due to changes in organisational structure
and job establishment, the Group reviewed the position lists of “Senior Management”, “Key Personnel” etc. as delineated in the
“BOCHK Group Remuneration and Incentive Policy”.

* External Remuneration Consultant

To ensure the suitability and competitiveness of the remuneration and incentive mechanism, the Group appointed Willis Towers
Watson for independent consultation in areas of pay management of the Independent Non-executive Directors, Senior
Management and key positions, regional remuneration management mechanics and market remuneration data, etc.

* Disclosure on Remuneration

The Group has fully complied with the guideline in Part 3 of the “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System” issued by the
HKMA to disclose information in relation to our remuneration and incentive mechanism.

External Auditor

Pursuant to the “Policy on External Auditor Management” adopted by the Board, the Audit Committee reviewed and monitored and
was satisfied with the independence and objectivity of Ernst & Young, the Group’s external auditor, and the effectiveness of its audit
procedures, based on the principles and standards set out in the said Policy that were in line with international best practices. Upon
the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board will propose that Ernst & Young be re-appointed as auditor of the Group at the
Bank’s 2019 annual general meeting. Subject to shareholders’ authorisation, the Board will authorise the Audit Committee to
determine the remuneration of Ernst & Young. For 2018, the fee paid or payable by the Group to Ernst & Young was HK$49 million
(2017: HK$37 million), of which HK$27 million (2017: HK$27 million) related to audit services and HK$22 million (2017: HK$10 million)
related to other services (mainly including tax-related and advisory services). The Audit Committee was satisfied that the non-audit
services in 2018 did not affect the independence of Ernst & Young.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems. The Board oversees the Management in the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems. According to the Board’s scope of delegation, the Management is responsible for the day-to-day operations
and risk management, and the Management needs to provide a confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of these systems.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss; to manage
the risk of system failure; and to assist in the achievement of the Group’s objectives. In addition to safeguarding the Group’s assets, it
also ensures the maintenance of proper accounting records and compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

The Group conducts an annual review of the effectiveness of its risk management and internal control systems covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls as well as risk management. The review is conducted by reference
to the guidelines and definitions given by the regulatory and professional bodies for the purpose of assessing five different internal
control elements, namely, the control environment, risk assessment, control activities, information and communication, and
monitoring. The assessment covers all the major internal controls and measures, including financial, operational and compliance
controls as well as risk management functions. The review also considers the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience and training of the Group’s accounting, financial reporting and internal audit functions. The review is coordinated by the
Group’s internal audit which, after the Management and various business departments have performed their self-assessment and the
Management has confirmed the effectiveness of the relevant systems, then carries out an independent examination and other
post-assessment work on the review process and results. The results of the 2018 review, which have been reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board, revealed that the Group’s risk management and internal control systems were effective and adequate.
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In addition, the key procedures that the Group has essentially established and implemented to provide internal controls are
summarised as follows:

« arational organisational structure with appropriate personnel is developed and whose responsibility, authority, and accountability
are clearly delineated. The Group has formulated policies and procedures to ensure reasonable checks and balances for all the
operating units, reasonable safeguard for the Group’s assets and adherence to relevant laws and regulations and risk
management in its operations;

» the Management draws up and continuously monitors the implementation of the Group’s strategies, business plans and financial
budgets. The accounting and management systems that are in place provide the basis for evaluating financial and operational
performance;

» the Group has various risk management and human resources policies. There are specific units and personnel that are
responsible for handling reputation, strategic, legal, compliance, credit, market, operational, liquidity and interest rate risks. There
are also procedures and internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside information. The Group has set up
mechanisms to identify, evaluate and manage all the major risks, and has established corresponding internal control procedures
as well as processes for resolving internal control defects. (The Group’s risk management is given on pages 314 to 322);

« the Group has established an information technology governance structure that produces a range of reports on information
systems and management, including information on the monitoring of various business units, financial information and operating
performance. Such information facilitates the Management, business units and the regulatory bodies in assessing and monitoring
the Group’s operation and performance. Proper communication channels and reporting mechanisms are in place at various
business units and levels to facilitate exchange of information;

« pursuant to a risk-based approach and in accordance with the internal audit plan approved by the Audit Committee, the Group’s
internal audit conducts independent reviews on such aspects as financial activities, various business areas, various kinds of risks,
operations and activities. Reports are submitted directly to the Audit Committee. The Group’s internal audit closely follows up on
the items that require attention in a systematic way and reports to the Management and the Audit Committee in a timely manner;
and

» the Audit Committee reviews the reports submitted by external auditor to the Group’s Management in connection with the annual
audit as well as the recommendations made by regulatory bodies on risk management and internal control. The Group’s internal
audit follows up on the same to ensure timely implementation of the recommendations, and also periodically reports the status of
the implementation to the Management and the Audit Committee.

The Group is committed to upholding good corporate governance practices and the internal control system of all subsidiaries are
reviewed regularly. During the year of 2018, continuous improvements on the organisation structure and segregation of duty, the risk
management policy and procedure, and the enhancement of disclosure transparency have been undertaken by the Group. In
response to internal and external changes in global economic condition, operating environment, regulatory requirement and business
development, the Group has implemented a series of measures and undertaken an on-going review on the effectiveness of the
internal control mechanism. In 2018, areas for improvement have been identified and appropriate measures have been implemented.
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Directors’ Responsibility Statement in relation to Financial Statements

The following statement should be read in conjunction with the auditor’s statement of their responsibilities as set out in the auditor’s
report. The statement aims to distinguish the responsibilities of the Directors and the auditor in relation to the financial statements.

The Directors are required by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance to prepare financial statements, which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Bank. The financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis unless it considers
inappropriate. The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the accounting records kept by the Bank at any time reasonably and
accurately reflect the financial position of the Bank, and also ensure that the financial statements comply with the requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The Directors also have duties to take reasonable and practicable steps to safeguard the assets
of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial statements, the Bank has adopted appropriate accounting policies which have

been consistently applied and supported by reasonable judgements and estimates, and that all accounting standards which they
consider to be applicable have been followed.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Ernst & Young

22/F, CITIC Tower
i* 1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

To the members of Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 51 to 313, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each
matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

46



¥ & 4t (m ) HmAT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

©)

Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Key audit matters:

How our audit addressed the key audit matters:

Impairment assessment of advances to customers

Refer to significant accounting policies in Note 2.14, critical
accounting estimates and judgements in applying accounting
policies in Note 3.1, and disclosures on credit risk and loan
impairment allowances in Note 4.1 and Note 23 to the financial
statements.

The Group has adopted a forward-looking “expected-loss”
impairment model to recognise the expected credit losses
(“ECL”) of its advances to customers from 1 January 2018. The
assessment of credit risk and the measurement of ECL are
required to be based on unbiased and probability-weighted
possible outcomes, and supportable
information at the reporting date about past events, current

reasonable and
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
Significant management judgements and estimates are
involved in the development and the application of models and

the choices of inputs in the calculation of ECL, including:

1) segmentation of financial assets according to credit risk
characteristics;

2) estimation of probability of defaults, loss given defaults,
exposure at defaults and macroeconomic factor forecasts;

3) criteria on significant credit deterioration; and

4) selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and
their probability weightings.

As at 31 December 2018, gross advances to customers
amounted to HK$1,265,997 million, representing 44.9% of total
assets; and the impairment allowance for advances to
customers amounted to HK$5,411 million, representing 89.8%
of total impairment allowance on financial instruments.

In view of the significance of the impairment allowance
recorded by the Group and the management judgements and
estimates involved, impairment assessment of advances to
customers is considered a key audit matter.

We obtained an understanding of the Group’s credit
management and practices and evaluated the Group’s
impairment  methodology, including the management
judgement over the segmentation of portfolio, the criteria on
significant credit deterioration and the measurement approach
of expected credit losses. We tested the design and the
operating effectiveness of the key controls over the processes
of credit assessment, loan classification, stage classification
and calculation of impairment allowances. Our control testing
on the loan impairment process included an evaluation of the
governance over the use of economic scenarios and the
system interfaces of inputs or other data sources such as
internal loan gradings and probability of default.

We adopted a risk-based sampling approach for our loan
review procedures. We selected samples based on risk
characteristics of individual items including the industry and
geographic location of the operations of borrowers, internal
loan grading and past due history. We formed an independent
view on the loan staging through reviewing the borrowers’
detailed information about their financial performance,
recoverable cash flows, valuation of collaterals and other
available information.

For the impairment allowance as at 31 December 2018, we
performed testing on the relevant data quality by sample
checking to the relevant data source and re-computed
management’s calculation of the impairment allowance. In
addition, we assessed management’s consideration of
forward-looking information including macroeconomic factor
forecasts and probability weighted economic scenarios. For
Stage 3 advances, on a sample basis we re-calculated the
impairment allowance with consideration of recoverable cash
flows and valuation of collaterals.

We also evaluated and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the Group’s key controls related to disclosures
on credit risk in Note 4.1 to the financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Key audit matters:

How our audit addressed the key audit matters:

Valuation of financial instruments

Refer to significant accounting policies in Note 2.12, critical
accounting estimates and judgements in applying accounting
policies in Note 3.2, and disclosures on fair values of financial
instruments in Notes 5.1 and 5.2 to the financial statements.

The Group has applied valuation techniques to determine the
fair value of financial instruments that are not quoted in active
markets. These valuation techniques, in particular those that
include significant unobservable inputs, involve management
using subjective judgements and assumptions. With different
valuation techniques and assumptions applied, the valuation
results can vary significantly.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s financial assets and
liabilites measured at fair value amounted to HK$780,208
million and HK$59,593 million respectively, representing 27.7%
and 2.3% of total assets and total liabilities respectively.
Financial instruments which had significant unobservable
inputs in the valuation, and hence were categorised within level
3 of the fair value hierarchy, involved a higher degree of
uncertainty in their valuation. As at 31 December 2018, 89.5%
and 0.1% of the Group’s financial assets measured at fair value
were categorised within level 2 and level 3, respectively.

We evaluated and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of key controls related to the valuation of financial
instruments, including independent price verification,

independent model validation and approval.

We focused on the valuation methodologies and assumptions
of financial instruments that were classified as level 2 and level
3 in the fair value hierarchy. We involved our valuation
specialists in evaluating the valuation techniques, inputs and
assumptions through comparison with the valuation techniques
that are commonly used in the market, the validation of
observable inputs using external market data, and comparison
with valuation outcomes obtained from various pricing sources.

We also evaluated and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the Group’s key controls related to the fair
value disclosures in Notes 5.1 and 5.2 to the financial
statements.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Refer to significant accounting policies in Note 2.22, critical
accounting estimates and judgements in applying accounting
policies in Note 3.3, and disclosures on deferred taxation in
Note 34 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group recognised deferred tax
assets of HK$723 million relating to temporary differences
arising from impairment allowances and HK$1,287 million
relating to other temporary differences and tax credits. The
majority of other temporary differences and tax credits related
to tax credits recoverable from the tax authorities in Hong Kong
under double tax treaty arrangements, arising from withholding
income taxes payable in other jurisdictions on certain income.
Application on such tax credits will be made to the tax
authorities in Hong Kong after the corresponding withholding
income taxes payable is settled and evidenced by respective
payment receipts issued from
authorities. These deferred tax assets, where required by
accounting standards, were offset against and included within
deferred tax liabilities as shown in Note 34 to the financial
statements. The recognition of the deferred tax assets involved

the corresponding tax

significant management judgements and assumptions, based
upon the estimation of available tax credits and the possibility
to recover such deferred tax assets recognised.

Our audit procedures included, amongst others, the
involvement of our tax specialists to assist in evaluating the
judgements and assumptions adopted by management to
determine the recognition and recoverability of the deferred tax
assets, in light of current tax laws. We also assessed
management’s estimates of the Group’s entitlement to the tax
credits and examined correspondences between the Group

and relevant tax authorities.

In addition, we also assessed the adequacy of disclosures in
Note 34 to the financial statements with respect to compliance
with HKAS 12 — Income Taxes.
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Other information included in the Annual Report
The directors of the Bank are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Bank are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Bank either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors of the Bank are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is LEE Shun Yi, Jasmine.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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LEEWERTE Consolidated Income Statement
(=E%1)
B &% (Restated)
e 12 A 31 HibFEE For the year ended 31 December Notes 2018 2017
BEEET AAEEETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
FrEEEER CONTINUING OPERATIONS
FIEUA Interest income 58,706 46,387
FIEZH Interest expense (22,336) (14,225)
EFRUA Net interest income 6 36,370 32,162
A58 R AU A Fee and commission income 15,810 15,836
AR5 RS2 Fee and commission expense (3,848) (3,580)
BIREERESWA Net fee and commission income 7 11,962 12,256
v Lallgey Net trading gain 8 3,264 1,187
HMLLAFEE LT ABE S 2 & Net gain on other financial instruments at fair
Bl T E g value through profit or loss 9 518 4
HAth B R 2 P Net gain on other financial assets 10 1 728
HAr&Z WA Other operating income 11 738 690
REUBE AT 2 IR EUWA Net operating income before impairment
allowances 52,853 47,027
TR E R Net charge of impairment allowances 12 (1,232) (1,055)
FZEWA Net operating income 51,621 45,972
L Operating expenses 13 (14,696) (13,403)
= pray | Operating profit 36,925 32,569
EYHEE N ERE Net gain from disposal of/fair value adjustments
FFULES on investment properties 14 921 1,210
JREEEEYIZE ~ 3 RGRF 2 Net gain/(loss) from disposal/revaluation of
s (D properties, plant and equipment 15 19 (24)
FE(ERRE A\ E R EERE % Share of profits less losses after tax of
SRR associates and joint ventures 25 69 98
ERFR AT Profit before taxation 37,934 33,853
HRIE Taxation 16 (6,319) (5,854)
EE B RT Profit from continuing operations 31,615 27,999
[Wteg(stac=e 1 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
BRI BT Profit from discontinued operations 36 - 2,623
FEERSA Profit for the year 31,615 30,622
FEALESF] : Profit attributable to:
ASRITRE R Equity holders of the Bank
- RERHESE TS - from continuing operations 31,451 27,852
- RE TR - from discontinued operations 36 - 2,589
31,451 30,441
eI Non-controlling interests
- REFFESEET - from continuing operations 164 147
- RE AR ISR - from discontinued operations 36 - 34
164 181
31,615 30,622
;4358 Dividends 17 16,141 16,959

559 & 313 H B A B#HZE The notes on pages 59 to 313 are an integral part of these financial statements.
ZEHRE Y -
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

(&%)
iE=s (Restated)
For the year ended 31 December Notes 2018 2017
BEREET A EETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
Profit for the year 31,615 30,622
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to income statement:
Premises:
Revaluation of premises 27 2,118 2,112
Deferred tax 34 (293) (277)
1,825 1,835
Equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income:
Change in fair value 31 N/A
Deferred tax (5) N/A
26 N/A
Own credit risk:
Change in fair value of own credit risk of
financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss 25 N/A
1,876 1,835
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

(continued)
(E5])
FFeE: (Restated)
#ZE 12 H 31 HILFEE For the year ended 31 December Notes 2018 2017
BEHET BEEETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
HB W EH R RN Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
HH : income statement:
PAAEEE LS A M 2T Debt instruments at fair value through other
w2 EBTA comprehensive income:
NP Change in fair value (1,441) N/A
BEAEFE bR s R Change in impairment allowances charged
to income statement 12 18 N/A
REE /e 2 S E Release upon disposal/redemption
R =R reclassified to income statement 10 (35) N/A
N EE R RS Amortisation of accumulated amount of fair
By E N R TR value hedge adjustment reclassified to
income statement 17 N/A
IEAERRIE Deferred tax 317 N/A
(1,124) N/A
o RS Available-for-sale securities:
AEEEL Change in fair value N/A 819
N B W i oy S 2 U Release upon disposal reclassified to
%% income statement 10 N/A (685)
et ERRE AR S Amortisation with respect to
FIHAE 84 4= BN EE available-for-sale securities transferred
RN to held-to-maturity securities reclassified
to income statement N/A 79
IEAERRIE Deferred tax N/A (26)
N/A 187
EHRE Currency translation difference (98) 459
[RIHH B 4K | 4% SE 75 2 i Release upon disposal of discontinued
EI RS operations reclassified to income statement 36 - 48
(1,222) 694
EEBRRGEHM SIS Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax 654 2,529
FEE2EK A% Total comprehensive income for the year 32,269 33,151
FEAG 2 TEUESAREE - Total comprehensive income attributable to:
ARERTTHE B Equity holders of the Bank 32,105 32,955
FlEzhl £ Non-controlling interests 164 196
32,269 33,151

559 £ 313 H [l E Al #E7 > The notes on pages 59 to 313 are an integral part of these financial statements.
4HRER Y ©
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

(=E%3)
fffz¥ (Restated)
As at 31 December Notes 2018 2017
AWEHEDT BEEET
HK$’'m HK$'m
ASSETS
Cash and balances and placements with banks
and other financial institutions 20 431,293 425,567
Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss 21 274,157 50,198
Derivative financial instruments 22 34,955 33,618
Hong Kong SAR Government certificates of
indebtedness 156,300 146,200
Advances and other accounts 23 1,281,764 1,189,932
Investment in securities 24 540,064 576,442
Interests in associates and joint ventures 25 482 415
Investment properties 26 19,988 19,949
Properties, plant and equipment 27 49,066 46,919
Deferred tax assets 34 82 51
Other assets 28 32,533 30,506
Total assets 2,820,684 2,519,797
LIABILITIES
Hong Kong SAR currency notes in circulation 29 156,300 146,200
Deposits and balances from banks and other
financial institutions 376,348 222,540
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss 30 15,535 19,720
Derivative financial instruments 22 30,812 30,982
Deposits from customers 31 1,896,663 1,778,188
Debt securities and certificates of deposit in
issue 32 9,453 21,641
Other accounts and provisions 33 47,943 40,741
Current tax liabilities 2,431 4,181
Deferred tax liabilities 34 5,715 5,658
Subordinated liabilities 35 13,246 18,980
Total liabilities 2,554,446 2,288,831
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

(&%)
ffz¥ (Restated)
As at 31 December Notes 2018 2017
AW EEIT BEEHET
HK$’'m HK$'m
EQUITY

Share capital 37 43,043 43,043
Reserves 199,441 187,652

Capital and reserves attributable to equity
holders of the Bank 242,484 230,695
Other equity instruments 38 23,476 -
Non-controlling interests 278 271
Total equity 266,238 230,966
Total liabilities and equity 2,820,684 2,519,797

The notes on pages 59 to 313 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Approved by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2019 and signed on behalf of the Board by:

=R GAO Yingxin
#HE Director
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At 1 January 2017, as
previously reported

Effect of merger of
entities under
common control

At 1 January 2017, as
restated

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive
income:
Premises

Available-for-sale
securities

Currency translation
difference

Release upon
disposal of
discontinued
operations
reclassified to
income statement

Total comprehensive
income

Acquisition of entities
under common
control

Transfer from retained
earnings

Release upon disposal
of discontinued
operations

Dividends

At 31 December 2017

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BRI AR TRE
Attributable to equity holders of the Bank
ikt
Reserves

AL

I ATHE

SRR

Reserve for

EE fair value

Hffif#f# changes of SRR

M Premises  available-  ERfEfEfET  HEGEE  AOMEET A@EEF Non-  FiAHEEH
Share revaluation for-sale Regulatory Translation Merger Retained #5851 controlling Total
capital reserve securities reserve* reserve reserve** earnings Total interests equity
AEETT BEEETT OBNEETT OBEEEITT BEEEIT BNEET OBEEETT BEEETT OBREETT O BEEET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
43,043 35,671 (1,795) 9,227 (1,217) 3,455 130,197 218,581 2,280 220,861
- - - - (59) 1,062 183 1,186 - 1,186
43,043 35,671 (1,795) 9,227 (1,276) 4,517 130,380 219,767 2,280 222,047
- - - - - - 30,441 30,441 181 30,622
- 1,835 - - - - - 1,835 - 1,835
- - 177 - - - - 177 10 187
- 2 (58) - 510 - - 454 5 459
- - 10 - 38 - - 48 - 48
- 1,837 129 - 548 - 30,441 32,955 196 33,151
R - - - - (6,618) - (6,618) - (6,618)
- - - 1,156 - 3,163 (4,319) - - -
- (752) - (159) - - 911 - (2,078) (2,078)
- - - - - - (15,409) (15,409) (127) (15,536)
43,043 36,756 (1,666) 10,224 (728) 1,062 142,004 230,695 271 230,966
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a2 . . . .
SEETEZSSETIR (&) Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)
RN ASRTTRER
Attributable to equity holders of the Bank
i
Reserves
APE
L_Lif
T
BAAPE
Ll
Reserve for
fair value
changes/
Reserve for BEEE
BE fair value Jalooss Hfir
HEfk@EHE changes of Reserve BT E JEEEHES
ByA&  Premises  available- forown  ESESfEfE S AP BERF] Other Non- AR
Share revaluation for-sale credit Regulatory Translation Merger Retained st equity controlling Total
capital reserve  securities risk reserve* reserve reserve** earnings Total instr t: int t: equity
HEEEL EWEEL ABWEEL AWOST ANEErL HESET BNEeEIL WESET ANEEL BWEERL ANEEL BWEEC
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
2018 421 H 1 At 1 January 2018, as
H > 5HAFIE previously reported 43,043 36,756 (1,666) - 10,224 (669) - 141,728 229,416 - 271 229,687
EifZHEEH > Effect of merger of
TR entities under
common control - - - - - (59) 1,062 276 1,279 - - 1,279
2018 4:1 H 1 At 1 January 2018, as
HZ &5 restated 43,043 36,756 (1,666) - 10,224 (728) 1,062 142,004 230,695 - 271 230,966
FRANE ISR Effect of adoption of
HAFEOGR HKFRS 9
& - - 854 - (750) - - (2,366) (2,262) - - (2,262)
720181 H 1  At1January 2018,
H> i after adoption of
TSR 9 HKFRS 9
i 43,043 36,756 (812) - 9,474 (728) 1,062 139,638 228,433 - 271 228,704
R Profit for the year - - - - - - - 31,451 31,451 - 164 31,615
HoAtrgzmis Other comprehensive
income:
R Premises - 1,825 - - - - - - 1,825 - - 1,825
[PRASEEE (9 Equity instruments
ST AHA at fair value
TS g Z B through other
HETE comprehensive
income - - 26 - - - - - 26 - - 26
EEIEEES Own credit risk - - - 25 - - - - 25 - _ 25
PAAEEEEE Debt instruments at
ST AHA S fair value through
HIY s 2 (5 other
HILE comprehensive
income - - (1.124) - - - - - (1,124) - - (1,124)
IR R Currency
translation
difference - - 27 - - (125) - - (98) - - (98)
Elyea ] Total comprehensive
income - 1,825 (1,071) 25 - (125) - 31,451 32,105 - 164 32,269
KRB LA FE(ES  Release upon
(BT AR A2 disposal of equity
ek BEtET B instruments at fair
i value through other
comprehensive
income:
difas Transfer - - 16 - - - - (16) - - - -
HRAEFGTE Deferred tax - - 3) - - - - - 3) - - 3)
FERTFRTE Current tax - - - - - - - 3 3 - - 3
R [ e F5 L2y Release upon
g LErASE  redemption of
i L R AE financial liabilities
i designated at fair
value through profit
or loss:
i Transfer - - - (20) - - - 20 - - - -
JETIE Current tax - - - - - - - 3) @) - - (©)
Wiz 4L E1%H  Acquisition of entities
Hhe under common
control - - - - - - (2,168) - (2,168) - - (2,168)
T E R Transfer from
retained earnings - - - - 1,022 - 1,106 (2,128) - - - -
STHEARHE TE  Issue of other equity
instruments - - - - - - - - - 23,476 - 23,476
;4358 Dividends - - - - - - - (15,883) (15,883) - (157)  (16,040)
2018 4£ 12 H At 31 December 2018
31 43,043 38,581 (1,870) 5 10,496 (853) - 153,082 242,484 23,476 278 266,238

* PREEEEEETRAI 395t S S RIS O SR R RURL
TEHEMSL - 128 S BRI R A B B B A (R TR
Jebge 2 P (AR AR S A AR mT TR ) -

* BHHEERE O ZILE R 2 BRI A & Of et L -

% 59 £ 313 HZ M@ A Bk Z R o -

In accordance with the requirements of the HKMA, the amounts are set aside for general banking risks, including
future losses or other unforeseeable risks, in addition to the loan impairment allowances recognised under HKAS
39/HKFRS 9.

entities under common control.
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** Merger reserve was arising on the application of merger accounting method in relation to the combination with

The notes on pages 59 to 313 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SFEHSAER

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

(&%)
fta (Restated)
212 A 31 HibFEE For the year ended 31 December Notes 2018 2017
BWEEIT BEEHET
HK$’m HK$'m
REEBZHERE Cash flows from operating activities
[RFERTEE IR 7 RA Operating cash inflow before taxation 39(a) 276,577 137,882
SEATE BRI Hong Kong profits tax paid (6,953) (4,518)
TSI Overseas profits tax paid (605) (408)
BTG HE AT Net cash inflow from operating activities 269,019 132,956
REREZHERE Cash flows from investing activities
HEYIZE - B30 Nkt Additions of properties, plant and equipment (1,164) (1,494)
REYIZE ~ 2o B FTiS K Proceeds from disposal of properties, plant
and equipment 6 13
HMEEY¥ Additions of investment properties 26 (13) (13)
R BT E Y ETESEE Proceeds from disposal of investment
properties - 2
YRS A B A EEHERE Dividend received from associates and joint
ventures 25 2 2
Wbt sz L [E P A Acquisition of entities under common control (2,168) (6,618)
HECAIEREEB IR Net cash inflow from disposal of discontinued
ez | operations 36 - 810
BEEBRZHSTIPE Net cash outflow from investing activities (3,337) (7,298)
RMERGZHESRE Cash flows from financing activities
SR SRITRR R Dividend paid to equity holders of the Bank (15,883) (15,409)
A IR AR R Dividend paid to non-controlling interests (157) (127)
BT EL M ISR T ELFHSE0E Proceeds from issuance of other equity
instruments 23,476 -
IE[E] B A A 20E Payment for redemption/repayment of
el R AT subordinated liabilities 39(b) (7,211) (16)
F{MEEEETR A Interest paid for subordinated liabilities 39(b) (1,087) (595)
REEG ISR BB Net cash outflow from financing activities (862) (16,147)
R4 R S5 [ R 4 TE H B Increase in cash and cash equivalents 264,820 109,511
W1 A1 H2RE KERRSIEH Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 379,885 253,997
PEREEEIN & R EREIRSTEEH Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and
bz cash equivalents (20,189) 16,377
#12 B 31 HZ2HE&EEFEHSEE Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 39(c) 624,516 379,885

%5 59 E 313 HZIff k@A #k
ZHHRRHE T

The notes on pages 59 to 313 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

A TSRt
1. EEEH

1. Principal activities

AER I E S SR B RAT A
fH.Z iR -

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of banking and related financial services.

RIRTR—FRNERKILH
MREHAE AR
FEACRE 1 SRhaRoRE 14 1 -

The Bank is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The address of its
registered office is 14/F, Bank of China Tower, 1 Garden Road, Hong Kong.

2. TEEER

2. Significant accounting policies

MR R GEMBREZE
BEETEREIIT -

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below.

SRR R = E Ay i) These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
W —HOHER IR A 5w 2 i stated.

L -
21 EEERE

2.1 Basis of preparation

REE Z G E % The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance

R GG R Z &
BB SRR (EEE
AR R — 4 - B e
FEFTA H 2 B B
AR AR Rk )
e AT (AFEIR
Bil) ZHUE -

PREFEI RS HRF T T RE S2 pR
AEGREL > M E LA
EEET AR E S
EREERE - AT EZLET
NIE g A 7E R
i (RIS AR TR )~ M
INHEYERZ B - DA
SHESIMR Z AL S P
HERE S EIIR RS
FEREHRERERIIEZ B
FETEHEHEE - AN EZRE
A R mIEE & DR E
E A PEIRR N BRA L
EYREFETIRR > WESTHIFIE
PRt 2.2 52 2.23 »

2 I B 1 e HI e
MR RS TE
RZGHHER - EHEINFE
TAER AR st BRI
TEHARFET - PSR
FEHET ~ HE S ~ 50
GEMBRERIN S BEARE
BB bR > AR
$3e

with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs is a collective term which
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, HKASs and
Interpretations) issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income, financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
financial instruments) at fair value through profit or loss, precious metals at fair value,
investment properties which are carried at fair value and premises which are carried at
fair value or revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Disposal group and repossessed assets held for sale are stated at
the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell as further explained
in Notes 2.2 and 2.23 respectively.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the Management to exercise
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.
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MR (8
2. FEEHBIR (8)

21 FEEE (8)
(a) 201841 F 1 0%

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(a) Standards, amendments and interpretation that are initially adopted for the

Bt S R ERER financial year beginning on 1 January 2018
RZEER] ~ BET g
HOEAZEE  RAEE
RA/ 55T/ 58 Applicabl for — STAS IS
. inancial years urrently
Standards/Amendments/ WNE beginning relevant to
Interpretation Content on/after the Group
ARG 28 57(2011) e R EEREZIRE 2018 1 H1H &
(&fesT)
HKAS 28 (2011)(Amendments) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 1 January 2018  No
RGNS 40 5 (&E3T) IEWEER 2018 F1H1H 2
HKAS 40 (Amendments) Transfers of Investment Property 1 January 2018  Yes
A EE A 1 5% ER RN E B s e A 2018 F1H1H &
(&f&sT)
HKFRS 1 (Amendments) First-Time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting 1 January 2018  No
Standards
A EE A 2 5% Bl BRG]+ BRI ESEEAE S Z Y o Rt & 2018 F1 H1H &
(&f&s51)
HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Share-Based Payment: Classification and Measurement of 1 January 2018  No
Share-Based Payment Transactions
AN SRS 9 5% BRI TE 2018 F1H1H &
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018  Yes
EAV B S EAISE 9 5f (KE3T) &mTE @ AR AmErTRATE R 2019F1H1H 2
HKFRS 9 (Amendments) Financial Instruments: Prepayment Features with Negative 1 January 2019  Yes
Compensation
TR S EE RIS 15 9 TR E P EERIWA 20181 H1H 2
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018  Yes
ARV EE RIS 15 5R(KUEST) TEM B EAEAISE 15 5t 288 2018 1 H1H &2
HKFRS 15 (Amendments) Clarifications to HKFRS 15 1 January 2018  Yes
AR S R AR R 22 9f HNEEAZ 5 R AT HE 2018 F1H1H 2
HK(IFRIC) - Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration 1 January 2018  Yes
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MR (8
2. FEEHBIR (8)

21 EREE (H)

(a) 201841 A 1 H#E
FRSAR B R TR H KR
RZZER ~ BRI e

(&)

o TGRS 40

e (RERT) THRE
UESID L E A
HELLZE ¥ B2
PR R A
S EYIE -
RO R YA R4
VIsETT G > BRI
EIREYZENES
V-QiNERE e L
- AR Y
DU FAAERTHYEDR
AR ITR
-2 SRR
MHBHmFIRZAERKN

oy
W o

7 S R s
FOS BRTH -
3] % P 5 i o 4
FOS T RRTR
B A 417 5 1ol T I B
SEAZE & &
2008 fERlEHKTY
A [OIE - AR
WAL 9 5
(HKFRS 9) - BI&E#
MG 2T
ST B PR U
A 9 BhivErat
AR B B
SRR B
— B ARt T
e ) AR -
e L JE gy FL R R
R P Et
T3 o AEBIR AT
PRI 2019 421
1 RS SR A A 3y
o 1 s
BOSREREED &
BLE - &F KA
{8 /Y $2 A 18 A %5
B (EETEETIERT
BH - MUTHY
HKFRS 9 2 1Va¢
e

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Standards, amendments and interpretation that are initially adopted for the

financial year beginning on 1 January 2018 (continued)

« HKAS 40 (Amendments), “Transfers of Investment Property”. The amendments
clarify that there must be a change in use when a property is transferred to or from
investment properties. A change in use would involve an assessment of whether a
property meets, or has ceased to meet, the definition of investment property; and
supporting evidence that a change in use has occurred. The requirements of
these amendments are consistent with the Group’s current practice and do not
have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

« HKFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”. The issuance of IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
completes the International Accounting Standards Board’s comprehensive
response to the 2008 financial crisis. HKFRS 9, the equivalent standard of IFRS 9
under HKFRS, includes a logical model for classification and measurement, a
single, forward-looking “expected loss” impairment model and a tighter linkage of
risk management to hedge accounting. The Group has also early adopted HKFRS
9 (Amendments) “Financial Instruments: Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation” which is mandatorily effective for reporting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2019 with earlier application permitted. The changes introduced
in HKFRS 9 are highlighted as follows:
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21 mEERE (8

(a) R 201841 H 1 HiE
PRI e R R ER
%R ~ BRT R eRg

() AFRETE

SEREE R
hFERE &S
A1 39 5N
Y PURERE 1 A
R LU 2 —
feEt A« (1)
DABEERpATER
SEtE - (R
HEZ EET AR
i E &
dEteE (BrTst
RIS ~ BEDH
EJESZEL’@%Z%
=P IER
Eﬁ?&ﬁi\ﬁfﬂléﬁ
W) > =(3)
DA ESE R
UN St ih
& SREEN
Sy RERE A R
e - HARATE
%]J ﬁé ﬁﬁ 10 HT E@
E © o REUA
RS B < il
T E 6 7
A DKsZ TR
E"Jéfﬁlfﬁﬁiﬁ &

» BRSERN
?E SEFEREA R
9E e

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Standards, amendments and interpretation that are initially adopted for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2018 (continued)

(i) Classification and measurement

Financial assets are required to be classified into one of the following
measurement categories from the original four categories under HKAS 39: (1)
measured subsequently at amortised cost, (2) measured subsequently at fair
value through other comprehensive income (all fair value changes other than
interest accrual, amortisation and impairment will be recognised in other
comprehensive income), or (3) measured subsequently at fair value through
profit or loss. Classification of financial assets was made on transition, and
subsequently on initial recognition. The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing its financial instruments and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the instruments, or the election of fair value option.
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A ssRRMIEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. FTEEHEER (8) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
21 FEEIEE (8) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(a) 7+ 201841 B 1 Hig (a) Standards, amendments and interpretation that are initially adopted for the

B e R E K ER financial year beginning on 1 January 2018 (continued)

Rz ~ EET 2R

€:-))

(i) SEFETE (&) (i) Classification and measurement (continued)

AR SEE (] For a description of how the Group classifies and measures financial assets and
SYRE R E AR recognises related gains and losses under HKFRS 9, please refer to the
& E N BB respective accounting policy in Note 2.8.
HKFRS 9 HfEgd
FHEA = S5t
HIRREA - SR
Ifts: 2.8 FHEARY
PR -
SRIEEN S HE The classification and measurement requirements of financial liabilities have
Kt EEA LR been basically carried forward with minimal amendments from HKAS 39.
BT EEEEE

HI% 39 BHifTE
% HASE
;T -
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MR (8
2. FEEHBIR (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

21 mEERE (8

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) R 201841 H 1 HiE
PRI e R R ER

(a) Standards, amendments and interpretation that are initially adopted for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2018 (continued)

FZZER] ~ EaT Raefg

(&)

() TERE (8

REHEEEE
e - AR R
YA P EERE
PR E SR T
BUERT - NSER
LA EED
A AN
5T e HY 5 T
BN E
B WYURHEAL
EHIYLES © WERE
5 1R R AR Y R B
o FI L8 R UL
RN - HILEK
& 7 R B
A EETEEEC - A
BIENVEES
BIIRR Uz
N - TR G
FESERCHE N BB AE
) 46 e 8 1) <2
FheERFEE > B
TREMCEEHTATAL -
BN e He At 4=
Wi 2 HY 2 E H 1R
FHER T EE
Wease - HAEY
FERR IS - LAl
] PR G BRI
LA EES
EMAHNEE
JoR\ g 52 S i 2E A=
FHRZED - IR
THRAMNE S
15 B E be i 2 T
GO E=S SN
FHR RS -
R - AEEIZHE
HRITE B E
5 g B9 2 P E
S8 & 7 & )
Ho B2 HA 2
[Eilke

(i) Classification and measurement (continued)

The accounting for fair value option of financial liabilities was changed to
address own credit risk. The amount of change in fair value attributable to
changes in the credit risk of the financial liabilities designated at fair value is
presented in other comprehensive income. The remaining amount of the total
gain or loss is included in the income statement. If this creates or enlarges an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss, then the whole fair value change would
be presented in the income statement. The determination of whether there will
be a mismatch will need to be made at initial recognition of individual financial
liabilites and will not be re-assessed. Amounts presented in other
comprehensive income are not subsequently reclassified to the income
statement but may be transferred within equity. This removes the volatility in
profit or loss that was caused by changes in the credit risk of financial
liabilities elected to be measured at fair value. It also means that gains caused
by the deterioration of an entity's own credit risk on such liabilities will no
longer be recognised in profit or loss. No accumulated fair value change in
own credit risk is reclassified by the Group from retained earnings to other
comprehensive income upon transition.
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AT (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
2. FTEEHEER (8) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

21 FEEIEE (8) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) 7+ 201841 B 1 Hig (a) Standards, amendments and interpretation that are initially adopted for the
B e R E K ER financial year beginning on 1 January 2018 (continued)
%R ~ BRT R eRg
(&)

(i) SEFETE (&) (i) Classification and measurement (continued)

ZAEAIREUH T The standard also eliminates the exception from fair value measurement
HNF AT contained in HKAS 39 for derivative financial instruments that are linked to and
HIZE 39 58AR must be settled by delivery of an unquoted equity instrument.

Bk F TR T

HLH ) R AT UL

TSR T H A

o DL SEET

EHEK -

#20184FE1 A1 Upon transition, the Group has performed a detailed analysis for each class of
HiEER - A& the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities on 1 January 2018, and the
BEHEEME below accompanying notes explain the original measurement categories under
B Rl A i HKAS 39 and the new measurement categories under HKFRS 9.

TTErd oy - B

THEFERET %

HEAETEN

% 39 SRR ERH

HKFRS 9 7 &

REFHIE ST 7

B EEMN -

65



@ ¥ () 4L £5 (&%) B R A F

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

MR (8
2. FEEHBIR (8)

2.1 mEEE (8

(@) 7201841 H 1 HE
FRIGRI s TR E R

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Rz %Rl ~ 5T R

(&)

(i) PERETE (8

financial year beginning on 1 January 2018 (continued)

(i) Classification and measurement (continued)

(a) Standards, amendments and interpretation that are initially adopted for the

REBIAE
REBEE LA
REEUWE  HIE 39T 9T
REEBGEER] wmEREH] HERDAE FAREAEHE
E 395 T EOGET Original New
EESE Bro¥E gross gross
Original New carrying carrying
classification  classification amount EHOE BEEE amount
SREE s under under under Re- Re- under
Financial assets Notes HKAS 39 HKFRS 9 HKAS 39 classification measurement HKFRS 9
BAREET EREET BEEHETT BEEET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
JERAFER <8 R AT $RA T R EL A < Rl L&R AC 425,567 - 425,567
2 48R K ERRFIT
Cash and balances and
placements with banks and
other financial institutions
DA ESE(LE B SRE FVPL (T) FVPL (T) 49,710 - 49,710
. B
E - B TR (a) AFS FVPL (M) 884 884
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss - debt (®) AFS FVPL (D) 7,818 7,818
instruments
PAAHEEE (LR AR 2 2 RA FVPL (T) FVPL (T) 203 - 203
- R R (©) FVPL (D) FVPL (M) 285 - 285

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss - equity
securities and fund
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Rz %Rl ~ 5T R

(&)

(i) PERETE (8

(i) Classification and measurement (continued)

(a) Standards, amendments and interpretation that are initially adopted for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2018 (continued)

REBIAE
REEEE HEAEHEE
WEEWE  HIE395HT 9H®T
REEg HmEEH]  JFARDAEE FARMELEE
E 395 T EOGET Original New
JERE FYE gross gross
Original New carrying carrying
classification classification amount BSOS BHEE amount
SREE s under under under Re- Re- under
Financial assets Notes HKAS 39 HKFRS 9 HKAS 39 classification measurement HKFRS 9
BAREET BAREET BEEET BEEER
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
AR T BN & (RS L&R AC 146,200 - - 146,200
Hong Kong SAR Government
certificates of indebtedness
e TR FVPL (T) FVPL (T) 33,618 - - 33,618
Derivative financial instruments
SRR HoAt R IH L&R AC 1,194,038 - - 1,194,038
Advances and other accounts
e 515,761 - - 515,761
EHRE - (M TA AFS Fvoc
Investment in securities - debt @) AFS FVPL (M) 884 (884) B B
instruments (b) AFS FVPL (D) 7,818 (7,818) - -
(d) AFS AC 20,931 (20,931) - -
(e) L&R FVOCI - 499 (1) 498
() HTM AC 29,648 - 22 29,670
(d) AFS AC - 20,931 508 21,439
(e) L&R FvOCI 499 (499) - -
EHRE - RIS (@) AFS FvOCI 946 - - 946
Investment in securities - equity
securities
HoAth R L&R AC 23,241 - - 23,241
Other financial assets
SRIBEMET
Total financial assets 2,449,349 - 529 2,449,878
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Rz %Rl ~ 5T R

(&)

(i) PERETE (8

(i) Classification and measurement (continued)

(a) Standards, amendments and interpretation that are initially adopted for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2018 (continued)

BB
NEEGHE BWELERIE
WEEYLE  HIE39®T 9T
REEGEAER] WERH  JRARESE PIREARE
FE39HT FEIPT Original New
FESE ¥rorE gross gross
Original New carrying carrying
classification classification amount B HHNEE amount
SRARE M under under under Re- Re- under
Financial liabilities Notes HKAS 39 HKFRS 9 HKAS 39 classification measurement HKFRS 9
BAYEET BAYEET BEEET B¥EHET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
AR R TBIE SR AC AC 146,200 - - 146,200
Hong Kong SAR currency notes
in circulation
ﬁEg&ﬁ:ﬁ%ﬁ%%Zﬁ%ﬁ&% AC AC 222,540 - - 222,540
R
Deposits and balances from
banks and other financial
institutions
DI EEZ et AfRs 2 SR E FVPL (T) FVPL (T) 16,936 - - 16,936
& FVPL (D) FVPL (D) 2,784 - - 2,784
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
Pr R TR FVPL (T) FVPL (T) 30,982 - - 30,982
Derivative financial instruments
Z R AC AC 1,778,188 - - 1,778,188
Deposits from customers
EEI TGS 7 B AT AC AC 21,641 - - 21,641
Debt securities and certificates
of deposit in issue
%iEafE AC AC 63 - - 63
Subordinated liabilities (h) AC FVPL (D) 18,917 - 2,068 20,985
HAtr R EE AC AC 34,419 - - 34,419
Other financial liabilities
SRIAEET
Total financial liabilities 2,272,670 - 2,068 2,274,738
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Rz %Rl ~ 5T R

(i) PERETE (8

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Standards, amendments and interpretation that are initially adopted for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2018 (continued)

(i) Classification and measurement (continued)

FEfE -

Remarks:

FVPL (T) AP EBEHAEBRSZRGUEE, /&8 Trading assets/liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

FVPL (M) HAasaE o E BN FEEREET ABZSZ&RE | Other financial assets mandatorily classified at

BE fair value through profit or loss

FVPL (D) ARERDAFER(LETABRRZ SREE &R Financial assetsl/liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss

FVOCI DA ES LT A EfreEmkEs Fair value through other comprehensive income

AC BarEA Amortised cost

AFS HHEHE Available-for-sale

HTM RHEZSIHH Held-to-maturity

L&R EE R ERGK Loans and receivables
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 mEEE (8

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(@) 7201841 H 1 HE

(a) Standards, amendments and interpretation that are initially adopted for the

Ryl R e A= financial year beginning on 1 January 2018 (continued)
R 2R ~ BE] e
€ )
(i) FTEEE (&) (i) Classification and measurement (continued)
B - Notes:
(a) =4y LAl fit & (a) Certain capital instruments classified as AFS with principal written-down features or

(b)

(d)

IR B AT
HAN#ET A
ERTFHELE
B 17 LR 7 J8AT
RN L
AR ERHE
HE eIk
& A i RORE A
AR Z S
HSZfT  SFRE Y
{bET AdE% -

oy |
TR E R LA
FEZARE AR
SRR - IR
R s S B R A A
B DL P E 2 L

ATFAER (LA
B35 1 3 RAE K
e o 25 1
W 7 0 3188
B -

IR 5 DL A
# (b3t A 2E
L EE RS
HKFRS 9 5y
52 ) P DL 24 18
% {3k AdH 23
& PRI R P
Fh 4 345 12 9
3K e

o7 IRy T 4
B Y 5 75 58 7R
By Ry DU R
AEEHE - B1E
F2 g H S s 1
Fo Gl LAHL &
LSRR EAET
HrEFEHE SR
RO -

equity conversion features at the point of non-viability of issuers were reclassified as
FVPL because their cash flows are not solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding.

(b) Certain AFS securities were designated as financial assets at FVPL because the Group
holds related derivatives at FVPL and these designations can eliminate or significantly
reduce an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

(c) Funds are mandatorily measured at FVPL under HKFRS 9. As such, these investments
are no longer required to be designated at FVPL.

(d) Certain debt securities investments were reclassified as AC out of AFS because these
securities fulfil the cash flow characteristics test and shall be managed solely for
collecting contractual cash flows.
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MR (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. FEEHBER (8) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
21 FEHRIEE () 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(a) A 201841 H 1 H#E (a) Standards, amendments and interpretation that are initially adopted for the
BB s EE R financial year beginning on 1 January 2018 (continued)
R 2R ~ BE] e
(&)
(i) PERETE (') (i) Classification and measurement (continued)
B - Notes:
(e) =49 &3k b FEUL (e) Certain L&R debt securities investments were reclassified as FVOCI because their
FRE B B LA contractual cash flows demonstrate solely payments of principal and interest on the
EEEEE AR principal outstanding and are held within a business model of both collecting contractual
4 U 7= 1 B cash flows and selling investments.
& IERER
EHBBRER
B Ry G B A B R
EN RN A
ZHRB WA
ME > R
Ty [E] IF U L& 49
R e R
f #oFHAEZEFM (f) Certain HTM securities were reclassified as AC. Since these debt securities were AFS
Hes 58 EE securities which had previously been reclassified to HTM securities under HKAS 39, the
DL 65 e AR 5T change in carrying value upon transition is due to the remeasurement from initial
EOE o KB recognition of the debt securities.

HIBEF AT
RIS 39 5%
T & AT
FrA EFIHHE
7% NIRRT IR
EESEHRE
TR i ACH RS fF B2
WatE -

(9) =047 & B a4t (g9) The Group elected to present in other comprehensive income the changes in fair value of
BRI certain equity investments previously classified as AFS because these investments are
5 [ 1 5 B3R held as long-term strategic investments.
WEMERFA o HUEEE
DA SEE ARG
A oAt 4 T U 2
fEsteE -
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2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(a) Standards, amendments and interpretation that are initially adopted for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2018 (continued)

Rz %Rl ~ 5T R
(&)

(i) PERETE (8
IfaE

(h) H&EBE AR
%39 BET > &k
TH%RE AR
LUk 65 B A 5T 2
Fe LN P68 0
RN A L
HARE R - 18
EEXR - et
b RIERF
fHEL AP EE

bR AR B B
HLEZEAT
RE7E AL 1Y 5t 88

fic -

TR ERGE BN
B SRR 9 5
% BB
RuprdZ-

HA R EER S
LB N

BB LH

Notes:

(i) Classification and measurement (continued)

(h) Under HKAS 39, the subordinated liabilities issued were measured at amortised cost and
fair value hedge was applied to hedge the interest rate risk of the liabilities. Upon
transition, the hedge accounting ceased and the subordinated liabilities were designated
in its entirety as at FVPL to eliminate or significantly reduce an accounting mismatch
between the liabilities and the hedging instruments that would otherwise arise.

The following table presents the financial impact resulted from the reclassification

upon adoption of HKFRS 9.

Assuming no
reclassification

#2018 £ A 2018 £¢ A2 B
12H31H 128 31H i, i
ZARTE{E ZAE Losses
Carrying value Fair value recognised in
as at as at other
31 December 31 December comprehensive
2018 2018 income
AEETT EREET AEEET
HK$’'m HK$’m HK$’m
Reclassification
from
available-for-sale
to amortised cost
Debt instruments 19,889 19,306 (1,426)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Standards, amendments and interpretation that are initially adopted for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2018 (continued)

(ii) Impairment

The standard introduces a new forward-looking “expected-loss” impairment
model that will require more timely recognition of expected credit losses. The
impairment allowances for financial instruments that are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income
(debt instruments), irrevocable loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts will be governed by this standard. Specifically, it requires entities to
assess credit risk and estimate ECL with an unbiased and probability-weighted
approach. Not only information about past events, but all available information
including current conditions and forecast of future economic conditions shall be
considered with discounting for time value of money. The Group will account for
expected credit losses within the next 12 months as Stage 1 when those
financial instruments are initially recognised; and recognise lifetime expected
credit losses as Stage 2 when there has been significant increases in credit risk
since initial recognition. Lifetime expected credit losses will be recognised for
credit-impaired financial instruments as Stage 3 if one or more events that have
a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred and interest will then be accrued net of the impairment amount of
the respective Stage 3 financial assets.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(a) Standards, amendments and interpretation that are initially adopted for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2018 (continued)

(ii) Impairment (continued)

For assets within the scope of the HKFRS 9 impairment model, the resulting
impairment under HKFRS 9 will probably be more forward-looking than that
under HKAS 39. Their impairment losses are generally expected to increase

and more volatile. The following table illustrates the impact of the adoption of

HKFRS 9’s impairment requirements on the Group as at 1 January 2018.

HERIRI 2R
20174 720184
12H31HM 181E0E
BB s R
39/ T FHT
At 31 December At 1 January
2017 BHIGTE 2018
under Re- under
FRAEE Impairment allowances HKAS 39 measurement HKFRS 9
AW EET AW EET AW EET
HK$’m HK$’'m HK$’'m
R & AT BRTT e HoA < Fli%#  Cash and balances and
7 4R K EHATERL placements with banks and
other financial institutions - 83 83
B HAHRIE Advances and other accounts 4,106 852 4,958
EEEE - B LE Investment in securities - debt
instruments
- HJ i E B SO EUGREE 4y - AFS and L&R reclassified to
B DA B et AFA FVOCI
Ealve - "1 11
- I E KA EREIHESY - AFS and HTM reclassified to
EEER 107N AC 45 7 52
RO M E R ETE Loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts - 352 352
HoAthr Others 5 9 14
4=t Total 4,156 1,414 5,570
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2. FEEHESE (8) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
21 FEHRIEE () 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(a) A 201841 H 1 H#E (a) Standards, amendments and interpretation that are initially adopted for the

BRI E s FEEE KRR financial year beginning on 1 January 2018 (continued)

R 2R ~ BE] e

(&)

(iii) &gzt (iii) Hedge accounting
HKFRS 9 AR The requirements under HKFRS 9 related to hedge accounting would better
e sty IR E align the accounting treatments with risk management activities and enable
1 4 & 5t s B B entities to better reflect these activities in their financial statements. It relaxes

JoR\ g i B U6 B
0 HRER
A5 R R
W SR B
e HRIRER R
A B RE A
FVEK > (Y
Joe\ P 7 B SR s 2
REVS S Pd=F i
1 ok T By AT
o i 5 e Bl 2
TS TR
DUR 2 55 0] B
I H HYFEEE -
2% HE T8 S 7%
RIEHE % H
B st BB
HRPEVER

AEEEENE
HRIE Hi I 1 E
HKFRS 9 - [g#*
HKFRS 9 J¢H4
B R P —
stz IR -
fEFH HKFRS 9 iy
B at 2ORR
G H AL EAY
BWRELERN

7

the requirements for assessing hedge effectiveness which may enable more
risk management strategies to be eligible for hedge accounting. It also relaxes
the rules on using non-derivative financial instruments as hedging instruments
and allows greater flexibility on hedged items. Users of the financial
statements will be provided with more relevant information about the effect of
hedge accounting on the financial statements.

The Group has chosen to prospectively apply HKFRS 9 on transition. As
HKFRS 9 does not change the general principles of accounting for effective
hedges, applying the hedge accounting requirements of HKFRS 9 will not
have a significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Standards, amendments and interpretation that are initially adopted for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2018 (continued)

(iv) Overall impact of adoption of HKFRS 9 on equity

The Group has taken an exemption in accordance with the transitional
provision of HKFRS 9 not to restate comparative information for prior periods
with respect to classification and measurement. The adoption of HKFRS 9
reduced the net assets after tax at 1 January 2018 by approximately HK$2.3
billion in aggregate, and the Group’s total capital ratio decreased by
approximately 10 basis points. The following table summarises the impact, net
of tax, of transition to HKFRS 9 on the opening balances of reserves and
retained earnings.
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2, FEEHECR (&) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
21 FEHRIEE () 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(a) A 201841 H 1 H#E (a) Standards, amendments and interpretation that are initially adopted for the
BB S s EE financial year beginning on 1 January 2018 (continued)
Rz 20 - BET Rk
(&)
(iv) $RFIHKFRS 9f&%f (iv) Overall impact of adoption of HKFRS 9 on equity (continued)
ERNEEPE
€:-))
HAreHBEs
K EBEEF]
Other
comprehensive
income and
retained earnings
BEEHET
HK$’'m
N EEDEAE Reserve for fair value changes
#2017 4512 B 31 HVEAFRER4E Closing balance as at 31 December 2017 (1,666)
BB T EHESR R ENGRESE BN Reclassification of debt instruments from L&R to FVOCI
SLET AH A2 FU S 1)
BT E At e E o e A Reclassification of debt instruments from AFS to AC 508
BB T EHTHHEESEBLATEE(L  Release upon reclassification of debt instruments from AFS to
FH AR (GRMIME) 2R FVPL(Mandatory) 4
ES T EETHEESEBUAT(ESE(E  Release upon reclassification of debt instruments from AFS to
ARG (€ ) 2R FVPL(Designated) 358
ErES T ERFEEFHHEE B#E:  Release upon reclassification of certain debt instruments from
A HTM to AC ™" 22
HKFRS 9 AN E S Eat A At &1L Recognition of ECL under HKFRS 9 for debt securities at
L INETS s e S0V TR S 1L FVOCI 111
_FltTE H #YIR IER R Deferred tax in relation to the above (148)
854
722018 48 1 H 1 HHEwIER4E Opening balance as at 1 January 2018 (812)
BB Regulatory reserve
#2017 412 H 31 HAVHARERZE Closing balance as at 31 December 2017 10,224
B¢ HKFRS 9 B 2 {7 K FECE (#%(#  Release to retained earnings upon adoption of HKFRS 9 (750)
#2018 41 H 1 HIHAWIaS%4E Opening balance as at 1 January 2018 9,474
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Standards, amendments and interpretation that are initially adopted for the

BB S s EE financial year beginning on 1 January 2018 (continued)
R 2R ~ BE] e
(&)
(iv) SRFIHKFRS 9t%%f (iv) Overall impact of adoption of HKFRS 9 on equity (continued)
ERNEEPE
€:-))
HArmBEs
K EBEEF]
Other
comprehensive
income and
retained earnings
BEEHETT
HK$’'m
el Retained earnings
#2017 4212 B 31 HiyEARER%E Closing balance as at 31 December 2017 142,004
B T EMEE SR H B ME Bk A Reclassification of debt instruments from HTM to AC 22
BlEE e A E S E BN EEE(L  Reclassification of subordinated liabilities from AC to
Fh AR (FE) FVPL(Designated) (2,068)
BB T EREEEESEELAEES{L  Release upon reclassification of debt instruments from AFS to
Fh AR (TR ) s FVPL(Mandatory) (4)
BB T EAEEEESEELAEES{L  Release upon reclassification of debt instruments from AFS to
P AfBIE (F5E) FVPL(Designated) (358)
EHES T ERmEE ST HE Y EB#E:  Release upon reclassification of certain debt instruments from
R 7 HTM to AC ™" (22)
HKFRS 9 HERZAY TEHA(S F 8% Recognition of ECL under HKFRS 9 (1,414)
TRt RS 39 SEEECH E 0 Reversal of interest previously reduced under HKAS 39
i 111
Bl H Y E AR R Current tax in relation to the above 432
Bl H BB IER R Deferred tax in relation to the above 185
%P HKFRS 9 s 5 BL S i Release from regulatory reserve upon adoption of HKFRS 9 750
(2,366)
2018 £ 1 H 1 AR WIasEE Opening balance as at 1 January 2018 139,638

=

1. T B B 5y S B A
DURIERE R A SR A EEIHIE % - 1
HKFRS 9 SERIARLH » [T B AT
152 1 o 0 1 55 0 20T A 5 O B
i -

Note:

1. Certain debt securities that were originally AFS securities had been reclassified to HTM
securities in prior years. Upon adoption of HKFRS 9, the original AFS reserve that was

subject to amortisation was reversed to retained earnings directly.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Standards, amendments and interpretation that are initially adopted for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 15, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. HKFRS 15 applies a
single model and specifies the accounting treatment for all revenue arising from
contracts with customers. The new standard is based on the core principle that
revenue is recognised to reflect the consideration expected to be entitied when
control of promised good or service transfers to customer. It is also applicable to
the recognition and measurement of gains or losses on the sale of some
non-financial assets such as properties or equipment that are not an output of
ordinary activities.
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AT (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. FEEHBER (8) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
21 FEHRIEE () 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(a) A 201841 H 1 H#E (a) Standards, amendments and interpretation that are initially adopted for the

Ryl R e A= financial year beginning on 1 January 2018 (continued)

R 2R ~ BE] e

(&)
AR HE A % TEAY The Group provides a wide range of financial services in exchange for fee or
4 Bl AR 75 DL A YRR commission income. Except for a few services, such as safe deposit box
BRI - bR service, of which revenue is recognised over time so as to depict the pattern of
{ERIARH (ORER delivery of services, most of the commission income generated from the
AR5 ) By B AR provision of financial services, such as security brokerage fee, credit card
75 B RS 1 O T A interchange fees and fees which are not an integral part of the effective yield,

W AT — BRI
HER 28N - R B
0 < BCA 7 7% < il
Pl 75 1Y JE 4 22 5 58
Joi FYY BEL — I 3B 1 fiE
o B R AL
2 (SHRCHRE R
7 JE I B A SR
By i R 75
% - REEFIREE
A @IS
WLER - Ry &R
B Z PEE 58
HAEBEARIREE
AT EGER s B
At SR B R B A
5] B A AR DL AR Y
T BRI o

AEE DEERTH
B oA ®’RA
HKFRS 15 - H %
HKFRS 15 47 %

JFURI - P L 2 AT
RN SUEN R EEES
FEELERNTE -

are recognised on a point-in-time basis, i.e. when the performance obligation is
completed. Loan syndication fees are as before recognised as revenue when
the related syndication arrangement has been completed and the Group has
retained no part of the loan package for itself or has retained a part at the same
effective interest rate as applicable to the other participants.

The Group adopted HKFRS 15 by using the modified retrospective method of
adoption. As HKFRS 15 does not change the general principles of accounting
for revenue recognition, the application of this standard does not have a
material impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Standards, amendments and interpretation that are initially adopted for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2018 (continued)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22, *“Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration”. The interpretation specifies that the exchange rate on the date of
cash payment or receipt is used for transactions that involve advance
consideration paid or received in a foreign currency. The application of this
interpretation does not have a material impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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2. FEEHESE (8) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
21 FEHRIEE () 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(b) © 28 H#5 {8 i o 55 & 1 (b) Standards, amendments and interpretation issued that are not yet mandatorily
ER B EHAEHR effective and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2018
2018 FHRATERGNIZ
A - BFT R
EHEALFE NATE
#EH /BT, R Applicable for B EERE
s y / e financial years Currently
tandards/Amendments, NE beginning relevant to
Interpretations Content on/after the Group
FAEGTHRE 1 S ERE A WERMENER 20201 H1H 2
%8 5F (&1EET)
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material 1 January 2020 Yes
(Amendments)
EEEHEAE 19 97(2011) SHEIEIE - GEEEE R 20191 H1H &
(&fEE])
HKAS 19 (2011) (Amendments) Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement 1 January 2019 No
EErs il 28 55(2011) K HEEEAR SRS AR MR EE0EA FFE =
EEM SRS 10 9
&EsT)
HKAS 28 (2011) and Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its  To be determined  Yes
HKFRS 10 (Amendments) Associate or Joint Venture
GRS 28 57(2011) RirE ke EREZINE 2019F1H1H 2
€ (D)
HKAS 28 (2011) (Amendments) Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures 1 January 2019 Yes
EEMHHRE RS 3 9% (KE85]) HEENER 2020 1 H1H 2
HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Definition of a Business 1 January 2020 Yes
BRSNS 16 9% HE 2019 F1H1H 2
HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019 Yes
TS AERES 23 9 FriSttpE i 2 A e M 20191 H1H 2
HK (IFRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 1 January 2019 Yes
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2. FEEHBER (8) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.1 {EEIEE (&) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(b) B EM{E iR 58 &1 (b) Standards, amendments and interpretation issued that are not yet mandatorily

ERMRBERAER effective and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2018 (continued)

1 2018 FRATHRAIZ

A BRT RakfE (8D

THE B ALEEHMER 2 & Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable to the

B RS RAEETA Group is as follows:

T

o TG EHEHIE1SE * HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 (Amendments), “Definition of Material”. The amendments
FE ARG HERFES clarify the definition of materiality of information and align the definition used
ACEAPDUE SEVN across other accounting standards. The amendments are to be applied
MEAVER IR ES prospectively and early application is permitted. The application of these
BREHERMEZ EF amendments will not have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

HIEET > AR
PEERATER B
ZIAMERT AR AR

F R et ZE TR ATER
4 - FETERANEZ(EST
AR B R R
RHEERGE -

o FHEEETAEHIEE28 * HKAS 28 (2011) and HKFRS 10 (Amendments), “Sale or Contribution of Assets
FR(2011) R & B 75 between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture”. The amendments
HEAEAIE105% (& address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in HKAS 28
&=T) M - EEHH (2011) and those in HKFRS 10, in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets
EHAEBRRFE N between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The main consequence of
EEHEIUEA 2% the amendments is that a full gain or loss is recognised when a transaction
&St & B Gs involves a business (whether it is housed in a subsidiary or not). A partial gain or
AR 2857 (2011 ) Bl loss is recognised when a transaction involves assets that do not constitute a
A HELERE business, even if these assets are housed in a subsidiary. The amendments are to
1058 2 B EERE be applied prospectively and early application is permitted. The application of
FEHBER A AR these amendments will not have a material impact on the Group’s financial
SEZERVEE B statements.

AR —EHE -
HEHIEE] 2 THEE
RE—ER S
RS (s E
SERENIEAE) -
JERERR 2B &
—ERXGHEE
BRZE AR —
el iias (BIEEmE
[N FHE ) e
HoriELs o WIRIEET
FRRINEMEER I B ST
ASEERATERAN - 2R
ZEETE AR

BWRLHERY
@ .
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MR (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. FEEHBER (8) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
21 FEHRIEE () 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(b) B EM{E iR 58 &1 (b) Standards, amendments and interpretation issued that are not yet mandatorily

EWNRIGERAEHR effective and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2018 (continued)

1 2018 FRATHRAIZ

A BRT RakfE (8D

o HFHEGEAEAIE28 ¢ HKAS 28 (2011) (Amendments), “Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
57(2011) (&fEET) Ventures”. The amendments clarify that long-term interests such as preference

DS e E B shares or shareholder’s loans, to which the equity method shall not be applied, are

ZHCE o HAEE TN in the scope of both HKFRS 9 and HKAS 28 and explains that HKFRS 9 is applied
NAE S AR independently before the allocation of losses under the equity method. The
IR (g amendments are to be applied retrospectively and early application is permitted.
SRR B S ) The application of the amendments will not have a material impact on the Group’s
BT AT RS A financial statements.

BUESCL &=
AR 285RAVHIE -
SRR R S I bR
A R B R e R
FHOFRAYEOR - A%
HEZRIED IR - #%
{EETRIEIMEIRAI K
BETHEATERG - FRH]
FZEETH A BB

BHHRELBERNY
5

o FHMBEHSLENZE ¢ HKFRS 3 (Amendments), “Definition of a Business”. The amendments clarify the
3% (K& b definition of a business, with the objective of assisting entities to determine
EWTESE o ZIE5TE whether a business combination transaction should be accounted for as a
EESFLENES business combination or as an asset acquisition. The amendments are to be
B2 meh e applied prospectively and early application is permitted. The application of this
BEGHTHEEE amendment will not have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.
PEREA e 2
Wi ARE - s2TEEET
RIS IEER R st

ASERERTERGY - THET
RLERTHASER
HIMA A A ER

By
-
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 GEEGEE (8)
(b) AR A AE 18 R 5

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) Standards, amendments and interpretation issued that are not yet mandatorily

HEZ &S - 5
ah o BREHEE RSN
7%<$H)\H¢L155i AT
g at AE A B AT 5%
Tmﬂ‘l THEgEHHL
1A E S
EHETIZE  HIRH
}\}HY— THERE HIH
PG ET & AAAH
B ER R
FHIERY WEE/EHEEJ &’
ERNHEEE -
% %fﬂ)\ﬁ#ﬁ%ﬁﬂ
EEARERRET
BEEMFIEER DU
ﬁﬁﬁ’f%é:éfﬁﬁ’ﬂ?ﬁ%%
A > TR
TR BT E /XEEI’J
HEEM - g%
%fﬂ)\Tu}%EXH’%
s E R R
ﬁﬂfﬂ (EIFHEHA Ry
12{E HECE ) FIE
HEGEHE - 18
FFERT » HEEH
ST E AN £
iRy - HAHAE
FT R A A A
U% 17595 T 09 Al
TR A H
ke

EWNRIGERAEHR effective and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2018 (continued)
1 2018 FRATHRAIZ
A BRT RakfE (8D
A EH S LR ¢ HKFRS 16, “Leases”. HKFRS 16 supersedes the existing standard and
1655 TfHE - & interpretations related to leases. It applies a single control model to identify leases
W& #ERAIEE 16 and distinguish between leases and service contracts. Significant changes to
TR IR A B & lessee accounting are introduced, with the distinction between operating and
TR FETHER KR finance leases removed. Also, subject to practical expedients, lessees will account
P o B E— for all leases in a similar way as the current finance lease accounting under HKAS
PR DLk B R & 17, i.e. the lessee will recognise and measure the corresponding “right-of-use”
RITHE KRS ETE - asset and lease liability at the inception of the lease by discounting the total future
FRFH B S e B lease payment. Subsequently, the lessee will recognise interest expense through
SIAE KM » D the unwinding of the lease liability, and the expense on the depreciation of the
THBRECETH & BRI right-of-use asset, instead of recognising as rental expenses under operating

leases. As a practical expedient, the lessee can elect not to apply this accounting
model to short-term leases (i.e. where the lease term is 12 months or less) and to
leases of low-value assets, in which case the rental expenses would continue to
be recognised on a systematic basis over the lease term. There will be no
significant changes to the lessor accounting requirements as compared with the
current HKAS 17.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 GEEGEE (8)
(b) AR A AE 18 R 5

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) Standards, amendments and interpretation issued that are not yet mandatorily

EWNRIGERAEHR effective and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2018 (continued)

7 2018 SFEERRTERANZ

#H -~ BT RaerE (&)

o REEIEBREEER The Group is considering to elect to use the modified retrospective approach for
FAEETHYE AL the adoption of HKFRS 16 and will recognise the cumulative effect of the initial
R4 E B B i application as an adjustment to the opening balances at 1 January 2019 with no

RIEE1655% - M HRERT
HREMHT R
fER20194E1 H1H
HI&SeRiyHEE - H

restatement of the comparative information. As a reference, at 31 December 2018,
the Group’s future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases as shown in Note 42 amounted to approximately HK$1.4 billion, the
majority of which are payable between 1 and 5 years after the reporting date.

AN EYILLETE R - Upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 16, the opening balances of lease liabilities
PUM sE 4219 47 72 By and the corresponding right-of-use assets are estimated to be adjusted by HK$1.7

2% > jA2018412
A3 HASEEPA
ARECETHE T
AR e EAH E 7K
Q4T
RSy A S H
®R1EESHEM EL
FIHY - 12201941 71
HE R AEEN TS
PR AER S 16570 -
THE A R ARRER
A E N FRBIL I
B BRI 3 2R 1T
8T - EURERGHT S
i B EAE 20194
MR N S
M ~ HIER R Al
AREE A P -

billion, net of tax, as at 1 January 2019. The above overall financial impact is
subject to change of assumptions, judgements and estimates to be finalised in the
financial statements of 2019.
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(c) SEEEFEMHREEN

(b) Standards, amendments and interpretation issued that are not yet mandatorily

effective and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2018 (continued)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23, “Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments”. The interpretation
specifies how an entity should reflect and measure the effects of uncertainty in
accounting for income taxes by determining how probable that a taxation authority
will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The interpretation can either be applied on
a fully retrospective basis or on a modified retrospective basis. Earlier application
is permitted. The application of this interpretation will not have a material impact
on the Group's financial statements.

(c) Improvements to HKFRSs

o SREEEREATS ¢ “Improvements to HKFRSs” contains a number of amendments to HKFRSs which
HEHI | B TEE the HKICPA considers not urgent but necessary. It comprises amendments that
i e A ey | result in accounting changes for presentation, recognition or measurement
B & (0 5 SR B 5 purpose as well as terminology or editorial amendments related to a variety of
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individual HKFRSs. These improvements will not have a material impact on the
Group’s financial statements.
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The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Bank and
all of its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2018.

(1) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities), directly or indirectly, controlled
by the Group. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee). When the
Bank has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including: (a) the contractual arrangement
with the other vote holders of the investee; (b) rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and (c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets (including
goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any
non-controlling interests; and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment in that former subsidiary retained;
reclassifies the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income to the
income statement or retained earnings, as appropriate, on the same basis as directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities; recognises any resulting differences as
gain or loss in the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(1) Subsidiaries (continued)

If the Group is committed by the Board to a sale plan involving loss of control of a
subsidiary (a disposal group) that is unlikely to be withdrawn or changed significantly,
the Group shall classify all the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary as held for sale
only when the following criteria are met on or before the end of the reporting period:
(i) the carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use; (ii) the subsidiary is available for immediate sale in its
present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for the sale of its
kind and its sale must be highly probable, including a high probability of shareholders’
approval, if needed; (iii) an active programme to locate a buyer at a reasonable price
has been initiated and to complete the sale within one year, regardless of whether the
Group will or will not retain a non-controlling interest after the sale. Disposal group
(other than investment properties and financial instruments) is initially recognised and
subsequently remeasured at the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell. Properties, plant and equipment classified as held for sale are not
depreciated.

(i) Business combinations not under common control

Acquisitions of businesses not under common control are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business combination is
the fair values at the acquisition date of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred (including contingent consideration arrangement) and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed in the income statement as incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(1) Subsidiaries (continued)

(i) Business combinations not under common control (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If after assessment, the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in the income statement as a gain on bargain. Subsequently, goodwill
is subject to impairment testing at least annually.

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination
includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at fair value at the
acquisition date and considered as part of the consideration transferred in a
business combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with
the corresponding adjustments being made against goodwill or gain on bargain
purchase. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from
additional information obtained during the measurement period about facts and
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date. The measurement period
does not exceed one year from the acquisition date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(1) Subsidiaries (continued)

(i) Business combinations not under common control (continued)

On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

(ii) Business combinations under common control

For a combination with a company under common control, the merger accounting
method will be applied. The principle of merger accounting is a way to combine
companies under common control as though the business of the acquiree had
always been carried out by the acquirer. The Group’s consolidated financial
statements represent the consolidated results, consolidated cash flows and
consolidated financial position of the Group as if any such combination had
occurred from the date when the Bank and the acquiree first came under common
control (i.e. no fair value adjustment on the date of combination is required). The
difference between the consideration and carrying amount at the time of
combination is recognised in equity. The effects of all transactions between the
Group and the acquiree, whether occurring before or after the combination, are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
Comparative amounts are presented as if the acquiree had been combined at the
beginning of the previous reporting period. The transaction costs for the
combination will be expensed in the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(1) Subsidiaries (continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated; unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment of the assets transferred. Where
necessary, accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Bank’s balance sheet, the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
allowance for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Bank on the basis of dividends received and receivable. Dividend income from
subsidiaries is recognised in the income statement when the right to receive payment
is established.

(2) Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests without change of control
as transactions with equity owners of the Group. For purchases from non-controlling
interests, the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recognised in equity.
Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also recognised in
equity.

When the Group ceases to have control or significant influence, any retained interest
in the entity is re-measured to its fair value, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in the income statement. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequent accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to the income statement or retained
earnings, as appropriate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(3) Associates and joint ventures

An associate is the entity over which the Group has significant influence but not
control or joint control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint
control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists
only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

Investments in associates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting and are initially recognised at cost, unless it is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).The
Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures include goodwill, net of
accumulated impairment loss and any related accumulated foreign currency
translation difference.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of associates or joint
ventures is recognised in the income statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The accumulated post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the cost of the investment. When the Group’s share
of losses in an associate or a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate or joint venture, the Group does not recognise further losses unless the
Group has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associates or joint
ventures.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(3) Associates and joint ventures (continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates or joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associates or joint
ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment of the asset transferred.

If the ownership interest in an associate or a joint venture is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to the income statement where
appropriate.

2.3 Segmental reporting

The operating result of segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the Management Committee, which is the chief operating decision
maker of the Group, that allocates resources and assesses the performance of operating
segments. Income and expenses directly associated with each segment are included in
determining operating segment performance.

2.4 Foreign currency translation

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Bank’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or exchange rates at the end of
the reporting period for items that are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions and monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies translated at the exchange rate at the end of the
reporting period are recognised directly in the income statement, except when deferred in
other comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow hedges or qualifying net investment
hedges.

94



©)

¥ 5 4L £7 (5 %) H BA

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

MR (8
2. FEEHBIR (8)

2.4

SNERE (8D

DU PEE LEt ABATE
WEMERERA Y A B T I
OB Y s B TR Y —
g3 o BRI TE
B bat AR 2 EYE B
SN R AL Y MRS
HAHEER T 7 Rl 7
er - RPN SRR S
TS Z3 AR I (L Y LA f2 A8
BIMERSY - 5 E SRR
BT SR E g
TN - TR AR (E DY
Hopth e A B I HERD S
2 -

HNERIEMEIEE (Il
IPEE L AR 2
B ) B MAEEETIELS
PR A i BB TR —EP 5 -
mIFEfteREE (Fla
DLAHEE bt AHA 22 1H
Wods < AR D) RIS
HH B R A S A
7 o

P AL B N FE LU BT
RE R TERIRSE - HSES R
TR LR 7 g 5 R o
[Leas

o BERAFEGIHEED
LU IERIAE

o WA TR
"R

o FTAELZ R E NS
HAth = m R  EzH E
T Z B R R YT

e

P EHE R - R
SN 2P ~ RO
HA e R Ry B AR
Bl AP E A R
BHIAH A A T R R 53 B
Rt T 2 B
RS - BRI
EICENE - AN SRR
FYIE Rt B U BT 1R
—&koy o AR T EN D
BEWERRN -

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

Translation differences on monetary securities held at fair value through profit or loss are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. Changes in the fair value of monetary
securities denominated in foreign currency classified as fair value through other
comprehensive income are analysed between translation differences resulting from
changes in the amortised cost of the securities and other changes in the carrying amount
of the securities. Translation differences related to changes in the amortised cost are
recognised in the income statement, and other changes in the carrying amount are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as equities held at fair value through
profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets such as equities classified as fair value through other
comprehensive income are included in other comprehensive income.

The results and financial position of all the group entities that have a functional currency
different from Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong dollars as follows:

. assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the end of the reporting period;

« income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates; and

« all resulting exchange differences are recognised in the currency translation reserve in
equity through other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment
in foreign entities, borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of
such investments are taken to other comprehensive income and are accumulated
separately in equity in the translation reserve. When a foreign entity is disposed, such
exchange differences are reclassified from equity to the income statement, as part of the
gain or loss on sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date the derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Fair values are obtained
from quoted market prices in active markets, including recent market transactions, and
through the use of valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow models and
option pricing models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair
value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

Certain derivatives embedded in financial liabilities are treated as separate derivatives
when their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host
contract and the host contract is not carried at fair value through profit or loss. These
embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
the income statement.

Derivatives are categorised as held for trading and changes in their fair value are
recognised immediately in the income statement unless they are designated as hedges
and are effective hedging instruments, then they are subject to measurement under the
hedge accounting requirements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

For derivative instruments designated as hedging instrument and are effectively hedged,
the method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends on the nature of the
item being hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as either:

(a) hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or firm commitments (fair
value hedge); or

(b) hedges of a particular risk associated with a highly probable future cash flow
attributable to a recognised asset or liability, or a highly probable forecast
transaction (cash flow hedge).

The Group documents at inception the relationship between hedging instruments and
hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at the
hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of the economic relationship, credit risks, the
hedge ratio and an evaluation of the effectiveness of the hedging instruments in
offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items. These criteria should be
met before a hedge can be qualified to be accounted for under hedge accounting. Hedge
accounting may become ineffective if the hedging instrument and the hedged item lose
economic relationship, or a significant change of the counterparties’ credit risks that
dominates the fair value change of the hedging instruments or the hedged items.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

(a) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualified as effective
fair value hedges are recognised in the income statement, together with any changes
in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.

When fair value hedge accounting is applied to fixed rate financial liabilities, the
carrying values of the financial liabilities are adjusted for changes in fair value that are
attributable to the interest rate risk being hedged with the derivative instruments
rather than carried at amortised cost, such carrying value adjustment is recognised in
the income statement together with the changes in fair value of the hedging
derivatives.

If the hedge relationship no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting or is
terminated for reasons other than derecognition, e.g. due to repayment of the hedged
item, the unamortised carrying value adjustment (the difference between the carrying
value of the hedged item at the time of termination and the value at which it would
have been carried had the hedge never existed) to the hedged item is amortised to
the income statement over the remaining life of the hedged item by the effective
interest method. If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised carrying value
adjustment is recognised immediately in the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

(b) Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated
and qualified as cash flow hedges are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in the income statement. Amounts accumulated in equity are
reclassified to the income statement in the periods when the hedged item affects
profit or loss.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the
criteria for hedge accounting, any accumulated gain or loss existing in equity at that
time remains in equity and is recognised in the income statement when the forecast
transaction is ultimately recognised in the income statement. When a forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the accumulated gain or loss that was
reported in equity is immediately reclassified to the income statement.

(c) Net investment hedge

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for in a similar way to
cash flow hedges. A gain or loss on the effective portion of the hedging instrument is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity; a gain or loss
on the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income statement.
Accumulated gains and losses previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to the income statement upon disposal of the foreign
operation as part of the gain or loss on disposal.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
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Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

2.7 Interest income and expense and fee and commission income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement for all financial
assets and financial liabilities using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or a financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or,
when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or
financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates future
cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (e.g. prepayment
options or incentives relating to residential mortgage loans) but does not consider future
credit losses. The calculation includes fees, premiums or discounts and basis points paid
or received between parties to the contract, and directly attributable origination fees and
costs which represent an integral part of the effective yield.

For all hedge transactions where interest rate is the hedged risk, interest income or
interest expense from hedged instruments such as fixed rate debt securities or fixed rate
subordinated notes are disclosed on a net basis together with net interest
income/expense arising from the hedging instrument such as interest rate swap.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
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2.7 Interest income and expense and fee and commission income and expense
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(continued)

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a
result of an impairment loss, interest income is recognised on the written down value
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Subsequent unwinding of the discount allowance is
recognised as interest income.

Fee and commission income and expenses that are not an integral part of the effective
yield are recognised on an accrual basis ratably over the period when the related service
is provided, such as administrative fee, asset management fee and custody services
fee. Loan syndication fees are recognised as revenue when the related syndication
arrangement has been completed and the Group has retained no part of the loan
package for itself or has retained a part at the same effective interest rate as applicable
to the other participants.

2.8 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets into one of the following measurement
categories at initial recognition as subsequently measured at: fair value through profit or
loss (“FVPL”), amortised cost and fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”). The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing its
financial instruments and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the instruments, or
the election of fair value option. All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value.
Except for financial assets carried at FVPL, all transaction costs of financial assets are
included in their initial carrying amounts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8 Financial assets (continued)

(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

A financial asset, other than those held for trading or mandatorily measured at fair
value, will be designated as a financial asset at FVPL, if it eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an
accounting mismatch”) that would otherwise arise from measuring the financial assets
or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases, and is so designated
by the Management.

These assets are recognised initially at fair value, with transaction costs taken directly
to the income statement, and are subsequently re-measured at fair value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8 Financial assets (continued)

(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Gains and losses from changes in the fair value of such assets (excluding the interest
component) are reported in net trading gain/loss or net gain/loss on financial
instruments designated at FVPL. The interest component is reported as part of the
interest income. Dividends on equity instruments of this category are also recognised
in net trading gain/loss or net gain/loss on financial instruments designated at FVPL
when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

(2) Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost if both of
the following conditions are met: (i) the financial assets are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows (“hold-to-collect” business model), and (ii) the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding on specified dates. They are initially recognised at fair
value plus any directly attributable transaction costs and are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method less allowances for impairment
losses. Interest income which includes the amortisation of premium or discount is
calculated using the effective interest method and is recognised in the income
statement, gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8 Financial assets (continued)

(3) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Debt instruments are classified as subsequently measured at FVOCI if both of the
following conditions are met: (i) the financial assets are held within a business model
with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling, and (ii)
the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding on specified
dates.

Financial assets at FVOCI are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at fair value.
Unrealised gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the financial
assets are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, until the financial
asset is derecognised or impaired at which time the accumulated gain or loss
previously recognised in equity should be transferred to the income statement.
However, interest income which includes the amortisation of premium and discount is
calculated using the effective interest method and is recognised in the income
statement.

For equity investments, an irrevocable election can be made at initial recognition to
recognise unrealised and realised fair value gains or losses in other comprehensive
income without subsequent reclassification of fair value gains or losses to the income
statement even upon disposal. Dividends on equity instruments classified as FVOCI
are recognised in other operating income when the Group’s right to receive payment
is established. Equity instruments designated at FVOCI are not subject to impairment
assessment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8 Financial assets (continued)

(3) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (continued)

The treatment of translation differences on FVOCI securities is dealt with in Note 2.4.

Policy prior to 1 January 2018

The Group classifies its financial assets into the following four categories: financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
securities and available-for-sale financial assets. The Management determines the
classification of investments at initial recognition. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets are held. All financial assets are recognised
initially at fair value. Except for financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss,
all transaction costs of financial assets are included in their initial carrying amounts.

(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for trading, and those
designated at fair value through profit or loss at inception.

A financial asset which has been acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of
selling in the short term or is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that
are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking is classified as held for trading. Derivatives are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedges.
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Policy prior to 1 January 2018 (continued)
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Gains and losses from changes in the fair value of such assets (excluding the interest
component) are reported in net trading gain/loss or net gain/loss on financial
instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss. The interest component is
reported as part of interest income. Dividends on equity instruments of this category
are also recognised in net trading gain/loss or net gain/loss on financial instruments
designated at fair value through profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
payment is established.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market, including placements with and
advances to banks and other financial institutions, investment debt securities without
an active market and loans and advances to customers. They arise when the Group
provides money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the
receivable. They are initially recorded at fair value plus any directly attributable
transaction costs and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowances for impairment losses.

108



©)

¥ 5 4L £7 (5 %) H BA

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

MBI (&)
2. FEEEBER (&)

2.8 &REE (&)

2018 4£ 1 A 1 HEIHIEGE

D)
() FFERFHIHKRE

Pap Vs ek IRk
BRI ARRE R G T
BHHEE - WHEAEE
B AT HAERE 2 AR i
FRH > BLUR AR R
EREBRRENRAZ
FIMIH Z &RERE - W
AREEFTH BT R
FHA HREEDALIERR
ARG  JRH
MR AL RE AT
IR E R
B T A (S AR
B REREE

SRERBCE 5 5i(ifE Ry
AEFPHEET LR
RERE T - RIEE(E &
BRI ZERE - &
HEH IV HE A E
EREE - FrAEEI
HfEEAHE EE
PEAHRARY S B P AT
FIHAANR » M LAE PR
SRR RATEER A
FRIBE IR LER TR
GiEta -

(4) THHESREE

A E R A
FE R IR R
DUB A 174 Bl oy e
BREE - LESRA
FERIRFA IR TERE -
BEAETRERBREES
FEOREHR ~ PR R
o {4 B 52 Bl 1T 404 1
£

=

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8 Financial assets (continued)

Policy prior to 1 January 2018 (continued)

(3) Held-to-maturity

Financial assets classified as held-to-maturity are those traded in active markets, with
fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the Group’s Management
has both the positive intention and the ability to hold to maturity. Where the Group sold
held-to-maturity assets (i) other than due to an isolated event beyond the Group’s
control, non-recurring and could not have been reasonably anticipated by the Group,
such as a significant deterioration in the issuer’s creditworthiness, significant change
in statutory or regulatory requirement; or (ii) other than an insignificant amount of
held-to-maturity assets, the entire category would be tainted and reclassified as
available-for-sale. They are initially recorded at fair value plus any directly attributable
transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowances for impairment losses.

(4) Available-for-sale

Financial assets classified as available-for-sale are those that are either designated
as such or are not classified in any of the other categories. They are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time but may be sold in response to needs for liquidity
or changes in interest rates, exchange rates or equity prices.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8 Financial assets (continued)

Policy prior to 1 January 2018 (continued)

(4) Available-for-sale (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recorded at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at fair value.
Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of investments are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income, until the financial asset is
derecognised or impaired at which time the accumulated gain or loss previously
recognised in equity should be transferred to the income statement. However, interest
income which includes the amortisation of premium and discount is calculated using
the effective interest method and is recognised in the income statement. Dividends on
equity instruments classified as available-for-sale are recognised in other operating
income when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category, the fair value
carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised in other
comprehensive income is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of the
investment using the effective interest method. Any difference between the new
amortised cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over the remaining life of
the financial asset using the effective interest method. If the financial asset is
subsequently determined to be impaired, the amount recorded in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss immediately.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.9 Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities under the following categories: trading
liabilities, financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss, deposits, debt
securities and certificates of deposit in issue, subordinated liabilities, and other liabilities.
All financial liabilities are classified at inception and recognised initially at fair value, and
in the case of financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, plus or minus
transaction costs.

(1) Trading liabilities

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is incurred principally for the
purpose of repurchasing in the short term. Derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedges. It is measured at fair value
and any gains and losses from changes in fair value are recognised in the income
statement.

(2) Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

A financial liability can be designated at fair value through profit or loss if it is so
designated at inception. Financial liabilities so designated include certain certificates
of deposit in issue and certain deposits received from customers that are embedded
with derivatives. A financial liability is so designated if it meets one of the following
criteria:
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.9 Financial liabilities (continued)

(2) Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

« eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
(sometimes referred to as “an accounting mismatch”) that would otherwise arise
from measuring the financial liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them
on different bases; or

« applies to a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both that is managed and
its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management or investment strategy, and information about the Group is
provided internally on that basis to the key management; or

« relates to financial liabilities containing one or more embedded derivatives that
significantly modify the cash flow resulting from those financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value and any gains and losses from changes in fair value are recognised in the
income statement, except for fair value changes arising from own credit risks are
recognised as other comprehensive income and subsequently reclassified to the
retained earnings upon derecognition.

112



@ ¥ 8 4L £7 (5 ) B mAT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

MR (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. FEEHBER (8) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
29 &RiEFE (8) 2.9 Financial liabilities (continued)

(3) X - EBTEBES (3) Deposits, debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue, subordinated
RS - mEAER liabilities and other liabilities
Hitr & &
B S EEE Deposits and debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue, together with
B E DL SEEE ST subordinated liabilities and other liabilities, other than those classified as trading
ANIEZR 2 SREEI liabilities or designated at fair value through profit or loss are carried at amortised
HApFRR > BT ES cost. Any difference (if available) between proceeds net of transaction costs and the
B NERGE - REA redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the period using the
15 5 H & (E e DL eR effective interest method.
BTN - fOERZE 22

A% Z ORI B [ 1
HAVER (F) - R
IR SIER N
R HERE -

2018 /£ 1 A 1 HEIHIBGE Policy prior to 1 January 2018

AR DU SR e The Group classifies its financial liabilities under the following categories: trading
BiE  XHEERE - RER liabilities, financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss, deposits, debt
DL HEEE BT ATBS 2 4 securities and certificates of deposit in issue, subordinated liabilities, and other liabilities.
Rl - 730 E8TES All financial liabilities are classified at inception and recognised initially at fair value.

s B e ~ IR AE R
HAh & 5 - FrA e
AL Gy 8 I FROE HOY DA
I EEETIAHERD. -

W FE Ry A AR LT A Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
{82s 2 R DL SEES value and any gains and losses from changes in fair value, including own credit risks, are
e > AP ESEmES > recognised in the income statement.

Wamss R (RS EM
[\ ) HERETAULZR RN

113



©)

¥ 5 4L £7 (5 %) H BA

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

MR (8
2. FEEHBIR (8)

210 MHBERSH

MBERE R HEEA
FEAE E B (F 1 AR BERR 2
Fra N ELEB A Z HAYE
T [ K Im EAT ERK
R SRR A HE
M EE A 2 IR R A HE B K
zaldE -

BB R [R DL & R s 4%
& HRY A P EVIAHERS Ry
BRI ERT WHPRIN B
R T HARARIE R
T - Rtk AEEZHE
HHE LU W 2 s B et
& 1 ()kEE 2.14 Fratey
TRIIE BRI EAE R B
(i) FAa R < Rk
SUENYE IR U SR
< FEtisy (WEn) - i
BiEtraE A EIZEEH
PR TSR -

2018 /£ 1 H 1 HEIWESE

BB R IR DL & R o 4%
& HRY A P EYIRHERS R
SR WY IR
R T HARARIE R
T - Rtk AEEZHE
BT RS et
(MREEHEG RS 37
5T ARBE BRI
HE ) HEZ B8 i)
IEHERD & B B4
TERHE A R TR
FEHEE (AEHD - T
BErRE F AR B AT
Wegm R R -

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.10 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a contract between the
holder and the debtor.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially recognised as financial liabilities and reported
under “Other accounts and provisions” in the financial statements at fair value on the
date the guarantees were given. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities
under such guarantees are measured at the higher of (i) an ECL provision as set out in
Note 2.14 and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, accumulated
amortisation recognised over the life of the guarantee on a straight-line basis. Any
changes in the liability relating to financial guarantee contracts are taken to the income
statement.

Policy prior to 1 January 2018

Financial guarantee contracts are initially recognised as financial liabilities and reported
under “Other accounts and provisions” in the financial statements at fair value on the
date the guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities
under such guarantees are measured at the higher of (i) the amount determined in
accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”
and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, accumulated
amortisation recognised over the life of the guarantee on a straight-line basis. Any
changes in the liability relating to financial guarantee contracts are taken to the income
statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.11 Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Purchases and sales of financial assets subsequently measured at FVPL, securities
measured at FVOCI and amortised costs are recognised on the trade date, the date on
which the Group purchases or sells the assets. Loans and advances and other financial
assets (except investment securities without an active market) are recognised when
cash is advanced to the counterparties. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or where the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. When the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset, the Group either continues to recognise the transferred financial asset to
the extent of its continuing involvement if control remains or derecognise it if there is no
retained control.

Trading liabilities, financial liabilities designated at FVPL and debt securities and
certificates of deposit in issue are recognised on the trade date. Deposits that are not
designated at FVPL are recognised when money is received from customers, other
liabilities are recognised when such obligations arise. Financial liabilities are
derecognised from the balance sheet when and only when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. If the Group purchases its own debt, it is
removed from the balance sheet, and the difference between the carrying amount of a
liability and the consideration paid is included in profit or loss, except for the portion
arising from the change of own credit risk in the case of liabilities designated at FVPL, if
any.

Securities and bills sold to a counterparty with an obligation to repurchase at a
pre-determined price on a specified future date under a repurchase agreement are
referred to as repos. Securities and bills purchased from a counterparty with an
obligation to re-sell to the counterparty at a pre-determined price on a specified future
date under a resale agreement are referred to as reverse repos.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.11 Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments (continued)

Repos or securities lending are initially recognised as due to banks, placements from
banks and other financial institutions, as appropriate, at the actual amount of cash
received from the counterparty. Financial assets given as collateral for repurchase
agreements are not derecognised and are recorded as investment in securities or
financial assets at FVPL. Reverse repos or securities borrowings with a “hold-to-collect”
business model and contractual cash flow of solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are initially recognised in the balance sheet as cash and
due from banks or placements with banks and other financial institutions, as
appropriate, at the actual amount of cash paid to the counterparty. Financial assets
received as collateral under reverse repurchase agreements are not recognised on the
balance sheet. The difference between the sale and the repurchase price is recognised
as interest income or interest expense over the life of the agreements using the effective
interest method.

2.12 Fair value measurement

The Group measures its premises and investment properties, precious metals and
certain financial instruments at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants in its principal market or the most
advantageous market accessible by the Group at the measurement date.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.12 Fair value measurement (continued)

The Group uses the price within the bid-offer spread that is most representative of the
fair value of financial instruments, where appropriate, includes using on the residual of
the net offsetting risk position of portfolios of financial assets and financial liabilities in
cases the Group manages such groups of financial assets and liabilities according to
their net market risk exposures. Despite the Group measures the fair value of these
groups of financial instruments on a net basis, the underlying financial assets and
financial liabilites are separately presented in the financial statements unless the
offsetting criteria stated in Note 2.6 are fulfilled.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

If the market for assets or liabilities is not active, the Group uses valuation techniques,
including the use of recent arm’s length transactions, discounted cash flow analysis,
option pricing models and other valuation techniques commonly used by market
participants, that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

2.13 Precious metals

Precious metals comprise gold, silver and other precious metals. Precious metals are
initially recognised and subsequently re-measured at fair value. Mark-to-market gains or
losses on precious metals are included in net trading gain/loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) on the
following items:

« financial assets measured at amortised cost;

« debt securities measured at FVOCI; and

* loan commitments and financial guarantees issued, which are not measured at FVPL.

Financial assets measured at fair value, including units in bond funds, equity securities
measured at FVPL, equity securities designated at FVOCI (non-recycling) and
derivative financial assets, are not subject to the ECL assessment.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash
flows due to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive).

For undrawn loan commitments and financial guarantees outstanding, expected cash
shortfalls are measured as the difference between (i) the contractual cash flows that
would be due to the Group if the holder/beneficiary of the loan commitment/financial
guarantee draws down/claims on the loan/financial guarantee and (ii) the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive if the loan is drawn down/financial guarantee is
claimed.

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted where the effect of discounting is material.
The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable and supportable
information that is available. This includes information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from possible default
events within 12 months after the reporting date; or

lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items to which the ECL model applies.

The Group will account for expected credit losses within the next 12 months as Stage 1
when those financial instruments are initially recognised; and to recognise lifetime
expected credit losses as Stage 2 when there has been significant increases in credit
risk since initial recognition. Lifetime expected credit losses will be recognised for
credit-impaired financial instruments as Stage 3 if one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred and interest will then be accrued net of the impairment amount of the
respective Stage 3 financial assets.

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument (including a loan
commitment and financial guarantee) has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default occurring on the financial instrument
assessed at the reporting date with that assessed at the date of initial recognition. In
making this reassessment, the Group considers that a default event occurs when (i) the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by
the Group to actions such as realising securities (if any is held); or (ii) the financial asset
is 90 days past due. The Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition:

« failure to make payments of principal or interest on their contractually due dates;

» an actual or expected significant deterioration in a financial instrument’s external or
internal credit rating (if available);

» an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor;
and

+ existing or forecast changes in the technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.

For loan commitments and financial guarantees, the date of initial recognition for the
purpose of assessing ECLs is considered to be the date that the Group becomes a
party to the irrevocable commitment. In assessing whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition of a loan commitment or a financial
guarantee, the Group considers changes in the risk of default occurring on the loan
and advances to which the loan commitment/financial guarantee relates.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an individual basis or a collective basis.
When the assessment is performed on a collective basis, the financial instruments are
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due status and credit
risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect changes in the financial
instrument’s credit risk since initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss allowance account, except for investments in debt
securities that are measured at FVOCI, for which the loss allowance is recorded in the
fair value reserve.

120



©)

¥ 5 4L £7 (5 %) H BA

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

MBI (&)
2. FEEEBER (&)

214 SREERE (&)

TRBEHEE 2.7 FIE AL
R AT E ) R TR (L R
o BRIEZ ERE RN G
BEE (=) fEIL
BT FIRWAT 542 S
HEERI R (HINRTSE
EfOBRELLER ) 515 -

B EREE R /£
SERFTA D E R K E
BR R FEEHZE
B HELTIE - SR E
FYRRAEL PR R RS - B4 S
SHEEE T RIS TEE) -
R 15 S ] Y < A URAE
Wga R PR RE RS -

WRAE AR A & st i
] JBRAEL PR R AE (A B AR
0o ERE SR R D BAERR R
R LR EAA ZER
(Bl A5 HEPARAY
B ) 0 R ATEHERL A
EARE TR S A% 2 Al
EURE < 30 A R AE
e T LAIEIHES - [Sl#ERY£:30
JRUT R R ISR,

2018 4£ 1 A 1 HEIIEGE

AREFE PN EE &SR
I B — 4 R R
B RE R B g s
Tt - A T B ERE R
2 B < B A AE A TERR
RAE A IS B
(TR ) - BZdR%
FAFE AT SE (G ST 4 I R
HENZ SRS ERTE
STARAGH A A
S % TA B 4 < R S E A
FOAE By % AR RE G HE
TAE TR - B8 2 —4H
Rl E F AR IR E 2
FHERAEARETEE
EEIBALY DU AT ELR
KB B E AR

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Interest income recognised in accordance with Note 2.7 is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired (Stage
3), in which case interest income is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the
gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

When a financial asset is uncollectible, it is written off against the related allowance for
impairment losses. Such assets are written off after all the necessary procedures have
been completed and the amount of the loss has been determined. The assets written off
are still subject to enforcement activity. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off decrease the amount of impairment losses in the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of allowance for impairment losses decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously
recognised impairment loss to the extent of its decrease is reversed by adjusting the
allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in the income statement.

Policy prior to 1 January 2018

The Group assesses as at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only
if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”’) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the reliably estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets. Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial
assets may be impaired includes observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about the following probable loss events:
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(i) ST AKAENBEF] (i) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;
e EE U I PRI

(i) &Y - FlanmiHEH K (i) a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal
FIEEA GRS payment;

(iii) PRI FE B 3 A 2 W B (iii) the Group granting to the borrower, for economic or legal reasons relating to the
IR & £ B > &8/ 50k borrower’s financial difficulty, a concession that the lender would not otherwise
BIFEE - REESTE consider;
RNTE— M L N
AR TEHREZEE
foRfE

(RO (iv) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
HEATHA B A reorganisation;

(v) R BN B 2 2% & (v) the disappearance of an active market or downgrading below investment grade level
il 2 U R T 5 0H for that financial asset because of financial difficulties; or

KB E AR AR R
EREPHILIT 5 =

(vi) B 22 219 & R B R 3 (vi) observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
— & REEMHEE future cash flows from a group of financial assets since the initial recognition of those
47 RARTEET IR &% assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with the individual financial
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ATREEZ TR MAH
A I 1% 316 A B BH i Ay
ZHEE N AE R &

BlAE - EREE

c BHEZMIAZE - adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the group; or

RS I
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o Bl AR < national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in
R 2 2 E MR the group.
AL TR ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Policy prior to 1 January 2018 (continued)

(1) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists
individually for financial assets. If the Group determines that no individually
assessed impairment is provided, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables or
held-to-maturity securities has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred), discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement. If a loan or
held-to-maturity security has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined
under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment
on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a
collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows that may result from
foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Policy prior to 1 January 2018 (continued)

(1) Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

For the purposes of a collective assessment of impairment, financial assets are
grouped on the basis of similar and relevant credit risk characteristics. Those
characteristics are relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of such
assets by being indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according
to the contractual terms of the assets being evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for
impairment are estimated on the basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in
the group and historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to those in the group. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of
current observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect
the period on which the historical loss experience is based and to remove the
effects of conditions in the historical period that do not exist currently.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related allowance for
impairment losses. Such loans are written off after all the necessary procedures
have been completed and the amount of the loss has been determined.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off decrease the amount of
impairment losses in the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of allowance for impairment losses
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit
rating), the previously recognised impairment loss to the extent of its decrease is
reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The amount of the reversal is
recognised in the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Policy prior to 1 January 2018 (continued)

(1) Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

Loans whose terms have been renegotiated with substantial difference in the terms
are no longer considered to be past due but are treated as new loans.

(2) Assets classified as available-for-sale

If evidence of impairment exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the
accumulated losses, measured as the difference between the acquisition cost or
amortised cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in the income statement, is removed from equity and
recognised in the income statement. In the case of equity investments classified as
available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is considered in determining whether the assets are impaired. If, in a
subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as
available-for-sale increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in the income statement, the
impairment loss to the extent of its decrease is reversed through the income
statement. With respect to equity instruments, further fair value changes are
recognised in the reserve for fair value change of available-for-sale securities
through other comprehensive income, impairment losses are not reversed through
the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.15 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures and

non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Potential indications of
impairment may include significant adverse changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment in which the assets operate or whether there has been
a significant or prolonged decline in value below their cost. “Significant” is evaluated
against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Impaired assets are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

In the Bank’s balance sheet, impairment testing of the investment in a subsidiary,
associate or joint venture is also required upon receiving dividend from that entity if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of that entity concerned in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of that entity in the Bank’s
balance sheet exceeds the carrying amount of that entity’s net assets including
goodwill in its consolidated balance sheet.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.16 Investment properties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both,
and that are not occupied by the companies in the Group, are classified as investment
properties. Properties leased out within group companies are classified as investment
properties in individual companies’ financial statements and as premises in
consolidated financial statements. Land held under operating lease is classified and
accounted for as investment property when the rest of the definition of investment
property is met. The operating lease is accounted for as if it is a finance lease.

Investment properties are recognised initially at cost, including related transaction
costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The item is stated at cost less
impairment and is included in the carrying amount of investment properties. Once the
item begins to generate economic benefits, it is then measured at fair value. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.16 Investment properties (continued)

Any changes in fair value are recognised directly in the income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as premises, and
its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes. If
an item of premises becomes an investment property because its use has changed,
any difference resulting between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at
the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income as a revaluation of
premises under HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”. However, if a fair value gain
reverses a previous revaluation loss or impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the
income statement up to the amount previously debited.

2.17 Properties, plant and equipment

Properties are mainly branches and office premises. Premises are stated at fair value
based on periodic, at least annually, valuations by external independent valuers less
any subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Any accumulated
depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount
of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. In the
intervening periods, the directors review the carrying amount of premises, by reference
to the open market value of similar properties, and adjustments are made when there
has been a material change.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of premises are credited to the
premises revaluation reserve through other comprehensive income. Decreases that
offset previous increases of the same individual asset are charged against premises
revaluation reserve through other comprehensive income; all other decreases are
expensed in the income statement. Any subsequent increases are credited to the
income statement up to the amount previously debited, and then to the premises
revaluation reserve. Upon disposal of premises, the relevant portion of the premises
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is released and
transferred from the premises revaluation reserve to retained earnings.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.17 Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

All plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to
the acquisition and installation of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in an asset’s carrying amount or are recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The item is stated at cost less impairment until it begins to generate economic
benefits, then the item is subsequently measured according to the measurement basis
of its respective assets class. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to
the income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write down the cost or revalued
amount of such assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

. Properties
Over the life of government land leases

. Plant and equipment
2 to 15 years

The useful lives of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, as at the end of
each reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.17 Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

At the end of each reporting period, both internal and external sources of information
are considered to determine whether there is any indication that properties, plant and
equipment are impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated and where relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to reduce the
asset to its recoverable amount. Such an impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement except where the asset is carried at valuation and the impairment loss does
not exceed the revaluation surplus for that same asset, in which case it is treated as a
revaluation decrease. The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. Impairment loss is reversed through the premises
revaluation reserve or the income statement as appropriate.

Gains or losses on disposals are determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount, relevant taxes and expenses. These are recognised
in the income statement on the date of disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is
transferred from the revaluation reserve to retained earnings and is not reclassified to
the income statement.

2.18 Leases

(1) Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are
retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. The total payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged
to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
Contingent rental payable is recognised as an expense in the accounting period in
which it is incurred.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any
payment required to be made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an
expense in the period in which termination takes place. Rental income from
operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.18 Leases (continued)

(2) Finance leases

Leases of assets where lessee has obtained substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as finance leases. Government land leases in Hong
Kong are classified as finance leases as the present value of the minimum lease
payments (i.e. transaction price) of the land amounted to substantially all of the fair
value of the land as if it were freehold.

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the lower of the
fair value of the leased asset and the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to
achieve a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other
liabilities. Investment properties acquired under finance leases are carried at their
fair value.

When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present value of the lease
payments is recognised as a receivable. Lease income is recognised over the term
of the lease using the net investment method, which reflects a constant periodic rate
of return.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.19 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
comprise balances with original maturity less than three months from the date of
acquisition, including cash, balances with banks and other financial institutions,
short-term bills and notes classified as investment securities and certificates of deposit.

2.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

2.21 Employee benefits

(1) Retirement benefit costs

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement schemes under either
recognised ORSO schemes or MPF schemes that are available to the Group’s
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the Group and employees are
calculated as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries for the ORSO schemes
and in accordance with the MPF rules for MPF schemes. The retirement benefit
scheme costs are charged to the income statement as incurred and represent
contributions payable by the Group to the schemes. Contributions made by the
Group that are forfeited by those employees who leave the ORSO scheme prior to
the full vesting of their entitlement to the contributions are used by the Group to
reduce the existing level of contributions or to meet its expenses under the trust
deed of the ORSO schemes.

The assets of the schemes are held in independently-administered funds separate
from those of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.21 Employee benefits (continued)

(2) Leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and sick leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for unused
annual leave and the amount of sick leave expected to be paid as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Compensated absences other than sick leave and special approved annual leave
are non-accumulating; they lapse if the current period’s entitlement is not used in
full. Except for unexpired annual leave, they do not entitle employees to a cash
payment for unused entitiement on leaving the Group.

(3) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a liability when the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by
employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Liabilities for
bonus plans that are expected to be settled longer than twelve months will be
discounted if the amounts are significant.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income taxes

Tax expenses for the period comprise current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the
income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in
other comprehensive income. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Income tax payable on profits, based on the applicable tax law enacted or substantially
enacted at the end of the reporting period in each jurisdiction where the Bank and its
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures operate and generate taxable income, is
recognised as a current income tax expense in the period in which profits arise.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The principal temporary differences arise from asset impairment provisions,
depreciation of premises and equipment, and revaluation of certain assets including
securities at FVOCI and premises. However, the deferred income tax is not recognised
if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided in full on all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary differences, the
carry forward of any unused tax credits and unused tax losses to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilised.

134



©)

¥ 5 4L £7 (5 %) H BA

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

MR (8
2. FEEHBIR (8)

2,22

2.23

2.24

R RIRFEFR R ()

T P A R IR TG sC U ER
ES RN CESIVVAS R ich: 4 (g
AHA S 1 A 2 S 2R Y
NSFEENE R EE
Z B R0 A H A S R
W B A IR TS
BT A 50 A HA 4 AR
A - A DAR REEAR R R
WSz g S 4 Y RE 28 1T — [
HER e R -

BRI IH A H
IR A E R RS
RS FREYEE
0 38 B 20 [ i EL B iR
IR % I AH B A B At

fos

=

HE=7:3

W el A e Hf |l | 2 o
SR ORR B AR 2
{E 5 A BB B ER A
ZHURET I - HRHER
JEWSRR R A B EFRLE
HERMART T LRS- &
% > WO B EE A A R 2y
SR ORR B AR 2
(IR ebed (e iy e i 2
ks TR EIRRERE -
EETY THAE A HT

(ERES]

REE RIS ARE
e AS 5y REEEA
(B R HA R A 20
HIBE - N EEETL AR
JEIN AR % E R g
LT 72 2B 22 A AR UL 22 B S
B B EE AR B I
7] o

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income taxes (continued)

Deferred income tax is charged or credited in the income statement except for deferred
income tax relating to fair value re-measurement of securities at FVOCI and revaluation
of premises which are charged or credited to other comprehensive income, in which
case the deferred income tax is also credited or charged to other comprehensive
income and is subsequently recognised in the income statement together with the
realisation of the deferred gain and loss.

Deferred tax liability or deferred tax asset arising from an investment property is
determined based on the presumption that the revaluation amount of such investment
property will be recovered through sale with the relevant tax rate applied.

2.23 Repossessed assets

Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the lower of their fair value less costs to
sell and the amortised cost of the related outstanding loans on the date of
repossession, and the related loans and advances together with the related impairment
allowances are derecognised from the balance sheet. Subsequently, repossessed
assets are measured at the lower of their cost and fair values less costs to sell and are
reported as “non-current assets held for sale” included in “Other assets”.

2.24 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as a trustee, or in other fiduciary capacities, that result in its
holding or managing assets on behalf of individuals, trusts and other institutions. These
assets and any gains or losses arising thereon are excluded from these financial
statements, as they are not assets of the Group.

135



©)

¥ 5 4L £7 (5 %) H BA

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

MR (8
2. FEEHBIR (8)

2.25 AREBERBALE

HARMBRERBECH
AR EASERY T RE R
JBATHVE (L HAFERH—
RS SR AN LB TR RESE
= P Y AR AR T S A
BB AR, - BRAR
QU= i)y P
BFSIBEVERAEE E
HP (R TR B A
gut FY 7T L B DRI A T SR
STEEERE BURA M

=]
B ©

AR G e ESE Ry e
- (B EEV BERRIEE
LA EE - iE L%
b EEEOEF 2R H 2T
TRATTRERT - HI & HAERE

HARERIENBEACH
AHVE S R I B A 2R
ZHAE  HAFERH—5R e
ESEN SN =R
Y AR AR A e 2 S 3R
BRI, -

EOREE R G (B4
A ATREWEI A 2l - &
TEA BB I S B 8E -
W B 2 R 2 T
FEEENR o TR R E
7= o

2.26 AREAL

SRR
71 AV~ SR
A AR EA
B ()AL R —
B 5 S U B
02 FAT - IHEAT -
M3 ¢ i) By A
ESINSES RS =N
SREHRR  (VBAE
CESINCITEE 21PN
B (VA EEEZ T
e (Vi B 5 ()
BALFERII R R
(vii A A £
AT E T A R
7 B AR BT
A < AT A
A -

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.25 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised as a provision but is disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements. When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When the inflow is virtually
certain, it will be recognised as an asset.

2.26 Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be related to
the Group if that party (i) controls, jointly controls or has significant influence over the
Group; (ii) is a member of the same financial reporting group, such as parents,
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries; (iii) is an associate or a joint venture of the Group
or parent reporting group; (iv) is a key management personnel of the Group or parents;
(v) is subject to common control with the Group; (vi) is an entity in which a person
identified in (iv) controls; and (vii) provides key management personnel services to the
Group or its parent. Related parties may be individuals or entities.
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accounting policies

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next reporting period. Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Areas susceptible
to changes in essential estimates and judgements, which affect the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities, are set out below. The effects of changes to either the key assumptions
or other estimation uncertainties are presented below if it is practicable to determine. It is
possible that actual results may require material adjustments to the estimates referred to
below.

3.1 Impairment of financial assets

The Group reviews its credit portfolios to assess impairment at least on a quarterly basis.
Under HKFRS 9, the measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial
asset requires judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future
cash flows and collateral values when determining impairment losses and the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a
number of factors, changes of which can result in different levels of allowances.

The Group’s ECL calculations are outputs of complex models. The choice of variable
inputs and their interdependencies involves a series of assumptions. ECL models are
developed by leveraging on the parameters implemented under Basel Il Internal
Ratings-Based (“IRB”) models and internal models, where feasible and available.
Elements of the ECL models that are considered accounting judgements and estimates
include:
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

31 EREEZREREE (8)

3.1 Impairment of financial assets (continued)
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The Group’s internal credit rating models, which assign Probability of Defaults to the
individual ratings. Please refer to CRE of section 7 of the Group’s Regulatory
Disclosures for 2018 for a description of the Group’s internal models;

The Group’s significant credit deterioration criteria (including internal credit rating
downgrade, days past due, drop in Mark-to-Market and qualitative assessment) for
assessing whether the financial assets’ impairment allowances should be measured on
a lifetime ECL basis;

The segmentation of financial assets according to similar risk and default characteristics
(portfolios including Sovereign, Bank, Corporates, Retail Small Medium-sized
Enterprise, Residential Mortgage Loan and Credit Card) when their ECLs are assessed
on a collective basis;

Development of ECL models, including the determination of macroeconomic factor
forecasts (including Gross Domestic Product, Consumer Price Index, Property Price
Index and Unemployment Rate) and the effect on Probability of Defaults, Loss Given
Defaults and Exposure at Defaults; and

Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios (including three independent
scenarios i.e. good, baseline and bad) and their probability weightings.

It has been the Group’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss
experience and adjust when necessary.

Carrying amounts of loans and advances and investment in securities as at 31 December
2018 are shown in Notes 23 and 24 respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying

accounting policies (continued)
3.2 Fair values of derivative financial instruments

The fair values of derivative financial instruments that are not quoted in active markets
are determined by using valuation techniques. Valuation techniques used include
discounted cash flows analysis and models with built-in functions available in externally
acquired financial analysis or risk management systems widely used by the industry
such as option pricing models. To the extent practical, the models use observable data.
In addition, valuation adjustments may be adopted if factors such as credit risk are not
considered in the valuation models. Management judgement and estimates are required
for the selection of appropriate valuation parameters, assumptions and modeling
techniques. Further details will be discussed in Note 5.

Carrying amounts of derivative financial instruments as at 31 December 2018 are shown
in Note 22.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying
accounting policies (continued)

3.3 Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets on unused tax losses and unused tax credits are recognised and the
determination of the amount to be recognised requires significant management
judgement. Deferred tax asset on unused tax losses are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised.
Judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits. For deferred
tax assets on unused tax credits, judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the estimation of available tax
credits and the possibility to recover such deferred tax assets recognised.

140



©)

st (&)
4. SRR REEE

ARE R S S TEEB S
T < by - 2 T < R
fEEEEE - TR (a5
INGEE JEU i K R B ) BB
B o AT EE R A S
HYiE e b R - DUREH
?fﬂﬁ JE R E B VA2 - B

AR R g S80S SR R Y
ji/f °

ERlE B

AR e e A AR
BEBE RN B DR
AR TS AU TP S R
HORESEIA U B B 2 - ZK
FH A e E R R e E B
&M —E 2R ﬁEE
BURBARR - FLGHA B
B 2% R T RE HY B Y B0
JeR\fz: - A SR TR E B EEAR e T
s B BCR R AR - DURE
BTG KRR RIS R -
I g T Y JEL B R 0 B
P HARRH YRR B R

EREGRERFIG 2
5 B B B Y A = SR
R > T R B R A
E-EEGELH TZEGH
FRBLT > B BT E A SR
b B SR - MR DR A R B EL
A S b B B S S AT
HHTHBASRNS -

JR\f%Z B R EEGRILN
BRZE® AEERAER
25 S %ﬁftt — e
EHBCR - WEEHT
HEEE R HY = L B A R K
B G- F IR R RUE
HEETAE RS
P -

¥ 5 4L £7 (5 %) H BA

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management

The Group is exposed to financial risks as a result of engaging in a variety of business
activities. The principal financial risks are credit risk, market risk (including currency risk and
interest rate risk) and liquidity risk. This note summarises the Group’s exposures to these
risks, as well as its objectives, risk management governance structure, policies and
processes for managing and the methods used to measure these risks.

Financial risk management framework

The Group’s risk management governance structure is designed to cover all business
processes and ensures various risks are properly managed and controlled in the course of
conducting business. The Group has a robust risk management organisational structure with
a comprehensive set of policies and procedures to identify, measure, monitor and control
various risks that may arise. These risk management policies and procedures are regularly
reviewed and updated to reflect changes in markets and business strategies. Various groups
of risk takers assume their respective responsibilities for risk management.

The Board of Directors, representing the interests of shareholders, is the highest
decision-making authority of the Group and has the ultimate responsibility for risk
management. The Board, with the assistance of its committees, has the primary
responsibility for the formulation of risk management strategies and ensuring that the Group
has an effective risk management system to implement these strategies.

The Risk Committee (“RMC”), a standing committee established by the Board of Directors, is
responsible for overseeing the Group’s various types of risks, approving Level | risk
management policies and monitoring their implementation, and approving significant or high
risk exposures or transactions. The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its role in
overseeing the internal control system.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Financial risk management framework (continued)

The Chief Executive (“CE”) is responsible for managing the Group’s various types of risks,
and approving material risk exposures or transactions within his authority delegated by the
Board of Directors. The Deputy Chief Executives (“DCEs”) assist the CE in fulfilling his
responsibilities on the day-to-day management of various types of risk, and are responsible
for approving material risk exposures or transactions within their authorities delegated by the
CE. The Chief Risk Officer (“CRO”) assists the CE in fulfilling his responsibilities for the
day-to-day management of risks. The CRO is responsible for initiating new risk management
strategies, projects and measures in response to regulatory changes that will enable the
Group to better monitor and manage any risks that may arise from time to time from new
businesses, products and changes in the operating environment. The CRO is also
responsible for reviewing material risk exposures or transactions within his delegated
authority. In accordance with the principle of setting the hierarchy of risk management
policies approved by the Board, senior management is also responsible for approving the
detailed risk management policies of their responsible areas.

Various units of the Group have their respective risk management responsibilities. Business
units act as the first line of defence while risk management units, which are independent
from the business units, are responsible for the day-to-day management of different kinds of
risks. Risk management units have the primary responsibility for drafting, reviewing and
updating various risk management policies and procedures.

The Group’s principal banking subsidiaries are subject to risk management policies that are
consistent with those of the Group. Risk management units of BOCHK monitor the risk
management status of these subsidiaries.

The Group has put in place appropriate internal control systems, including the establishment
of an organisation structure that sets clear lines of authority and responsibility for monitoring
compliance with policies, procedures and limits. Proper reporting lines also provide sufficient
independence of the control functions from the business areas, as well as adequate
segregation of duties throughout the organisation which helps to promote an appropriate
internal control environment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Product development and risk monitoring

To ensure the effectiveness of risk assessment and monitoring, the Group has a
comprehensive product development and risk monitoring system where roles and
responsibilities of all related units are clearly defined and proper due diligence processes on

product development are in place.

In accordance with the strategic objectives set by the Board and the Management,
respective product management units are responsible for formulating business and product
development plans, and proceeding to specific product development activities. The
department of strategic development shall ensure the plans are aligned with the Group’s
overall strategies. Departments that are responsible for risk management, legal, compliance
and finance, etc. are accountable for review of the risk assessment results.

Apart from product development, respective product management units shall work closely
with relevant risk evaluating departments to identify and assess the risks of new products.
Risk evaluating departments shall conduct independent review on the risk assessment
results and the corresponding risk management measures. Products can only be launched
upon completion of the product due diligence process to the satisfaction of all risk evaluating
departments.

A prudent approach is adopted in offering treasury products to our clients. All new treasury
products require approval from a special committee before launching.

4.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that a customer or counterparty is unable to or unwilling to
meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk exists in the trading book and banking book,
as well as from on- and off-balance sheet transactions of the Group. It arises principally
from lending, trade finance and treasury businesses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk management framework

The Group has formulated a comprehensive set of credit risk management policies and
procedures, and appropriate credit risk limits to manage and control credit risk that may
arise. These policies, procedures and credit risk limits are regularly reviewed and updated
to cope with changes in market conditions and business strategies.

The Group’s organisation structure establishes a clear set of authority and responsibility for
monitoring compliance with policies, procedures and limits.

The Chief Credit Officer, who reports directly to the CRO, takes charge of credit risk
management and is also responsible for the control of credit risk exposures of subsidiaries
in line with the credit risk management principles and requirements set by the Group.
Various units of the Group have their respective credit risk management responsibilities.
Business units act as the first line of defence. The Risk Management Department (“RMD”),
which is independent from the business units, is responsible for the day-to-day
management of credit risks and has the primary responsibility for providing an independent
due diligence through identifying, measuring, monitoring and controlling credit risk to
ensure an effective checks and balances, as well as drafting, reviewing and updating credit
risk management policies and procedures. It is also responsible for the design,
development and maintenance of the Group’s internal rating system and ensures the
system complies with the relevant regulatory requirements. Back offices are responsible
for credit administration, providing operations support and supervision on the
implementation of prerequisite terms and conditions of credit facilities.

In accordance with the Group’s operating principle, the Group’s principal subsidiaries
have to formulate their own credit risk policies that are consistent with those of the
Group’s core principle. These subsidiaries are required to submit their risk management
reports to the Group’s Management on a regular basis.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk management framework (continued)

The Board of Directors delegates credit approval authority to the CE. The CE can further
delegate to the subordinates within his limit authorised by the Board of Directors. The
Group sets the limits of credit approval authority according to the credit business nature,
rating, the level of transaction risk, and the extent of the credit exposure.

Credit risk measurement and control

In view of the rapidly changing market conditions, the Group has been continuously
revisiting its credit strategies and conducting rigorous reviews on the concerned portfolios.

Advances

Different credit approval and control procedures are adopted according to the level of risk
associated with the customer, counterparty or transaction. The Credit Risk Assessment
Committee, comprising experts from credit and other functions, is responsible for making
an independent assessment of material credit applications which require the approval of
DCEs or above. Credit applications for non-retail exposures are independently reviewed
and objectively assessed by risk management units. Obligor ratings (in terms of probability
of default) and facility ratings (in terms of loss given default) are assigned to these portfolios
to support credit approval. Retail internal rating systems are deployed in the risk
assessment of retail credit transactions, including small business retail exposures,
residential mortgage loans, personal loans and credit cards. Loan grades, obligor and
facility ratings as well as loss estimates (if applicable) are used to support credit approval.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

Advances (continued)

The Group also uses loan grades, obligor ratings and loss estimates (if applicable) to
support credit monitoring, reporting and analysis of credit risk information. For non-retail
exposures, more frequent rating review and closer monitoring are required for higher-risk
customers. For retail exposures, monthly updated internal ratings and loss estimates are
used for credit monitoring on a portfolio basis. More comprehensive review is required for
obligors being identified under high-risk pools.

The Group employs an internal master rating scale that can be mapped to Standard &
Poor’s external credit ratings. The structure of internal master rating scale is in compliance
with the requirement of the Banking (Capital) Rules under the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance.

RMD provides regular credit management information reports and ad hoc reports to the
MC, RMC and Board of Directors to facilitate their continuous monitoring of credit risk.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EERE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

Advances (continued)

In addition, the Group identifies credit concentration risk by industry, geography, customer
and counterparty. The Group monitors changes to counterparty credit risk, quality of the
credit portfolio and credit risk concentrations, and reports regularly to the Group’s
Management.

The Group adopts loan grading criteria which divides credit assets into five categories
with reference to the HKMA's guidelines, as below:

“Pass” represents loans where the borrower is current in meeting its repayment
obligations and full repayment of interest and principal is not in doubt.

“Special Mention” represents loans where the borrower is experiencing difficulties which
may threaten the Group’s position. Ultimate loss is not expected at this stage but could
occur if adverse conditions persist.

“Substandard” represents loans where the borrower displays a definable weakness that is
likely to jeopardise repayment.

“Doubtful” represents loans where collection in full is improbable and the Group expects
to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest, taking into account the net realisable value of
the collateral.

“Loss” represents loans which are considered uncollectible after all collection options
(such as the realisation of collateral or the institution of legal proceedings) have been
exhausted.
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41 FERRE (8 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
EEREEREE () Credit risk measurement and control (continued)
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4. SRREEE (8]) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 FERRE (8 4.1 Credit risk (continued)

TEEA(S A E%(ECL) ik Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) Methodology
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)

TS A RAR(ECL) T A
# (8D

AEMFHOERELR
fh e I EP P 4R (IRB)
F5 24 e HAth =T 47 A0 AT A
P HR A5 U Y 2 BOACRT A
TAHIEFER - BN H
RIS - AR EAIRE
FIATA &8 R A B S
R skt > BN s
1}~ HHRARA AR
Jii - TG FIERRY
PR SR T REOM
R (PD) - BB LR
(LGD) 71 22 &Y Jil bz & ¥
(EAD)J sz ey H LB IER
RPTBULAVEHREER -

TAHIE R R E R
1 BB AR 3R i T SR A
o D) e e SR iR T
i~ I RERIAER ~ &
FHAIIS A EE - DU
B~ ERTIRCAIRAEL
PR DL T & 2 5 A
USSR AV BT -

REEAETHHIE AR
s E PR = KRS
5L & /B % s
RIS O SRAVEDR - Tk
BE | R AR T REATAE
Fo MSHNEEER - 5
AR T RAT ) BERAT T
2 W5 RIAEREEAT
REAVEESR » BLALRRE A
Eb - LRI SAIAERER

Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) Methodology (continued)

The Group leverages the parameters implemented under Basel |l Internal Ratings-Based
(“IRB”) models and internal models where feasible and available to assess ECL. For the
portfolios without models, all other reasonable and supportable information such as
historical information, relevant loss experience or proxies are utilised. The measurement
of ECL is the product of the financial instrument’s probability of default (“PD”), loss given
default (“LGD”) and exposure at default (‘EAD”) discounted at the effective interest rate to
the reporting date.

ECL is measured at an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by
evaluating a range of possible outcomes, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. The Group adopts three economic scenarios in the ECL
measurement to meet the requirements of HKFRS 9. The “Baseline” scenario represents
a most likely outcome and the other two scenarios, referred to as “Good” scenario and
“Bad” scenario, represent less likely outcomes which are more optimistic or more
pessimistic compared to Baseline scenario.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) Methodology (continued)

The Baseline scenario is prepared by our Economics & Strategic Planning Department.
Historical data, trend, from governmental and
non-governmental organisation, etc. are also used as benchmarks to ensure the

economic external forecast
scenario is reasonable and supportable. For the Good and Bad scenarios, the Group

makes reference to the historical macroeconomics data.

The macroeconomic factors in the major countries/regions the Group operates such as
Gross Domestic Product growth, Consumer Price Index, Property Price Index and
Unemployment Rate are applied in the economic scenarios. These macroeconomic
factors are considered to be important to the Group’s ECL in statistical analysis and
business opinion.

The probability assigned for each scenario reflects the Group’s view for the economic
environment, which implements the Group’s prudent and consistent credit strategy of
ensuring the adequacy of impairment allowance. A higher probability is assigned to the
Baseline scenario to reflect the most likely outcome and a lower probability is assigned
to the Good and Bad scenarios to reflect the less likely outcomes. The probabilities
assigned are updated in each quarter.

The ECL methodology has been validated by independent Model Validation Unit and
approved by the RMC. The Management is responsible to the ECL model application, if
there is any required change in ECL methodology, the Group will follow the proper
approval process.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 FERE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Collateral held as security and other credit enhancements

The valuation and management of collateral have been documented in the credit risk
management policies and procedures which cover acceptance criteria, validity of
collateral, loan-to-value ratio, haircut ratio, valuation and insurance, etc. The collateral is
revalued on a regular basis, though the frequency and the method used varies with the
type of collateral involved and the nature and the risk of the underlying credit. The Group
has established a mechanism to update the value of its main type of collateral, property
collateral including the use of public indices on a portfolio basis. Collateral is insured with
the Group as the beneficiary. In the personal sector, the main types of collateral are real
estate, cash deposits and securities. In the commercial and industrial sector, the types of
collateral include real estate, securities, cash deposits, vessels, etc.

For loans guaranteed by a third party, the Group will assess the guarantor’s financial
condition, credit history and ability to meet obligations.

As at 31 December 2018, the fair value of collateral held by the Group that was
permitted to sell or re-pledge in the absence of default by the borrower amounted to
HK$5,322 million (2017: HK$11,826 million). The Group had not sold or re-pledged such
collateral (2017: Nil). These transactions are conducted under terms that are usual and
customary to reverse repurchase and securities borrowing agreements.
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(A) Credit exposures
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The maximum credit exposure is the worst case scenario of exposure to the Group
without taking into account any collateral held or other credit enhancements. For
on-balance sheet assets, the maximum exposure to credit risk equals their carrying
amount. For letters of guarantee issued, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the
maximum amount that the Group could be required to pay if the guarantees are
called upon. For loan commitment and other credit related liabilities, the maximum
exposure to credit risk is the full amount of the committed facilities.

The nature of the collateral held and other credit enhancements and their financial
effect to the different classes of the Group’s financial assets are as follows.

Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions

These exposures are generally considered to be low risk due to the nature of the
counterparties. Collateral is generally not sought on these assets.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and investment in securities

Collateral is generally not sought on debt securities.
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(A) Credit exposures (continued)
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Derivative financial instruments

The Master Agreement published by the International Swaps and Derivatives
Association, Inc. (“ISDA Master Agreement”) is the preferred agreement for
documenting derivative activities of the Group. It provides the contractual framework
under which dealing activities of over-the-counter (“OTC”) transactions are
conducted, and sets out close-out netting provisions upon termination following the
occurrence of an event of default or a termination event. In addition, if deemed
necessary, Credit Support Annex (“CSA”) will be included to form part of the
Schedule to the ISDA Master Agreement. Under a CSA, collateral is passed from
one counterparty to another, as appropriate, to mitigate the credit exposures.

Advances and other accounts, contingent liabilities and commitments

The general types of collateral are disclosed on page 152. Advances and other
accounts, contingent liabilities and commitments are collateralised to the extent
considered appropriate by the Group taking account of the risk assessment of
individual exposures. The collateral coverage of advances to customers is analysed
on pages 165 to 166. The components and nature of contingent liabilities and
commitments are disclosed in Note 40. Regarding the commitments that are
unconditionally cancellable without prior notice, the Group would assess the
necessity to withdraw the credit line in case where the credit quality of a borrower
deteriorates. For contingent liabilities and commitments, 13.32% (2017: 12.74%)
were covered by collateral as at 31 December 2018.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Advances and other accounts

Gross advances and other accounts before impairment allowances are summarised
by product type as follows:

2018 2017
BERET BEEHET
HK$’'m HK$'m
Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages 256,723 245,951
- Credit cards 15,640 14,648
- Others 80,442 64,606
Corporate
- Commercial loans 847,755 741,403
- Trade finance 65,437 78,196
1,265,997 1,144,804
Trade bills 17,361 42,975
Advances to banks and other financial
institutions 3,822 6,259
1,287,180 1,194,038

Advances with a specific repayment date are classified as overdue when the
principal or interest is past due and remains unpaid. Advances repayable by regular
instalments are classified as overdue when an instalment payment is past due and
remains unpaid. Advances repayable on demand are classified as overdue either
when a demand for repayment has been served on the borrower but repayment has
not been made in accordance with the instruction or when the advances have
remained continuously to exceed the approved limit that was advised to the
borrower.
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MK (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. oREIREEE (8]) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 E8RE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) xR EMIETE (&) (B) Advances and other accounts (continued)
EHE-THNLIHE Advances are credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental
HEHREREREK impact on the estimated future cash flows have occurred. Credit-impaired advances
R & E A N FI Y are classified as Stage 3 and lifetime expected credit losses will be recognised.
A HERERR
REERERE -5
ERE 12 5 Wi e
= i IS
B HHET RTINS
FHE% -
REEFREERR The Group identifies the advances as credit-impaired if the exposure is past due for
Ry R{E S50 W4 more than 90 days or the borrower is unlikely to pay in full for the credit obligations to
[EFm AR 90 K the Group.
IVt i1 RE LT ON
] RE ML B A
AEEEET -
RIBOUT o] #2258 Evidence that an advance is credit-impaired include observable data about the
BRI ERE R following events:
TEEK
BN HERE K - Significant financial difficulty incurred by the borrower;
HIRA TS PRI
IR EN - - A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in principal or interest
Bla1K B 17 payment;
FA(E B A 2 50A]
B
LN - For economic or legal reasons related to the borrower’s financial difficulty, the
TSR - AREE Group has granted to the borrower a concession that it would not otherwise
FEA O AR consider;
R ZF R
ETERRANERK
{6 LA
BB BRI - Probable that the borrower will become bankrupt or undergo other financial
N A i reorganisation; or

T B § 5

HABAEERE R - Other observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
SN EGOES estimated future cash flows from such advances.

SRR & g

REBREA T -
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 8RR (8
(B) B HAMRE (&)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Advances and other accounts (continued)

Advances classified as Stage 3 may not necessarily result in impairment loss where
the advances are fully collateralised.

EERZ = BIR A E
Or BIEEHSRE =
FEEL » TRAR N EERE

k-
PR HUR (B 2 F AT 2 48 Gross advances and other accounts before impairment allowances are analysed by
R HAETE TR N internal credit grade and stage classification as follows:
B S B R AR R P B oy
Frans :
2018 2017
$—IBE FIBER F=PBER dEEt HEET
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Total
AEEET  AEEET AT ET BAEEET B EETT
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$'m
EFEER Advances to customers
Etk Pass 1,253,528 5,019 - 1,258,547 1,139,089
FERE Special mention 1,934 3,133 - 5,067 3,636
REFELLT Substandard or below - - 2,383 2,383 2,079
1,255,462 8,152 2,383 1,265,997 1,144,804
=t ] Trade bills
=y Pass 17,357 - - 17,357 42,975
TERE Special mention - - - - -
REFELAT Substandard or below - - 4 4 -
17,357 - 4 17,361 42,975
ST R EA SR Advances to banks and
MRS other financial
institutions
G Pass 3,822 - - 3,822 6,259
FEERAE Special mention - - - - -
RERELAT Substandard or below - - - - -
3,822 - - 3,822 6,259
1,276,641 8,152 2,387 1,287,180 1,194,038
TR AE A Impairment allowances (3,740) (546) (1,130) (5,416) (4,108)
1,272,901 7,606 1,257 1,281,764 1,189,932
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Advances and other accounts (continued)

Reconciliation of impairment allowances and gross amount for advances and other

accounts is as follows:

2018
E—PEEE R =R 885t
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
AYOERT AYOET BEoERT EBEEET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
Impairment allowances
At 1 January 2018 3,689 651 618 4,958
Transfer to Stage 1 267 (253) (14) -
Transfer to Stage 2 (38) 53 (15) -
Transfer to Stage 3 (7) (240) 247 -
Changes arising from
transfer of stage (241) 293 815 867
Other changes
(including new
assets and
derecognised
assets) 74 43 194 311
Write-offs - - (834) (834)
Recoveries - - 120 120
Unwind of discount on
impairment
allowances - - (1 )]
Exchange difference (4) (1) - (5)
At 31 December 2018 3,740 546 1,130 5,416
Charged to income
statement (Note 12) 1,178
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Advances and other accounts (continued)

2018
F—PEE EREEL B &5t
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
AWEET E¥EERx  A¥REERT BBEER
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
Gross amount
At 1 January 2018 1,187,973 3,958 2,107 1,194,038
Transfer to Stage 1 1,477 (1,449) (28) -
Transfer to Stage 2 (4,868) 4,884 (16) -
Transfer to Stage 3 (599) (275) 874 -
New assets, further
lending,
derecognised
assets and
repayments 95,436 1,071 285 96,792
Write-offs - - (834) (834)
Exchange difference (2,778) (37) 1) (2,816)
At 31 December 2018 1,276,641 8,152 2,387 1,287,180
2017
FedR et il FeE IR
Collectively Individually HE
assessed assessed Total
B EETT B EETT BEHETT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
Impairment allowances
At 1 January 2017, as previously
reported 2,779 650 3,429
Effect of merger of entities under
common control 43 29 72
At 1 January 2017, as restated 2,822 679 3,501
Charged/(credited) to income
statement (Note 12) 1,117 (71) 1,046
Write-offs (399) (197) (596)
Recoveries 58 73 131
Unwind of discount on impairment
allowances - (3) (3)
Exchange difference 17 10 27
At 31 December 2017 3,615 491 4,106
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) Advances and other accounts (continued)

(a) Impaired advances

Impaired advances to customers are analysed as follows:

2018 2017
AWEEET A EE T
HK$’'m HK$'m
Gross impaired advances to customers
2,383 1,371
Impairment allowances made in respect of
such advances
- Stage 3 1,126 N/A
- Individually assessed N/A 491
Current market value of collateral held
against the covered portion of such
advances to customers 2,988 1,523
Covered portion of such advances to
customers 1,511 1,083
Uncovered portion of such advances to
customers 872 288

The impairment allowances were made after taking into account the value of

collateral in respect of such advances.

As at 31 December 2018, gross impaired trade bills amounted to HK$4 million
(2017: Nil), and there were no impaired advances to banks and other financial

institutions (2017: Nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Advances and other accounts (continued)

(a) Impaired advances (continued)

Classified or impaired advances to customers are analysed as follows:

2018 2017
BEHET BEEET
HK$’'m HK$'m
Gross classified or impaired advances to
customers 2,383 2,079
Gross classified or impaired advances to
customers as a percentage of gross
advances to customers
0.19% 0.18%
Impairment allowances made in respect of
such advances
- Stages 1t0 3
1,126 N/A
- Collectively and individually assessed
N/A 540

Classified or impaired advances to customers represent advances which are either
classified as “substandard”, “doubtful” or “loss” under the Group’s classification of
loan quality, or classified as stage 3/individually assessed to be impaired.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Advances and other accounts (continued)

(b) Advances overdue for more than three months

The gross amount of advances overdue for more than three months is analysed as
follows:

2018 2017
5% = SRR AR (IS = e/
Both Btk
% of gross % of gross
| advances to S advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
AEEET B EETT
HK$’m HK$'m

Gross advances to
customers which
have been
overdue for:
- six months or
less but over
three months 443 0.04% 117 0.01%
- one year or less

but over six
months 309 0.02% 123 0.01%
- over one year 310 0.02% 313 0.03%

Advances overdue
for over three
months 1,062 0.08% 553 0.05%

Impairment
allowances
made in respect
of such
advances
- Stage 3 828 N/A
- Individually
assessed N/A 309
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MK (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRREEE (8]) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 FERE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) X R EAMBRIE (&) (B) Advances and other accounts (continued)
(b) BHAEE 3 A (b) Advances overdue for more than three months (continued)
ZEK ()
2018 2017
BEEHET BEEET
HK$’'m HK$'m
ik As R Current market value of collateral held
ENEEERZ against the covered portion of such
AR TE advances to customers 849 520
EaltE R EE Covered portion of such advances to
ZEPEER customers 349 289
AR Uncovered portion of such advances to
EVEPER customers 713 264
B B 3R R E Collateral held against overdue or impaired loans is principally represented by
SR charges over business assets such as commercial, residential premises and
HEENERE vessels for corporate loans and mortgages over residential properties for personal
FHETHEHEE loans.
FEENIRGEE - (EEHE
R AEAE - B8 A2
FERETHNEE
Y
#2018 £ 12 H As at 31 December 2018, gross trade bills overdue for more than three months
31 H @i 3 amounted to HK$4 million (2017: Nil) and there were no advances to banks and
BE Y 5%EE other financial institutions overdue for more than three months (2017: Nil).
BB AT E
g (2017 4F @ fi)
RS R a3
fE A Z 817 R H
< Bl F A K

(2017 &= 4) »
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MK (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRREEE (8]) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 FERE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) X R EAMBRIE (&) (B) Advances and other accounts (continued)
(c) EWEHERK (c) Rescheduled advances
2018 2017
LLT-9=y= ¢ (e Lt il P AR
Btk B4tk
% of gross % of gross
B advances to $%A advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
BEEHET A ETT
HK$’m HK$'m
KEAR P EFORE Rescheduled
(S H0RCE & 7 advances to
MigHAEE A 3 {EH customers net
ZEE ) of amounts
included in
“Advances
overdue for
more than
three months” 280 0.02% 238 0.02%
KEHER 5 Rescheduled advances are those advances that have been restructured or
& 2N A B B renegotiated because of deterioration in the financial position of the borrower or
PR e B 45 A 7 40 of the inability of the borrower to meet the original repayment schedule.
H 8 T AR EE Rescheduled advances, which have been overdue for more than three months
[6) & Rk R E under the revised repayment terms, are included in “Advances overdue for more
?KH%Z%* (3 than three months”.
FIENGTEIR
Z“ B 4H E A
i 3 A -
RIVEHETE T A
4 3 {EH Z &K
7y o
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(d) EFEEHEFE

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Advances and other accounts (continued)

(d) Concentration of advances to customers

(i)

AT B
HF R ARE

LU R & =
BB 21T
SRS H
TERIETS
HRA B SRR
BURZEER
HRAVEE S
ENIIECEE

(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The following analysis of the gross advances to customers by industry sector is
based on the categories with reference to the completion instructions for the
HKMA return of loans and advances.

2018
AR, BEEER -
H R o f L -
BZEHA BESE BAERER - 325
EFEREE % covered BORME F=MEBt  Impairment
Gross by collateral  Classified Impairment  allowances -
advances to or other or #HA allowances - Stages 1
customers security impaired Overdue Stage 3 and 2
AYEET ANEET BYEsET  AB%EER AEEET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
TEEEHER E531 Loans for use in Hong Kong
TREeRE Industrial, commercial and
financial
- YRS - Property development 126,328 20.51% - - - 543
Zita - Property investment 50,223 80.51% 37 17 - 44
- Financial concerns 22,345 0.89% - - - 37
A - Stockbrokers 1,171 95.73% - - - 1
- fEE R B - Wholesale and retail trade 38,147 34.46% 21 127 3 179
- BltsE - Manufacturing 51,093 10.57% 136 148 134 87
- 1l R - Transport and transport
equipment 66,256 27.37% 867 17 9 150
- (RS - Recreational activities 1,675 1.90% - - - 2
- EEREEL - Information technology 18,006 1.27% 1 220 1 107
- Hith - Others 118,574 38.43% 9 166 7 269
{EA Individuals
- EEEEHEST - Loans for the purchase of
IR N flats in Home Ownership
RS Scheme, Private Sector
e § Participation Scheme
HE e
;,:E:D HRRT R and Tenants Purchase
™ Scheme 11,150 99.80% 18 166 - 4
- EEHM e - Loans for purchase of
5 other residential
properties 243,963 99.92% 65 1,534 - 58
- [EHFEEER - Credit card advances 15,613 - 135 558 118 150
- Hpth, - Others 76,468 86.53% 60 634 52 397
e SR Total loans for use in Hong
Kong 841,012 56.03% 1,349 3,687 324 2,028
EoRE Trade finance 65,437 19.37% 206 232 194 124
ERBLIMERZ &K Loans for use outside Hong
Kong 359,548 8.78% 828 970 608 2,133
I ER AR Gross advances to customers 1,265,997 40.72% 2,383 4,889 1,126 4,285
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I HENSE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4, SREEEE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 8RR (8

(B) B HEAARTE (&)

d) EFEFETE
(&

(i) TN B

HEEREH
(40)
HEEBEHZ &K Loans for use in Hong Kong
TR Industrial, commercial and
financial
- Vg - Property development
- VPR - Property investment
- e - Financial concerns
- IR, - Stockbrokers
- fEER - Wholesale and retail trade
- BhESE - Manufacturing
- Al R - Transport and transport
equipment
- URHDEE) - Recreational activities
- FERHL - Information technology
- HAth - Others
{ELA Individuals
- EEEEAHERT - Loans for the purchase of
B~ T M flats in Home Ownership
ERtEREEE Scheme, Private Sector
e i . Participation Scheme
HEsEgT e
;;}E TRIEEZ R and Tenants Purchase
™ Scheme
- EEH e - Loans for purchase of
£ other residential
properties
- BRRER - Credit card advances
- Hith - Others
R < S Total loans for use in Hong
Kong
H R Trade finance
TEEBLIMERZ & Loans for use outside Hong
Kong
R Gross advances to customers

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Advances and other accounts (continued)

(d) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)

(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

2017
TSR

HoAt A R e

E2H4tk FEE IR B A KA B

B EGRAEEE % covered ERE Individually Collectively
Gross by collateral Classified assessed assessed
advances to or other or A impairment impairment
customers security impaired Overdue allowances allowances
A EETT BEEHET EEEET A EET A EETT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
99,987 24.22% - 5 - 336
53,581 78.47% 19 68 - 180
14,461 2.29% - - - 68
1,027 89.86% - 1 - 3
34,931 38.23% 26 160 20 131
45,075 13.93% 32 25 4 159
61,786 28.44% 1,062 27 44 213
2,040 1.47% - - - 6
23,900 1.07% - - - 79
100,966 41.99% 18 132 5 336
9,874 99.75% 12 147 - 6
234,434 99.93% 75 1,520 1 128
14,620 - 39 549 - 124
60,734 79.73% 53 508 20 429
757,416 58.09% 1,336 3,142 94 2,198
78,196 14.13% 55 25 32 287
309,192 9.19% 688 1,003 365 1,130
1,144,804 41.88% 2,079 4,170 491 3,615
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Advances and other accounts (continued)

(d) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)

(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

For those industry sectors constitute not less than 10% of the Group’s gross
advances to customer, the amounts of new impairment allowances charged to
the income statement, and classified or impaired loans written off during the

year are shown below:

Loans for use in Hong Kong
Industrial, commercial and financial

- Property development
Individuals

- Loans for purchase of other
residential properties

2018 2017
WS E EH R E
SR ) ST
e B EK Hrig AE EEK
BE#EHE Classified or BB Classified or
New impaired New impaired
impairment loans impairment loans
allowances written off allowances written off
BEEET EREET AHEET AEEET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$'m HK$'m
337 - 80 -
27 - 26 -
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MK (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRREEE (8]) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 FERRE (8 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) BERxkEAMMIRTE (&) (B) Advances and other accounts (continued)
(d EESREFE (d) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)
(&
(i) F2 Hb 2 15 3 05 (i) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers
B2 RFPER
kG
AR & FE The following geographical analysis of advances to customers is based on the
B locations of the counterparties, after taking into account the transfer of risk. For
Ik o i 2 AR 1 an advance to customer guaranteed by a party situated in a location different
RS F 2 from the customer, the risk will be transferred to the location of the guarantor.
TR R R
RIS R
HEPERZ
LN A
B 5 AR 3
ATE - BB
i EERA
Z At -
KSR EE Gross advances to customers
2018 2017
BREHET BEHET
HK$’'m HK$'m
i Hong Kong 1,007,394 910,069
o BRI P 3 Mainland of China 126,960 135,990
A Others 131,643 98,745
1,265,997 1,144,804
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) Advances and other accounts (continued)

(d) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)

Gross advances to customers (continued)

Impairment allowances made in respect
of the gross advances to customers -
Stages 1 and 2

Hong Kong
Mainland of China
Others

Impairment allowances made in respect
of the gross advances to customers -
Collectively assessed

Hong Kong
Mainland of China
Others
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(i) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

2018 2017
B EHEIL B EETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
2,798 N/A
527 N/A
960 N/A
4,285 N/A
N/A 2,741
N/A 453
N/A 421
N/A 3,615
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MK (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRREEE (8]) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 FERE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) X R EAMBRIE (&) (B) Advances and other accounts (continued)
d) EEERETE (d) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)
(&
(if) f22 b B bk 4y (i) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)
B EmPER

werE (8

HHAEE Overdue advances
2018 2017
BEEHET AR E T
HK$’'m HK$'m
Tk Hong Kong 3,752 3,061
o R P HE Mainland of China 257 181
HoA Others 880 928
4,889 4,170
A EFHME Impairment allowances made in respect
Bz REE of the overdue advances - Stage 3
H - B=M
B
i Hong Kong 407 N/A
o [ A Mainland of China 84 N/A
FoAh Others 445 N/A
936 N/A
TAHIERE Impairment allowances made in respect
HZBEE of the overdue advances -
i - {ERIEF Individually assessed
&
T Hong Kong N/A 65
R Y Mainland of China N/A 53
HAth Others N/A 220
N/A 338
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MK (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRREEE (8]) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 FERE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) X R EAMBRIE (&) (B) Advances and other accounts (continued)
d) EEERETE (d) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)
(&
(i) % 3b 2 & 35 45 (i) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)
B2& P &R

HeEE (F0)

BB Classified or impaired advances
EHEK
2018 2017
BEEETT A EE T
HK$’'m HK$'m
T Hong Kong 1,485 1,379
o [ A Mainland of China 197 111
Al Others 701 589
2,383 2,079
B4 B FE R Impairment allowances made in respect
BEERE of the classified or impaired advances
HZBEE - Stage 3
B - £=MR
B
& Hong Kong 490 N/A
o R Y HE Mainland of China 107 N/A
HAth Others 529 N/A
1,126 N/A
S E S ES Impairment allowances made in respect
BEERE of the classified or impaired
H 2z K% advances - Individually assessed
& - BRI
fi
& Hong Kong N/A 113
o 5] A Mainland of China N/A 70
oA Others N/A 308
N/A 491
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A 31 BFFAEIE
HEZfSE BB
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EEREFREEA
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- R EERE

- EERITEE O
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(C) Repossessed assets

During the year, the Group obtained assets by taking possession of collateral held as
security. The nature and carrying value of these assets held as at 31 December are
summarised as follows:

2018 2017

AEEET BWEHET

HK$’'m HK$'m

Commercial properties - 8
Industrial properties -

Residential properties 10 21

10 30

The estimated market value of repossessed assets held by the Group as at 31
December 2018 amounted to HK$23 million (2017: HK$77 million). The repossessed
assets comprise properties in respect of which the Group has acquired access or
control (e.g. through court proceedings or voluntary actions by the proprietors
concerned) for release in full or in part of the obligations of the borrowers.

When the repossessed assets are not readily convertible into cash, the Group may
consider the following alternatives:

- adjusting the selling prices

- selling the loans together with the assets

- arranging loan restructuring
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 8RR (8
(D) TESRTT At

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(D) Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions

Bz &R EHER
THEEEHRTRE The following tables present an analysis of balances and placements with banks and
< BARRE 2 45 6% other financial institutions as at 31 December by rating agency designation and stage
R EHAFEIOR 12 H classification.
31 HizsTaikE
SR B PE B AT
2018 2017
E—PEE B R F=FEE &t Hagt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Total
AEEET ARoET A¥EEr BEEERT ARoET
HK$’m HK$’m HK$’'m HK$’m HK$'m
gl eT Central banks
Aaa £ A3 Aaa to A3 153,697 - - 153,697 84,559
A3 DUF Lower than A3 1,680 - - 1,680 6,674
SR Unrated 14,781 - - 14,781 8,830
170,158 - - 170,158 100,063
HASRFT R E M Other banks
Fhiis and other
financial
institutions
Aaa % A3 Aaa to A3 226,559 - - 226,559 266,886
A3 IR Lower than A3 10,550 - - 10,550 40,997
SR Unrated 2,073 - - 2,073 3,378
239,182 - - 239,182 311,261
409,340 - - 409,340 411,324
JRAE Impairment
allowances (15) - - (15) -
409,325 - - 409,325 411,324
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(D) TESRTT At
Rz &t e R
(8

E SRAT R H At <52 R
T 2 &5 8% ROE BRI
ZIRREAE B B IR
FIRAIT -

HR2018FE1H1H
P& P e 2 2 B

FHAMr D) (EIEHTEE
JEE e L SR 2
)

VE SR HH
2018412 H31H

Saclizs (it 12)

2018412 H 31 H>
S H A SR 2 AR
SRAT R FL A < b A
Z 45 &R R 0E B AF
(2017 48 : f)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(D) Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions
(continued)

Reconciliation of impairment allowances for balances and placements with banks and
other financial institutions is as follows:

2018
L 32 B B #st
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
AEREET AEREET AEREET AREHET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
At 1 January 2018 83 - - 83
Changes arising from
transfer of stage - - - -
Other changes
(including new
assets and
derecognised
assets) (70) - - (70)
Exchange difference 2 - - 2
At 31 December 2018 15 - - 15
Credited to income
statement (Note 12) (70)

As at 31 December 2018, there were no overdue or impaired balances and
placements with banks and other financial institutions (2017: Nil).
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(E) EHES REKE

TERE BTG
P& B o AT 2 R 5 58 7%
BRI e - A
BTRPRAIRE ST Al
G BT AR

=i

DA FES LS AR
flt = mfas 2 35
'

Aaa

Aa1l & Aa3
A1 E A3
A3 LI

Horp R {EAESR

DIEBRRR At B 258
FRE

Aaa

Aal £ Aa3
A1 £ A3
A3 LI

TRAEES

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit

The following tables present an analysis of the carrying value of debt securities and
certificates of deposit by issue rating and stage classification. In the absence of such
issue ratings, the ratings designated for the issuers are reported.

2018
FFEE FFEE F=FEE #ET
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
AW EET AWEET AW EET BEET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
Investment in
securities at fair
value through
other
comprehensive
income
Aaa 87,005 - - 87,005
Aa1 to Aa3 147,984 - - 147,984
A1to A3 200,721 - - 200,721
Lower than A3 22,431 - - 22,431
Unrated 11,626 - - 11,626
469,767 - - 469,767
Of which:
impairment
allowances (128) - - (128)
Investment in
securities at
amortised cost
Aaa 55,589 - - 55,589
Aa1 to Aa3 3,248 - - 3,248
A1t0 A3 8,980 - - 8,980
Lower than A3 1,161 - - 1,161
Unrated - - - -
68,978 - - 68,978
Impairment
allowances (10) - - (10)
68,968 - - 68,968
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(E) EHES REKE

(8
BAASEEEELETA
sy SREE

Aaa

Aal £ Aa3

A1 £ A3

A3 DL
Aaa Aaa
Aal & Aa3 Aa1lto Aa3
A1 £ A3 A1to A3
A3 DUF Lower than A3
fEETAR Unrated
JEAE Impairment

allowances

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit (continued)

2018
AREEET
HK$’'m

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Aaa 3,634
Aa1 to Aa3 23,241
A1to A3 6,444
Lower than A3 1,814
Unrated 906
36,039

2017
LUATFEZ(E
FrAEmZ
S SGE
Financial I HEE S
assets at fair n it EE A Held-to- B
value through Available-for- maturity Loans and 4EEt
profit or loss  sale securities securities receivables Total
BEEET BEEET BEEET B EHET BEEET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
17,507 169,792 16,909 - 204,208
10,915 134,786 1,581 - 147,282
13,344 199,760 10,297 499 223,900
817 28,387 816 - 30,020
268 12,669 - - 12,937
42,851 545,394 29,603 499 618,347
- 45 -
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4. SRREEE (8]) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

177

41 E8RE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(E) BI5EE R E (E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit (continued)
(&)
B8 77 RATHEE Reconciliation of impairment allowances for debt securities and certificates of deposit
Z R ME AR is as follows:
WHIRATT
2018
P B E=REE 885t
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
AEEET BEEERT  A¥EER AEEET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
DA EES (AR Investment in
- 2ERS B securities at fair
s value through other
comprehensive
income
20181 H1H At 1 January 2018 111 111
Pt E i e A > SR Changes arising from
transfer of stage - -
FoAths#E) (EREHNY Other changes
L R 4 REST (including new
THE) assets and
h derecognised
assets) 18 18
PEE 2 72 4R Exchange difference (1) (1)
#2018 4212 H 31 At 31 December 2018
H 128 128
EEie - o= Charged to income
12) statement (Note 12) 18
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MK (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRREEE (8]) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 E8RE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(E) EMIZEEERE (E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit (continued)
(&
2018
E—FEE EFEEE F=MEE gt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
AB¥EE L BWEER  B¥EET AW EHEIT
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
DB RAST B2 Investment in
B securities at
amortised cost
w2018 FE1 H1H At 1 January 2018 7 - 45 52
P Eleig e £E > S ) Changes arising from
transfer of stage - - - -
=il QR AT Other changes
RIS G (including new
=) assets and
derecognised
assets) 3 - - 3
6] Write-offs - - (45) (45)
2018 F12H 31 H At 31 December 2018 10 - - 10
etz (fEE 12) Charged to income
statement (Note 12) 3
JRAE BT HA > (B 28 The gross impaired or overdue debt securities and certificates of deposit are
75 B AT SR T analysed as follows:
W :
2018 2017
E¥EET BEEETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
TRAE FOE R 1A Impaired and overdue for over one year
- DR AT 2 - Investment in securities at amortised cost
ZEFE - N/A
- FFEZRPHE - Held-to-maturity securities
75 N/A 45
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(F) Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts

Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts are analysed by internal credit

grade and stage classification as follows:

2018
F—FEE: FFEEE FE=PEE #ET
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BMEET BMEET BMEET BEEHET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
Loan
commitments
and financial
guarantee
contracts
Pass 605,718 2,900 - 608,618
Special mention 1,017 367 - 1,384
Substandard or
below - - 91 91
606,735 3,267 91 610,093

Reconciliation of impairment allowances for loan commitments and financial

guarantee contracts is as follows:

2018
FE—PEER BFREE =R #E5t
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
AY¥OET AYOET BEoET AEEET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
At 1 January 2018 331 21 - 352
Transfer to Stage 1 14 (14) - -
Transfer to Stage 2 1) 1 - -
Transfer to Stage 3 1) - 1 -
Changes arising from
transfer of stage (12) 12 22 22
Other changes
(including new
assets and
derecognised
assets) 49 - 20 69
Exchange difference (5) - - (5)
At 31 December 2018 375 20 43 438
Charged to income
statement (Note 12) 91
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk

4.2 HBER

GRS N Bk
{EE (MR ~ I - s
B8 ~ PEmfEig) HENE
BOIRTTHNE ~ U ~ B
TR B B R L
HJ R4S AR F T 2R Y 4R
& o AEERAUEP T
G m - EE R
W EY A - TSR E
HEYERE - ZIRIEASER
RN S
JEESRME - {REESEE AR
i L O R RO o i B T
B ARUEEAEEZER
TR REEE A AT TR
TREE SR R -

AR EZ I B b2
ERFEREE NS -
HEHRGNABEEY =
JEE BN BARERERTFT
B £EHRE - £&8H
H o pEEE R A s
SRS A S E B
=R EE A RETH
HEHEHBE - EIIEEA
Sz o A Y TS
Bt LA R B SRR
BTSN » AHECREEAS
Al 0 7 85 e P2 1
TEA KA -

Market risk refers to the risk of loss arising from movements in the value of foreign
exchange, interest rate, equity and commodity positions held by the Group due to the
volatility of financial market price (foreign exchange rate, interest rate, equity price,
commodity price). The Group adopts a moderate market risk appetite to achieve a balance
between risk and return. The Group’s objective in managing market risk is to secure
healthy growth of the treasury business, by the effective management of potential market
risk in the Group’s business, according to the Group’s overall risk appetite and strategy of
the treasury business on the basis of a well-established risk management regime and
related management measures.

In accordance with the Group’s corporate governance principles in respect of risk
management, the Board and RMC, senior management and functional departments/units
perform their duties and responsibilities to manage the Group’s market risk. The RMD is
mainly responsible for managing market risk, assisting senior management to perform their
day-to-day duties, independently monitoring the market risk profile and compliance of
management policies and limits of the Group and BOCHK, and ensuring that the
aggregate and individual market risks are within acceptable levels.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

The Group’s market risk management covers BOCHK and its subsidiaries. The Group
establishes market risk management policies to regulate BOCHK’s and its subsidiaries’
market risk management; meanwhile, the Group sets up the Group’s VAR and stress test
limits, which are allocated and monitored across the Group according to the business
requirements and risk tolerance levels. In line with the requirements set in the Group’s
policy, the subsidiaries formulate the detailed policies and procedures and are responsible
for managing their daily market risk.

The Group sets up market risk indicators and limits to identify, measure, monitor and
control market risk. Major risk indicators and limits include but are not limited to VAR, Stop
Loss, Open Position, Stress Testing and Sensitivity Analysis (Basis Point Value, Greeks),
etc. To meet management’s requirements, major risk indicators and limits are classified
into four levels, and are approved by the RMC, MC, CRO and the DCE in charge of the
treasury business or the head of the respective business unit respectively. The treasury
business units of BOCHK and subsidiaries (as for Group Limit) are required to conduct
their business within approved market risk indicators and limits.
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MK (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRREEE (8]) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 mEEE (&) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(A) EEE (A) VAR
REEE R R (2 The Group uses the VAR to measure and report general market risks to the RMC
& —R% T R > A and senior management on a periodic basis. The Group adopts a uniformed VAR
TE B 1A B 22 B e R calculation model, using a historical simulation approach and two years of historical
SEEHABHE - market data, to calculate the VAR of the Group and its subsidiaries over a one-day
AEERR A5 —1IE holding period with a 99% confidence level, and sets up the VAR limit of the Group
PrlEstEEHEY > EH and its subsidiaries.
JE S E > DB A2
LTS EIE RS
I > 5TE99% EE7/K
SR RAKRFFE AN
B & M
TEOVERRE - WEE
AR I Fa i
e (B FRAE -
TRFFHAERE— The following table sets out the VAR for all general market risk exposures' of the
A% T 25 B B FE A Y Group.
JE g " -
24 24 25
R12HF331H EEEE EaBE  EERE
i At Minimum for Maximum for Average for
Year |31 December the year the year the year
AEEHET  B¥EERT  BYEET BBEET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
SHTHSEKRZE VAR for all market risk 2018 26.0 24.1 45.8 33.0
fafE 2017 28.3 27.1 80.9 49.7
b SR g B VAR for foreign exchange 2018 15.9 10.7 271 18.0
risk 2017 13.1 12.5 541 31.2
7 | ES e VAR for interest rate risk 2018 13.0 12.9 43.0 26.4
JE\ in the trading book 2017 251 19.3 82.4 44 .4
AL SR B i VAR for equity risk 2018 0.3 0.2 7.0 1.6
JE e E in the trading book 2017 2.1 0.7 5.9 2.6
P o 2 VAR for commodity risk 2018 9.6 0.8 9.7 3.1
2017 1.1 0.5 2.0 1.3
e Note:
1. R FEAS RSN R Y 1. Structural FX positions have been excluded.
JEBRAE -
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MERN=E () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRREEE (8]) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 HIEEE (&) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(A) ExE (&) (A) VAR (continued)

#ERR R EEEE Although there is a valuable guide to market risk, VAR should always be viewed in the

755 b 1y — T & context of its limitations. For example:

e EAHE

PRAE - B4 -

-RHERELETmSE — the use of historical market data as a proxy for estimating future events may not
B (et R AR E e encompass all potential events, particularly those which are extreme in nature;
N8 =)

BEHIRAINENL » A
LA — 5 B
ok

- AREAEHEE — the use of a one-day holding period assumes that all positions can be liquidated
J A% B B B or hedged in one day. This may not fully reflect the market risk arising at times of
BT DA —H severe illiquidity, when a one-day holding period may be insufficient to liquidate or
NEBEE S - 12 hedge all positions fully;

TR R R 2 B 58
g E g
e HAE T 355 i
FERRERF > FAE
FAEVRFFA AN
EBRSH A
S

- REEESE BT — the use of a 99% confidence level, by definition, does not take into account
9% E(F 7K losses that might occur beyond this level of confidence; and
Bl R A & R AE It
B {Z /K LLAMEL
HHERAVEE DL
54

- JE B E R DLE S — VAR is calculated on the basis of exposures outstanding at the close of business
H3 [ &5 o B 1 B and therefore does not necessarily reflect intra-day exposures.
ARRT R -
e AE AR — 28 [
2 5 W B Y B JEL

b -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 TIBER (8
(A) EEzfE (8D

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(A) VAR (continued)

G TR
b E SRR SR
Rt » e T EETH
SIS R PR BT
i F17E B B {E R
REME RIS -
T3 45 [ b JBE 7 B 3t
BRI A [F R
Eee dib) {3530
FRERI SR, -
DR 3 JBE 52 S 41
BERoHT - 401987
L 199452511755
fE - 1997 Tl
JE\ 2% ~ 20014 3= Bl
911 = 4 1) F 2008
RIS -

(B) SMEEERE

KEFHEERA
EETEET =T
FARBELEHE
W - RUECRINE R
HRYE OR R AE T 32
K> AR AT
W PR (BIA0ERER R
JEE R ER) 15 Ry
ETR - I A&
BRI —
HWHEERER
SHC > 0 H A S
MEELY (BIAISh
) B NI S E
B4 {E P E AR HY S B
ez

(B)

The Group recognises these limitations by formulating stress test indicators and limits
to assess and manage the market risk uncovered by VAR. The stress testing
programme of the market risk includes sensitivity testing on changes in risk factors
with various degrees of severity, as well as scenario analysis on historical events
including the 1987 Equity Market Crash, 1994 Bond Market Crash, 1997 Asian
Financial Crisis, 2001 9-11 event and 2008 Financial Tsunami, etc.

Currency risk

The Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in major currencies, particularly
HK Dollar, US Dollar and Renminbi. To ensure the currency risk exposure of the
Group is kept to an acceptable level, risk limits (e.g. Position and VAR limit) are used
to serve as a monitoring tool. Moreover, the Group seeks to minimise the gap
between assets and liabilities in the same currency. Foreign exchange contracts (e.g.
FX swaps) are usually used to manage FX risk associated with foreign
currency-denominated assets and liabilities.
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MK (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRREEE (8]) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 mEEE (&) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(B) SMNEERSE (&) (B) Currency risk (continued)

TEIHEAEHNA The following is a summary of the Group’s major foreign currency exposures arising
BERS - JEEERT from trading, non-trading and structural positions and is prepared with reference to the
5 R AERE M BT completion instructions for the HKMA return of foreign currency position. The net
B 2 T E AN R options position is calculated based on the basis of delta-weighted positions of all
f@%E - W IEEREE foreign exchange options contracts.

HAINEH N 2 &8

& RAVERIE R

iémEd o HARERS 4

JORE A% P A 4 b A

ez TSR
fEFF R L RAkuEst

E )
2018
AEEETEE
Equivalent in million of HK$
Hetshes  SMESHEER
B B HE Bon Other Total
us Pound Japanese BREE A% Australian foreign foreign
Dollars Sterling Yen Euro Renminbi Dollars currencies currencies
IRE&EE Spot assets 784,876 26,486 23,821 33,069 527,079 38,679 63,409 1,497,419
IREAE Spot liabilities (851,274)  (16,358)  (7,125) (17,729) (287,409) (23,991) (63,989) (1,267,875)
HEAE A Forward purchases 1,120,568 22,996 54,990 55,338 454,667 14,107 74,958 1,797,624
EEAE Forward sales (1,055,159)  (33,076) (71,582) (70,369) (693,622) (28,786) (73,864) (2,026,458)
HAREE S Net options position 1,312 (9) (66)  (217) (696) (33) 4 295
&,/ (H) #5%5 Netlong/(short)
position 323 39 38 92 19 (24) 518 1,005
2017
B EETEE
Equivalent in million of HK$
HA Mg AN
FEIT gk H T Other Total
us Pound Japanese 5 A Australian foreign foreign
Dollars Sterling Yen Euro  Renminbi Dollars  currencies currencies
RE&EE Spot assets 773,651 23,799 90,147 52,554 332,350 42,746 47,941 1,363,188
REAE Spot liabilities (715,308)  (15,363) (11,352) (25,620) (256,480) (19,414)  (50,632) (1,094,169)
BEHAE A Forward purchases 909,301 16,490 30,145 61,278 356,964 21,391 86,722 1,482,291
BEE T Forward sales (967,376)  (25,073) (108,992) (88,054) (433,184) (44,640)  (83,140) (1,750,459)
HAtER P Net options position (684) 6 (6) (48) 44 (14) 10 (692)
(5 /£49% Net (short)/llong
position (416) (141) (58) 110 (306) 69 901 159
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MK (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRREEE (8]) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 mEEE (&) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(B) #MeEEE (48) (B) Currency risk (continued)
2018
AREETSE
Equivalent in million of HK$
AR HAtrsMeg SNESHEER
EIn wER  JEEERR Other Total
us . Malaysian Philippine foreign foreign
Dollars Baht Ringgit Peso  currencies  currencies
sEMEME R FEE Net structural position 28,122 2,301 2,769 1,608 1,812 36,612
2017
BEEHETEE
Equivalent in million of HK$
b2 5% U HA M ML
e MER JEEERER Other Total
us R Malaysian Philippine foreign foreign
Dollars Baht Ringgit Peso currencies currencies
GEREMEA#EF5  Net structural position 3,531 2,350 2,651 1,015 9,547
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MR (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. &RIEEEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 HimEER (8D
(C) FIHE

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk
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A Ui s A il 4

JEPFT A B

A R A B

KOREEELEA
WE K

- B EREERE 5
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Interest rate risk means the risks to a bank’s earnings and economic value arising from
movements in interest rate and term structures of the bank’s asset and liability positions.
The Group’s interest rate risk exposures are mainly structural. The major types of
interest rate risk from structural positions are:

- Repricing risk: mismatches in the maturity or repricing periods of assets and liabilities
that may affect net interest income;

- Basis risk: different pricing basis for different transactions resulting that the yield on
assets and cost of liabilities may change by different amounts within the same
repricing period;

- Yield curve risk: non-parallel shifts in the yield curve that may have an adverse impact
on net interest income or economic value; and

- Option risk: exercise of the options embedded in assets, liabilities or off-balance sheet
items that can cause a change in the cash flows of assets and liabilities.
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Mg MEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERBER (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 THEEER (8)
(C) FimkE (8D

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)
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The Group’s risk management framework applies also to interest rate risk management.
The Asset and Liability Management Committee (“ALCO”) exercises its oversight of
interest rate risk in accordance with the “BOCHK Group Banking Book Interest Rate
Risk Management Policy” approved by the RMC. The RMD is responsible for interest
rate risk management. With the cooperation of the Asset and Liability Management
Division of the Financial Management Department, Treasury, and Investment
Management, RMD assists the ALCO to perform day-to-day interest rate risk
management. Its roles include, but are not limited to, the formulation of management
policies, selection of methodologies, setting of risk indicators and limits, assessment of
target balance sheet, monitoring of the compliance with policies and limits, and
submission of interest rate risk management reports to senior management and the
RMC, etc.
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Mg MEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERBER (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

42 HBEE (&) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(C) FIREME (&) (C) Interest rate risk (continued)
R EE[EH 5% E F R S, The Group sets out interest rate risk indicators and limits to identify, measure, monitor
fg i K [R4E » and control interest rate risk on a daily basis. The indicators and limits include, but are
H Ak~ 515 ~ not limited to, repricing gap limits, basis risk, duration, price value of a basis point
B RN 22 A1) 1) 53R Je, (“PVBP”), Greeks, net interest income sensitivity ratio (“NII”), economic value sensitivity
Fr o FEE RIS ratio (“EV”), etc. The indicators and limits are classified into different levels, which are
AR B E AR approved by the CFO,CRO, ALCO and RMC accordingly. Risk-taking business units are
AEESTERRC - F required to conduct their business within the boundary of the interest rate risk limits.
SEACER I - 2 Before launching a new product or business in the banking book, the relevant

FREH(E(PVBP) ~
HHEELES
(Greeks)~JFFI 2z
BN ~ &%
EAE R BILL R (EV)
% - TR
FIBREAH 7> A [E g
S FAE Gy
AT E A S A s e
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B BE AL ZE S AT
JE B FEAL A PR B
FEETAS VB AL HY IR
JELBE » AGE REERTT
Yy Jae e i A A T 2
e 5 o 0AE EbR
FEAL AR Fp oh 45 B ¥
BEAT I 2 o iy 22 o
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departments are required to go through a risk assessment process, which includes the
assessment of underlying interest rate risk and consideration of the adequacy of current
risk monitoring mechanism. Any material impact on interest rate risk noted during the
risk assessment process will be submitted to the RMC for approval.
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MR (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. &RIEEEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 WEERE (&) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(C) FIEERE (&) (C) Interest rate risk (continued)

AR K B LE R NIl and EV assess the impact of interest rate movement on the Group’s net interest
(NI &5 775 {5 {07 income and capital base. They are the Group’s key interest rate risk indicators. The
LR (EV) 52 B F] former assesses the impact of interest rate movement on net interest income as a
IR S ) A [H] R percentage to the projected net interest income for the year. The latter assesses the
B AFIE A A impact of interest rate movement on economic value (i.e. the net present value of cash
e EAEEE flows of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items discounted using the market
T 4 e 1Y interest rate) as a percentage to the latest capital base. Limits are set by the RMC on
e - g = these two indicators to monitor and control the Group’s banking book interest rate risk.
RSB EE A5

AR A G

FEFHIF R R A

HIELES 1% &t E A

FRE LR AT O

QGRS

FRREE Ak

RN N &
SRATFEE RV
5 i B A R R
teR- miaZE g R
48 WY T AR AR E IR
RN
A B SRAT IR A 2
J B -

REE SRS The Group uses scenario analyses and stress tests to assess the banking book interest
RIS TR 2 rate risk that the Group would face under adverse circumstances. Scenario analyses
ETAG A F T 5T #R and stress tests are also used to assess the impact on net interest income and
1THR W RE R SZ A economic value arising from the optionality of savings deposits, the prepayment of
Gl R =g il mortgage loans and the prepayment of debt securities with embedded options.

JBE 3 B X 1 B 7

MR E TR

B AR PRE

B DN S AR

{8 %5 56 7 FE T K

HIRITIF R U A

FIECTHE E A2 -
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MR (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. &RIEEEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 HBERE (&) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(C) IR\ (&) (C) Interest rate risk (continued)
AEE T E A The Group is principally exposed to HK Dollar, US Dollar and Renminbi in terms of
TC ETT A REEF] interest rate risk. As at 31 December 2018, if market interest rates had a 100 basis point
g - i 2018 parallel shift of the yield curve with other variables held constant, the sensitivities on net
F12H3NH &

¥ interest income over a twelve-month period and on reserves for the Group would have
745 I U ik o

g~ E) 100
(B HATRZEAR

been as follows:

RA A2 & A
SUA R Y
BRS¢

B12 5 31 HERAK 12{EA

AR BRI E
Impact on net interest income 12 A 31 HHERENEE
over the next twelve months Impact on reserves
at 31 December at 31 December
2018 2017 2018 2017
AEEET B EETT AEEET BEEET
HK$’'m HK$'m HK$’'m HK$'m
SR B4R SE1T 100 basis point
_F# 100 &L parallel up of
yield curve
&F Total 1,392 926 (3,680) (5,642)
Her: Of which:
AT HK Dollar 2,222 2,319 (357) (329)
£ US Dollar (403) (967) (1,743) (3,739)
NEE Renminbi (342) (249) (1,262) (835)
U ZS R 4R 21T 100 basis point
T 100 EmE parallel down
of yield curve
=T Total (1,392) (926) 3,680 5,642
Hrfr: Of which:
HBIT HK Dollar (2,222) (2,319) 357 329
FEIT US Dollar 403 967 1,743 3,739
NCTE Renminbi 342 249 1,262 835

191



@ ¥ B 4L £5 (5 %) H B AT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Mg MEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERBER (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 HBERE (&) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(C) IR\ (&) (C) Interest rate risk (continued)
UL s R 4R AT In a parallel shift up of 100 basis points of yield curve, the overall impact on net interest
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income of the above currencies is positive in 2018. Reserves of the Group would have
been reduced because of the expected reduction in valuation of the debt securities
portfolio and relevant interest rate derivatives under hedge accounting due to a parallel
shift up of 100 basis points in the yield curve. The reduction of reserves is decreased
compared with 2017 because the duration of the debt securities portfolio in capital
market is decreased.

In a parallel shift down of 100 basis points of yield curve, the overall impact on net
interest income of the above currencies is negative in 2018. Reserves of the Group
would have been increased because of the expected increase in valuation of the debt
securities portfolio and relevant interest rate derivatives under hedge accounting due to
a parallel shift down of 100 basis points in the yield curve. The increase of reserves is
decreased compared with 2017 because the duration of the debt securities portfolio in
capital market is decreased.

The sensitivities above are for illustration only and are based on several assumptions,
including, but not limited to, the change in the correlation between interest rates of
relevant currencies, parallel movement of interest rates, the absence of actions that
would be taken to mitigate the impact of interest rate risk, the effectiveness of hedge
accounting, all positions being assumed to run to maturity, behavioural assumptions of
products in which the actual repricing date differs from the contractual repricing date or
products without contractual maturity. The above exposures form only a part of the
Group’s overall interest rate risk exposures.
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I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. SREREE (R)

4.2 THEEER (8)
(C) FimkE (8D

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

AR T AR
12 H 31 HZ&
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HitrgiE (EFEERHE
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HERH

Assets

Cash and balances and
placements with banks and
other financial institutions

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Hong Kong SAR Government
certificates of indebtedness

Advances and other accounts

Investment in securities

- At FVOCI

- At amortised cost
Interests in associates and joint
ventures
Investment properties
Properties, plant and equipment
Other assets (including deferred
tax assets)

Total assets

amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing date and maturity date.

The tables below summarise the Group’s on-balance sheet exposure to interest rate risk
as at 31 December. Included in the tables are the assets and liabilities at carrying

2018

—F = FEtR

—EAR =@EA  +=EA —=E2Hf A#AEULE Non-
Up to 1to 3 3 to 12 1to 5 Over interest st
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
EEEET BBEET BYWEHET BYOET BYOET B¥EERT BEEERT
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
304,643 36,223 20,457 - - 69,970 431,293
243,603 8,839 7,700 10,158 3,850 7 274,157
- - - - - 34,955 34,955
- - - - - 156,300 156,300
1,040,004 166,282 27,273 34,562 5,208 8,435 1,281,764
52,870 81,489 110,282 158,674 66,452 1,329 471,096
240 1,676 9,166 46,514 11,372 - 68,968
- - - - - 482 482
- - - - - 19,988 19,988
- - - - - 49,066 49,066
7,491 - - - - 25,124 32,615
1,648,851 294,509 174,878 249,908 86,882 365,656 2,820,684
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4. SREREE (R)

4.2 THEEER (8)
(C) FimkE (8D
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

Liabilities

Hong Kong SAR currency notes
in circulation

Deposits and balances from
banks and other financial
institutions

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Deposits from customers

Debt securities and certificates
of deposit in issue

Other accounts and provisions
(including current and
deferred tax liabilities)

Subordinated liabilities

Total liabilities

Interest sensitivity gap

2018

—F =7 ENp-

—EAR =@EA  +=EA —E2Hf #HEULE Non-
Up to 1t0 3 3 to 12 1to 5 Over interest ast
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
EEEET BBEET BYWOHET BYOET BYOET BREErT BEEERT
HK$’m HK$’m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’m HK$’'m
- - - - - 156,300 156,300
356,105 5,719 118 460 - 13,946 376,348
3,274 8,820 1,761 1,160 520 - 15,535
- - - - - 30,812 30,812
1,324,106 235,761 166,442 5,187 - 165,167 1,896,663
3,480 4,813 1,160 - - - 9,453
15,493 - - - - 40,596 56,089
. - - 13,246 - - 13,246
1,702,458 255,113 169,481 20,053 520 406,821 2,554,446
(53,607) 39,396 5,397 229,855 86,362 (41,165) 266,238
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

Assets
Cash and balances and
placements with banks and
other financial institutions
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Derivative financial instruments
Hong Kong SAR Government
certificates of indebtedness
Advances and other accounts
Investment in securities
- Available-for-sale securities
- Held-to-maturity securities
- Loans and receivables
Interests in associates and joint
ventures
Investment properties
Properties, plant and equipment
Other assets (including deferred
tax assets)

Total assets

2017

—& =% Tt

—EAR =R +oEA —EEE ANk Non-
Up to 1t03 3 to 12 1to 5 Over interest 4t
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
AREETT BNEETT EWEEDT BEEEDT ENEEDT BNEET BWEET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
343,605 37,363 21,864 - - 22,735 425,567
10,354 9,236 17,030 8,626 4,464 488 50,198
- - - - - 33,618 33,618
- - - - - 146,200 146,200
952,087 140,053 55,031 28,574 6,374 7,813 1,189,932
72,866 102,698 116,313 162,311 91,206 946 546,340
1,231 2,365 7,359 17,791 857 - 29,603
- 499 - - - - 499
- - - - - 415 415
- - - - - 19,949 19,949
- - - - - 46,919 46,919
4,338 - - - - 26,219 30,557
1,384,481 292,214 217,597 217,302 102,901 305,302 2,519,797
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4. SREREE (R)

4.2 HigEER (8D
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

2017
% =% ENTY-\
—EAN =fEA +={@H —ZEAF AFRE Non-
Up to 1t03 3 to 12 1t05 Over interest 4
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
AlrEE T BEEET BNasT BYEET BRoErT ANasET BYEET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
Liabilities
Hong Kong SAR currency notes
in circulation - - - - - 146,200 146,200
Deposits and balances from
banks and other financial
institutions 184,793 6,290 380 825 - 30,252 222,540
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss 7,102 4,116 7,068 955 479 - 19,720
Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 30,982 30,982
Deposits from customers 1,337,309 160,670 140,524 1,263 - 138,422 1,778,188
Debt securities and certificates
of deposit in issue 7,091 1,971 12,579 - - - 21,641
Other accounts and provisions
(including current and
deferred tax liabilities) 17,534 - - - - 33,046 50,580
Subordinated liabilities - - 63 18,917 - - 18,980
Total liabilities 1,553,829 173,047 160,614 21,960 479 378,902 2,288,831
Interest sensitivity gap (169,348) 119,167 56,983 195,342 102,422 (73,600) 230,966

4.3 Liquidity risk

TEE IR TT
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Liquidity risk is the risk that banks may not be able to obtain sufficient and timely funding at
a reasonable cost to meet their obligations as they fall due. The Group maintains a sound
liquidity risk appetite to provide stable, reliable and adequate sources of cash to meet
liquidity needs under normal circumstances or stressed scenarios; and to survive with net
positive cumulative cash flow in extreme scenarios, without requesting the HKMA to act as
the lender of last resort.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

In accordance with the Group’s corporate governance principles in respect of risk
management, the Board and the RMC, senior management and functional
departments/units perform their duties and responsibilities to manage the Group’s liquidity
risk. The RMC is the decision-making authority of liquidity risk management, and assumes
the ultimate responsibility of liquidity risk management. As authorised by the RMC, ALCO
exercises its oversight of liquidity risk and ensures the daily operations of the Group are in
accordance with the risk appetite and policies as set by the RMC. RMD is responsible for
overseeing the Group’s liquidity risk. It cooperates with the Asset and Liability Management
Division of the Financial Management Department, Treasury, and Investment Management,
etc. to assist the ALCO to perform liquidity management functions according to their specific
responsibilities.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group’s liquidity risk management objective is to effectively manage the liquidity of
on- and off-balance sheet items with a reasonable cost based on the liquidity risk appetite
to achieve sound operation and sustainable profitability. Deposits from customers are the
Group’s primary source of funds. To ensure stable and sufficient sources of funds are in
place, the Group actively attracts new deposits, keeps the core deposit and obtains
supplementary funding from the interbank market and by issuing bills in the capital
market. According to different term maturities and the results of funding needs estimated
from stressed scenarios, the Group adjusts its asset structure (including loans, bonds
investment, interbank placement, etc.) to maintain sufficient liquid assets which provides
adequate funds in support of normal business needs and ensure its ability to raise funds
at a reasonable cost to serve external claims in case of emergency. The Group is
committed to diversify the sources and tenors of funding and the use of funds to avoid
excessive concentration of assets and liabilities and prevent triggering liquidity risk due to
the break of funding strand when problems occurred in one concentrated funding source.
In order to manage such risk, the Group sets concentration limits on collateral pools and
sources of funding such as Tier 1 high-quality readily liquefiable assets to total
high-quality readily liquefiable assets ratio, top ten depositors ratio and large depositors
ratio. Whenever necessary, the Group could improve the liquidity position by taking
mitigation actions including, but not limited to obtaining funding through interbank
borrowings or repos in the money market, selling bonds in the secondary market or
retaining existing and attracting new customer deposits. Apart from increasing the
funding, the Group would maintain good communication with the counterparties, the
parent and the regulators to enhance mutual confidence.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group has established intra-group liquidity risk management guidelines to manage
the liquidity funding among different entities within the Group, and to restrict their reliance
of funding on each other. The Group also pays attention to manage liquidity risk created
by off-balance sheet activities, such as loan commitments, derivatives, options and other
complex structured products. The Group has an overall liquidity risk management
strategy to cover the liquidity management of foreign currency assets and liabilities,
collateral, intra-day liquidity, intra-group liquidity, the liquidity risk arising from other risks,
etc., and has formulated corresponding contingency plans.

The Group established liquidity risk management indicators and limits to identify, measure,
monitor and control liquidity risk on a daily basis. These indicators and limits include, but are
not limited to liquidity coverage ratio (‘LCR”), net stable funding ratio (“NSFR”),
loan-to-deposit ratio, Maximum Cumulative Cash Outflow (“MCO”) and liquidity cushion.
The Group applies a cash flow analysis to assess the Group’s liquidity condition under
normal conditions and also performs a liquidity stress test (including institution specific,
general market crisis and combined crisis) and other methods at least on a monthly basis to
assess the Group’s capability to withstand various severe liquidity crises. Also, relevant
management information systems such as the Assets and Liabilites Management System
and the Basel Liquidity Ratio Management System are developed to provide data and to
prepare for regular management reports to facilitate liquidity risk management duties.

199



@ ¥ B 4L £5 (5 %) H B AT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Mg MEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERBER (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 REELRE (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

REEEMRIESE FHE M
ZEBERRTFM LM-2
(TR R BIE b
B R BT )
PIVEDSK  BEENSE
TR R B ST E
TR FE 2 P T R R
& Dl EAREE R H
B IER N IHEE
o - EHEBE T
HUSRE RO - A%EE
HEIEERREREE
(MBI RFEHD
HE (NEFRH) F
il - RIEAREIERE -
B R FANEH R
M RIBELEIIE -
HEEEUERREER
ERIEE R - DITE
A SR E AT A AT 07
IR - AR E i
KEEHRERH 51
TR DL E R FECRIE H
WA THARK 30 H
ZRA B EEFR
H o DA E A SR E Y Rl
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In accordance with the requirements of Supervisory Policy Manual LM-2 “Sound Systems
and controls for Liquidity Risk Management” issued by the HKMA, the Group has
implemented a behaviour model and assumptions of cash flow analysis and stress test to
enhance the Group’s cash flow analysis under both normal and stressed conditions. In
cash flow analysis under normal circumstances, assumptions have been made relating to
on-balance sheet items (such as deposits from customers) and off-balance sheet items
(such as loan commitments). According to various characteristics of the assets, liabilities
and off-balance sheet items, the Group forecasts the future cash flow based on the
contractual maturity date and the assumptions of customer behaviour and balance sheet
changes. The Group establishes the MCO indicator which predicts the future 30 days
maximum cumulative net cash outflow in normal situations based on the above
assumptions, to assess if the Group has sufficient financing capacity to meet the cash flow
gap in order to achieve the objective of continuing operations. As at 31 December 2018,
before taking the cash inflow through the sale of outstanding marketable securities into
consideration, BOCHK’s 30-day cumulative cash flow was a net cash inflow, amounting to
HK$93,439 million (2017: HK$85,602 million) and was in compliance with the internal limit
requirements.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 REELRE (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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In the liquidity stress test, institution specific, general market crisis and combined crisis
scenarios have been set up, a combined crisis scenario is a combination of institution
specific and general market crisis to assess the Group’s capability to withstand a more
severe liquidity crisis, with a more stringent set of assumptions being adopted. Stress test
assumptions include the run-off rate of retail, wholesale and interbank deposits; the
drawdown rate of loan commitments and trade-related contingent liabilities; the
delinquency ratio and rollover rate of customer loans; and haircut of interbank placement
and marketable securities. As at 31 December 2018, the Group was able to maintain a net
cash inflow under the three stressed scenarios, indicating the Group has the ability to meet
financing needs under stressed conditions. In addition, the Group has a policy in place to
maintain a liquidity cushion which includes high quality or comparable quality marketable
securities issued or guaranteed by sovereigns, central banks, public sector entities or
multilateral development banks with 0% or 20% risk weight or marketable securities issued
by non-financial corporate with a corresponding external credit rating of A- or above to
ensure funding needs even under stressed scenarios. As at 31 December 2018, the
liquidity cushion (before haircut) of BOCHK was HK$447,175 million (2017: HK$420,770
million). A contingency plan is being established which details the conditions to trigger the
plan based on stress test results and early warning indicators, the action plans and
relevant procedures and responsibility of relevant departments.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

The LCR is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules effective from 1
January 2015. The Group, being classified as a category 1 authorised institution by the
HKMA, is required to calculate the LCR on a consolidated basis. During the year of 2018,
the Group is required to maintain a LCR not less than 90%.

The NSFR is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) (Amendment) Rules
2017 effective from 1 January 2018. The Group, being classified as a category 1
authorised institution by the HKMA, is required to calculate NSFR on consolidated basis
and maintain a NSFR not less than 100%.

In certain derivative contracts, the counterparties have the right to request from the Group
additional collateral if they have concerns about the Group’s creditworthiness.

The Group’s liquidity risk management also covers new products or business
developments. Before launching a new product or business, the relevant departments are
required to go through a risk assessment process, which includes the assessment of
underlying liquidity risk and consideration of the adequacy of the current risk management
mechanism. Any material impact on liquidity risk noted during the risk assessment process
will be reported to the RMC for approval.
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4. &RLEEEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 REELRE (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
AEEFETHR AR The Group has established a set of uniform liquidity risk management policies which serve
B SR M as standards and guidance to all the Group’s members for liquidity risk management. On
AT EAT A EEK S the basis of the Group’s uniform policy, each of the subsidiaries develops its own liquidity
YR B < JE b management policies according to its own characteristics, and assumes its own liquidity
MY B AR IS SR B Y risk management responsibility. Subsidiaries are required to report their respective liquidity
SR A8 B positions with relevant liquidity ratios on a regular basis to the RMD of BOCHK, which
BE ST B RS 09 2 T consolidates this information and evaluates group-wide liquidity risk to ensure relevant
2o R HAEEHEAR requirements are satisfied.

ERRR A R
FAE - BB AE
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AR B E(E S
BB E SR - gl
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IEtRsRIEE - HEE
{6l SE B R B & 2
ARILES TR A - FECRIE

EAHRAZK -
(A) FREMESLLRE (A) Liquidity coverage ratio and net stable funding ratio
BEESIFHLRE
2018 2017
TREN MR & LR Average value of liquidity coverage ratio
HME
- BFE - First quarter 134.33% 121.41%
- BOFEE - Second quarter 146.39% 123.88%
- BEEER - Third quarter 141.44% 121.12%
- BIUEE - Fourth quarter 160.23% 135.64%
MEEEE LR Average value of liquidity coverage ratio is calculated based on the arithmetic mean of
SEHEERNZE the liquidity coverage ratio as at the end of each working day in the quarter and the
FE R EE T AE H 4% calculation methodology and instructions set out in the HKMA return of liquidity position.
SRR EN M E
bl 209 Bl S 39 3
e 7 T B AR 5
2B RmEIIH
WEt & A KR
FHE
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4. &RLEEEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 REELRE (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
(A) FREMEESLEER (A) Liquidity coverage ratio and net stable funding ratio (continued)
BEESIFHELER
(&
2018
T E A B EHEL RN Quarter-end value of net stable funding ratio
FERLEE
- B-FE - First quarter 118.98%
- BETEE - Second quarter 118.82%
- BEFE - Third quarter 122.24%
- HIUERRE - Fourth quarter 124.41%
BT E e F LR Quarter-end value of net stable funding ratio is calculated based on the calculation
BEREEEZEENE methodology and instructions set out in the HKMA return of stable funding position.
HRERE RN Z &
B EHRYANEE
TEREERETR -
mENEEELLR S Liquidity coverage ratio and net stable funding ratio are computed on the consolidated
EE S PFELLRZEL basis which comprise the positions of BOCHK and certain subsidiaries specified by the
GREEEEETE - MR HKMA in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules.
% CER17E OREnte)
FART) HHeRE R
HEnreEREEZ
M A EI2HAY
BRI EELER The additional information of liquidity coverage ratio and net stable funding ratio
KIS EEGIFEELER disclosures is available under the section “Regulatory Disclosures” on BOCHK'’s
BB R E R website at www.bochk.com.

F R EFEWEE
www.bochk.com 1
FESEYEE | —EE

B
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(B) Maturity analysis
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HEGHE

Assets
Cash and balances and
placements with banks and
other financial institutions
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Derivative financial instruments
Hong Kong SAR Government
certificates of indebtedness
Advances and other accounts
Investment in securities
-AtFVOCI

- Atamortised cost
Interests in associates and joint
ventures
Investment properties
Properties, plant and equipment
Other assets (including deferred
tax assets)

Total assets

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

The tables below analyse the Group’s assets and liabilities as at 31 December into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at balance sheet date to
the contractual maturity date.

2018
—F =%
B# —@EAR  =@AF +=@ER —ZEEF EENLE  FEE
On Up to 1t03 3to12 1to5 Over BHHA et
demand 1 month months months years 5 years Indefinite Total
B b b b b bl % b
HET BHET BHET HET HET HERT HET BHET
HK$m HK$m HK$m HK$m HK$'m HK$m HK$’'m HK$’'m
299,348 75,265 36,223 20,457 - - - 431,293
- 243,106 8,299 7,968 10,960 3,817 7 274,157
11,303 3,285 4,039 5,912 6,972 3,444 - 34,955
156,300 - - - - - - 156,300
176,589 53,549 53,034 158,754 578,964 259,523 1,351 1,281,764
- 44,748 52,071 114,852 190,756 67,340 1,329 471,096
- 410 1,772 9,222 46,223 11,341 - 68,968
- - - - - - 482 482
- - - - - - 19,988 19,988
- - - - - - 49,066 49,066
14,503 17,164 157 694 83 - 14 32,615
658,043 437,527 155,595 317,859 833,958 345,465 72,237 2,820,684
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4. SEiEfEET (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 RERESER (8
(B) EHAH M (&)

a% Liabilities
R TBUE B AL Hong Kong SAR currency notes
in circulation
ST R Bt &Rttt > 12 ;. Deposits and balances from
Lhen banks and other financial
institutions
PIATAES B AB25 2 48t Financial liabilities at fair value
AfF through profit or loss
TEemTE Derivative financial instruments
BEFER Deposits from customers
EETHEEE S R Debt securities and certificates of

depositin issue
HAERTE R (BFEIERTRIE Other accounts and provisions

SOEIEREAE) (including current and
deferred tax liabilities)
REAR Subordinated liabilities
AR Total liabilities
TREA SO Net liquidity gap

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(B) Maturity analysis (continued)

2018
—F =z

B# —@AR  =EAF +=EA —=A% HEEME FHEE
On Up to 1t03 3to12 1to5 Over HEH fast
demand 1 month months months years 5 years Indefinite Total
b b b % b bl i B
BT HET HET HET HET BHEET BHET HET
HK$m HK$m HK$m HK$m HK$m HK$'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
156,300 - - - - - - 156,300
241,706 128,345 5,719 118 460 - - 376,348
- 3,274 8,823 1,762 1,159 517 - 15,535
8,260 4,059 3,164 5,818 6,558 2,953 - 30,812
1,062,954 426,319 235,761 166,442 5,187 - - 1,896,663
- 3,480 4,813 1,160 - - - 9,453
27,586 18,431 1,872 1,195 6,998 7 - 56,089
- - 275 - 12,971 - - 13,246
1,496,806 583,908 260,427 176,495 33,333 3,477 - 2,554,446
(838,763) (146,381) (104,832) 141,364 800,625 341,988 72,237 266,238
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=

B AR
faziia

- AR

- FrEEEIINRD:
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Bra A E e AL

REWE

Yk ~ SRR
HirgE (EFEERHAE)

HERE

Assets
Cash and balances and
placements with banks and
other financial institutions
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Derivative financial instruments
Hong Kong SAR Government
certificates of indebtedness
Advances and other accounts
Investment in securities
- Available-for-sale securities
- Held-to-maturity securities
- Loans and receivables
Interests in associates and joint
ventures
Investment properties
Properties, plant and equipment
Other assets (including deferred
tax assets)

Total assets

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(B) Maturity analysis (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

2017
—% =%
Bl —EAR  =@EA +2EA —E=0F AFME HEE
On Up to 1103 3t012 1t05 Over HiH 4EET
demand 1 month months months years 5years Indefinite Total
bt bt bt A A s A bt
EHHET  H&ET O HERT BEST BHET EHET BT HHIT
HK$m  HK$m  HKEm  HK$m HK$m  HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
248,691 110,236 37,363 21,864 - - 7,413 425567
- 10,075 8,464 17,516 9,219 4,436 488 50,198
10,492 4,148 4,101 6,725 5,521 2,631 - 33,618
146,200 - - - - - - 146,200
128,491 35,145 69,476 184,172 525,761 244,761 2,126 1,189,932
- 61,044 72363 121,314 197,149 93,524 946 546,340
- 1,269 2,439 7,441 17,596 858 - 29,603
- - 499 - - - - 499
- - - - - - 415 415
- - - - - - 19,949 19,949
- - - - - - 46,919 46,919
11,677 18,119 185 481 58 - 37 30,557
545,551 240,036 194,890 359,513 755,304 346,210 78,293 2,519,797
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4. &RIEEEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 REELRE (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
(B) #HIH M (&) (B) Maturity analysis (continued)
2017
—% =%

gy —@EAA  =@EH +2EH —Z20F OFME s
On Up to 1t03 3to12 1t05 Over HHA 4=t
demand 1 month months months years 5years Indefinite Total
A A A A A A A A

BEJL  HEJT HEX HET HEJT HAST HET BHEJT
HK$m  HK$m HK$Em HKFm HKEm HK$m  HK$m HK$'m

=% Liabilities
E AR AT B R A Hong Kong SAR currency notes
in circulation 146,200 - - - - - - 146,200
SRIT R B A SRt 2 F2 K Deposits and balances from
Gk banks and other financial
institutions 173,065 41,044 7,226 380 825 - - 222,540
PIATAES B AB25 2 48t Financial liabilities at fair value
HE through profit or loss - 7,102 4,118 7,070 954 476 - 19,720
TSR T A Derivative financial instruments 6,668 5,585 5,024 6,779 4,629 2,297 - 30,982
BEER Deposits from customers 1,119,936 355,795 160,670 140,524 1,263 - - 1,778,188
CBTEBBERESES Debt securities and certificates of
depositin issue - 7,091 1,971 12,579 - - - 21,641
HAARIE e (EFEME(TFRIE Other accounts and provisions
SOEIEREAE) (including current and
deferred tax liabilities) 23,560 15,303 2,079 2,853 6,777 8 - 50,580
&EAR Subordinated liabilities - - 422 16 18,542 - - 18,980
AR Total liabilities 1,469,429 431,920 181,510 170,201 32,990 2,781 - 2,288,831
TRETE RO Net liquidity gap (923,878) (191,884) 13,380 189,312 722,314 343,429 78,293 230,966
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4. &RIEEEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 REELRE (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
(B) #HIH M (&) (B) Maturity analysis (continued)

At BHEA H 435875 The above maturity classifications have been prepared in accordance with relevant
TR CPRATSE (88 provisions under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules. The Group has reported assets such
BRI BRI as advances and debt securities which have been overdue for not more than one month
4r Bl o REERAHA as “On demand”. In the case of an asset that is repayable by different payments or
Nig#m 1 [HEZE instalments, only that portion of the asset that is actually overdue is reported as
B Bl S R A5 overdue. Any part of the asset that is not due is reported according to the residual
B4k TR & maturity unless the repayment of the asset is in doubt in which case the amount is
E o BN [EEEE reported as “Indefinite”. The above assets are stated after deduction of provisions, if
s B any.

HE#ZEEPERE

A 2 H oy AR AR

A - HMUOREIR

B8 53 ATy 4 AR 35 %1
ERIAIR Y (B
HZAEZHERF
H5EE > Al SR
HYI Ry T ARHEER
W, o BMYIRZE
FE AT B {7 4 B
B (AE) -

2 E BR B HE H B & The analysis of debt securities by remaining period to maturity is based on contractual
BB 52 ER maturity date. The disclosure does not imply that the securities will be held to maturity.
BELIERIH 8 -

Fr e BN AR I

L F KA T

BAH -
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4. &RLEEEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 REEERE (8)
(C) HELEHE AT

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(C) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

ZRITHB SR
(a) FEFTETH (a) Non-derivative cash flows
E
TE@ik T A& The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group as at 31 December for
SEER 12 7 31 non-derivative financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturity.
HZ 3T R
BEEUREREL
FIEAE TR ER
B 0
2018
—& =z
—@AN Z=EA +Z#A —ZFAF AFEML
Up to 1to3 3to12 1to5 Over dEst
1 month  months months years 5 years Total
bild beitd piid biicd piid piid
HET ©HET HET BHEST HET H&ET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’'m HK$’'m
SRIEE Financial liabilities
AR R mA Hong Kong SAR currency notes in
circulation 156,300 - - - - 156,300
ST R At SRR > O Deposits and balances from banks and
ek other financial institutions 370,198 5,736 154 556 - 376,644
DN B ST AJE 4 2 Sl Financial liabilities at fair value through
= profit or loss 3,279 8,850 1,801 1,238 560 15,728
BFTAK Deposits from customers 1,489,575 236,609 168,740 5,320 - 1,900,334
EE BRSNS Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue 3,485 4,837 1,179 - - 9,501
#Eas Subordinated liabilities B 353 353 13.064 i} 13.770
HAtrF Other fi ial liabiliti
Htremhe g er financial liabilities 45,025 172 107 6 7 45317
SRS G Total financial liabilities 2,067,862 256,647 172,334 20,184 567 2,517,594
2017
—F =z
—{EHN =EH +=EA —Z2ZRF AFME
Up to 1t03 3to12 1t05 Over Hast
1 month  months  months years 5 years Total
A i e it i W
HETT HET  HET HETT HET HETT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
LREE Financial liabilities
BRI TR OmARs Hong Kong SAR currency notes in
circulation 146,200 - - - - 146,200
SRIT R HA SRtk 75K Deposits and balances from banks and
o other financial institutions 214,147 7,255 411 900 - 222,713
DUAHESH EET ATERS 2 Financial liabilities at fair value through
Efif profit or loss 7107 4132 7121 1,020 500 19,880
TR Deposits from customers 1,475,934 161,157 142,310 1,307 - 1,780,708
E TS s Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue 7,096 1,976 12,962 - - 22,034
i i=i Subordinated liabilities . 542 558 21,209 - 22309
HftreRia R Other financial liabilities 33,108 478 833 B, - 34,419
SRS Total financial liabilities 1,883,592 175,540 164,195 24,436 500 2,248,263
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MR (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. &RLEEEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 RErELRE (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
(C) & BEIH T HT (C) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)
ZRIAHEBRER
(&)

(b) FTAETHEZ IS (b) Derivative cash flows
i
R T AR The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group by remaining
B 12 H 31 H contractual maturity as at 31 December for derivative financial liabilities that will
DU &5 & 49 5 HA be settled on a net basis, together with all derivative financial instruments that
HYRZ SR » will be settled on a gross basis regardless of whether the contract is in an asset
RGP AR AL or liability position. The amounts disclosed in the tables are the contractual
SEE TR R undiscounted cash flows, except for certain derivatives which are disclosed at
Bff RATE T fair value.
A REGEE 21T
ST E(CR R
BHENBEE
HEE) - BREby
14 THEMUAFE
{BHIRAN NS
By E M e
RARKITHN G
EFLEIR -
AR E R R A The Group’s derivative financial instruments that will be settled on a net basis
RBEHZTESE mainly include interest rate swaps whereas derivative financial instruments that
Rl T E AR will be settled on a gross basis mainly include currency forwards and currency
ESTEERNE swaps.
RS E 2 0T
R T H %
BLE B R I R
BRI
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MR (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. &RLEEEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 mehEsEE (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
(C) & BEIH T HT (C) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)
ZRIAHEBRER
(&)
(b) $TETE S (b) Derivative cash flows (continued)
m(88)
2018
—F =z
—@AN  =EA +-EA —ZEF AFME
Up to 1to 3 3to12 1to 5 Over 4=t
1 month months months years 5 years Total
b bl b b bl bl
H&ET HET BHET H&ExT HET HETT
HK$m HK$m HK$m HK$m HK$’'m HK$’'m
R AR Derivative financial liabilities
= e A settled on a net basis
=Y (8,983)  (884)  (2,338) (5,061) (1,002) (18,268)
Yo YA BE R A Derivative financial instruments
B2 4EE settled on a gross basis
BT H
FENTIN Total inflow 787,295 382,875 641,513 134,766 6,199 1,952,648
ST Total outflow (788,108) (381,656) (638,603) (134,882)  (6,146) (1,949,395)
2017
—& =F
—@ARN  =ZEF +FSER —EAF AFME
Up to 1t03 3to 12 1t05 Over 4t
1 month  months months years 5 years Total
A Pt A A e A
HE7T  HAETT HET  HET HETT HETT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
Yo 03 BE AL R4S Derivative financial liabilities
W44 settled on a net basis
=iy (7,463) (720)  (1,127) (3,580) (856)  (13,746)
o G RE AL A4S Derivative financial instruments
B2t w settled on a gross basis
FTE
LR A Total inflow 635,384 462,278 494,398 122,691 6,747 1,721,498
WRSFTH Total outflow (635,863) (462,423) (493,660) (122,683)  (6,734) (1,721,363)
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I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. SREREE (R)

4.3 mERESER (8

(C) mAENEIHE I
ZRIFTEBRER
(&

(c) & E & {1 &4
HH

BHOReH

RN DN
2018 F£ 12 H 31
H 171 % B KGE T
R EE K H A @
BRI ERMT
Ho HEWNEER
e 5,479.99 (&
7T (2017 £ 3
W 5,707.66 (&
7LD HEERHUK
R — R
HY -

MR ETE

FEEER 2018 4
12 F 31 H 25
VE O e oA 5
Bl B R R
620.94 & T
(2017 4 . s
668.00 {Zyr) » H
FIHIH DR —4E -

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(C) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)

(c) Off-balance sheet items

Loan commitments

The contractual amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial instruments as
at 31 December 2018 that the Group commits to extend credit to customers and
other facilities amounted to HK$547,999 million (2017: HK$570,766 million).
Those loan commitments can be drawn within one year.

Financial guarantee contracts
Financial guarantees and other financial facilities of the Group as at 31 December

2018 amounting to HK$62,094 million (2017: HK$66,800 million) are maturing no
later than one year.
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sEEMTEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERBER (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 HEEE 4.4 Capital management
REHEREHFH The major objective of the Group’s capital management is to maximise total shareholders’
s A o7 B £ [ g return while maintaining a capital adequacy position in relation to the Group’s overall risk

JEUBER IR DA TR Y AT
JeIK» [RIH Ry SR 2K
Al - HEAMEH
Z A g g AL
BEAGERS AT B
FTEREE LAORF R ~ [l

B A TE S MR B P
iy -

REECKET—EF
RHY B A B SR
PERS > A B ST RYF -
BEE A ] 6 S B A 52
FREBERAER e
EEEATCRRIEK -
HEAREHZRGR
HEEREHNELRTE
Mo AR B EIE R S BN
BERIT BT & & HE
ERRVEEEARE  #F
HUATT

AR R R RE A D
SRR IS RUAST R
73 I8 75 AL U e b
HRHER (S B A
K R/ NG (5 S
HRYE BRI
FTHIE B R B R B AT
# (FERE) stFEET
e REHRAREEE
fl{ERTE )5 STERA
15 Sk B 3 B L B Ay 52
GETEATK -

profile. The ALCO periodically reviews the Group’s capital structure and adjusts the capital
mix where appropriate to maintain an optimal balance among risk, return and capital
adequacy.

The Group has developed and maintained a sound framework of policies and controls on
capital management to support the development of the Group’s business and to meet the
statutory capital adequacy ratio. The ALCO monitors the Group’s capital adequacy. The
Group has complied with all the statutory capital requirements of the HKMA for the reported
periods in respect of banking operation as further elaborated below.

The Group has adopted the foundation internal ratings-based (“FIRB”) approach to calculate
the credit risk capital charge for the majority of its non-securitisation exposures. Small
residual credit exposures which include the credit exposures of overseas subsidiaries and
branches are remained under the standardised (credit risk) (“STC”) approach. The Group
has adopted the standardised credit valuation adjustment (“CVA”) method to calculate the
capital charge for the CVA risk of the counterparty.
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Mg MEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERBER (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

44 BHREE (8

4.4 Capital management (continued)

AR [E e SRR N A
HETB AT B AN KR
RN — RS E R E A
BOR - WESE F R
TET B IESNE O
AR T 5 bR B A
K o AR B4R R A
(G EbR EtRE
HepmsEEE AR -

AR IR (R
BERER b Rt RA R
BRIEREBREATIK -

AGEE 2018 UL
FNEE AR 7 e s F2
7 DARF & & R BB B
T T EEEERET
WIVEDK - 7B REE
ZRERES D NEFE A
e SRR A D
SRS — S T RA
5u§323§%5@¥5’]§7<
AT R HRRINE A > 1
“*2&%.?{&%}_
HeRE— B AL - &
*ZJS’( =F N Y545 4 [195)
BEARLLER - [EHF - AREEE
TR R A Y & A EE %5
ETHEEEM - DURE
BHRFE L EEEAR
VA REE - ARG HEEE A
M ELE A 7 2 AL AR
e EFHENE AR
AR R E S HYEE

B JE gz DRV 1T G B EE A
Bt i R L AL
1 -

The Group continues to adopt the internal models (“IMM”) approach to calculate the general
market risk capital charge for foreign exchange and interest rate exposures and, with the
approval from the HKMA, exclude its structural FX positions in the calculation of the market
risk capital charge. The Group continues to adopt the standardised (market risk) (“STM”)
approach to calculate the market risk capital charge for the remaining exposures.

The Group continues to adopt the standardised (operational risk) (“STO”) approach to
calculate the operational risk capital charge.

The Group has continued to adopt an internal capital adequacy assessment process
(“ICAAP”) to comply with the HKMA's requirements in the Supervisory Policy Manual
“Supervisory Review Process” in 2018. Based on the HKMA's guidelines on Pillar I, ICAAP
has been initiated to assess the extra capital needed to cover the material risks not captured
or not adequately captured under Pillar |, and therefore minimum Common Equity Tier 1
capital ratio, minimum Tier 1 capital ratio and minimum Total capital ratio are determined.
Meanwhile, operating ranges for the aforementioned capital ratios have also been
established which enable the flexibility for future business growth and efficiency of capital
utilisation. The Group considers this ICAAP as an on-going process for capital management
and periodically reviews and adjusts its capital structure where appropriate in relation to the
overall risk profile.

215



@ ¥ 8 4L £7 (5 ) B mAT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

MR (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. &RIEEEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 EREHE (8) 4.4 Capital management (continued)

AN AEEEFEFEE In addition, the capital plan of the Group is drawn up annually and then submitted to the
FEEAIRE] HEE A Board for approval after endorsement of the ALCO. The plan is built up by assessing the
EHEZEEOERRESE implications of various factors upon capital adequacy such as the business strategies, return
HEfb A B AR B on equity, risk appetite, credit rating, as well as regulatory requirements. Hence, the future
FEoRME ~ B e ol ~ b capital requirement is determined and capital sources are identified also. The plan is to
Rt ~ (S FEEA ~ BEEEE ensure the Group maintains adequate capital and appropriate capital structure which align
KRE U E PR E A with its business development needs, thereby achieving an optimal balance among risk,
T B MR B T T TEHI return and capital adequacy.

RACEARTF R REEAK
R DRI AR R B
#?E’J SATRIERER
HEER  ioasksi
E PREFEE ~ [Hl8

AT M R T
(A) EEB 4z ARt (A) Basis of regulatory consolidation
EEE R EMN A The consolidation basis for regulatory purposes comprises the positions of BOCHK
RS (SR1T% and certain subsidiaries specified by the HKMA in accordance with the Banking
(E&EA) HAT) H (Capital) Rules. For accounting purposes, subsidiaries are consolidated in accordance
R R H 4 with HKFRSs and the list of subsidiaries is set out in “Appendix — Subsidiaries of the
EREEZE A Bank”.
E4HRL - TR E TR R
D7 » R R A A
B G ST

J#NE] AL B
CHS % — R ERITZ
ANl
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Mg MEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERBER (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 HAEHE (8)
(A) BEGAER ()

4.4 Capital management (continued)

(A) Basis of regulatory consolidation (continued)

BAEAE &t AR &F
EHIE > A EREE

The particulars of subsidiaries which are included within the accounting scope of

consolidation but not included within the regulatory scope of consolidation are as

EEHREREHE .
= follows:
AN BT & s B 22 5
BT -
2018 2017
B - Z N E AN BN
8 Name Total assets Total equity Total assets Total equity
BEEET BEEETL  BREET  BEYEET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$'m HK$'m
FEREEETEAATR BOC Group Trustee Company
AN Limited 200 200 200 200
R BRI PE SLER Ra (EE BOCI-Prudential Trustee Limited
AIRAE 506 464 506 464
China Bridge China Bridge (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.
(Malaysia) Sdn.
Bhd. 38 31 37 31
hEERAT () A Bank of China (Hong Kong)
BT Nominees Limited - - - }
PERTT (/) (55 Bank of China (Hong Kong)
HIRAHE] Trustees Limited 15 15 15 15
HERE R CEYID BOCHK Information Technology
BIRAHE (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. 377 242 355 238
HrERE S RTAR S (% BOCHK Information Technology
) ARRAHE Services (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. 377 336 366 312
EL (RELA) AR Che Hsing (Nominees) Limited
N 1 1 1 1
B SRS ERT Po Sang Financial Investment
HIRAHE Services Company Limited 364 346 363 346
TS5 SRR Po Sang Securities and Futures
NG| Limited 657 553 990 511
HEREERAE Sin Chiao Enterprises Corporation,
Limited 6 6 7 7
HE(EARAE Sin Hua Trustee Limited 7 6 4 4

Billion Express
Development Inc.
Billion Orient Holdings

Ltd.
Elite Bond
Investments Ltd.
Express Capital
Enterprise Inc.

Billion Express Development Inc.

Billion Orient Holdings Ltd.

Elite Bond Investments Ltd.

Express Capital Enterprise Inc.
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A ERFNEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. GRVERRER (8)

4.4 BAEE (8)
(A) EFESRa B (8

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 Capital management (continued)

(A) Basis of regulatory consolidation (continued)

2018 2017
BERH B B B
7% Name Total assets Total equity Total assets Total equity
BEEET BEEET BEEET EYEET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$'m HK$'m

Express Charm
Holdings Corp.
Express Shine Assets
Holdings Corp.
Express Talent
Investment Ltd.
Gold Medal Capital
Inc.
Gold Tap Enterprises
Inc.
Maxi Success
Holdings Ltd.
Smart Linkage
Holdings Inc.
Smart Union Capital
Investments Ltd.
Success Trend
Development Ltd.
Wise Key Enterprises
Corp.

Express Charm Holdings Corp.

Express Shine Assets Holdings
Corp.

Express Talent Investment Ltd.

Gold Medal Capital Inc.

Gold Tap Enterprises Inc.

Maxi Success Holdings Ltd.

Smart Linkage Holdings Inc.

Smart Union Capital Investments
Ltd.

Success Trend Development Ltd.

Wise Key Enterprises Corp.
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B HRENEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. £REBER (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 EREHE (8) 4.4 Capital management (continued)
(A) EEB4ra R (&) (A) Basis of regulatory consolidation (continued)
DL R B A E /Y E The principal activities of the above subsidiaries are set out in “Appendix — Subsidiaries
S TR — of the Bank”.
KR ZM B A
Ay o
A 2018 £ 12 H 31 There were no subsidiaries which are included within the regulatory scope of
H o AT consolidation but not included within the accounting scope of consolidation as at 31
T AL FE AR B December 2018 (2017: Nil).

TELFEHIE - A
EAE G st BRI S
& (2017 £ 48 ) -

#2018 4F 12 H 31 There were also no subsidiaries which are included within both the accounting scope of
H o JRE e 2 consolidation and the regulatory scope of consolidation where the methods of
=[5 1 6 EE A €7 3 consolidation differ as at 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

8 JU 85 8 R E 4R

=3 RS RN

GrRE 775 (2017 4

) -

P NGl The Group operates subsidiaries in different countries/regions where capital is governed
i SO T 4 by local rules and there may be restrictions on the transfer of funds or regulatory capital
T > IS AT AR between the members of the Group.

TR E RS

mAEEKE A

LI B RS &
BEEAA  IRARE
ZEIRH] -

(B) BEALLR (B) Capital ratio
BEARERIAT ¢ The capital ratios are analysed as follows:
2018 2017
WA — R E AR CET1 capital ratio
EE® 17.48% 16.52%
—IEAR R Tier 1 capital ratio 19.76% 16.52%
- E N Total capital ratio 23.10% 20.39%
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MR (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. &RIEEEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 EREHE (8) 4.4 Capital management (continued)
(B) EAREER (&) (B) Capital ratio (continued)
HRETE U EEAR The consolidated capital base after deductions used in the calculation of the above
bhae >~ HIUK & 19 47 capital ratios is analysed as follows:
B E ARELHRE I A
T
2018 2017
BEEET B EETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
HIEAEE—4(CET1)E& CET1 capital: instruments and reserves
RN 5 Yo d i
BB ITINEER Directly issued qualifying CET1 capital
CET1 HAFE instruments 43,043 43,043
PR A Retained earnings 153,501 142,208
BN Disclosed reserves 45,367 43,673
BETHE  HiRY CET1 & CET1 capital before regulatory adjustments
%N 241,911 228,924
CET1 &A « BEEHIR CET1 capital: regulatory deductions
i E R Valuation adjustments (9) (12)
IERERIHE E (AR Deferred tax assets (net of associated deferred
TR IR AEAS TR & tax liabilities)
7) (82) (51)
A RESEREE Gains and losses due to changes in own credit
RIS S FH B 8 risk on fair valued liabilities
BFTE A IR 141 (69)
R+ R Esey) (B A Cumulative fair value gains arising from the
KRB R®) HITE revaluation of land and buildings (own-use
{EEHMELN R and investment properties)
ANEE (51,263) (48,556)
— R TR R Regulatory reserve for general banking risks
bt (10,496) (10,224)
¥ CET1 BEARYEE ALK Total regulatory deductions to CET1 capital
Y (61,709) (58,912)
CET1 &4 CET1 capital 180,202 170,012
AT1 &R @ 25 AT1 capital: instruments
EHERE AT1 EARZEEIR Qualifying AT1 capital instruments classified
%ﬁiﬁ%'ﬁ%%m% as equity under applicable accounting
A standards 23,476 .
AT1 &R AT1 capital 23,476 -
— B Tier 1 capital 203,678 170,012
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I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4,

ERlEEEE (&)

44 BHREE (8
(B) BEALER (&)

AR I R
TR SR E A B R
HE A
BEBET A AR
SRR B R — iR
TTE bR L e

BRI ATE 8 AR

ZHEA BT
mElEERs s A A
AHR 1R SR
(HAH B/
HEITEEESTES
Y B A P AR

B ARV EE T

ZHEAR

BERANE

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 Capital management (continued)

(B) Capital ratio (continued)

Tier 2 capital: instruments and provisions

Capital instruments subject to phase-out
arrangements from Tier 2 capital

Collective provisions and regulatory reserve for
general banking risks eligible for inclusion in
Tier 2 capital

Tier 2 capital before regulatory deductions

Tier 2 capital: regulatory deductions

Add back of cumulative fair value gains arising
from the revaluation of land and buildings
(own-use and investment properties) eligible
for inclusion in Tier 2 capital

Total regulatory adjustments to Tier 2 capital

Tier 2 capital

Total regulatory capital
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2018 2017
AEEET B ET
HK$’m HK$'m
5,010 11,576
6,315 6,390
11,325 17,966
23,068 21,850
23,068 21,850
34,393 39,816
238,071 209,828
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MR (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. &RIEEEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 EREHE (8) 4.4 Capital management (continued)
(B) BEALER (&) (B) Capital ratio (continued)
EEE AL The capital buffer ratios are analysed as follows:
Wr
2018 2017
B ErE AL Capital conservation buffer ratio 1.875% 1.250%
= UL s TR AR Higher loss absorbency ratio
Eb% 1.125% 0.750%
i FE A 4R i A Countercyclical capital buffer ratio
L 1.418% 0.934%
BHEARERIFE The additional information of capital ratio disclosures is available under the section
i il 75 B Ok AT “Regulatory Disclosures” on BOCHK’s website at www.bochk.com.
IR EFE BN HE
www.bochk.com 1
FEEE R, 6
B -
(C) fEiRIE® (C) Leverage ratio
FEARRLLR AU T ¢ The leverage ratio is analysed as follows:
2018 2017
B EHETT B EETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
— B Tier 1 capital 203,678 170,012
TR LR k4 Leverage ratio exposure 2,733,653 2,461,068
FEAREER Leverage ratio 7.45% 6.91%
HRAER LR 5 The additional information of leverage ratio disclosures is available under the section
At E R A “Regulatory Disclosures” on BOCHK’s website at www.bochk.com.
HwE B HEHE

www.bochk.com
b TEEETEE ) —
HSIE -

222



@ ¥ 8 4L £7 (5 ) B mAT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

BAsERF=MIsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EENABIAY{E 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities

A LA ESTEEMT Al assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial

BN ENEE ;AR statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair value
VR AR B e A 4B HI S5 13 measurement”. The categorisation are determined with reference to the observability and
g8 TN EETE ) NES » significance of the inputs used in the valuation methods and based on the lowest level input

NN B EER RN » % that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
SRS IRAE A T AR
FIRZZ vTE M RER
R IRk AN
BHEBRPE REBREAE

ZRFEIE -

- FE—E4k  tHEEEEE - Level 1: based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
B EREmS P HE liabilities. This category includes equity securities listed on exchange, debt instruments
(RESTHEL ) o L4 FE issued by certain governments, certain exchange-traded derivative contracts and precious

FE 52 5 Bt £ B s 13 38 metals.
75~ o BURF 81 TR

TH - HHSNR ST

LAY EEE -

- ETE AR EERL - Level 2: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to
(RS R PN EES TR ES the fair value measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly. This category includes

(B FE R B8 N\ ST majority of the OTC derivative contracts, debt securities and certificates of deposit with quote
EHEAEE) nyEPE from pricing services vendors, issued structured deposits and other debt instruments. It also
SR 22 - AR includes precious metals and properties with insignificant adjustments made to observable

FERE T HINE BHILTE market inputs.
EE ~ (A (A RS B E RS
TERUEAS NI 75 56 25 K 7
TREE ~ B TINAEREMETRRK
DUR AT T E - [FIE
VINSEEE Ik TE=Si D

ZET T AERRAENE
BB -
- E=JEAk  THREAMEER - Level 3: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to
(I REEEEN Y= TS the fair value measurement is unobservable. This category includes equity investment, debt
QG - AN ZIEE instruments and certain OTC derivative contracts with significant unobservable components.
EEEAEE) BRI It also includes properties with significant adjustments made to observable market inputs.

Bz - tEREREER
A AT 2 N R Y R 0 1%
&~ EH LA RE TS
LHHHTE AL - FIEIR
B ISR SN R
AT T EAEHEEY)E -
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AsERF=NsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMABNAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)

70 DA BB MERE A A S
WERNEE AR AEE
G AR A
FHEHHEE S (ER
HRENVEIEFEAY
8 RRERINER ) LIEE
AEIENPEESZ ML
W -

5.1 DIATPEENESRT
=)

AREHEEILT EENN
SHEER IR
SV B B B I Y A4
HHE i BT B BAL T, -
P A A I
HATGRES 2 EAS R
FERAEEE - HoAt
FrERHEFaEgE
BRI E S FX
ST B 1% (B A5 2 R A AT A
BRI ~ MRS AT ZRAY
1558 5 {R RS 1 A8 e o] B
AR R E R -
EAI T H B R (E
)~ RPEE AT T
fESB G EREE - &
RAGH B S5 T 7] 75 Je 8
HAE - iaZE &8 KNEF
StEEEER -

—fRIME > R AL
— LHE Rt - T
TSR AERIEE 13 SR
P AE W 2 A E R ORI A
T LA SRR
DlE— B EE TR
LT 2 R < b B (A0S
B Ry P E AR &
FERE o AL A5 (EHE
DI — T Ryt > 8
i T E A B2 -
RBOT A R T EA R
BB B R A — 1L
R E RO RV EHY
O PE R S T P
BT B R -
AH £ i T B Al B B R
BE-THHREED
AR L E Sy Bo 2] B
—RENAH

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value

The Group has an established governance structure and controls framework to ensure that
fair values are either determined or validated by control units independent of the front
offices. Control units have overall responsibility for independent verification of valuation
results from front line businesses and all other significant fair value measurements. Specific
controls include verification of observable pricing inputs; review and approval for new
models and changes to models; calibration and back-testing of models against observed
market transactions; analysis and investigation of significant daily valuation movements;
review of significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. Significant valuation
issues are reported to senior management, Risk Committee and Audit Committee.

Generally, the unit of account for a financial instrument is the individual instrument. HKFRS
13 permits a portfolio exception, through an accounting policy election, to measure the fair
value of a portfolio of financial assets and financial liabilities on the basis of the net open risk
position when certain criteria are met. The Group applies valuation adjustments at an
individual instrument level, consistent with that unit of account. According to its risk
management policies and systems to manage derivative financial instruments, the fair value
of certain derivative portfolios that meet those criteria is measured on the basis of the price
to be received or paid for net open risk. Those portfolio-level adjustments are allocated to
the individual assets and liabilities on the basis of the relative size of each of the individual
instruments in the portfolio.
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51 DAPEENSRT
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& A B T
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(AU ECCIET
7 2 50 B 2 T
LA TEAE -

R A EE PR AR S
A > HAS ERAr A
NEHESBEERESE
&~ ISR ~ HERR - fEzE e
SRS ~ PR IERS ~
i FAHBE 2 ST
(BRI e Hifth > 132
Ry AR AR T S B R

I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMABNAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques or broker/dealer quotations to determine the fair
value of financial instruments when unable to obtain the open market quotation in active
markets.

The main parameters used in valuation techniques for financial instruments held by the
Group include bond prices, interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity and stock prices,
commaodity prices, volatilities and correlations, counterparty credit spreads and others,
which are mostly observable and obtainable from open market.

JEMAISE -

HAUEEUL T T E The technique used to calculate the fair value of the following financial instruments is as
AN FENEETEAT below:

BREE 5 MAFakEE M E Debt securities and certificates of deposit and other debt instruments

firfE s TE

R T B AV A P E B
ST ~ PSS NEI 1L
1 {EL Pk 785 (5 JEE 7 2 A
7 55 e {5 B3 {50 P A 3 2
EFURARLTIHTITHRIE i
TR < R A A — {8 A
FTHETARAREL 2R - PA—
] ] 52 Wk T 355 AR S
R TR E SR
72 Z BB R B R A A
ET B R E Y (G E
il - iSRRI L]
Blgg st B 2 A 1]
BRI EEET -

BERM(ES

BT E ML
ZHEROR(E - AREEIE
ERFRHME TS
REAE IR S R SR R A
E2H (AT
AT DL S 1T B (A48 R e 4
BT R PR A~ 2
Y- CrEIE & IR iR

) fHH -

The fair value of these instruments is determined by obtaining quoted market prices from
exchange, dealer or independent pricing service vendors or using discounted cash flow
technique. Discounted cash flow model is a valuation technique that measures present
value using estimated expected future cash flows from the instruments and then discounts
these flows using a discount rate or discount margin that reflects the credit spreads
required by the market for instruments with similar risk. These inputs are observable or
can be corroborated by observable or unobservable market data.

Asset backed securities

For this class of instruments, external prices are obtained from independent third parties.
The valuation of these securities, depending on the nature of transaction, is estimated
from market standard cash flow models with input parameter which include spreads to
discount rates, default and recovery rates and prepayment rates that may be observable
or compiled through matrix pricing for similar issues.
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMABNAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&)

5.1

DATPERENERT
29¢ )

CIAETH

BN GHICTE TR A
HYEIREANAE ~ I ~ e ~
P Bl YR PR
FIREEY - TTETEE
I LB 2 R AR
B R A RS R
TR fE{E R HEE - BT
(EEIE S (O IR SR
A TEZE TS - W
RIS WRIEFE - &
R MR MR EAERE - 7
anfHAS ~ (5 SR
7 RME RAHBE 2B A
AT s H 2 T A
il 17 45 1 PE AR IR RS
SR EHIIRERE i - B
—HEEMENTTIE T RS
8 N HERHZEED R
7 S Ry BT -

AREE BN BT
AETAREHTEEME
SRR B G {E R - 38
BRI B TG N 2R
B{b R HETEERA
EEE S EEE A2
¥ AR EEREE
—RGET > DR
R ~ YRR R [l e
5 o

SUE R AP EE{EE

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

Derivatives

OTC derivative contracts include forward, swap and option contracts on foreign exchange,
interest rate, equity, commodity or credit. The fair values of these contracts are mainly
measured using valuation techniques such as discounted cash flow models and option
pricing models. The inputs can be observable or unobservable market data. Observable
inputs include interest rate, foreign exchange rates, equity and stock prices, commodity
prices, credit default swap spreads, volatilities and correlations. Unobservable inputs may
be used for less commonly traded option products which are embedded in structured
deposits. For certain complex derivative contracts, the fair values are determined based
on broker/dealer price quotations.

Credit valuation adjustments (“CVAs”) and debit valuation adjustments (“DVAs”) are
applied to the Group’s OTC derivatives. These adjustments reflect market factors
movement, expectations of counterparty creditworthiness and the Group’s own credit
spread respectively. They are mainly determined for each counterparty and are dependent
on expected future values of exposures, default probabilities and recovery rates.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

AfEEE SRl R

BT BB T R
AT EAEFER - JE
GEREME A QR E A
S G {55 %5 2 2 A (B
FEMRAT - SEREMEAARRA A
S R ER AR A A7 R iR
JEC 1T AR TR A A
BIMEL * YA FHES
FEAEEE SN EER
o 1T 1) P 3R 3R <07 O
Wi BT TRy
DPAEBLTA ST A T A
it (B 5 7AARAE -

This class of instruments includes certain deposits received from customers that are
embedded with derivatives. The plain vanilla contracts are valued in the similar way
described in previous debt securities section. The fair value of structured deposits is
derived from the fair value of the underlying deposit by using discounted cash flow
analysis taking the Group’s own credit risk into account, and the fair value of the
embedded derivatives determined as described in the paragraph above on derivatives.
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

B HENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMABNAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)
5.1 PARESHENSET 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
=N¢::-))
®=EEAE Subordinated liabilities
BIEZEE Y NP EER Fair value for subordinated notes is based on market prices or broker/dealer price
MIGEEREL, X5 quotations.
P R [ RS AR o

(A) APERIER

(A) Fair value hierarchy

2018
o= (414 FIEEK F=EH SEET
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BEEE T ABYEEL B¥EEL BYEET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
SRIEE Financial assets
ToMEEE (M 21) Trading assets (Note 21)
- RS R - Debt securities and
ke certificates of deposit 334 31,783 - 32,117
- B - Equity securities 2 . . 2
- A - Fund 3 . . 3
- HAtrfE T H - Other debt instruments - 4,634 . 4,634
FoAth sy U LA Other financial assets
EE (bt ABis 2 & mandatorily classified at
g (ffak21) fair value through profit or
loss (Note 21)
- EBE K - Debt securities and
HFRRGEE certificates of deposit - 751 - 751
- B - Equity securities 2 - . 2
FUE By DA S ERT Financial assets designated
N8 7 SRl E at fair value through profit
(K5t 21) or loss (Note 21)
- RS R - Debt securities and
s certificates of deposit 691 2,480 - 3,171
- HAithfEm TE - Other debt instruments - 233,477 . 233,477
PiEEmTE Derivative financial
(FfF3E 22) instruments (Note 22) 11,356 23,592 7 34,955
DA EE R AH Investment in securities at
it 2 T UK g5 2 58 % FVOCI (Note 24)
& (FfiEE24)
- RS R - Debt securities and
FEEs certificates of deposit 68,013 401,754 - 469,767
- BefnEE s - Equity securities - 185 1,144 1,329
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMABNAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)

51 DAPEENSRT
29¢ )

(A) APEREE (8)

ERIGE
DU PEZ LA AR
ZaERE
(b3 30)
- AR
- FE R HE
N
e a3 =i
TSR TA
(K3 22)
®REEM
(FfaE 35)
- REREE

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(A) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss
(Note 30)
- Trading liabilities
- Financial liabilities
designated at fair value
through profit or loss
Derivative financial
instruments (Note 22)
Subordinated liabilities
(Note 35)
- Subordinated notes
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2018
F—E% FES F=EH SEET
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BEEETT BYEET AYaEx BYEET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
- 13,336 - 13,336
- 2,199 - 2,199
8,417 22,395 - 30,812
- 13,246 - 13,246
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMABNAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&)

5.1 PARESHENSET 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

29¢ )

(A) APEREE (8)

(A) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

2017
E—TEk EEH E=EH HEET
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
WEEHETT  BEEHET BYEHET O BEHET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
SREEE Financial assets
ZHMERE (MiFE21) Trading assets (Note 21)
- [EBEFR - Debt securities and
FEss certificates of deposit 1,947 40,904 - 42,851
- BlmEsFE - Equity securities 203 - - 203
- HAtrfEB T H - Other debt instruments - 6,859 - 6,859
FUE R LA TAE S LET Financial assets designated
A 7 BREE at fair value through profit
(FfsE21) or loss (Note 21)
- B - Fund - 161 124 285
e T A Derivative financial
(FfEE 22) instruments (Note 22) 10,510 23,108 - 33,618
ot R Available-for-sale securities
(FffzE 24) (Note 24)
- [EBEHER - Debt securities and
tEcE certificates of deposit 111,552 433,842 - 545394
- BefnEE s - Equity securities - 134 812 946
ESREE Financial liabilities
DA EE bR AdEam Financial liabilities at fair
ZeRiEE value through profit or loss
(FffE 30) (Note 30)
- X MEAEA - Trading liabilities - 16,936 - 16,936
- FERBUAE - Financial liabilities
ALET AR designated at fair value
Z B through profit or loss - 2,784 - 2,784
T T E Derivative financial
(s 22) instruments (Note 22) 6,703 24,279 : 30,982
REE Y RS E There were no financial asset and liability transfers between level 1 and level 2 for the
EENENITLESE Group during the year (2017: Nil).
—JESR R g
fEIRvERS (2017 4 -
fi%) ©
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMABNAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&)
5.1 DN RESFENSRET 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
82 (8

(B) E=ERATAEE

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items

B
2018
SREE
Financial assets
SARMERIG s
bR IS "
SRILE WS BHIEE
Other financial Investment in
assets mandatorily = securities
classified at FVPL SRTH at FVOCI
Derivative [t
HE financial Equity
Fund instruments securities
BETETT BEEHETT BEEHETT
HK$’'m HK$’m HK$’m
2018 4FE1 H1H » £ At 1 January 2018, after
WE B B E AR adoption of HKFRS 9
%9 9kiz 124 - 812
W Gains
- WEmsR - Income statement
- RS - Net trading gain - 7 -
- HAth g mEas - Other comprehensive
income
- ANEEEL - Change in fair value - - 296
HE Additions - - 36
PEE ~ MEE R EHA Disposals, redemptions and
maturity (124) - -
S =gk Transfer out of level 3 - - .
2018412 H 31 H At 31 December 2018 - 7 1,144
2018412 H 31 H Total unrealised gains for the
FANEMEERE year included in income
Wt Alzs REAH statement  for  financial
llven ol assets held as at 31
December 2018
- B GMEGS - Net trading gain - 7 -
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMABNAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&)

5.1

DAPEET BRI SR T
8 (8

(B) E=ERATAEE
(8

20171 A1 HZ
FHBIHE

Btz AL EERZ
[cwd Z

%2017 F1 A1 HZ
]l
Wzs
- R
- R G
- At mes

- AL

e
HEEL ~ W REI

HEHHEE = JE 4]

B 2017412 H 31 H

M 20174F12 31 H
HANESMEER
FERNFT AU FTRDT
REH LA

Y s

At 1 January 2017, as
previously reported

Effect of merger of entities
under common control

At 1 January 2017, as
restated
Gains
- Income statement
- Net trading gain
- Other comprehensive
income
- Change in fair value
Additions
Disposals, redemptions
and maturity
Transfer out of level 3

At 31 December 2017

Total unrealised gains for
the year included in
income statement for
financial assets held as
at 31 December 2017
- Net trading gain
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(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

2017
BRIEE
Financial assets
FIE Ry LA
HELET AR
Financial
assets
designated at
ZHMEE fair value
Trading through profit a gt RS
assets or loss Available-for-sale securities
EHE ERsE s
B B
Debt Debt
securities securities
and and e
certificates s certificates Equity
of deposit Fund of deposit securities
BMEETT BREEETT  BMEET BMEEETT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
162 - 214 718
- - - 1
162 - 214 719
- - 24 88
- 124 - 5
(157) - - -
(5) - (238) -
- 124 - 812
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMABNAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)

5.1 DIAHEETEHIER T
8 (8

(B)

BEREGHEAE
¥ (8

4 2018 4 12 F 31
HR 2017 4 12 H
31 H B RE I
PR THTEE
ks ~ IF Rkl
K& TN T
L= TR

EFOB BB
TS S5 R APl
Rt B AT R e
2017 R =
JEk - B FEARIR
By REZR R Ak
sa M E o AREERE
Lo T rEE  H
I ERTEH B ATRERR
AT EEEER
HENAITEREZES
B o HRNETHIN
TR AL HXR
DETEEFZERT
AHRZE S RO B A
ERERZE - At
A B i R
H#Er EE =@ -
FEETETAEMA
HR I P B SR
HIIEEE R AT
1o

PIAPEE( R AT
e, AT
B2k LR A
SPETIS AL
Y B AT 2 T
8/ FrIEE > 885
A A ] Y
NHE > AREHERES
EHEE - APESE
B IR B
ERe & e HE A
EFRR(A - ERRE
BRI 2 B #E
W 5% 0 |l
AL 2 HoAth 2L
E i)l 1 A i
0.57 {271 (2017 4 :
Al 0.41 (BIT) -

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, financial instruments categorised as level 3 are
mainly comprised of fund, unlisted equity shares and certain OTC derivative contracts.

Certain debt securities and certificates of deposit were transferred out of level 3 during
2017 due to change of valuation observability. For certain illiquid debt securities and
certificates of deposit and fund, the Group obtains valuation quotations from
counterparties which may be based on unobservable inputs with significant impact on
the valuation. For certain OTC derivative contracts, the counterparty credit spreads
used in valuation techniques are unobservable inputs with significant impact on
valuation. Therefore, these instruments have been classified by the Group as level 3.
The Group has established internal control procedures to control the Group’s exposure
to such financial instruments.

The fair values of unlisted FVOCI/available-for-sale equity shares are determined with
reference to multiples of comparable listed companies, such as average of the
price/earning ratios of comparables, or net asset value, if appropriate comparables are
not available. The fair value is positively correlated to the price/earning ratios of
appropriate comparables or net asset values. Had the net asset value of the underlying
equity investments increased/decreased by 5%, the Group’s other comprehensive
income would have increased/decreased by HK$57 million (2017: HK$41 million).
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

AsERF=NsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMABNAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time based on relevant market
information and information about various financial instruments. The following methods
and assumptions have been used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial
instrument as far as practicable.

Balances with/from banks and other financial institutions and trade bills

A 2 GEER e B
Ei
Ko 2 Rl A 7E S
R4S R H IR — N
F > AR EEB AP
(EREESH

5SRO SRAT R ELA

Substantially all the financial assets and liabilities mature within one year from the balance
sheet date and their carrying value approximates fair value.

Advances to customers and banks and other financial institutions

SRR ERK
KRy 2% F &R R
T B Hofth < R A 0K
EFEIRER IS ER
STEAE - HAREEE
SPAEARE -

LLBE B P A S B 56

Substantially all the advances to customers and banks and other financial institutions are
on floating rate terms, bear interest at prevailing market interest rates and their carrying
value approximates fair value.

Investment in securities at amortised cost

ey

DI eRpl A S B 2 55
N EEAMEE 5.1
WA P EEH ERIE S
IR S AR R
PR Z D7 AMIE -
BRIt SN > DA AR
AEtE 2R
IR e 2 2R o 45 3 FE SR
B PR 2 A1 3R R 2B Y
AEERER A -

FrEERHIH %
HAZFHHERZ A
PERE BT 5.1 L
AP EETRIVEBS S
R AR A E AR
ZFRRAZJTEME -

EEHUL K
R P LS U2 5
A TR B I 2 A5
BB B L 1
T -

The fair value of securities at amortised cost is determined by using the same approach as
those debt securities and certificates of deposit and asset backed securities measured at
fair value as described in Note 5.1. Besides, a discounted cash flow model is used for
certain securities at amortised cost based on a current yield curve appropriate for the
remaining term to maturity.

Held-to-maturity securities

The fair value of held-to-maturity securities is determined by using the same approach as
those debt securities and certificates of deposit and asset backed securities measured at
fair value as described in Note 5.1.

Loans and receivables

A discounted cash flow model is used based on a current yield curve appropriate for the
remaining term to maturity.
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I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMABNAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)

5.2 JEDANHEET BRI

IR (8

HEEK
KT 22 PR
SR H R —FNEI] > 5
MR IR BB -

EE:Sol i Tie Y ea

5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued)

Deposits from customers

Substantially all the deposits from customers mature within one year from the balance sheet
date and their carrying value approximates fair value.

Debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue

74
IS

BT AT R
BifffEE 5.1 WRAAE{EET
SRS B
B2 I7EMR -

BREEMHE
BRUEEBZ AN TPHEEE
5 A B 5
P IR AE Ry - 1R IEE
R EFEIHIER > TSR
B HRim
DPERE

Bk Db L (A
ERE SR TESN T
£RIFUATEEHR
ST SR (A
T -

EREE
Dlere At R 5
& (s 24)
FrEZERHIH %
(£ 24)
R EWGR (M 24)

ERIBH
E TR 75 R ks
(BfsE 32)

‘IHE
(b 35)

- ®RIESE

The fair value of these instruments is determined by using the same approach as those debt
securities and certificates of deposit measured at fair value as described in Note 5.1.

Subordinated liabilities
Fair value for subordinated notes is based on market prices or broker/dealer price

quotations. The subordinated loan is on floating rate terms, bears interest at prevailing
market interest rates and its carrying value approximates fair value.

The following tables set out the carrying values and fair values of the financial instruments
not measured at fair value, except for the above with their carrying values being
approximation of fair values.

2018 2017
JRTEE HRTEE
Carrying AEE Carrying ANFE
value Fair value value Fair value
BEEETT BEEET  AYOET E¥NEET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$'m HK$'m
Financial assets
Investment in securities at
amortised cost (Note 24) 68,968 68,319 N/A N/A
Held-to-maturity securities
(Note 24) N/A N/A 29,603 29,418
Loans and receivables
(Note 24) N/A N/A 499 498
Financial liabilities
Debt securities and
certificates of deposit in
issue (Note 32) 9,453 9,454 21,641 21,578
Subordinated liabilities
(Note 35)
- Subordinated notes N/A N/A 18,917 20,985
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I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMABNAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)

5.2 JEDANHEET BRI
IR (8

5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued)

TR EWBEEH N FE The following tables show the fair value hierarchy for financial instruments with fair values
ENERM TAEZ ANFE disclosed.
2018
= L st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AREET BEEERT BEEERT AYEET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
SRERE Financial assets
VR 30 % N o Investment in securities at
& amortised cost 2,475 65,844 - 68,319
=Lt Financial liabilities
ESTESEE S M Debt securities and certificates
ks of deposit in issue - 9,454 - 9,454
2017
HE—IEik EER E=ER Haxt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AEET AFaET ERgsET  BFEET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
SREE Financial assets
HEZESIHHES Held-to-maturity securities 991 28,427 - 29,418
B R FEWGER Loans and receivables - 498 - 498
Bt Financial liabilities
ERITEBEF KX Debt securities and certificates
1Eika8 of deposit in issue - 21,578 - 21,578
®IEAE Subordinated liabilities
- RIEERE - Subordinated notes - 20,985 - 20,985
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

SR ENEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMABNAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&)

5.3 DA EEHEIES R 5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value

IR
R A — SR The Group uses valuation techniques or quoted market prices in active market to
i Bk B AT 1 R A R determine the fair value of non-financial instruments.

TEFE R TEAYAFE -

BEMERERE Investment properties and premises

KEE YA 5 B The Group’s properties can be divided into investment properties and premises. All of the
EVUE G IR Group’s investment properties and premises were revalued as at year end. This year, the
B &R B ED valuations were carried out by an independent firm of chartered surveyors, Knight Frank
R TE AL « A2 Petty Limited, who have among their staff Fellow and Members of The Hong Kong Institute
i 48 FH 78 17 45 5N = B of Surveyors with recent experience in the locations and categories of properties being
FHIHEET AR AT valued. The Group’s Management had discussions with the surveyors on the valuation
(T HIEE B S SN methods, valuation assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is performed at
EfEe R LEHET S each interim and annual reporting date. There has been no change in valuation methods
FEEGEER AE during the year and the methods used are consistent with last year.

AT A {8 ) 2 At e S 1

FFEE R A - Sl

(ENN SRS Y&y -

T > AR E R
BTSSR G E A - 6
(BB B Al (B R -
TERFENIGELE IR

BIEE—F -

) @\ FEE = (i) Valuation methods and inputs used in Level 2 fair value measurements
R WAL A 7704 R R
ES
W RS gk The fair value of properties classified as Level 2 is determined using either the market
WIZENE TS5 comparison approach by reference to recent sales price of comparable properties or the
A ERE Y 2 T H Y income capitalisation approach by reference to market rent and capitalisation rate, with
B E (HELLER appropriate adjustments to reflect the differences between the comparable properties
) S E IS4 K and the subject properties. These adjustments are considered as insignificant to the
BEARER (WAER entire measurement.
%) TR
Fe s Y 2E 2 MY

R E S - It
EF LS Rk

FFEA AR E R

o,

KEBEZWEHETR The Group’s properties are located in Hong Kong, certain major cities in the mainland,
Fig - BTN ZEE Thailand and Malaysia where the property markets are considered active and
Je B AP BE 2 F B transparent. Sales price, market rent and capitalisation rate of comparable properties
o W B G R are generally observable either directly or indirectly in these markets.

BREISE TS - FTELER
Ytz EE - misiE
& RAR BRI
AR E TS LW E
PR 2R -
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

MEHwEHEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMABNAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&)

5.3 DIATEEHBAVIESR 5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

IHE (&)

BEMERFE (&) Investment properties and premises (continued)

(i) A RBEEE =B e A FE (ii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
srENER
FRERT T AN > #7558 The fair value of all of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3, except for the bank
B R = JE R AR R E vault, is determined using either the market comparison approach or the income
W 2 INEE SR E capitalisation approach, adjusted for a premium or a discount specific to the features of
TS EROASUT A A the Group’s properties compared to the comparable properties.
A% T AREEYHE
MEP TR E
B PR i (E AR AR
EE -
FH A SRAT 42 JEE 2 J8 The fair value of the bank vault is determined using the depreciated replacement cost
B I HETISR SE approach as no direct comparable is available given the specialised nature of the
BIRTE LR » AT property. The major inputs are the market value of the existing land, the current cost of
Ty FITE EERA replacing the property and the depreciation rate. Appropriate adjustments are made to
EEE TENRZE R reflect the specialised nature of the property.
ARG TR - B

B33 3UERETESI0®N
MR WARHEER
i B DS WL 26 6 B
FiEE -
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMABNAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)

5.3 DAAHEETEHIFEER
IR (8

BBV EE (8

(i) BRI =@ 4 A
sTERAVER (8)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

Investment properties and premises (continued)

(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (continued)

PUT B A HEE = The valuation methods and significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value
RS E A E =g measurement of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3 are as follows:
oz REEEYERTER
FEISETT AR ER
FATERZR IR
FAHRRRRE A ETRE S
BT HARUERERNE pijiL;: S =] Relationship of
Valuation Significant Weighted unobservable inputs
method unobservable inputs average to fair value
ST Pres EERAE ress FH2% Pressis - A PEAE -
Bank vault Depreciated Depreciation rate (20174 : 2% ) | The higher the depreciation rate,
replacement cost 2% (2017: 2%) the lower the fair value.
approach per year
VISR IR RN A+15% A APEREE
Premium on specialised (20174F : +15%) The higher the premium,
nature of the property | +15% (2017: +15%) the higher the fair value.
to building cost
HoAtr MGt E | YIsEMH S AT M -6% A APEREE -
Other W ANE AL B EZaE (3FE) (2017: -11%) The higher the premium,
properties Market Premium/(discount) the higher the fair value.
comparison on features of the
approach or property compared to WEfE o A B EAE -
income comparable properties The higher the discount,
capitalisation the lower the fair value.
approach

YIZEAEH I LL Y3
EME L2 wE
i) ThyeH 8
ELE Vs A FINZER
EHyEE > Pl
kMg -~ IE
RN ~ 8 S0
g~ - fi5%
IEESE °

Premium/(discount) on features of a property is determined after taken into account

various factors, such as time for market movement, location, accessibility, building

age/condition, floor level, size, layout, etc., with reference to the differences in features

with comparable properties.
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I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMABNAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)

5.3 DAAHEETEHIFEER
IR (8

HEE
BBz A VEERE
B T 5 R B 3R
BEH T S E R AR

(A) APERFHR

JEERIERE
REYEE (M 26)
Vst ~ S5h Rt
(HsE 27)
- B
HitrggE (i 28)
- HEE

FEERRE
REVEE (Mt 26)
VISE ~ S50 heasctis
(Bt 27)
- B
HitrEE (i 28)
- A

AEEZIFEMEER
FERLHE - ERE
TR L [EEERS (2017
) e

Precious metals

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

The fair values of precious metals are determined by obtaining quoted market prices in
active market or market quote with certain adjustments.

(A) Fair value hierarchy

Non-financial assets

Investment properties (Note 26)
Properties, plant and equipment

(Note 27)
- Premises

Other assets (Note 28)
- Precious metals

Non-financial assets

Investment properties (Note 26)
Properties, plant and equipment

(Note 27)
- Premises

Other assets (Note 28)
- Precious metals

2018
£k B =k &EEt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BEEHETT BYEET BY¥EERL BEEET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
- 386 19,602 19,988
- 1,023 45,063 46,086
3,012 3,590 - 6,602
2017
BBl EER E=TEk HaET
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AEEET ABEBEHET BYEET AR E T
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
- 367 19,582 19,949
- 1,207 42,842 44,049
5,501 790 - 6,291

There were no non-financial asset transfers between level 1 and level 2 for the Group during

the year (2017: Nil).
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I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMABNAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)

5.3 DAAHEETEHIFEER
IR (8

(B) H=IBepHTHEED)

201841 H1H

g
- ek
- REEYEE A HEAE
ZEEs
- EflFEZ T
- HAtre s
- BEEE
g
WE
R

A =)=
S = E Rk
VE A2 H

2018412 H 31 H

#2018 £ 12 H 31 HEFHE
HIEEREENENET A
W A AR R R A
- RREVIFENVERAEZ

ESE
- EfliE e

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items

At 1 January 2018
Gains
- Income statement
- Net gain from fair value adjustments
on investment properties
- Net gain from revaluation of premises
- Other comprehensive income
- Revaluation of premises
Depreciation
Additions
Disposals
Transfer into level 3
Transfer out of level 3
Reclassification
Exchange difference

At 31 December 2018

Total unrealised gains for the year included
in income statement for non-financial
assets held as at 31 December 2018
- Net gain from fair value adjustments on

investment properties
- Net gain from revaluation of premises
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5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

2018

TR E

Non-financial assets

YIsk ~ 23 R

Properties, plant

Eita =g/ and equipment
Investment BE
properties Premises
BEEET EREETT
HK$’'m HK$’'m
19,582 42,842

895 .

- 21

- 2,051

- (1,062)

13 90

- 234

(888) 888

- (1)

19,602 45,063

895 -

- 21

895 21
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I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMABNAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&)

5.3 DAAHEETEHIFEER

IR (8

(B) E=ZBEMHEE
8 (8

H2017E1H1H

Wzs
- Yz
- REVIFENVERE
A
- EffifEEE 2
- HAr s
- FEHS
g
nE
LA

A =E%
LS =
Hir o
bEE S0 72

#2017 4£12 H31H
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IR ENF A
Wran eI R UL AR 48
- RN HERAEZ
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- B EEZ

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

2017

JERiE E
Non-financial assets

WISk ~ 251 Rkt

Properties, plant

By and equipment
Investment i
properties Premises
BEEET BEEET
HK$'m HK$'m
At 1 January 2017 17,487 41,576
Gains
- Income statement
- Net gain from fair value adjustments
on investment properties 1,145 -
- Net gain from revaluation of premises - 5
- Other comprehensive income
- Revaluation of premises - 1,984
Depreciation - (997)
Additions 10 102
Disposals - )
Transfer into level 3 510 847
Transfer out of level 3 - (251)
Reclassification 430 (430)
Exchange difference - 7
At 31 December 2017 19,582 42,842
Total unrealised gains for the year included
in income statement for non-financial
assets held as at 31 December 2017
- Net gain from fair value adjustments on
investment properties 1,145 -
- Net gain from revaluation of premises - 5
1,145 5
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I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMABNAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
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5.3 DAAHEETEHIFEER
IR (8

(B)

BZEGNRER
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5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

The transfer of properties into and out of level 3 is due to change in the
premium/(discount) on features applied between the subject and comparable properties
during the year. Premium/(discount) on features is determined with reference to
differences in features between the subject properties and the comparable properties
recently transacted in the market. As comparable properties that come from recent
market transactions may be different in each year, the premium/(discount) on features
applied between the subject and comparable properties would change from year to year
accordingly. As a result, the significance of adjustments made to observable market
inputs may vary and lead to the transfer of properties into and out of level 3.
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M ESRENEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

6. JFFIRUTA 6. Net interest income
2018 2017
BEEHETT AR ETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
REEBES CONTINUING OPERATIONS
FIBUHA Interest income
& EEER - (EERIT R EAM4:  Advances to customers, due from banks and
Rl RERTROE other financial institutions 42,605 35,544
BHE R AT EE R Investment in securities and financial assets at
MNIBZR 2 & E fair value through profit or loss 15,731 10,629
Hh Others 370 214
58,706 46,387
FIEZH Interest expense
2 FERR s $R1T R At SRl Deposits from customers, due to banks and
TEFHIRE other financial institutions (20,271) (12,632)
B TR S5 5 M ATk Debt securities and certificates of deposit in
issue (517) (289)
®ERE Subordinated liabilities (992) (932)
ot Others (556) (372)
(22,336) (14,225)
R BUA Net interest income 36,370 32,162

B e AR R LA B 1R Included within interest income are HK$44,902 million and HK$10,699 million, before hedging

SPAHM EEWHIESTEZ effect, for financial assets measured at amortised cost and at fair value through other
SRPEENFIBWA (CREt comprehensive income respectively (2017: HK$45,693 million that are not measured at fair

HE A EE) 55 B value through profit or loss).
449.02 (BT AR 106.99

BT (2017 4 : % 456.93

BT RIELLATFEEE(LET A

B EEEIFIEULA) -

FELLA T EBLET A 2 Included within interest expense are HK$21,097 million (2017: HK$14,552 million), before
SRl A E ST EAF E ST H hedging effect, for financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss.

CRETREMZE) B
210.97 {&7T (2017 £ : &
145.52 fg7T) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

7. Net fee and commission income

2018 2017
BEEHETL B ETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
FEKEEY CONTINUING OPERATIONS
REE RASWA Fee and commission income
EHFER Credit card business 3,478 3,237
R Securities brokerage 2,769 2,625
SAE Loan commissions 2,613 3,608
PRl Insurance 1,832 1,643
FB5r Funds distribution 864 926
[EZEHE Bills commissions 738 816
AR Payment services 679 649
(SRt EUE RS Trust and custody services 641 562
HEEW Currency exchange 590 433
REFE Safe deposit box 285 291
HAthr Others 1,321 1,046
15,810 15,836
REERASTH Fee and commission expense
ERFREE Credit card business (2,545) (2,327)
Hakar Securities brokerage (323) (312)
Ht Others (980) (941)
(3,848) (3,580)
FIRBE R FESBA Net fee and commission income 11,962 12,256
HRH Of which arise from:
JELLA S EE(EET AELE Financial assets or financial liabilities not at fair value
Z A ESEMA R through profit or loss
- IB%E K HESUTA - Fee and commission income 3,123 3,913
- BB E RS T - Fee and commission expense (23) (50)
3,100 3,863
=5t R HA 7 EE Trust and other fiduciary activities
- RS RS A - Fee and commission income 826 746
- IR E ST Y - Fee and commission expense (27) (23)
799 723
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MsaEREMTEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8. B MW 8. Net trading gain
2018 2017
BEEETT AEEEEIT
HK$’'m HK$'m
FrERBEY CONTINUING OPERATIONS
s (Bs5tR) JRE ¢ Net gain/(loss) from:
HNHERZ 5 e NIEESE B e i Foreign exchange and foreign exchange
products 2,884 (2)
FIE T H RN B BT Interest rate instruments and items under
H fair value hedge 56 759
P Commodities 184 205
MR REEITETLE Equity and credit derivative instruments 140 225
3,264 1,187

9. HMDANTE(EE(LET A 9. Net gain on other financial instruments at fair value through profit or
BRZE&Em T ERRE loss

2018 2017
e ET BEEHET
HK$’'m HK$'m
FEQBRE CONTINUING OPERATIONS
HitsaH 8 B AN EEE(L  Netloss on other financial instruments
s AR SR T H PR mandatorily classified at fair value through
profit or loss (39) N/A
FE R DU EE BT ATER Net gain on financial instruments designated at
Z R TR fair value through profit or loss 557 4
518 4
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BRI (8D

10. Efrggi&EE 2FUL  10. Net gain on other financial assets

1.

o

MR WIS T
BF AL 2 T 2

ZFIEE g
SOl DA R A T R 2 5
FFIEE 2 FH51R

T HEH RS RS
FAEZEIHHEFE 25U
e

HAl
/\’f‘m\\‘g‘é%in 11 -
RrEERE
EISUION
- REFAHPEE L2
BIATAES LA At
Ellenydvzeiay
- KAFETFTAZL

SPES LA AR 4
Wt 2 FE A
- A ATt R
REYE BRI A
R BRI AR S
At

FHBREY R S
BREFENARNEEEY
2 HPE A A
HETT (2017 42 JEH 1

g —

HETT) °

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Net gain on disposal/redemption of investment in
securities at FVOCI

Net loss on redemption of investment in securities at
amortised cost

Net gain on available-for-sale securities

Net gain on held-to-maturity securities

Others

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Other operating income

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Dividend income
- From investment in securities at FVOCI derecognised
during the year

- From investment in securities at FVOCI held at the
end of the year

- From available-for-sale securities
Gross rental income from investment properties
Less: Outgoings in respect of investment properties
Others

2018 2017
BEEETT BEEEIT
HK$’'m HK$'m

35 N/A

(31) N/A

N/A 685

N/A 13

(3) 30

1 728
2018 2017
BEEETT I EETT
HK$’m HK$'m
3 N/A
42 N/A
N/A 37
663 599
(73) (100)
103 154
738 690

Included in the “Outgoings in respect of investment properties” is HK$1 million (2017: HK$1
million) of direct operating expenses related to investment properties that were not let during

the year.
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FrEQBEY

TR (ER) HEm]
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FESRTT B At R A 2
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T
U e

- FAREIHIHES

BRI B HE R T

At

TREE RS

12. Net charge of impairment allowances

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Net (charge)/reversal of impairment allowances on:

Advances and other accounts

Balances and placements with banks and other
financial institutions

Investment in securities
- At FVOCI

- At amortised cost
- Held-to-maturity securities

Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts

Others

Net charge of impairment allowances
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2018 2017
BEEET W ETT
HK$'m HK$'m
(1,178) (1,046)
70 -

(18) N/A

3) N/A

N/A -

(21) -

(91) -

(12) 9)
(1,232) (1,055)
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

13. Operating expenses

2018 2017
AEEET B EETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)
- Salaries and other costs 7,839 7,172
- Pension cost 453 432
8,292 7,604
Premises and equipment expenses (excluding
depreciation)
- Rental of premises 732 674
- Information technology 625 545
- Others 446 450
1,803 1,669
Depreciation (Note 27) 2,042 1,930
Auditor’s remuneration
- Audit services 27 27
- Non-audit services 19 8
Other operating expenses 2,513 2,165
14,696 13,403

Contingent rent included in the “Rental of premises” amounted to HK$51 million during the

year (2017: HK$16 million).
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MsshEfsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

14. EYEEE \F 14. Net gain from disposal of/fair value adjustments on investment
(G k- TaedlEa properties

2018 2017
AEEHET AREHETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
FrERExEs CONTINUING OPERATIONS
et /UE UNE R Net gain from fair value adjustments on investment
TP (FIEE 26) properties (Note 26) 921 1,210

15. BB "E{LY£ - 23#f 15. Net gain/(loss) from disposal/revaluation of properties, plant and
R IBUEE (B equipment

#)
2018 2017
AW EET B EETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
FEEERE CONTINUING OPERATIONS
PR B [ E S R Net loss from disposal of equipment, fixtures and
ZIFHER fittings (5) (15)
=il EZ B (F51R) Net gain/(loss) from revaluation of premises (Note 27)
(HfsE 27) 24 9)
19 (24)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

16. Taxation

Taxation in the income statement represents:

2018 2017
AEET BWEE T
HK$’'m HK$'m
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Current tax
Hong Kong profits tax
- Current year taxation 5,552 5,290
- Over-provision in prior years (65) (81)
5,487 5,209
Overseas taxation
- Current year taxation 780 884
- Over-provision in prior years (27) -
6,240 6,093
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences
and unused tax credits (Note 34)
79 (239)
6,319 5,854

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxation on overseas

profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates of

taxation prevailing in the countries/regions in which the Group operates.

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation that differs from the theoretical amount

that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong Kong is as follows:

2018 2017
AEEEET A EETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Profit before taxation 37,934 33,853
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%)
6,259 5,586
Effect of different taxation rates in other
countries/regions 123 93
Income not subject to taxation (592) (422)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes 328 259
Tax losses not recognised - 2
Over-provision in prior years (92) (81)
Foreign withholding tax 293 417
Taxation charge 6,319 5,854
Effective tax rate 16.7% 17.3%
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

17. Dividends
2018 2017
£t ) 534 Hazg
BT A%EET HBIT B EETT
Per share Total Per share Total
HK$ HK$’'m HK$ HK$'m
Dividends 0.375 16,141 0.394 16,959

On 28 August 2018, the Board declared an interim dividend of HK$0.125 per ordinary
share amounting to approximately HK$5,380 million, which was paid on 24 September
2018 .

On 17 December 2018, the Board declared an interim dividend of HK$0.140 per ordinary
share amounting to approximately HK$6,026 million, which was paid on 31 December
2018.

On 29 March 2019, the Board declared an interim dividend of HK$0.110 per ordinary share
amounting to approximately HK$4,735 million. This declared interim dividend is not
reflected as a dividend payable in these financial statements, but will be reflected as an
appropriation of retained earnings for the year ending 31 December 2019.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

18. Retirement benefit costs

AEE R HR AR T
BENaERIET - £
ARt T AR A THYE
ARG T B £ 2 R 5RiR
EIRETER L SRR T
B e o SR ORnk ] B o R

STE] -

IR R R E] (R B H
BRI 2 5 F
TR HFEAR &2 5% - i
BEZ &AM E R A
KHEHZ 5%E 15% %
(RPREZIRBFR) -
B S ARER IR IR SEATE IR
o (g S 1t H IR &
10 FFERL RN UL
H{ 100% 2 (@ E RN - s
3R 9 FMRT
FA PR T 4% L A 194
Bl i 2 R 81 ) - ATURCERL
30%%F 90% fE T ALK -
{ie S WU R Rk 232
(ofasERp) FRiR -

(o pI )L 2000
F£12 751 HEE > A%
TR L o SR ORaK 5 5 T
EEtED et #l 2Ny
R B RS R S R A
FRAE] BEEEE A Ryl
B R E A A
FRANE] BERTREI A F1S Ry A
AT AR AL -

HE 2018412 H 31 A1t
R TEHIERETAER 0.10
(2017 42 49484 0.10
fBT) 2tttz » Tise
BARGH & LRk AEEEAY Ky
HEME 3.43 (57T (2017 4
KNS 3.37 fE7T ) A%
][] R < > Rk 4R
ALY By NE 0.76 BT
(2017 4 4931% 0.70 &
JC) e

Retirement benefits are provided to eligible employees of the Group. In Hong Kong,
defined contribution schemes for the Group’s employees are ORSO schemes exempted
under the MPF Schemes Ordinance and the BOC-Prudential Easy Choice MPF Scheme.

Under the ORSO schemes, employees make monthly contributions to the ORSO schemes
equal to 5% of their basic salaries, while the employer makes monthly contributions equal
to 5% to 15% of the employees’ monthly basic salaries, depending on years of service. The
employees are entitled to receive 100% of the employer’s contributions upon retirement,
early retirement or termination of employment after completing 10 years of service.
Employees with 3 to 9 years of service are entitled to receive the employer’s contributions
at a scale ranging from 30% to 90% upon termination of employment for other reasons
other than summary dismissal. All employer’s contributions received by employee are
subject to MPF Schemes Ordinance.

With the implementation of the MPF Schemes Ordinance on 1 December 2000, the Group
also participates in the BOC-Prudential Easy Choice MPF Scheme, of which the trustee is
BOCI-Prudential Trustee and the investment manager is BOCI-Prudential Manager, which
are related parties of the Bank.

The Group’s total contributions made to the ORSO schemes for the year ended 31
December 2018 amounted to approximately HK$343 million (2017: approximately HK$337
million), after a deduction of forfeited contributions of approximately HK$10 million (2017:
approximately HK$10 million). For the MPF Scheme, the Group contributed approximately
HK$76 million (2017: approximately HK$70 million) for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

19. 5% - 5EEHE A B K 19. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments

EEAERME

(a) EERREEHEAR
e
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AEEE AR LM B A
PRITEE AT
FOEE R 2 F] 2
2RI E(T &
H YR
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B
T
AR
=52
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"

%’J gﬁ%ﬂ, 2

1 PERERE
iE 2 1 PMENRHE ©

(a) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments

(i) Directors’ emoluments

Details of the emoluments paid to or receivable by the directors of the Bank in
respect of their services rendered for the Bank and managing the subsidiaries within
the Group during the year are as follows:

Executive Directors
GAO Yingxin (Chief Executive)
LI Jiuzhong

Non-executive Directors
CHEN Siqing

LIU Liange "°*'

LIN Jingzhen "'
CHENG Eva*

CHOI Koon Shum*

KOH Beng Seng*

TUNG Savio Wai-Hok*
REN Degji "'

LIU Qiang "2

2018
EAHE -

b1y

BEYrEf

Basic salaries,

HEHES allowances
Directors’ and benefits 4L dat
fee in kind Bonus Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
- 6,530 4,018 10,548
- 4,846 2,490 7,336
- 11,376 6,508 17,884
500 - - 500
592 - - 592
642 - - 642
692 - - 692
2,426 - - 2,426
2,426 11,376 6,508 20,310

Note 1: Appointed during the year.
Note 2: Resigned during the year.
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MsEENTEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

19. % 5EEHE AB K 19. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments

FEEAEME (&) (continued)

(a) EBREEEEAR (a) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (continued)
B (&)
(i) EEM< (&) (i) Directors’ emoluments (continued)
2017
e
G R
BRI
Basic salaries,
EFEHEE allowances
Directors’ and benefits fE4r 4z
fee in kind Bonus Total
AT AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
HITEE Executive Directors
5 (4880 YUE Yi (Chief Executive) - 7,140 4,166 11,306
ey LI Jiuzhong - 4,664 2,394 7,058
- 11,804 6,560 18,364
JES{TESR Non-executive Directors
P U CHEN Siging - _ ; }
=Ll GAO Yingxin - - - -
e CHENG Eva* 500 - - 500
Zr " CHOI Koon Shum* 588 - - 588
=tz KOH Beng Seng* 650 - - 650
HFE TUNG Savio Wai-Hok* 712 - ) 712
ErEs REN Deqi - - - -
EE|=7RvA TIAN Guoli - - - R
FrERE XU Luode - - ; )
2,450 - - 2,450
2,450 11,804 6,560 20,814
¥ IR TR * Independent Non-executive Directors
#, 22018412 H 31 There were no directors waived emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2018
HILFE G HESE (2017: Nil).
WEEB % (2017
)
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MERENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

19. % 5EEHE AB K 19. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments

FEAEME (8) (continued)

(a) EBE RS EEHEAR (a) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (continued)

B (8

(ii) AL EHFAL (i) Five highest paid individuals
A EE I N T B The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for the year
S LR 2 include two (2017: two) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
£ (2017 F:24) presented above. The emoluments payable to the remaining three (2017: three)
#FE > HeT#E individuals during the year are as follows:
A ESCo T Hogk 3

£ (2017 3 4)
A e L

BT -
2018 2017
B EHET BIEHETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
FARHT & ROERG Basic salaries and allowances 12 11
TE&L Bonus 9 9
BIREETEIEER Contributions to pension schemes 1 1
22 21
FENFEFETEA Emoluments paid to or receivable by individuals during the year with reference to
EfT R EEY R their tenure are within the following bands:
ZHietERI T
PN
Number of individuals
2018 2017
H:i% 6,500,001 JT £ ##e 7,000,000 JT HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000 1 2
A& 7,000,001 JT £ ##e 7,500,000 JT HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 1 1
A& 7,500,001 JT £ #He 8,000,000 JT HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000 1 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

19. % 5EEHE AB K 19. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments

EEAEHE (&)

(a) EERSBEEAR
Big (&)

(iii) =EEEARME

(continued)

(a) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (continued)

(iii) Senior management’s emoluments

EEEHAEBEN Emoluments paid to or receivable by individuals during the year with reference to

MM EFHANEAT their tenure as senior management are within the following bands:

e H R M Bl

SR -

PN
Number of individuals
2018 2017

A& 0 ST 500,000 T HK$0 to HK$500,000 2 -
A% 500,001 JT &2 A 1,000,000 JT HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 1 -
A& 4,500,001 JT £ #%e 5,000,000 JT HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 - 1
A% 5,000,001 JT £ ##e 5,500,000 JT HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 2 2
A& 5,500,001 JT £ #%e 6,000,000 JT HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 1 1
A 6,500,001 JT £ ##e 7,000,000 JT HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000 - 1
A& 7,000,001 JTEH##e 7,500,000 JT HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 2 1
A& 10,500,001 JT £ 11,000,000 JT HK$10,500,001 to HK$11,000,000 1 -
A& 11,000,001 T & A 11,500,000 T HK$11,000,001 to HK$11,500,000 - 1
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(b) CG-5 TEREEHEARAR
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

19. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments
(continued)

(b) Remuneration for Senior Management and Key Personnel under CG-5

For the purpose of disclosure, Senior Management and Key Personnel are defined as
follows:

Senior Management: The senior executives designated by the Board who are
responsible for oversight of the firm-wide strategy or material business lines, including
the Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executives, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Risk
Officer, Chief Operating Officer, Board Secretary and General Manager of Group Audit.

B M AREL ~ RAE
B EEAE R

FhEE DR SR E T4
K -

- FEAR EAESE - Key Personnel: The employees whose individual business activities involve the
B K B AR R assumption of material risk which may have significant impact on risk exposure, or
HE G S EAE KR whose individual responsibilities are directly and materially linked to the risk
LR PN = e sl management, or those who have direct influence to the profit, including heads of
EHAEERE  EAY material business lines, heads of major subsidiaries, senior executives of Southeast
2 o R B Asian entities, head of trading, as well as heads of risk control functions.

BHINE > ISR
A FAR R B

B AREETEIEA
) KR et = e
EHAE -XG5TE
DA S i g 5 B A L
PR BT RE BEAL 2B
—FfEA -
RAFEREEHZ SRE Details of the remuneration for Senior Management and Key Personnel of the Group
oA B REEANENTH during the year are as follows:
FERBSA0T -
(i) RMBEERNST (i) Remuneration awarded during financial year
HITEN
2018 2017
BHREEAR FEAE SHEHAER B YN=
Senior Key Senior Key
Management Personnel Management Personnel
BEEET B¥EERT  BEEET AEEET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$'m HK$'m
(&1 2 Fixed remuneration
W Cash-based 36 125 38 60
Hofr : YEUE Of which: deferred - - - R
BN Variable remuneration
W Cash-based 16 76 17 42
Hifr : JEAE Of which: deferred 5 20 5 13
HrBNAEEE Total remuneration 52 201 55 102
BT%H Number of employees
[ 2 5 Fixed remuneration 1 50 ) 24
BN Variable remuneration 1 50 9 23
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

19. % 5EEHE AB K 19. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments

EEAEME (&)

(b) CG-5 TEREEHEARAR
EEANBNFH (&)

(ii) FFRITK

HZE 2018 £ 12 H
31 HILEE 8 H%
TEHEHEABR
FHEANELREEAL
FLE S N EE

(2017 £ - 4 ) -

(iii) I
E4EH NS  Senior Management
Hs Cash
TEAER Key Personnel
B Cash
HaEg Total
EREH NS Senior Management
P Cash
TEAE Key Personnel
B Cash
] Total

(continued)

(b) Remuneration for Senior Management and Key Personnel under CG-5 (continued)

(ii) Special payments

There were no guaranteed bonuses, sign-on awards and severance payments to
Senior Management and Key Personnel for the year ended 31 December 2018
(2017: Nil).

(iii) Deferred remuneration

2018

Hep o BREREEA

BT RHBRIMER

/BNERE RN

REZAHRIE R

o MBI BTN B

amount of EEATIRIEHEY EEMGTRHZNY AWM BEEAN
outstanding SMEREIMHFAEETHY NERBMEUETH BB
RIEZAEHY deferred and i cas B [k MACRTREAR
R eREE retained Total amount of Total amount of Total amount of
Total amount of remuneration amendment during amendment during deferred

outstanding

exposed to ex post

the year due to ex

the year due to ex

remuneration paid

deferred explicit and/or post explicit post implicit  out in the financial
remuneration _implicit adjustment adjustments adjustments year
BHEET AREET AMEET ANEET AWEET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’m HK$’m
10 10 - - (5)
31 31 - - (11)
41 4 - - (16)
2017

Hoep B[R AEEAR

T IRHERRTIME K

/AR R

R ATRAER,

ORGRENASE PR e E] AT RE S

amount of EEARMTRIFHEY  fEEAMG TRUKEN TEA R B
outstanding  YMESEEIMHASETHY  ATEREETTHAESTAY AT
AT deferred and e e IRAERANAR

IR BN AEER
Total amount of
outstanding

retained
remuneration
exposed to ex post

Total amount of
amendment during
the year due to ex

Total amount of
amendment during
the year due to ex

Total amount of
deferred
remuneration paid

deferred explicit and/or post explicit post implicit out in the financial
remuneration implicit adjustment adjustments adjustments year
AMEETT ANEETT ANEETT BIEETT ANEETT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m

10 10 - - 4)

22 22 - - (8)

32 32 - - (12)
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MsEEMTE: () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

20. EEHEEEIRTTRE  20. Cash and balances and placements with banks and other financial
Hitrs Rt~ dhek institutions

B BRI
2018 2017
BEEHEIT AEEET
HK$’'m HK$'m
[ Cash 21,968 14,243
FH P ULSRTT 2 4568 Balances with central banks 157,889 88,886
E o sR T — 8 A N EEA Placements with central banks maturing within one month
Z EHAEEI 9,572 9,691
T T2+ @ H Placements with central banks maturing between one and
MR & HIFEI twelve months 2,697 1,486
170,158 100,063
TFICEAMSRIT R B fih & Balances with other banks and other financial institutions
TR SEiER 119,495 152,975
T E A PR T B oA 4 Rl Placements with other banks and other financial
TE—{E A NEHI >~ E 1 institutions maturing within one month
Eile 65,695 100,545
T EH A SR T B HoAM 4 Rl Placements with other banks and other financial
fB—2+ (@B REHE institutions maturing between one and twelve months
LRI 53,992 57,741
239,182 311,261
431,308 425,567
JERAE e Impairment allowances
- ETEE - Stage 1 (15) N/A
- EEE - Stage 2 - N/A
- E=PSEL - Stage 3 - N/A
431,293 425,567
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MsEENisE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

21. u&@{_ﬁ%{bg{-/\{é 21. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
HZ ERIEE

2018 2017
BEET BEEHET
HK$’'m HK$'m
EeE Securities
Lo E Trading assets
- EH - Treasury bills 16,301 17,780
- TG - Certificates of deposit 623 1,483
- HAth{E# 575 - Other debt securities 15,193 23,588
32,117 42,851
- BerEE 2R - Equity securities 2 203
- E& - Fund 3 -
32,122 43,054
FoAtsR U LA B Other financial assets mandatorily
- IS = b classified at fair value through profit or
HiE loss
- TRk - Certificates of deposit - N/A
- HirfER - Other debt securities 751 N/A
751 N/A
- BefrEEss - Equity securities 2 N/A
753 N/A
T R VA TEEEE BT A Financial assets designated
B RlEE at fair value through profit or loss
- ke - Certificates of deposit - -
- HAEE 7 - Other debt securities 3,171 -
3,171 -
- H& - Fund - 285
3,171 285
AR YR Total securities 36,046 43,339
HAtrfE% T E Other debt instruments
Lo E Trading assets 4,634 6,859
FUE By LA A LR A Financial assets designated
B SREE at fair value through profit or loss 233,477 -
HoAthfes THAA%H Total other debt instruments 238,111 6,859
274,157 50,198
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21.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

DI ESE(EET AR 21. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

wrEMEE (&)

S L E R SV

wre

RS B AFikae
- &R
- PAEELS B
- JELETH

Bl
- RE L
- AL L

F
- &R
- JEEM

BTN 2 58

W

BER
N
SRAT R HA R A
ASIKise S

IRAEEE

Total securities are analysed by place of listing as follows:

2018 2017
AEEET B EETT
HK$’m HK$'m
Debt securities and certificates of deposit
- Listed in Hong Kong 8,053 9,242
- Listed outside Hong Kong 6,186 3,841
- Unlisted 21,800 29,768
36,039 42,851
Equity securities
- Listed in Hong Kong 2 203
- Listed outside Hong Kong 2 -
4 203
Fund
- Listed in Hong Kong 3 -
- Unlisted - 285
3 285
Total securities 36,046 43,339
Total securities are analysed by type of issuer as follows:
2018 2017
AMEHET AEEET
HK$’m HK$'m
Sovereigns 25,930 28,714
Public sector entities 1,720 703
Banks and other financial institutions 6,525 12,336
Corporate entities 1,871 1,586
Total securities 36,046 43,339
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

22, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group enters into exchange rate, interest rate, commodity, equity and credit related
derivative financial instrument contracts for trading and risk management purposes.

Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase and sell foreign currency on a
future date. Interest rate futures are contractual obligations to receive or pay a net amount
based on changes in interest rates or buy or sell interest rate financial instruments on a
future date at an agreed price in the financial market under the administration of the stock
exchange. Forward rate agreements are individually negotiated interest rate futures that
call for a cash settlement at a future date for the difference between a contract rate of
interest and the current market rate, based on a notional principal amount.

Currency, interest rate and commodity swaps are commitments to exchange one set of
cash flows or commodity for another. Swaps result in an exchange of currencies, interest
rates (for example, fixed rate for floating rate), or precious metals (for example, silver
swaps) or a combination of all these (for example, cross-currency interest rate swaps).
Except for certain currency swap contracts, no exchange of principal takes place.

Foreign currency, interest rate, precious metal and equity options are contractual
agreements under which the seller (writer) grants the purchaser (holder) the right, but not
the obligation, either to buy (a call option) or sell (a put option) at or by a set date or during a
set period, a specific amount of the financial instrument at a predetermined price. In
consideration for the assumption of foreign exchange and interest rate risk, the seller
receives a premium from the purchaser. Options are negotiated over-the-counter between
the Group and its counterparty or traded through the stock exchange (for example,
exchange-traded stock option).
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

22. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

The contract/notional amounts and fair values of derivative financial instruments held by
the Group are set out in the following tables. The contract/notional amounts of these
instruments indicate the volume of transactions outstanding at the balance sheet dates and
certain of them provide a basis for comparison with the fair values of instruments
recognised on the balance sheet. However, they do not necessarily indicate the amounts of
future cash flows involved or the current fair values of the instruments and, therefore, do
not indicate the Group’s exposure to credit or market risks. The derivative financial
instruments become favourable (assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of
fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, market interest rates, commodity prices or equity
prices relative to their terms. The aggregate fair values of derivative financial instruments
can fluctuate significantly from time to time.

(a) Derivative financial instruments

The Group trades derivative products (both exchange-traded and OTC) mainly for
customer business. The Group strictly follows risk management policies and
requirements in providing derivative products to our customers and in trading of
derivative products in the interbank market.

Derivatives are also used to manage the interest rate risk of the banking book. A
derivative instrument must be included in the approved product list before any
transactions for that instrument can be made. There are limits to control the notional
amount of exposure arising from derivative transactions, and the maximum tenor of the
deal is set. Every derivative transaction must be input into the relevant system for
settlement, mark-to-market revaluation, reporting and control.
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22. TSR T B ¥ 22, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

it (8

(a) fTESMTE (&) (a) Derivative financial instruments (continued)
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The following tables summarise the contract/notional amounts and fair values of each
class of derivative financial instrument as at 31 December:

2018
B DA
LREH Fair values
Contract/
notional &iE =0
amounts Assets Liabilities
AREET AYEET  BEEErT
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
Exchange rate contracts
Spot, forwards and futures 347,578 12,706 (8,876)
Swaps 1,731,486 12,421 (12,100)
Options 29,715 158 (64)
2,108,779 25,285 (21,040)
Interest rate contracts
Futures 20,242 1 (39)
Swaps 1,047,515 9,312 (8,428)
Options 1,566 1 1)
1,069,323 9,314 (8,468)
Commodity contracts 28,782 239 (1,184)
Equity contracts 2,998 117 (119)
Credit derivative contracts 392 - (1)
3,210,274 34,955 (30,812)
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TSR T B R¥MH 22, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
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(a) Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Exchange rate contracts
Spot, forwards and futures
Swaps
Options

Interest rate contracts
Futures
Swaps

Commodity contracts

Equity contracts

Credit derivative contracts

265

2017
a8/ A
LERE Fair values
Contract/
notional =3 EfE
amounts Assets Liabilities
AEEHET  B¥EOsET  BNOHET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
349,843 12,035 (9,219)
1,465,523 14,006 (15,596)
59,734 138 (107)
1,875,100 26,179 (24,922)
17,306 8 (1)
932,611 6,788 (5,405)
949,917 6,796 (5,406)
28,001 559 (570)
6,655 78 (81)
586 6 (3)
2,860,259 33,618 (30,982)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

22. TSR T B ¥ 22, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
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(b) Hedge accounting

Fair value hedges

The Group uses interest rate swaps to hedge against change in fair value of financial

assets and liabilities arising from movements in market interest rates.

The table below summarises the contract/notional amounts of the hedging instruments

as at 31 December 2018 by remaining contractual maturity.

2018
—Z =z
—EAR =EA +2EA —=EE AfbME .
Up to 103 3to12 1to5 Over &5t
1 month months months years 5 years Total
i i Pt peiaid i i
EHEL HEx BHEL HBHERT HEL EBEL
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$'m
Interest rate swaps 235 78 10,808 70,258 34,845 116,224
The amounts relating to items designated as hedging instruments are as follows:
2018
FA DARERR S
Sy
N
Change in
&8/ AR fair value
LB Fair values used for
Contract/ recognising
notional =13 ={i- hedge
amounts Assets Liabilities ineffectiveness
BEEHETL BYEET A¥aET BEEHET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
Derivative financial instruments
Interest rate swaps 116,224 2,038 (477) 612
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

22. TSR T B ¥ 22, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
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(b) Hedge accounting (continued)

Fair value hedges (continued)

The amounts relating to hedged items are as follows:

2018
ETARRE{ERY
IS \
FE T A FRLARERE S
Accumulated RBE T2
amount of fair EE )
value hedge Change in value
adjustment used for
HEMEIfE  included in the recognising
Carrying carrying hedge
amounts amounts _ ineffectiveness
BEREEET AREEIT AREEIT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
Investment in securities
Debt securities and
certificates of deposit 115,598 (2,233) (273)
Hedge ineffectiveness recognised is as follows:
2018
AWEET
HK$’'m
Net trading gain 339
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IBEHRENEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

22. TSR T B ¥ 22, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
it (&)

(b) BfHEst (&) (b) Hedge accounting (continued)
APEE (&) Fair value hedges (continued)
FE R TH 2174 The fair values of derivative financial instruments designated as hedging instruments as
SR T ER 2017 4£ 12 at 31 December 2017 are as follows:
A 31 By HEAR
2017
HE AR
Assets Liabilities
B EETT BEEET
HK$'m HK$'m
N B Fair value hedges 2,339 (555)
N SR S A A P R Gains or losses on fair value hedges reflected in net trading gain for the year are as
B 5 b o 2 follows:
FRBEHRATT
2017
B W A
Hedged assets Hedged liabilities
BEEHE T BEEEET
HK$'m HK$'m
s, (E5tE) Net gain/(loss)
- ¥ THE - Hedging instruments 591 (464)
- #EERIEE - Hedged items (271) 563
320 99
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

23. Advances and other accounts

Personal loans and advances
Corporate loans and advances

Advances to customers
Impairment allowances
- Stage 1
- Stage 2
- Stage 3
- Collectively assessed
- Individually assessed

Trade bills
Impairment allowances
- Stage 1
- Stage 2
- Stage 3

Advances to banks and other financial
institutions

2018 2017
BEHET AEEEIT
HK$’'m HK$'m
352,805 325,205
913,192 819,599
1,265,997 1,144,804
(3,739) N/A
(546) N/A
(1,126) N/A
N/A (3,615)

N/A (491)
1,260,586 1,140,698
17,361 42,975
(1) N/A

- N/A

(4) N/A
17,356 42,975
3,822 6,259
1,281,764 1,189,932

As at 31 December 2018, advances to customers included accrued interest of HK$2,342

million (2017: HK$1,732 million).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

24. Investment in securities

Investment in securities at fair value through other

comprehensive income

- Treasury bills

- Certificates of deposit

- Other debt securities

- Equity securities

Investment in securities at amortised cost

- Certificates of deposit

- Other debt securities

- Impairment allowances

Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3

Available-for-sale securities at fair value

- Treasury bills

- Certificates of deposit

- Other debt securities

- Equity securities

Held-to-maturity securities at amortised cost

- Certificates of deposit

- Other debt securities

- Impairment allowances

Loans and receivables at amortised cost

- Certificates of deposit

- Other debt securities
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2018 2017
BT ETT A ETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
122,462 N/A
34,849 N/A
312,456 N/A
469,767 N/A
1,329 N/A
471,096 N/A
- N/A

68,978 N/A
68,978 N/A
(10) N/A

- N/A

- N/A

68,968 N/A
N/A 180,160
N/A 26,542
N/A 338,692
N/A 545,394
N/A 946
N/A 546,340
N/A -
N/A 29,648
N/A 29,648
N/A (45)
N/A 29,603
N/A -
N/A 499
N/A 499
540,064 576,442




@ ¥ 8 4L £7 (5 ) B mAT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

MR (8

24,

R (8D

s E T bt 3

wE

R B ATk
- REE LT
- PREEDS B
- JEET

RebiEs
- REELIS L
- FEL

LleR AT B 2 EaEs

- REE LW
- REBLSN L

FrAEFIHZ s

- REELT
- REAEDS L

24. Investment in securities (continued)

Debt securities and certificates of deposit

- Listed in Hong Kong
- Listed outside Hong Kong
- Unlisted

Equity securities
- Listed outside Hong Kong
- Unlisted

Listed securities at amortised cost

- Listed in Hong Kong
- Listed outside Hong Kong

Listed held-to-maturity securities
- Listed in Hong Kong
- Listed outside Hong Kong
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Investment in securities is analysed by place of listing as follows:

2018 2017
AEEET AR EET
HK$’'m HK$'m
64,991 66,848
222,275 197,578
251,469 311,070
538,735 575,496
185 134
1,144 812
1,329 946
540,064 576,442
2018 2017
HRIEHE i SR miE
Carrying Market Carrying Market
value value value value
ABEEHE L ABEEEL BNaET BREET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$'m HK$'m
1,200 1,204 N/A N/A
42,069 41,985 N/A N/A
43,269 43,189 N/A N/A
N/A N/A - -
N/A N/A 14,786 14,736
N/A N/A 14,786 14,736
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

24. Investment in securities (continued)

Investment in securities is analysed by type of issuer as follows:

2018 2017
BEEET B EETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
Sovereigns 183,874 233,492
Public sector entities 44,984 45,374
Banks and other financial institutions 185,110 193,628
Corporate entities 126,096 103,948
540,064 576,442
The movements in investment in securities are summarised as follows:
2018
PAAE#E{ LT
AF A2 B
At fair value
through other DIEERKASTE
comprehensive At amortised
income cost
BEEHET AR EHET
HK$’'m HK$’'m
At 1 January 2018, after adoption of HKFRS 9
517,205 51,057
Additions 723,080 30,731
Disposals, redemptions and maturity (762,516) (12,466)
Amortisation 1,389 93
Change in fair value/fair value hedge adjustment
(1,657) (26)
Net charge of impairment allowances - (3)
Exchange difference (6,405) (418)
At 31 December 2018 471,096 68,968
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

24. Investment in securities (continued)

2017
Rz

Ak RS FIAHES ERORERGK
Available- Held-to- Loans
for-sale maturity and
securities securities receivables
BEEHET BEHET BEEET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m

At 1 January 2017, as previously reported
506,165 45,992 935

Effect of merger of entities under common
control 1 22 -
At 1 January 2017, as restated 506,166 46,014 935
Additions 530,400 4,008 3,864
Disposals, redemptions and maturity (500,860) (21,715) (4,320)
Amortisation 82 (73) 20
Change in fair value 515 - -
Exchange difference 10,037 1,369 -
At 31 December 2017 546,340 29,603 499

In 2018, the Group has designated certain equity securities, which previously classified as
available-for-sale, as equity securities at fair value through other comprehensive income. The
fair value through other comprehensive income designation was made because these are
held for strategic investments. Investments include subordinated Additional Tier 1 securities,
listed and unlisted equity shares.

The Group sold certain equity securities at fair value through other comprehensive income
with fair value of HK$139 million during the year. These sales were made because of portfolio
rebalancing.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

25. BB AT REEME 25. Interests in associates and joint ventures

Mz

BRA1HA1TH
JEMLZA
JEMLFRIH
B E

12 731 H

AEEZBENE EAE

At 1 January
Share of results
Share of tax
Dividend received

At 31 December

2018 2017
BEEET B EEIT
HK$’m HK$'m
415 319

101 130

(32) (32)

(2) (2)

482 415

The particulars of the Group’s associates and joint ventures, all of which are unlisted, are as

HEHRIELTAHE B follows:
T
BRS¢ ik
Place of
Poa:d incorporation EETRA FrEwERE FEER
Name and operation Issued share capital Interest held Principal activities
A
Associates:
rhER e R AR i FEEA 45% ER-FMEERS R
/NG| PRC 50,000,000 A i Credit card back-end
BOC Services Registered capital service support
Company RMB50,000,000
Limited
EEMRHE
Joint ventures:
A AR AE & 10,026,000 &7t 19.96% RyEEhE B AR B R AL
Joint Electronic Hong Kong HK$10,026,000 SRTTRLNGR B B 4 4%
Teller Services Operation of a private
Limited inter-bank message
switching network in
respect of ATM services
BEAE aEhE
Associates Joint ventures
2018 2017 2018 2017
BEEHE BEEET BEEETL BaET
HK$’'m HK$'m HK$’'m HK$'m
e AE aE R Interests in associates/
joint ventures 421 350 61 65
JE(LTE AT EERE Share of profit/total
e Sicyiy | P il comprehensive income
dar for the year of
associates/joint
ventures 71 94 (2) 4
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R IR {E HFH LY

26. &Y 26. Investment properties

2018 2017
AEEET A EETT
HK$’m HK$'m
wW1H1H At 1 January 19,949 18,369
b=y Additions 13 13
EE Disposals - (2)
INEEWZS (FfEE14) Fair value gains (Note 14) 921 1,210

B (EE) /EE Reclassification (to)/from properties,

YNFE ~ B Bkt plant and equipment (Note 27)

CK$5E 27) (895) 359
w12 431 H At 31 December 19,988 19,949

The carrying value of investment properties is analysed based on the remaining terms of the

FIEFIAR AT T leases as follows:
2018 2017
AEHET A EETT
HK$’m HK$'m
EESRE Held in Hong Kong
FHATHEY (4 50 4 ) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 4,991 4,803
I HATHZY (10 424 50 42) On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 14,639 14,838
TERBLIMNTA Held outside Hong Kong
EHAFAZY (#8350 4 ) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 86 77
JiHAfHSY (10 £ 50 £ ) On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 244 203
AHATHEY (/D 10 52) On short-term lease (less than 10 years) 28 28
19,988 19,949

#2018 12 H 31 H > %1
NEEARENZRE
¥ Ty L A A
Hgr BT ARAFR
2018 £F 12 A 31 HLAAY
{H By HE B P HEAT 2 HSE Al
H - AFEEEETEERE
AR F RS HI I T
mH2HELET—HK
AYFERERUTHIER -

As at 31 December 2018, investment properties were included in the balance sheet at
valuation carried out at 31 December 2018 on the basis of their fair value by an independent
firm of chartered surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited. The fair value represents the price
that would be received to sell each investment property in an orderly transaction with market

participants at the measurement date.

275



@ ¥ 5 4L £5 (m ) A BA T

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

ERFNEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
27. Y~ B[ R 27. Properties, plant and equipment

Xfh ~ B

&
Equipment,
BE fixtures and qazt
Premises fittings Total
BEEET BEEETT BEEET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
W20184FE1 H1HZ Net book value at
WRHEFE Z TR IR 1 January 2018, as
previously reported 44,049 2,863 46,912
GO EER  EE Effect of merger of entities
=z under common control - 7 7
W20184FE1 H1HZ Net book value at
WRIANFE 2 51 1 January 2018, as
restated 44,049 2,870 46,919
e Additions 94 1,070 1,164
e Disposals (4) (7) (11)
i Revaluation 2,142 - 2,142
FEHTE (HEE13) Depreciation for the year
(Note 13) (1,089) (953) (2,042)
T EE E A Reclassification from
(fffsx 26) investment properties
(Note 26) 895 - 895
PR 3 72 4H Exchange difference (1) - (1)
#2018 4FE 12 H 31 H> Net book value at
HEmESHE 31 December 2018 46,086 2,980 49,066
2018412 H 31 H At 31 December 2018
FRAE AL B Cost or valuation 46,086 10,351 56,437
FEHTEE SORE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment - (7,371) (7,371)
2018 12 H 31 H~ Net book value at
FRHEFHE 31 December 2018 46,086 2,980 49,066
U E 2 RAME B The analysis of cost or valuation of the above assets is as follows:
pag ix: 1N
2018 £ 12 H 31 H At 31 December 2018
TR E At cost . 10,351 10,351
Ak E At valuation 46,086 - 46,086
46,086 10,351 56,437
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27. Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

(&)
B~ [EE R
A
Equipment,
R fixtures and 4EET
Premises fittings Total
BEEETT AR ETT BEEETT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
W2017E1 A1 HZ Net book value at
HRTHFHE 2~ FIHAZIHR 1 January 2017, as
previously reported 43,215 2,400 45,615
SOt I E R e Effect of merger of entities
P under common control - 6 6
7?2017 FE1 A1 HZ Net book value at
RE T FHE 2 EF 1 January 2017, as
restated 43,215 2,406 45,621
j;%ﬁﬁ Additions 112 1 ’379 1 ’491
B Disposals (8) (20) (28)
Hif Revaluation 2,103 - 2,103
FEHTE (MfEE13) Depreciation for the year
(Note 13) (1,021) (909) (1,930)
E i R R E Y Reclassification to
(FfizE 26) investment properties
(Note 26) (359) - (359)
b S0 A2 Exchange difference 7 14 21
W2017 FE12 H31 H>Z Net book value at
HRTHFHE 31 December 2017 44,049 2,870 46,919
2017 £12 H 31 H At 31 December 2017
FRAE A E Cost or valuation 44,049 9,479 53,528
RETHTES RO E Accumulated depreciation
and impairment - (6,609) (6,609)
MN2017 FE12 H31 HZ Net book value at
HRTH L FHE 31 December 2017 44,049 2,870 46,919
P& E 2 A E S The analysis of cost or valuation of the above assets is as follows:
pax i1
2017412 H 31 H At 31 December 2017
FEAE At cost - 9,479 9,479
FAh{E At valuation 44,049 R 44,049
44,049 9,479 53,528
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27. Yt~ B[ R 27. Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

(&)
B E 2 R EEAZTHAI T 6k The carrying value of premises is analysed based on the remaining terms of the leases as
AR AR follows:
2018 2017
AW EET AEET
HK$’'m HK$'m
EEERAE Held in Hong Kong
FHATHEY (% 50 4 ) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 13,474 13,457
FHAFHZY (10 424 50 4F) On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 32,263 30,218
TN Held outside Hong Kong
EHAFHLY (#3350 ) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 6 5
HAFEZY (10 £2 50 F) On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 266 290
SEHATEZY (/DA 10 ) On short-term lease (less than 10 years) 77 79
46,086 44,049
2018 412 H 31 H % As at 31 December 2018, premises were included in the balance sheet at valuation carried
NEERBEENZFEE T out at 31 December 2018 on the basis of their fair value by an independent firm of chartered
A5 38 1T 5 20 M = Bl K By surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited. The fair value represents the price that would be
HEEITTERAER 2018 received to sell each premises in an orderly transaction with market participants at the
F12 H 31 A PEE measurement date.
BT BN
FEfEEEIR2EHERR
TR RS HI I DL T 6] T35
SEEHENEE—THBEE
HUSHI(EE -
TRIE bt E &SR As a result of the above-mentioned revaluations, changes in value of the premises were
(H{EEHRETAT ¢ recognised as follows:
2018 2017
B EET BEEETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
B3 () Wgskr = Increase/(decrease) in valuation
fhidd{E, CRE) credited/(charged) to income statement
(FfaE 15) (Note 15) 24 (9)
et HA s 2 E Increase in valuation credited to other
1 comprehensive income 2,118 2,112
2,142 2,103

201812 H 31 H & As at 31 December 2018, the net book value of premises that would have been included in
HREEMERAEIRES the Group’s balance sheet had the premises been carried at cost less accumulated
e ROEEIR AT - A% depreciation and impairment losses was HK$8,639 million (2017: HK$7,346 million).
BErEEAMBRNZFE

R THDFELIE F5 5785 86.39 {&

gt (2017 4 @ #i% 73.46

EIT) °
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28.

29.

30.

Ht&E 28. Other assets
2018 2017
AR EET B EHETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
Y [Bl & 7E Repossessed assets 10 30
HEE Precious metals 6,602 6,291
JREVSHRTE R TS Accounts receivable and prepayments 25,921 24,185
32,533 30,506
EHEITEIE R 29. Hong Kong SAR currency notes in circulation
R
AR BT R R E AR The Hong Kong SAR currency notes in circulation are secured by deposit of funds in respect
HFFA 2 &R TR & of which the Hong Kong SAR Government certificates of indebtedness are held.
BN & EEHE A
B -
DU ES(EET AR 30. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
87 BRE &
2018 2017
BREETT BEEET
HK$’'m HK$'m
RS A E Trading liabilities
- ANEEL S IR K E A - Short positions in Exchange Fund Bills and
M Notes 13,336 16,936
SE By BLA B bR A Financial liabilities designated at fair value
s SRE through profit or loss
- sEREMERR (BfEE 31) - Structured deposits (Note 31) 2,199 2,784
15,535 19,720
201812 H 31 HAE The carrying amount of financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss as at
PAIAEEZ R A B 2 31 December 2018 was less than the amount that the Group would be contractually
ERAENREEILASE required to pay at maturity to the holders by HK$7 million (2017: HK$3 million).

A B3 H 49 E AT FF
BANZEVE T 08
JC (2017 4 : B 3 T
JL) -

279



©)

¥ & 4t (m ) HmAT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

BRI (8D

31.

32.

33.

EFEK

AR ~ (58 B HAAFRL (7Y
BEABR)

SR LA PEELET AdE
f Z B A (RIS
e (HfaE 30)

58
B2 R A
- /\a
- A

EETEK
- /\E‘
- {EA

TEH ~ F R R AT
- /\E‘
- {BA

ERTHEEEERF
G

g DAER AT &

FANARTE R e

HARFEN RIE
BOHOReE R A IR ORI
KA
- BPEE
- BPEER
- =R

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

31. Deposits from customers

Current, savings and other deposit accounts (per
balance sheet)

Structured deposits reported as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Note 30)

Analysed by:

Demand deposits and current accounts
- Corporate
- Personal

Savings deposits
- Corporate
- Personal

Time, call and notice deposits
- Corporate
- Personal

32. Debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue

Debt securities, at amortised cost

33. Other accounts and provisions

Other accounts payable
Impairment allowances on loan commitments
and financial guarantee contracts
- Stage 1
- Stage 2
- Stage 3
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2018 2017

B EHETT R E T
HK$’'m HK$'m
1,896,663 1,778,188
2,199 2,784
1,898,862 1,780,972
147,431 147,401
62,812 58,808
210,243 206,209
336,488 373,218
516,006 540,283
852,494 913,501
488,138 409,568
347,987 251,694
836,125 661,262
1,898,862 1,780,972
2018 2017
BEEET AR E T
HK$’'m HK$'m
9,453 21,641

2018 2017
BEEET AR EIT
HK$’'m HK$'m
47,505 40,741

375 N/A

20 N/A

43 N/A

47,943 40,741
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

34. Deferred taxation

RER R T B &t
AU 129% T ATER L B
B ER I BISEE
B LA S R PO R 1
W B P 2 B R R (i
R R e -

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of the temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements and
unused tax credits in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes”.

BEABRNZIEERIE The major components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recorded in the balance sheet,

(&) /aEFEEs and the movements during the year are as follows:
DARHARFEN 2 EHU
T
2018
DoERTEE
itk ]
Accelerated LYIE 3=nn BUEZEE
tax Property Impairment Hth, 4EEt
depreciation revaluation allowances Others Total
BWEET BT AMEET BWEET BWEET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
201841 H1H> At1January 2018, as
TR previously reported 690 6,603 (549) (1,137) 5,607
PANE BRI s4E  Effect of adoption of
A 9 sk g HKFRS 9 - - (185) 148 (37)
#2018 F1H1H > At1January 2018,
PR S AR S s after adoption of
RIS 9 BE1% HKFRS 9 690 6,603 (734) (989) 5,570
fEztdizsZz ([ 16) Charged to income
statement (Note 16) 13 44 1 1" 79
fgzt,/ (&sd) HEfh4e Charged/(credited) to
TR 2 other comprehensive
income - 293 - (312) (19)
HiEE A EEZ(E  Release upon disposal
s AEA U of equity instruments
ZHEHET H 2845 atfair value through
other comprehensive
income - - - 3 3
72018412 H 31 H At 31 December 2018 703 6,940 (723) (1,287) 5,633
2017
hErEE
TRFEH
Accelerated Ve B
tax Property Impairment HoAth st
depreciation revaluation allowances Others Total
BEETT AEETT AEETT AMEETT AEETT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
2017 E1H1H  At1January 2017 608 6,444 (426) (1,079) 5,547
‘&t (&5 Yezs#  Charged/(credited) to
(FffsE 16) income statement
(Note 16) 82 (118) (123) (80) (239)
fErECEA A U s Charged to other
comprehensive income - 277 - 22 299
20174412 H 31 H At 31 December 2017 690 6,603 (549) (1,137) 5,607
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34. REMRE (8) 34. Deferred taxation (continued)
E AL EREF A IRE R Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on an individual entity basis when there is a
JEEE B ARIEAER legal right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
$4 0 TIRIERR T4 K 5] — B taxation relates to the same authority. The following amounts, determined after appropriate
R E S  IERYNGD| offsetting, are shown in the balance sheet:

A FE R I T E B R FE AL IH
GRS - TYIEERE
BRIz &5 it

N E RS
2018 2017
BEEET B EETT
HK$’m HK$'m
IRAERH G 7 Deferred tax assets (82) (51)
IRIEFITE & (& Deferred tax liabilities 5,715 5,658
5,633 5,607
2018 2017
BEEETT AT E T
HK$’'m HK$'m
PRIEFRIEEE (8 12 {4 Deferred tax assets to be recovered after more than
HigugE) twelve months (60) (38)
IRIEFRTEAE (83 12 {E Deferred tax liabilities to be settled after more than
HEZT) twelve months 6,959 6,746
6,899 6,708
201812 H31H » K& As at 31 December 2018, the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
E R IE ERIE A tax losses amounting to HK$23 million (2017: HK$25 million). Of the amount, HK$9 million
RTS8 Ry kir0.23(8 7T (2017: HK$9 million) for the Group has no expiry date and HK$14 million (2017: HK$16
(20174 : #&#%0.25(% million) for the Group is scheduled to expire within six years under the current tax
TC ) IR EIE S Wil legislation in different countries/regions.

AERITRRGY > Horh A sem
e E R AR A B A Ry
HEIE0.09(% 7T (20174
AE0.09(87T) > MH64F
NIRRT AR 40 R BN
0.14{57T (20174 : HlE
0.16{E7T) -
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35. BEAE 35. Subordinated liabilities
2018 2017
AW EET BIEEET
HK$’m HK$'m
1% (e Subordinated notes
- BB ESE - designated at fair value through profit or loss
AR 13,246 N/A
- Dl AT EET - at amortised cost with fair value hedge adjustment
YNAS R pLiE ok N/A 18,917
BIEEN Subordinated loan
- DR ARt E - at amortised cost - 63
13,246 18,980
A 2010 4F > th R R Es (T In 2010, BOCHK issued listed subordinated notes with an aggregate amount of USD2,500
44{g 25.00 (BT EmHE million, interest rate at 5.55% per annum payable semi-annually, due February 2020. In
gy » FIEEHEL A September 2018, USD877 million in principal amount of subordinated notes were purchased
—I FEFIR 5.55%° 2020 and redeemed by BOCHK and cancelled pursuant to the terms and conditions of the notes.
2 HEE - A 2018 4 9 USD1,623 million of the aggregate principal amount of subordinated notes remain
H » R EEEE L IE outstanding. Amounts qualified as Tier 2 capital instruments for regulatory purposes are
A4 8.77 (BETCAVER » shown in Note 4.4(B). The carrying amount of subordinated notes designated at fair value
N AR % A R through profit or loss as at 31 December 2018 was more than the amount that the Group
2 SRR SRR - would be contractually required to pay at maturity to the holders by HK$260 million (2017:
REE MR A A e N/A).
16.23 {EETTHIZEE - 155
BRI E R B AR
B rEafEe o PRI
#t 4.4(B)H517 - 2018 4
12 F 31 HFE LAY
EE(LET AR 2 B IERE
BIIRAEE AR E
WHAELNTPRAAZ
SHZ AR 260 BT
(2017 4F : KM ) -
%18 SR R e e N ] The subordinated loan was from BOC, the intermediate holding company, with interest rate
I ERITREL - FI B EF at 12-month LIBOR plus 1.50% per annum payable annually. It has been fully repaid during

ST MR 12 8 the year.
P SR AT B S 47 2o

1.50% - ILIHREERE
PEREEEE -
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2016412 522 H > f
REH (fERTEF ) HEP
BB AR A B
BEFIH AL EEERE
B (ORERED) sht
BRI IR 2,114,773 i
MR T E e -
BN E BN R E
foheds I BH AT A 1Y S 1%
HFEERE -

e i 5 Tt T L Y 5 T
SRR EIES R - T
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

36. Discontinued operations

On 22 December 2016, BOCHK (as seller) entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with Xiamen International Investment Limited and the Committee of Jimei Schools (each as
a buyer) in relation to the disposal of a total of 2,114,773 ordinary shares of Chiyu. The
completion of the disposal was conditional upon the satisfaction of all the conditions
precedent set out in the sale and purchase agreement.

All the conditions precedent set out in the sale and purchase agreement were satisfied,
and completion of the disposal took place on 27 March 2017 in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the sale and purchase agreement. Upon completion, Chiyu ceased to be
a subsidiary of BOCHK.
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MsEENTEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
36. ERIFKZHERS (&) 36. Discontinued operations (continued)

DR EEE
BT

The results of discontinued operations for the year are as follows:

2018 2017
BMEET BEEHETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
[Etogistit—r 51 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
FIEHA Interest income - 270
FIESZH Interest expense - 7)
BRIEBA Net interest income - 193
5 AU A Fee and commission income - 43
s E e H Fee and commission expense - (4)
REREE RASWA Net fee and commission income - 39
Izl en Net trading gain - 2
HAtr LAAHEE(LET AR Net gain on other financial instruments at fair value
i Z Sl TEIFU s through profit or loss - 1
IR EER 2 IFEE Net operating income before impairment
U A allowances - 235
T T Net charge of impairment allowances - @)
WA Net operating income - 228
S H Operating expenses . (87)
el Operating profit - 141
i Taxation . (22)
Erfigiassfl Profit after taxation - 119
HECA IR EEBE S Gain on disposal of discontinued operations - 2,504
BRI BRI Profit from discontinued operations - 2,623
FEALEF] Profit attributable to:
ASRITHER Equity holders of the Bank - 2,589
JEFZEHIRE LS Non-controlling interests - 34
- 2,623
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

MsEENTEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
36. E&RIFEEHEY (48) 36. Discontinued operations (continued)

LA I 48 e s E AR Y 3R The net cash flows incurred by discontinued operations are as follows:
SR
2018 2017
BEEHET BEEET
HK$’'m HK$'m
BT Operating activities - 2,000
EER Investing activities - 3)
A ETS Financing activities - -
B4 KB EELNR Net cash inflow incurred by discontinued
SRNFHE operations . 1,997
HEBELA I LKEFET U The gain on disposal of discontinued operations is analysed as follows:
EITATAOR ¢
2017
AR EHETT
HK$'m
R o EHE R Total consideration 7,685
HEEEFE Net assets disposed (7,044)
eI Non-controlling interests 2,078
it BT E G R T Cumulative translation reserve and reserve for fair
BB RN\ P EHET value changes of available-for-sale securities
H R R reclassified to income statement (48)
B EEL IR SR Transaction costs incurred in connection with the
disposal (167)
HEC KRBT s Gain on disposal of discontinued operations 2,504
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

MsEENTEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
36. E&RIFEEHEY (48) 36. Discontinued operations (continued)

B bEEENTED

The net assets of discontinued operations at the date of disposal are as follows:

HUFEENT
PHHEH
At the date of
disposal
HEREHETT
HK$'m
[EE IR 45 R AR SR T Ko At Cash and balances and placements with banks and
SR 2 4heR K e other financial institutions
i 8,244
DUANHES B AIBRR 2 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
ERNEE 351
TR T E Derivative financial instruments 95
SR HA AR IR Advances and other accounts 31,411
HRE Investment in securities 14,541
BV Investment properties 204
YIFE ~ B3 Rk Properties, plant and equipment 1,537
WEREMIEE 7 Deferred tax assets 63
Hptr e Other assets 582
SRIT R H MR 7 Deposits and balances from banks and other
SRR financial institutions (2,765)
TR T A Derivative financial instruments (8)
EqEreE /4 Deposits from customers (46,277)
HAMIETE F B Other accounts and provisions (725)
TEMTIHA Current tax liabilities (45)
EIEIRITEE R Deferred tax liabilities (164)
HEREFE Net assets disposed 7,044

287



©)

¥ & 4t (m ) HmAT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

BRI (8D

36. E&RIFEEHEY (48) 36. Discontinued operations (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

37.

38.

The net cash inflow from disposal of discontinued operations is analysed as follows:

Total consideration received, satisfied by cash

Transaction costs incurred in connection with the
disposal
Cash and cash equivalents disposed

Net cash inflow from disposal of discontinued
operations

Share capital

Issued and fully paid:
43,042,840,858 ordinary shares

Other equity instruments

Undated non-cumulative subordinated Additional
Tier 1 capital securities

2017

AR E T

HK$'m

7,685

(167)

(6,708)

810

2018 2017
BEHET AR EHETT
HK$'m HK$'m
43,043 43,043
2018 2017
BEEET R E T
HK$'m HK$'m
23,476 -

In September 2018, BOCHK issued USD3,000 million undated non-cumulative
subordinated Additional Tier 1 capital securities. The capital securities are perpetual
securities in respect of which there is no fixed redemption date and are not callable within
the first 5 years. They have an initial rate of distribution of 5.90% per annum payable

semi-annually.
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39. e REEHEE  39. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement

(a) EBRFIERRIRATEE

REZRALIR

OB
- REFHEEEFRT
- RECHKEEE
15

§its
RSB
TR S
B 55 (HTIFRg
EECE
i 2
AR )
I 3
FESRAT RCHLA SRk
5.2 RS
> 28l
DA LT AdERS
> SR B
PSR A B
SYHR LA S
HHIE Y B
Sz > S
ST RS R
EA RS 0 )
DA LT AdERS
> SR B
B R )
BT IR R
)
HABRIE R A 2 )

FREGATACE I G2 A

EREBIHERET
(ki
- BHAIE
- BEAFE
- BUWRE

Operating profit
- from continuing operations
- from discontinued operations

Depreciation

Net charge of impairment allowances

Unwind of discount on impairment allowances
Advances written off net of recoveries

Investment in securities written off

Change in subordinated liabilities

Change in balances and placements with banks
and other financial institutions with original
maturity over three months

Change in financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Change in derivative financial instruments

Change in advances and other accounts

Change in investment in securities

Change in other assets

Change in deposits and balances from banks
and other financial institutions

Change in financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Change in deposits from customers

Change in debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue

Change in other accounts and provisions

Effect of changes in exchange rates

Operating cash inflow before taxation
Cash flows from operating activities included
- interest received

- interest paid
- dividend received
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to operating cash inflow before taxation

2018 2017
BEEETT BEEETT
HK$'m HK$'m
36,925 32,569

- 141

36,925 32,710
2,042 1,930
1,232 1,062
(1) (3)
(714) (465)
(45) -

521 498
7,103 21,878
22,763 (11,389)
(1,507) 12,504
(93,031) (182,558)
20,579 (28,206)
(2,048) 1,733
153,808 24,612
(4,185) 6,349
118,475 252,853
(12,188) 20,520
6,764 (232)
20,084 (15,914)
276,577 137,882
56,959 45,185
19,889 12,583
45 37
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

MsEENTEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

39. HZEHERERMEE  39. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement (continued)
(&)

(b) IEEBEENEREZ (b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
e
2018 2017
B EHET BEEET
HK$’'m HK$'m
BEARA Subordinated liabilities
w1 H 1 H2Z BHIYE At 1 January, as previously reported 18,980 19,093
FRANE A s BRI Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9
F OB 2,068 N/A
W1H1H  RGEE At 1 January, after adoption of HKFRS 9
WA Es R 5 AR RIS 9 5%
% 21,048 19,093
HEma Cash flows:
I EEEREEE Payment for redemption/repayment of
i 2E subordinated liabilities (7,211) (16)
T EREEERE Interest paid for subordinated liabilities (1,087) (595)
(8,298) (611)
JETR e8] - Non-cash changes:
H 558k 2 N Change in fair value of own credit risk
HELETLH M S credited to other comprehensive income
e (25) N/A
PR S22 %H Exchange difference 59 145
HAths2E) Other changes 462 353
W12 H 31 H At 31 December 13,246 18,980
(c) HE&EEEFHRSIEEE (c) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
B
2018 2017
EEEET BT ETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
[ KRB B H A Cash and balances and placements with
3 il H N2 AE$R1T R banks and other financial institutions with
il 5 b AR R > 4 original maturity within three months
B ROERIEIL 378,472 365,628
FRHAHE 3EA N2 Treasury bills, certificates of deposit and other
JE % ~ fFakes K HA debt instruments with original maturity within
EETE three months
- DIAEESELEA - financial assets at fair value through profit or
Bz SMEE loss 239,020 1,000
- HRNE - investment in securities 7,024 13,257
624,516 379,885
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SR (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

40. SRAREERAAE 40. Contingent liabilities and commitments
IR A E MKIET S BA The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each significant class of
EARBILRZSERH contingent liability and commitment and the aggregate credit risk-weighted amount and is
HFRAVER s RIM4RE » H prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA return of capital

I E TR & Y8 adequacy ratio.
P 5 5 e DI B

AR
2018 2017
BMEET BEEHET
HK$’'m HK$'m
HiFEEERIER Direct credit substitutes 6,533 8,414
HAZXZ SR SR A E Transaction-related contingencies 29,292 30,092
B SR SR A E Trade-related contingencies 26,269 28,294
REEI AR Commitments that are unconditionally cancellable
G P without prior notice 406,542 398,208
EAtRIE - FEHAE 5 Other commitments with an original maturity of
-1 FEWPT - up to one year 10,189 17,976
-1FEDLE - over one year 131,268 154,582
610,093 637,566
(EE R IAEEEH Credit risk-weighted amount 68,508 74,844
5 & JE s 0 HE B RE = AR 15 The credit risk-weighted amount is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Capital)
(ER17E (BER) #HH) 5 Rules. The amount is dependent upon the status of the counterparty and the maturity
B o FEBEERURAAC S F characteristics of each type of contract.
ZHEN RS BRELZ R
T -
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41.

42,

BAKE
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A BRI O Rk
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(a) fERARMEA

IRAE T AT 2 4008
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B R AR A BT E R I
FI7A SO 2 B f&AH S

TR EF
- N 14
-1 ELLEE 5 FERN
-5 1k

EAIE A AT
KEHLT (AAR R
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et H 2 T B B
T2 R & PN YR 1 RR K
SRR A 2 o

41.

42,

Capital commitments

The Group has the following outstanding capital commitments not provided for in the financial
statements:

2018 2017

BEEHET  B¥EET

HK$’'m HK$'m

Authorised and contracted for but not provided for 215 146
Authorised but not contracted for 35 3
250 149

The above capital commitments mainly relate to commitments to purchase computer
equipment and software, and to renovate the Group’s premises.

Operating lease commitments

(a) As lessee

The Group has commitments to make the following future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases:

2018 2017
AEEHEL BEEsET
HK$’'m HK$'m
Land and buildings
- Not later than one year 606 570
- Later than one year but not later than five years 712 578
- Later than five years 48 14
1,366 1,162

Certain non-cancellable operating leases included in the table above, in the event that there
is such special conditions stipulated thereto, were subject to renegotiation and rent
adjustment with reference to market rates prevailing at specified agreed dates or according
to the special conditions as stipulated in the leases.
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(b) fERHMEA

MBS m R E <~ &2
HEY o MIRAER
B ZE] B8 ARIK
HRTHE Z s R EWHE
4

R AT
- i1 &
-1 FELEESFER

REELKEHER R
THH R E P - A
WEHE 1 FE 34
AKX — R ZRTH
R R R - PEHY
I > NFEFE A T 5 2k
DUTTEAEERH E -

43. R

A5 [ I [ 3 28 TH 80T
ANEHRAVRIE MR -
BEHFRE R R E AR
FRIEF PSS AR -

Y HE TR R AN S [
R A A bk s
ST R AT R B8
PR BRLARBIEFRE
SR G R HEE AR -

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

42. Operating lease commitments (continued)

(b) As lessor

The Group has contracted with tenants for the following future minimum lease receivables
under non-cancellable operating leases:

2018 2017
AEEET EROET
HK$’'m HK$'m

Land and buildings
- Not later than one year 549 554
- Later than one year but not later than five years 419 514
968 1,068

The Group leases its investment properties under operating lease arrangements, with
leases typically for a period from one to three years. The terms of the leases generally
require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for rent adjustments according to
the prevailing market conditions upon the lease renewal.

43. Litigation

The Group has been served a number of claims and counterclaims by various independent
parties. These claims and counterclaims are in relation to the normal commercial activities of
the Group.

No material provision was made against these claims and counterclaims because the
directors believe that the Group has meritorious defences against the claimants or the
amounts involved in these claims are not expected to be material.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

44, Segmental reporting

ACER ] - S SRS o SRS
TR - TEREEIA
FERIFDEMIEZE - B 90%
ARE T - R R E R I
R =B Efrhle
{ENSRITZERS ~ R 2EIRA T
TR BESHERS - SR ARAY 52
BN FIE P B dn s
BHEEEHEITHY RPC (&7
Bt ~ EEAn SRS ) B
i G

{18 A SRAT A b S SRTT R 4R
et e EIRTIRY > &
RS B B0 B
FI-R ~ B S AERRAY A bt B
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i~ SNESERS KT AR A -
NSRAT SEH 4R - TR e s fl
AFUNEZE P T RSERTTE
BRIEFEERBAREEF £
A ESEEGR BR T HEEE
Sh EE R EHEEREE
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B EEEEAEEREE
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SERINEE ~ AfH -~ WA
ST ~ BB B AN
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& AR ERENZ
FEBBRE L A PLE
e 2RISRV - B3
BREEHEE » 1ZEENHE
BRI R E - £
TR LA R Bt > AT
HRRE R -

A SR E U AR B H
BUA - LHEEEHEANE
T EHOFR BUA KB 2
1 > NEERTA S T A
SULA RS H ORI -

TSR B Y R A
it RO
BrhEHOE - ERETE
EIIIR - IS EREZT
RIEE o

The Group manages the business mainly from a business segment perspective and over
90% of the Group’s revenues, profits before tax and assets are derived from Hong Kong.
Currently, three operating segments are identified: Personal Banking, Corporate Banking
and Treasury. The classification of the Group’s operating segments is based on customer
segment and product type, which is aligned with the RPC (relationship, product and channel)
management model of the Group.

Both Personal Banking and Corporate Banking provide general banking services including
various deposit products, overdrafts, loans, credit cards, trade related products and other
credit facilities, investment and insurance products, and foreign currency and derivative
products. Personal Banking mainly serves retail customers and small enterprises, while
Corporate Banking mainly deals with corporate customers. Treasury manages the funding
and liquidity, and the interest rate and foreign exchange positions of the Group in addition to
proprietary trades. “Others” mainly represents the Group’s holdings of premises, investment
properties, equity investments, certain interests in associates and joint ventures and the
businesses of the Southeast Asian entities.

Measurement of segment assets, liabilities, income, expenses, results and capital
expenditure is based on the Group’s accounting policies. The segment information includes
items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis. Inter-segment funding is charged according to the internal funds transfer
pricing mechanism of the Group, which is primarily based on market rates with the
consideration of specific features of the product.

As the Group derives a majority of revenue from interest and the senior management relies
primarily on net interest income in managing the business, interest income and expense for
all reportable segments are presented on a net basis.

Several products/businesses have been reclassified among operating segments in
accordance with the latest management model of the Group. Comparative amounts have
been restated to conform with current year presentation.
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44. Segmental reporting (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

{ELAST IESRT
Personal Corporate e 54 Hith, et EHHE &
Banking Banking Treasury Others Subtotal Eliminations Consolidated
B¥OET  EWEET  BBEET  BSOET  ABEER AREET AREET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
Year ended 31 December
2018
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Net interest income/(expense)
- External 1,362 15,766 17,074 2,168 36,370 - 36,370
- Inter-segment 10,030 (2,695) (6,105) (1,230) - - -
11,392 13,071 10,969 938 36,370 - 36,370
Net fee and commission
income 6,846 3,364 872 1,124 12,206 (244) 11,962
Net trading gain 784 1,438 740 302 3,264 - 3,264
Net gain/(loss) on other
financial instruments at fair
value through profit or loss 10 - 509 1) 518 - 518
Net (loss)/gain on other
financial assets - 3) 4 - 1 - 1
Other operating income 48 2 9 1,980 2,039 (1,301) 738
Net operating income
before impairment
allowances 19,080 17,872 13,103 4,343 54,398 (1,545) 52,853
Net charge of impairment
allowances (123) (784) 3) (322) (1,232) - (1,232)
Net operating income 18,957 17,088 13,100 4,021 53,166 (1,545) 51,621
Operating expenses (8,756) (3,001) (1,259) (3,225) (16,241) 1,545 (14,696)
Operating profit 10,201 14,087 11,841 796 36,925 - 36,925
Net gain from disposal
offfair value adjustments
on investment properties - - - 921 921 - 921
Net (loss)/gain from disposal/
revaluation of properties,
plant and equipment (4) - - 23 19 - 19
Share of profits less losses
after tax of associates
and joint ventures 72 - - 3) 69 - 69
Profit before taxation 10,269 14,087 11,841 1,737 37,934 - 37,934
At 31 December 2018
ASSETS
Segment assets 378,547 887,367 1,439,248 133,597 2,838,759 (18,557) 2,820,202
Interests in associates and
joint ventures 422 - - 60 482 - 482
378,969 887,367 1,439,248 133,657 2,839,241 (18,557) 2,820,684
LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities 1,038,673 839,457 616,588 78,285 2,573,003 (18,557) 2,554,446
Year ended 31 December
2018
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Other information
Capital expenditure 26 - 5 1,146 1,177 - 1,177
Depreciation 564 140 113 1,225 2,042 - 2,042
Amortisation of securities - - 1,502 (20) 1,482 - 1,482
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44. Segmental reporting (continued)

[N RESYT
Personal Corporate WAESERS Hthr Nt Eijieit e
Banking Banking Treasury Others Subtotal Eliminations ~ Consolidated
AEHETT  BROET  BEOET  EYoET BESET Al EETT A EETT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
#HZE20174£12H31H  Year ended 31 December
2017
FHERSE% CONTINUING OPERATIONS
SRR (G2 Net interest income/(expense)
- Sk - External 3,243 12,397 15,385 1,137 32,162 - 32,162
- PR - Inter-segment 6,467 (666) (4,906) (895) - - -
9,710 11,731 10,479 242 32,162 - 32,162
RIS AR Net fee and commission
income 6,340 4,264 720 1,140 12,464 (208) 12,256
AslEs/ (F#R)  Nettrading gain/(loss) 876 1,270 (1,182) 223 1,187 - 1,187
HAPAATHEE S A Net gain/(loss) on other
s BRl TR financial instruments at fair
/" (EFAR) value through profit or loss 9 - (5) - 4 - 4
R E Pl Net gain on other financial
assets - 30 698 - 728 - 728
HitraEdA Other operating income 82 8 34 1,935 2,059 (1,369) 690
TR ELERRT PR Net operating income
BUgA before impairment
allowances 17,017 17,303 10,744 3,540 48,604 (1,577) 47,027
TR S Net charge of impairment
allowances (754) (73) - (228) (1,055) - (1,055)
TREBIA Net operating income 16,263 17,230 10,744 3,312 47,549 (1,577) 45,972
e Operating expenses (7,949) (2,834) (1,275) (2,922) (14,980) 1,577 (13,403)
fas=aail| Operating profit 8,314 14,396 9,469 390 32,569 - 32,569
EYEERE,NHE Net gain from disposal
B 2oaeiliey offfair value adjustments
on investment properties - - - 1,210 1,210 - 1,210
RE,EYEE - 231K Netloss from disposal/
Bdpae 5= revaluation of properties,
plant and equipment (5) 4) (1) (14) (24) - (24)
(IR AT e Share of profits less losses
SRR RS after tax of associates
Eis] and joint ventures 94 - - 4 98 - 98
2] Profit before taxation 8,403 14,392 9,468 1,590 33,853 - 33,853
R 2017412 531 H At 31 December 2017
HE ASSETS
SEERE Segment assets 355,060 832,946 1,213,131 126,146 2,527,283 (7,901) 2,519,382
T\ R EEE Interests in associates and
bt joint ventures 350 - - 65 415 - 415
355,410 832,946 1,213,131 126,211 2,527,698 (7,901) 2,519,797
=i LIABILITIES
STEEE Segment liabilities 957,439 810,020 457,252 72,021 2,296,732 (7,901) 2,288,831
#HZE2017F£12H31H  Year ended 31 December
2017
RS CONTINUING OPERATIONS
H Ak Other information
BAMEL Capital expenditure 27 - 4 1,473 1,504 - 1,504
TEE Depreciation 522 147 96 1,165 1,930 - 1,930
Ezas i Amortisation of securities - - 36 (7) 29 - 29
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

45, Offsetting financial instruments

The following tables present details of the Group’s financial instruments subject to offsetting,
enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements.

2018
NEEER KENBEERERF
THESH RS AR
[ REEARE Related amounts
B BEEELE FHFIRE  not set off in the balance
EREEER Gross GRIKESFH sheet
BREREE amounts of Net amounts
Gross recognised of financial BUELZ
amounts of financial assets HEH
recognised liabilities set presented in SRTH Cash
financial off in the  the balance Financial collateral b
assets balance sheet sheet instruments received Net amount
BEET AEET AEET  BROET B¥OErT  BNEET
HK$’m HK$’m HK$’'m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m
BE Assets
rTEEm T A Derivative financial
instruments 34,870 - 34,870 (19,867) (3,326) 11,677
ISAEEL Reverse repurchase
agreements 2,764 - 2,764 (2,764) - -
& A58 otk Securities borrowing
agreements 2,200 - 2,200 (2,200) - -
HAth &z Other assets 13,384 (9,213) 4171 - - 4,171
53,218 (9,213) 44,005 (24,831) (3,326) 15,848
2018
NEEER RENEEEFRT
TS R S
EfET R NEEE®E Related amounts
_ HEME  FPYORAY  not set off in the balance
ERER R Gross SRIGEFEE sheet
AfR4aE amounts of Net amounts
Gross recognised of financial [Stii%iivd
amounts of financial liabilities HEH T
recognised assets set presented in SRTH Cash
financial offinthe the balance Financial collateral FREE
liabilities balance sheet sheet instruments pledged Net amount
BEEET HEEET BEEHERT  AYEER  BMEET  BYEER
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
=t Liabilities
ITESRMTE Derivative financial
instruments 30,594 - 30,594 (19,867) (2,107) 8,620
[EliEae=s Repurchase
agreements 25,617 - 25,617 (25,617) - -
Hith & & Other liabilities 9,907 (9,213) 694 - - 694
66,118 (9,213) 56,905 (45,484) (2,107) 9,314
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45. &R T H 2 K8H () 45. Offsetting financial instruments (continued)

BE
PTESRT R
[Z 15 [ s
B AR itk
HAth e
=
TSR TR
I ot
Hitt& A

Assets

Derivative financial
instruments

Reverse repurchase
agreements

Securities borrowing
agreements

Other assets

Liabilities
Derivative financial
instruments
Repurchase
agreements
Other liabilities

AR T A BN A L
5~ BRI R E AL

ZhHY A ERGEELA

finesk - s S

BB HAMESRER B - H
Al —2 Z ¥ T 2 M RH S 88 AT BT

PRS-

2017
NEEAR KAENEEABER
FHIEHEZ RS 2 AE R A
EERY WEEAE Related amounts
A fEAEE FHF5RAY  not set off in the balance
CHE R Gross  <RlE T4 sheet
BN amounts of  Net amounts
Gross recognised of financial BEUgEL
amounts of financial assets PR
recognised liabilities set  presented in SR T A Cash
financial off in the the balance Financial collateral JREE
assets  balance sheet sheet instruments received  Net amount
AREEET FELETEE: ST AHSEETT AEETT  EBEET BEEET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
33,533 - 33,533 (23,111) (4,481) 5,941
9,012 - 9,012 (9,012) - -
2,503 - 2,503 (2,503) - -
17,432 (10,545) 6,887 - - 6,887
62,480 (10,545) 51,935 (34,626) (4,481) 12,828
2017
NEEAR KANEEAMER
FPREE 55 2 AERE %
ErE SR NEEEE Related amounts
B HELGEE RPN not set off in the balance
[ Gross <RIEFEFH sheet
=t enks] amounts of  Net amounts
Gross recognised of financial [ i
amounts of financial liabilities IS4
recognised assets set  presented in LR E Cash
financial off in the the balance Financial collateral JHEE
liabilities  balance sheet sheet _instruments pledged  Net amount
A EETT AHEEETT AEEETT AEEETT  BYEET SEET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
30,899 - 30,899 (23,111) (616) 7172
14,477 - 14,477 (14,477) - -
11,265 (10,545) 720 - - 720
56,641 (10,545) 46,096 (37,588) (616) 7,892

For master netting agreements of OTC derivative, sale and repurchase and securities

lending and borrowing transactions entered into by the Group, related amounts with the

same counterparty can be offset if an event of default or other predetermined events occur.
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48.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

46.

47.

48.

Assets pledged as security

As at 31 December 2018, the liabilities of the Group amounting to HK$11,891 million (2017:
HK$11,111 million) were secured by assets deposited with central depositories to facilitate
settlement operations. In addition, the liabilities of the Group amounting to HK$65,617
million (2017: HK$14,477 million) were secured by debt securities related to sale and
repurchase arrangements. The amount of assets pledged by the Group to secure these
liabilities was HK$78,230 million (2017: HK$26,002 million) mainly included in “Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss” and “Investment in securities”.

Transfers of financial assets

The transferred financial assets of the Group below that do not qualify for derecognition are
debt securities held by counterparties as collateral under sale and repurchase agreements.

2018 2017
EEREE &R TS & islEa=tisy
HRIEE FREE WRTAME WRIAIE
Carrying Carrying Carrying Carrying
amount of amount of amount of amount of
transferred associated transferred associated
assets liabilities assets liabilities
BEEETT HEEEETT A EHETT BT ET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$'m HK$'m

Repurchase

agreements 26,079 25,617 14,767 14,477

Loans to directors

Particulars of loans made to directors of the Bank pursuant to section 383 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits
of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

2018 2017
AEWEEET BEEET
HK$’'m HK$'m
Aggregate amount of relevant transactions outstanding
at year end - 5
Maximum aggregate amount of relevant transactions
outstanding during the year - 877
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49. FEHFRE AR5 49. Significant related party transactions
chE A RS R A e i

) HeEHEAEFR
ESIREAREEAE E interests.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The Group is subject to the control of the State Council of the PRC Government through
FEEEARSEEAT( f China Investment Corporation (“CIC”), its wholly-owned subsidiary Central
Investment Ltd. (“Central Huijin”), and BOC in which Central Huijin has controlling equity

Huijin

& DRSS
TEISRTT > EAEE T
il °

(CR=SYNEIY-ES NSk

(a) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies controlled by the

ZEHAMATETHRR S parent companies
BEAEINEEARE R General information of the parent companies:

A G ] 57 o [ SR AT
il o b BRI T
PEREANE] > IR RAY
EHEMEAE - i
SRR BINEE I EE
HEBNEAEE D
H] o

Ve B R L A B AR Y
HRATETIRE -

ARG AR IR S T
BEE AR TIN TSRS
Ko AREERK - %

REREWETHELS) -

KEBSr BLH E SR THET T
A SR B B TS
B - 32 2018 4 12 A
31 H » REEHEEEN
R E PR SRT TR E A
BRI Ry s s 1,588.65
@t (2017 4 : B
1,865.48 BT ) BB
1,375.62 f&5¢ (2017
4RI 603.85 (9T ) ©
HZE 2018 4 12 A 31
HIEFRE » BESRTT
AL AR
LRI A R S AR 5T
T Fs WG 28.77 {ZIT
(2017 45 : 5 23.20
8T ) B 5.81 f@oT
(2017 £ : 3&#% 4.59
&) »

B o SR T P2 2 HeAt
AN FEAFREARL S ©

The Group is controlled by BOC. Central Huijin is the controlling entity of BOC, and it is
a wholly-owned subsidiary of CIC which is a wholly state-owned company engaging in
foreign currency investment management.

Central Huijin has controlling equity interests in certain other entities in the PRC.

The Group enters into banking transactions with these entities in the normal course of
business which include loans, investment securities and money market transactions.

The majority of transactions with BOC arise from money market activities. As at 31
December 2018, the related aggregate amounts due from and to BOC of the Group
were HK$158,865 million (2017: HK$186,548 million) and HK$137,562 million (2017:
HK$60,385 million) respectively. The aggregate amounts of income and expenses of
the Group arising from these transactions with BOC for the year ended 31 December
2018 were HK$2,877 million (2017: HK$2,320 million) and HK$581 million (2017:
HK$459 million) respectively.

Transactions with other companies controlled by BOC are not considered material.
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49. T HEHE A 1355 49. Significant related party transactions (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(b) Transactions with government authorities, agencies, affiliates and other state
controlled entities

The Group is subject to the control of the State Council of the PRC Government
through CIC and Central Huijin, which also directly or indirectly controls a significant
number of entities through its government authorities, agencies, affiliates and other
state controlled entities. The Group enters into banking transactions with government
authorities, agencies, affiliates and other state controlled entities in the normal course
of business at commercial terms.

These transactions include, but are not limited to, the following:

- lending, provision of credits and guarantees, and deposit taking;

- inter-bank balance taking and placing;

- sales, purchases, underwriting and redemption of bonds issued by other state
controlled entities;

- rendering of foreign exchange, remittance and investment related services;

- provision of fiduciary activities; and

- purchase of utilities, transport, telecommunication and postage services.
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49. FEEFRE AL 5 49. Significant related party transactions (continued)
(&)

(c) HBENT - A8 hE (c) Summary of transactions entered into during the ordinary course of business
BHEAMAWEALEE with associates, joint ventures and other related parties
EEBEENET IR
SR
BREEE > B\ E] The aggregate income/expenses and balances arising from related party transactions
GBS R H A R with associates, joint ventures and other related parties of the Group are summarised
NTZp  BRE AL as follows:
LG iR S A
S R AR BRI LA T
2018 2017
AR EET AEEET
HK$’'m HK$'m
UasRE H Income statement items
/AN Associates
- IRE R4 - Fee and commission expenses
H 11 36
- HAhg s T - Other operating expenses 82 72
HAt AR AL Other related parties
- IR E B4 - Fee and commission income
A 11 10
EEABEREE Balance sheet item
= g/N=i| Associates
- HAWIRTE R4 - Other accounts and provisions
# 7 4
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(&)

(d) EERRBAR

FHESEAREER
LhRE R A
HESI R A~ 45
HREEREER L
A EfEESE S
EHAR - AREETELE
WEBTERTEH
5 N BT R [ £
RS EEME -
AR ER A
A4 A B A IRAT e
ERAE L EEHEE
AN BB AR AL
HEITEAN S -

TESEAREE 12
A 31 B #
wr -

FrBH R E A A T
A

(e) HEIHBATIHIESER

2018412 A 31 H>
AIRATIEHH M
T o 2 — R S R EK
HELT 32 5 e A B UK
e JE AT I I8 2 =Rk IR
OB oy A R B W
115.91 {f7T (2017 4
R 115.76 (BI0) K
HEWE 24.84 (551.(2017
o W 26.64 fRIT)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(d) Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly,
including directors and senior management. The Group accepts deposits from and
grants loans and credit facilities to key management personnel in the ordinary course
of business. During both the current and prior years, no material transaction was
conducted with key management personnel of the Bank and its holding companies, as
well as parties related to them.

The compensation of key management personnel for the year ended 31 December is
detailed as follows:

2018 2017
EREEET A EETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
Salaries and other short-term employee
benefits 45 48

(e) Balances with subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2018, the aggregate sums of amounts due from subsidiaries and
amounts due to subsidiaries of the Bank arising from transactions entered into during
the normal course of business at commercial terms are HK$11,591 million (2017:
HK$11,576 million) and HK$2,484 million (2017: HK$2,664 million) respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

50. International claims

LI o3t /52 B A BRI
TGt 2 B ERHE
FBEEE R I 4R - BUFE
R IR S B T AT
AR ERS R DA %
T S R R HE
oy HEERERERTA R
W 2 PSSR T R A
SRR - U MR

The below analysis is prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA
return of international banking statistics. International claims are exposures to
counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies based on the locations of the counterparties
after taking into account the transfer of risk, and represent the sum of cross-border claims
in all currencies and local claims in foreign currencies. For a claim guaranteed by a party
situated in a location different from the counterparty, the risk will be transferred to the
location of the guarantor. For a claim on an overseas branch of a bank whose head office is
located in another location, the risk will be transferred to the location where its head office
is located.

NFHER B 5 TP AE
AR > RIS 2
ERNZ PR, © 5 {EHE
JBHAT 2N TT > HE
b RS BT 2 48
TR -

AEEEERIEIZ s
HEsT R g & Ak
PAEMEAEAE 10%E 0L |

Claims on individual countries/regions, after risk transfer, amounting to 10% or more of the
aggregate international claims of the Group are shown as follows:

BT
2018
FERITRANAEEE
Non-bank private sector
JEERAT B
SRS JERL
BTt Non-bank AR
5147 Official financial Non-financial 4=t
Banks sector institutions private sector Total
EREET EREET AREETT AREET EREET
HK$’'m HK$’m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
B Y HE Mainland of China 327,997 361,168 14,350 128,308 831,823
T Hong Kong 7,853 - 31,464 304,771 344,088
2017
FEERITRAARE
Non-bank private sector
JRIRTT B
R Bl
BT Non-bank LN 15
T Official financial Non-financial 4zt
Banks sector institutions _ private sector Total
BHEEET M E T AHEET AHEEETT AHEEETT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
B Y HE Mainland of China 394,631 94,624 19,517 132,299 641,071
Tk Hong Kong 10,452 - 13,586 300,148 324,186
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

51. Non-bank Mainland exposures

The analysis of non-bank Mainland exposures is based on the categories of non-bank
counterparties and the types of direct exposures with reference to the completion
instructions for the HKMA return of Mainland activities, which includes the Mainland
exposures extended by BOCHK’s Hong Kong office only.

Central government, central
government-owned entities and their
subsidiaries and joint ventures

Local governments, local
government-owned entities and their
subsidiaries and joint ventures

PRC nationals residing in Mainland
or other entities incorporated in
Mainland and their subsidiaries and
joint ventures

Other entities of central government
not reported in item 1 above

Other entities of local governments not
reported in item 2 above

PRC nationals residing outside
Mainland or entities incorporated
outside Mainland where the credit is
granted for use in Mainland

Other counterparties where the
exposures are considered to be
non-bank Mainland exposures

Total

Total assets after provision

On-balance sheet exposures as
percentage of total assets
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2018
BEAM BEAM
BER AN FINT
HEIEE b BRI
ltems in On-balance Off-balance & fEEE
the HKMA sheet sheet Total
return exposure exposure exposure
BEEHETL BYEERL ABA¥EEL
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
1 292,682 37,793 330,475
2 60,506 13,060 73,566
3 93,286 18,961 112,247
4 27,618 630 28,248
5 88 - 88
6 70,926 8,677 79,603
7 2,214 379 2,593
8 547,320 79,500 626,820
9 2,752,643
10 19.88%
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Central government, central
government-owned entities and their
subsidiaries and joint ventures

Local governments, local
government-owned entities and their
subsidiaries and joint ventures

PRC nationals residing in Mainland
or other entities incorporated in
Mainland and their subsidiaries and
joint ventures

Other entities of central government
not reported in item 1 above

Other entities of local governments not
reported in item 2 above

PRC nationals residing outside
Mainland or entities incorporated
outside Mainland where the credit is
granted for use in Mainland

Other counterparties where the
exposures are considered to be
non-bank Mainland exposures

Total

Total assets after provision

On-balance sheet exposures as
percentage of total assets
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51. Non-bank Mainland exposures (continued)

2017
HEAMR HEAMR
SER LA FIMNY
HHEIEE RREE RS
ltems in On-balance  Off-balance  4&J&E\[G&IE
the HKMA sheet sheet Total
return exposure exposure exposure
B ETT AEEHET  BEEHET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
1 277,878 46,003 323,881
2 67,154 11,268 78,422
3 53,490 11,078 64,568
4 29,972 1,029 31,001
5 - - -
6 75,825 21,261 97,086
7 2,624 828 3,452
8 506,943 91,467 598,410
9 2,445,769
10 20.73%
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(a) Balance sheet

As at 31 December

ASSETS

Cash and balances and placements with banks
and other financial institutions

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Derivative financial instruments

Hong Kong SAR Government certificates of
indebtedness

Advances and other accounts

Investment in securities

Interests in subsidiaries

Interests in associates and joint ventures

Investment properties

Properties, plant and equipment

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Hong Kong SAR currency notes in circulation

Deposits and balances from banks and other
financial institutions

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss

Derivative financial instruments

Deposits from customers

Debt securities and certificates of deposit in
issue

Other accounts and provisions

Current tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Subordinated liabilities

Total liabilities
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52. Balance sheet and statement of changes in equity

2018 2017
AEEET AW EETT
HK$’m HK$'m
419,614 412,771
276,679 49,752
34,954 33,615
156,300 146,200
1,258,222 1,171,206
537,046 574,640
8,568 8,566

8 8

21,340 21,174
47,043 45,021

8 7

31,597 30,444
2,791,379 2,493,404
156,300 146,200
374,038 219,445
15,535 19,720
30,812 30,980
1,875,178 1,758,846
9,453 21,641
44,114 37,463
2,293 4,003
5,253 5,215
13,246 18,980
2,526,222 2,262,493




©)

¥ & 4t (m ) HmAT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

BRI (8D

52. BERQARKIERSE
xR (&)

(a) BERER (8

K12H31H

'R
EEZN
e

AT SR (S AA

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

52. Balance sheet and statement of changes in equity (continued)

(a) Balance sheet (continued)

As at 31 December 2018 2017
AEEHET AREETT
HK$’'m HK$'m

EQUITY
Share capital 43,043 43,043
Reserves 198,638 187,868

Capital and reserves attributable to equity

it holders of the Bank 241,681 230,911
HAth e T E Other equity instruments 23,476 -
BEARYEE Total equity 265,157 230,911
B AR Total liabilities and equity 2,791,379 2,493,404
KEHEEFN 201943 H Approved by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2019 and signed on behalf of the Board
29 HimBZ e DT by:

ANEREES
BEPasE CHEN Siging =307 GAO Yingxin

HF Director

HFH Director
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

52. Balance sheet and statement of changes in equity (continued)

(b) HEZSEEEIR (b) Statement of changes in equity
(et
Reserves
ke
FHATHE
BTh
_ Reserve for
IR fair value
EifE#  changes of
R Premises available- BB B EOfEEE HFEA
Share revaluation for-sale Regulatory  Translation Merger Retained 4Gt
capital reserve securities reserve® reserve reserve** earnings Total
BEEET  BREADT  BWESDT  BWEEDT BWEADT  BREEDT OBEEET EREEDT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
#2017 F£1 H 1 HZ FHAFIER At 1 January 2017, as
previously reported 43,043 32,218 (1,805) 9,010 (285) 1,071 130,908 214,160
Gtz EE . TS Effect of merger of entities
under common control - - - - (59) 1,062 183 1,186
#2017 21 H 1 HZ &5 At 1 January 2017, as restated 43,043 32,218 (1,805) 9,010 (344) 2,133 131,091 215,346
FEFERSH Profit for the year - - - - - - 32,853 32,853
HAth 2 HE Other comprehensive income:
R Premises - 1,702 - - - - - 1,702
At Available-for-sale securities - - 105 - - - - 105
BB Currency translation
difference - - (57) - (U] - - (64)
e Emt] Total comprehensive income - 1,702 48 - ) - 32,853 34,596
Uit 7 R B Acquisition of entities under
common control - - - - - (3,622) - (3,622)
TS E R B F Transfer from retained
earnings - - - 1,120 - 2,551 (3,671) -
i Dividends - - - - - - (15,409) (15,409)
#2017 412 531 H At 31 December 2017 43,043 33,920 (1,757) 10,130 (351) 1,062 144,864 230,911
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FA2018 41 1 HZ R
HAFIAR

TS
EEk%a 7 ]

22018 41 H 1 H  #f
BB TR SRR
5 95k%

Sl

Hfth ST ¢

DUAPEE RS AR
TS 2
IR

BRI

PRI B AN PAE
A AL
RETH i

i

IEFERIH

JERTHRIR
R[] 5 s DL

SALET A IR Z S

A w

o4

JERITIH
Wi sz L B
A A
FATEAAE TR
i35

2018 12 531 H

At 1 January 2018, as
previously reported

Effect of merger of entities
under common control

At 1 January 2018, as
restated

Effect of adoption of
HKFRS 9

At 1 January 2018, after
adoption of HKFRS 9

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive
income:
Premises
Equity instruments at fair
value through other
comprehensive income
Own credit risk
Debt instruments at fair
value through other
comprehensive income
Currency translation
difference

Total comprehensive
income

Release upon disposal of
equity instruments at fair
value through other
comprehensive income:
Transfer
Deferred tax
Current tax

Release upon redemption
of financial liabilities
designated at fair value
through profit or loss:
Transfer
Current tax

Acquisition of entities
under common control

Transfer from retained
earnings

Issue of other equity
instruments

Dividends

At 31 December 2018

* PR E AT 30 9t BRI B
HAERIE 9 SR EREEHUBRE RS -
EEERE R E RN ESE
A TEERA T — A 2 I B FE AR ARk
SRHAMA TR -

* GOHEREYIR G B2 I E R 2 E R TR
affgstRBmEL -

(b) Statement of changes in equity (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

52. Balance sheet and statement of changes in equity (continued)

i
Reserves

AT

WEGER

TR E

B ATE

B

Reserve for

fair value

changes/

Reserve for HEEE
BE fair value TR At
EfEEEE changesof  Reserve BHETH

jeA  Premises  available- forown EXEGEET  WERE SOHEET EEERF Other  EALE
Share revaluation for-sale credit Regulatory Translation Merger  Retained 25 equity Total
capital reserve securities risk reserve* reserve  reserve** earnings Total instruments equity
AWEET BYOET BYOET AWOET AWDET AWOHT BWOET ANOET A%OET BWOET A%OET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
43,043 33,920 (1,757) - 10,130 (292) - 144,588 229,632 - 229,632
- - - - - (59) 1,062 276 1,279 - 1,279
43,043 33,920 (1,757) - 10,130 (351) 1,062 144,864 230,911 - 230,911
- - 854 - (725) - - (2,521) (2,392) - (2,392)
43,043 33,920 (903) - 9,405 (351) 1,062 142,343 228,519 - 228,519
- - - - - - - 30,917 30,917 - 30,917
- 1,687 - - - - - - 1,687 - 1,687
- - 11 - - - - - 11 - 1
- - - 25 - - - - 25 - 25
- - (1,377) - - - - - (1,377) - (1,377)
- - 27 - - (74) - - (47) - (47)
- 1,687 (1,339) 25 - (74) - 30,917 31,216 - 31,216
- - 16 - - - - (16) - - -
- - @® - - - - - @® - ®
- - - - - - - 3 3 - 3
- - - (20) - - - 20 - - -
- - - - - - - ® ©) - ®
- - - - - - (2,168) - (2,168) - (2,168)
- - - - 1,028 - 1,106 (2,134) - - -
- - - - - - - - - 23,476 23,476
- - - - - - - (15,883) (15,883) - (15,883)
43,043 35,607 (2,229) 5 10,433 (425) - 155,247 241,681 23,476 265,157

* In accordance with the requirements of the HKMA, the amounts are set aside for general banking risks, including future

losses or other unforeseeable risks, in addition to the loan impairment allowances recognised under HKAS 39/HKFRS 9.

** Merger reserve was arising on the application of merger accounting method in relation to the combination with entities

under common control.
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

53. Principal subsidiaries

The particulars of all direct and indirect subsidiaries of the Bank are set out in “Appendix —
Subsidiaries of the Bank”. The following is a list of principal subsidiaries as at 31 December

IRITZ A E] - Y 2018 2018:
12 7 31 QZ £ @D
EFIRAE -
R Sk

e

Name

Place of
incorporation

EETRA

Issued share capital

FrAfER

and operation Interest held

FEER

Principal activities

FEREHR (B AR
A

BOC Credit Card
(International) Limited

RS AR PERE B ERTT
Bank of China (Malaysia)
Berhad

HHEIERTT (ZED) BEAER
|

Bank of China (Thai) Public
Company Limited

BAEF HEARAE
Po Sang Securities and
Futures Limited

& 480,000,000 #r 100%
Hong Kong HK$480,000,000
FE2KPEEE 760,518,480 100%
Malaysia AR
RM760,518,480
BB 10,000,000,000 Z=gk #100%
Thailand Baht10,000,000,000
& 335,000,000 T *100%
Hong Kong HK$335,000,000

SRR

Credit card services

AT

Banking business

AT

Banking business

o R EE
Securities and
futures brokerage

FORSTE R 99.99%H 75 R
PERFA 0.01%M(5

* RSRTRI R A

#99.99% of the shares held directly and 0.01% of the shares held indirectly by the Bank.

* Shares held indirectly by the Bank
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

54. Application of merger accounting

On 29 January 2018, the Philippines Business and the Vietnam Business were transferred
from BOC to BOCHK for a total consideration of HK$853 million and HK$1,315 million in
cash respectively. The Philippines Business, the Vietham Business and BOCHK are all
under the common control of BOC before and after the combination. The Group has applied
the merger accounting method in accordance with the Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger
Accounting for Common Control Combinations” issued by the HKICPA in the preparation of
financial statements. The comparative amounts have been restated accordingly as if the
Philippines Business and the Vietnam Business had always been carried out by the Group.

The statements
follows:

of the adjustments to the consolidated equity as at 31 December are as

2018
RALEERH]
=350 ZEN abfk
Before Entities under Bikg After
combination common control Adjustment combination
BAREET BEEET EREET BEEET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
FREA Share capital 43,043 1,062 (1,062) 43,043
K= 0] Merger reserve - - (1,106) (1,106)
HFER R EAM LR Retained earnings
and other reserves 200,268 279 - 200,547
243,311 1,341 (2,168) 242,484
Hu e T A Other equity
instruments 23,476 - - 23,476
JEPEHIRE 25 Non-controlling
interests 278 - - 278
267,065 1,341 (2,168) 266,238
2017
2R [EEH]
&l ZHH &tk
Before Entities under e After
combination common control Adjustment combination
BHEEET AEEETT BEEET AEET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
;5 &N Share capital 43,043 1,062 (1,062) 43,043
GO Merger reserve - - 1,062 1,062
BEEA R M B  Retained earnings
and other reserves 186,373 217 - 186,590
229,416 1,279 - 230,695
IR Non-controlling
interests 271 - - 271
229,687 1,279 - 230,966
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

55. Ultimate holding company

The Group is subject to the control of the State Council of the PRC Government through
China Investment Corporation, its wholly-owned subsidiary Central Huijin Investment Ltd.
(“Central Huijin”), and BOC in which Central Huijin has controlling equity interests.

56. Comparative amounts

In respect of the transfer of the Philippines Business and the Vietnam Business from BOC
on 29 January 2018 as explained in Note 54, the Group has applied merger accounting
method for the business combination under common control. Comparative amounts in the
financial statements have been restated as if the Philippines Business and the Vietnam
Business had always been carried out by the Group.

57. Events after the balance sheet date

As stated in the BOCHK (Holdings)'s announcement dated 28 December 2018, all of the
conditions precedent set out in the Agreement entered into between BOCHK and BOC
were satisfied or, as appropriate, waived and completion of the transfer of the Branch
Interests in Bank of China Limited, Vientiane Branch in Laos took place on 21 January
2019 pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Agreement. Upon completion, BOC
Vientiane Branch became a branch owned by BOCHK, and all the Branch Interests were
held by BOCHK, pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Agreement.

58. Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
on 29 March 2019.
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E RS S Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information
M B ER
1. BSEHEE 1. Regulatory Disclosures

WL PR [ K E N 2 B The Regulatory Disclosures, together with the disclosures in this Annual Report, contained
% OEYISEEEM (38 all the disclosures required by the Banking (Disclosure) Rules issued by the HKMA. The
7% (BEEE) AN ZRAFT Regulatory Disclosures is available under the section “Regulatory Disclosures” on
FiveE - BB TNEEE  BOCHK's website at www.bochk.com.

JE4EE www.bochk.com Hif B4

EPEE ) —ERREE -

KER BB B iR R A This Annual Report and the Regulatory Disclosures are prepared according to the Group’s
B MG B ECR RS - 7% disclosure policy. The disclosure policy sets out a robust mechanism for the Group’s
WER R E L —E#4nt%  disclosures of financial information on a legitimate and compliant basis. It depicts the
H o AEETEEHAIENT - B principles and internal control measures to ensure the timeliness, fairess, accuracy,
BAEENMBEE - ST integrity, completeness and legitimacy of financial disclosures.

S TS 4R SR A D R R PN S 2

T RIS 92 R HY R R 4

NN - BN - HEE - 52

BMERIGHIE -
2. EeEE 2. Risk management
YHEE Overview

AEEES BFNERRBEHEZE  The Group believes that sound risk management is crucial to the success of any organisation.
RERINESZTE - EHE In its daily operation, the Group attaches a high degree of importance to risk management and
zh > ANEE S EE AR emphasises that a balance must be struck between risk control and business development.
T R RS B 2 R The principal types of risk inherent in the Group’s businesses are credit risk, interest rate risk,
SFE 2 R ONEEUS S - A market risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, reputation risk, legal and compliance risk, and
EEBNFENERBEKEE  strategic risk. The Group’s risk management objective is to enhance shareholder value by
SR ~ IR E R ~ TS E R maintaining risk exposures within acceptable limits. The Group has a defined risk appetite
mEhE R - ERERERRE - E statement approved by the Board, which is an expression of the types and level of risk that the
B~ AR AR R R Group is willing to take in a controllable way in order to achieve its business goals and to meet
& JES: - AR E R R S H the expectations of its stakeholders. For details of the Group’s risk management governance
LR R E A EE structure, please refer to Note 4 to the Financial Statements.

Tl O Ja g 42 A mT 32 32 /Y 7K1

ZW o REEKFLERGEF

LB LB s e ot » R AR

B e T PR R R T PR

RIEN R R BIEE > DT

S o e B A B F 2 A

FAZHYIASE o 7 R A SR 3 b

EHE G AR - 5

SBHRERNTES -
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Feekzz=t > Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)
M BER (&)
2. EfEE (&) 2. Risk management (continued)

EEmREEE Credit risk management

EEREEREFSRZ S EHF Credit risk is the risk of loss that a customer or counterparty is unable to or unwilling to meet
REENAFEETEER LM its contractual obligations. Credit risk exists in the trading book and banking book, as well as
SRR IR o AREEAS from on- and off-balance sheet transactions of the Group. It arises principally from lending,
GHERFISRITIR ~ UNEEAE trade finance and treasury businesses. For details of the Group’s Credit Risk Management,
FENFIFRINZ AL G1ETETE  please refer to Note 4.1 to the Financial Statements.

JEfg - EEREBTEEREGEES -

HEBRE R E T - ARA

FEEERREE Y FFHE

o BRI B ERERNEE4.1 -

TG RREE Market risk management

mi5E R RN SR IS E Market risk refers to the risk of loss arising from movements in the value of foreign
& (PER -~ FIIZ « RrEE(EFR - exchange, interest rate, equity and commodity positions held by the Group due to the
P ERS ) IEERSR TINE volatility of financial market price (foreign exchange rate, interest rate, equity price,
FIZR ~ P EERIpE LA (E I commodity price). The Group adopts a moderate market risk appetite to achieve a balance
SEbIM AT RESA AN B HE AR AR between risk and return. For details of the Group’s Market Risk Management, please refer to
Je o REERFUETRRREME ~ Note 4.2 to the Financial Statements.

befmir - EHE b LR AT

oy - HRAASEE TS E

ZEFHHERE » 55 RS R

4.2 -
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

2. Risk management (continued)

THEEREE (%)

AL B BRI e (R — i
i b 3 B e 2
BENEREHEABRE -
AEF RS AR EE
B ] S
LU K 24 FE S i S5 BB Iy
28 > 5IH9%E E/KFET
B KA BT 42 B i 1 R
BB E bR o W
TE A B N 25 I S e 1 e
P {EPRES -

G ] B [ 0 st
b (A5 7Y éjri“%ﬂ’]:ﬁﬁ?’é
M o BEHEEEE S
H ﬁifhjﬂ&z%%‘ﬂ’ﬂﬂ&zﬁ%{
FEA T —(E% 5 H it 18 to ks
BRI E S K EEIEIE
HiEb#g - —f&iME - 1£99%
BEAKFET  FES12(8H
P 145 0 e 5% 1 e i 4
R o TEFIRA SRR (E
BLE R IR s Lk 2 ol BE
G -

BEEET
HKD Million
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Market risk management (continued)

The Group uses the VAR to measure and report general market risks to the Risk Committee
(“RMC”) and senior management on a periodic basis. The Group adopts a uniformed VAR
calculation model, using a historical simulation approach and two years of historical market
data, to calculate the VAR of the Group and subsidiaries over a one-day holding period with
a 99% confidence level, and sets up the VAR limit of the Group and subsidiaries.

The Group adopts back-testing to measure the accuracy of VAR model results. The
back-testing compares the calculated VAR figure of market risk positions of each business
day with the actual and hypothetical gains or losses arising from those positions on the next
business day. Generally speaking, the number of back-testing exceptions in a rolling
12-month period will not exceed four times, given a 99% confidence level. The graph below
shows the back-testing result of the VAR against actual gains or losses of the Group.

2018F HRERERIE
Daily Back-testing in 2018

|‘ IIIII“

||||l|l| I |||| || "

WRT R T

20 —
A0 P~ A e i N YN A NN
-EF??E@ JERR (E
Actual gains or losses VAR

2018fﬁWIEIEE>‘E S
™ REETHIRERERS
?E%fi 8 R (B B -

There was one actual loss exceeding the VAR for the Group in 2018 as shown in the
back-testing results.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

2. Risk management (continued)

Fl=EpRE

HIR A e A ZROKF -
HEAFIRGEEERE

W g MK (B (B R AR R Y
JEUBg: o A B )3 LB R
EEIREEEIERE - &
REVERT B HY £ 2R R b 5
B R ZRE TR ~ FlIZREE
A ~ Wiz i 4R U B
PR - AR AL
FR s 2 SR EDR
H RN 4.2

REE SR EE

BN R F AT A
DIEH A K IR R A
& EATEI IR -
AR B B R (R AR B <
J\f s > TEPRAE IEH H 0
BRI ST A RE R At
FRIE ~ WSEM R SR FL B2k
T mRREE TR R ¢ AE
Ml = T ER TS
HIRENMESCR - Ry
SR IEE > AT EAPREEEA
SENREI AR -
ARAEERIE e ERE
HUZ SARER - 55 A
FIEE4.3 -

BREm bR EE

ERIE RSB R S 8H
HREANEREF - AB > &
&> DURSIMNER AT IE AR
KAV - B0F RS R
BRI R (EERET > B
SEETE HF EREEE
H R

Interest rate risk management

Interest rate risk means the risks to a bank’s earnings and economic value arising from
movements in interest rate and term structures of the bank’s asset and liability positions.
The Group’s interest rate risk exposures are mainly structural. The major types of interest
rate risk from structural positions are repricing risk, basis risk, yield curve risk and option
risk. For details of the Group’s Interest Rate Risk Management, please refer to Note 4.2 to
the Financial Statements.

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that banks may not be able to obtain sufficient and timely funding at
reasonable cost to meet their obligations as they fall due. The Group maintains sound
liquidity risk appetite to provide stable, reliable and adequate sources of cash to meet
liquidity needs under normal circumstances or stressed scenarios; and to survive with net
positive cumulative cash flow in extreme scenarios, without requesting the HKMA to act as
the lender of last resort. For details of the Group’s Liquidity Risk Management, please refer
to Note 4.3 to the Financial Statements.

Operational risk management
Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal process, people

and system, or from external events. The risk is inherent in every aspect of business
operations and confronted by the Group in its day-to-day operational activities.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

2. Risk management (continued)
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Operational risk management (continued)

The Group has implemented the “Three Lines of Defence” for its operational risk
management. All departments or functional units as the first line of defence are the first
parties responsible for operational risk management, and carry out the duties and functions
of self risk control in the process of business operation through self assessment and self
enhancement. The Legal & Compliance and Operational Risk Management Department
(“LCO”), together with certain specialist functional units in relation to operational risk
management within the Group, including the Human Resources Department, Information
Technology Department, Corporate Services Department, Financial Crime Compliance
Department, Financial Management Department, Treasury and General Accounting &
Accounting Policy Department (collectively known as “specialist functional units”), are the
second line of defence. They are responsible for assessing and monitoring the operational
risk conditions in the first line of defence, and providing them with guidance. The LCO, being
independent from the business units, is responsible for assisting the Management in
managing the Group’s operational risk, including the establishment and review of the
operational risk management policy and framework, designing the operational risk
management tools and reporting mechanism, and assessing and reporting the overall
operational risk position to the Management and RMC. Specialist functional units are
required to carry out their managerial duties of the second line of defence with respect to
some specific aspects of operational risk and its related issues. Besides taking charge of
operational risk management in their own units, these units are also required to provide
other units with professional advice/training in respect of certain operational risk categories
and to lead the group-wide operational risk management. Group Audit is the third line of
defence which provides independent assessment to the effectiveness and adequacy of the
operational risk management framework and is required to conduct periodic audit of the
operational risk management activities of various departments or functional units within the
Group regarding their compliance and effectiveness and to put forward recommendations
for remedial actions.
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2. Risk management (continued)
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Operational risk management (continued)

The Group has put in place an effective internal control process which requires the
establishment of policies and control procedures for all the key activities. The Group adheres
to the fundamental principle of proper segregation of duties and authorisation. The Group
adopts various operational risk management tools or methodologies such as key risk
indicators, self-assessment, operational risk events reporting and review to identify, assess,
monitor and control the risks inherent in business activities and products, as well as
purchase of insurance to mitigate unforeseeable operational risks. Business continuity plans
are established to support business operations in the event of an emergency or disaster.
Adequate backup facilities are maintained and periodic drills are conducted.

Reputation risk management

Reputation risk is the risk that negative publicity about the Group’s business practices,
whether genuine or not, will cause a potential decline in the customer base, or lead to costly
litigation or revenue decrease. Reputation risk is inherent in other types of risk and every
aspect of business operation and covers a wide spectrum of issues.

In order to mitigate reputation risk, the Group has formulated and duly followed its
Reputation Risk Management Policy. The policy aims to identify and prevent reputation risk
proactively at an early stage when an incident occurs. Since reputation risk is often caused
by various types of operational and strategic issues that negatively impact the trust and
perception of the Group, all operational and key risks identified are assessed through the
established Key Control Self-Assessment framework, including risk assessment tools, to
evaluate the severity of their impact on the Group, including the damage to reputation.
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2. Risk management (continued)
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Reputation risk management (continued)

In addition, the Group has put in place a comprehensive framework to continuously monitor
reputation risk incidents in the financial industry. This continuous monitoring enables the
Group to effectively manage, control and mitigate any potential adverse impact from an
incident. The Group also adopts robust disclosure practices to keep our stakeholders
informed at all times, which helps build confidence in the Group and establish a strong public
image.

Legal and compliance risk management

Legal risk is the risk that unenforceable contracts, lawsuits or adverse judgments may
disrupt or otherwise negatively affect the operations or financial conditions of the Group.
Compliance risk is the risk of legal or regulatory sanctions, financial losses or losses in
reputation the Group may suffer as a result of its failure to comply with applicable laws and
regulations. Legal and compliance risks are managed by the LCO, while the risks related to
money laundering, terrorist financing and financial crimes including bribery and corruption
are independently managed and monitored by the Financial Crime Compliance Department
(“FCC”). Both LCO and FCC report directly to the CRO. As part of the Group’s corporate
governance framework, the policies for the management of legal and compliance risks, and
money laundering, terrorist financing and financial crime compliance risks are approved by
the RMC as delegated by the Board.
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2. Risk management (continued)
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Strategic risk management

Strategic risk generally refers to the risks that may cause current or future negative impacts
on the earnings, or capital or reputation or market position of the Group because of poor
business decisions, improper implementation of strategies and inadequacies in the
response to the changing market condition. The Board reviews and approves the strategic
risk management policy. Key strategic issues have to be fully evaluated and properly
endorsed by the senior management and the Board.

The Group regularly reviews its business strategies to cope with the latest market situation
and developments.

Capital management

The major objective of the Group’s capital management is to maximise total shareholders’
return while maintaining a capital adequacy position in relation to the Group’s overall risk
profile. The ALCO periodically reviews the Group’s capital structure and adjusts the capital
mix where appropriate to maintain an optimal balance among risk, return and capital
adequacy.

To comply with the HKMA’s requirements as stated in the Supervisory Policy Manual
“Supervisory Review Process”, the Group adopts the internal capital adequacy assessment
process (“ICAAP”) and reviews it annually. Based on the HKMA’s guidelines on Pillar II,
ICAAP has been initiated to assess the extra capital needed to cover the material risks not
captured or not adequately captured under Pillar |, and therefore minimum Common Equity
Tier 1 capital ratio, minimum Tier 1 capital ratio and minimum Total capital ratio are
determined. Meanwhile, operating ranges for the aforementioned capital ratios have also
been established which enable the flexibility for future business growth and efficiency of
capital utilisation.
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Feekzz=t > Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)
M BER (&)
2. EfEE (&) 2. Risk management (continued)

BRI, Stress testing

R EEE DR 7 HIE B R TE The Group supplements the analysis of various types of risks with stress testing. Stress

JES 0 58T TAE o BRI RIS testing is a risk management tool for estimating risk exposures under stressed conditions
E—EEGEE T H > FHLL arising from extreme but plausible market or macroeconomic movements. These tests are
SEAGE T E R AR R 2= conducted on a regular basis by the Group’s various risk management units in accordance
B R AR AR S Y with the principles stated in the Supervisory Policy Manual “Stress-testing” published by the
OB IRBRIGSRIT E e RN HKMA. The ALCO monitors the results against the key risk limits approved by the RMC. The
BN - REBNZEEEH Financial Management Department reports the combined stress test results of the Group to

BN i &8 H B S BUE T the Board and RMC regularly.
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Appendix

Subsidiaries of the Bank

The particulars of subsidiaries are as follows:

R
HRE R HEA
Place and date of E#TRA FEED
B incorporation/ Issued FAM#25 Principal
Name operation share capital Interest held activities
FEREM~ (EE) ARAE i 480,000,000 35T 100.00% {5 H-RARES
BOC Credit Card (International) Limited 1980 9 H 9 H HK$480,000,000 Credit card
Hong Kong services
9 September 1980
HEREEIEFEARIRAE " 200,000,000 #7t 66.00% {Z5LHRTS
BOC Group Trustee Company Limited 1997 £ 12 H1 H HK$200,000,000 Trustee services
Hong Kong
1 December 1997
H RIS SE R Rk (S SR TR A E wE 300,000,000 3#&57; 42.24%" (S5tHR%
BOCI-Prudential Trustee Limited 199910 H 11 H HK$300,000,000 Trustee services
Hong Kong
11 October 1999
R AR aa B R T =Y LT 760,518,480 100.00% #R173E75
Bank of China (Malaysia) Berhad 20004£4 H 14 H FRPE MRS Banking business
Malaysia RM760,518,480
14 April 2000
China Bridge (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. FE2RPETE 1,000,000 100.00% ~ZHH s &k
2009 fE 4 A 24 H L% NS China visa
Malaysia RM1,000,000 application
24 April 2009
PRI T (RED Bt A RAE Z2E 10,000,000,000 Z=#% 100.00% $RITIERS
Bank of China (Thai) Public Company 20144 H1H Baht10,000,000,000 Banking business
Limited Thailand
1 April 2014
HPEISR T (B8 REARRAFE wE 2385t 100.00% fRHLARRTS
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Nominees 1985F£ 10 H 1 H HK$2 Nominee services
Limited Hong Kong
1 October 1985
HEIERTT (F#) EitARAE wE 3,000,000 7. 100.00% {E5t R IR
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Trustees 1987 F£ 11 A 6 H HK$3,000,000 Trustee and
Limited Hong Kong agency
6 November 1987 services
RE R EREmD (Bg) ARAFE i 50,000 7t 100.00% #1745
BOCHK Financial Products (Cayman) Ltd. 2006 =11 510 H US$50,000 Issuing structured
Cayman Islands notes
10 November 2006
HER(E ERH CRIID ARAE i FEEA 100.00% #5EfrA K
BOCHK Information Technology 1990 £ 4 H 16 H 70,000,000 7T YA

(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.

PRC
16 April 1990
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Appendix (continued)

Subsidiaries of the Bank (continued)

il g —¢
BL K HER
Place and date of EETRAR FEEE
B incorporation/ Issued FiE1#2%  Principal
Name operation share capital Interest held activities
HrERE SRR CRYID BIRAE rrE &R 100.00% (& Bl
BOCHK Information Technology Services 199345 H 26 H 40,000,000 &5 Information
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. PRC Registered capital technology
26 May 1993 HK$40,000,000 services
A (RELAD AIRAE A 10,000 37T 100.00% AH MR
Che Hsing (Nominees) Limited 1980 44 H 23 H HK$10,000 Nominee services
Hong Kong
23 April 1980
BRI B AIRAE i 335,000,000 3#&71 100.00% =HEHEEK
Po Sang Financial Investment Services 198049 H 23 H HK$335,000,000 bie—cudi
Company Limited Hong Kong Gold trading and
23 September 1980 investment
holding
HESS IHERIRAE A 335,000,000 37T 100.00% 3825 RIA GRS
Po Sang Securities and Futures Limited 1993410 H 19 H HK$335,000,000 Securities and
Hong Kong futures
19 October 1993 brokerage
s EEARAE i 3,000,000 37T 100.00% W3R K
Sin Chiao Enterprises Corporation, Limited 1961 49 H 13 H HK$3,000,000 YERSE
Hong Kong Property holding
13 September 1961 and investment
FrEEEARATE EHHE 3,000,000 #7T 100.00% (ZFEARTS
Sin Hua Trustee Limited 1978 410 H 27 H HK$3,000,000 Trustee services
Hong Kong
27 October 1978
Billion Express Development Inc. B T EEE 1%E5T 100.00% F&PEmy
2014 2H7H US$1 Investment
British Virgin Islands holding
7 February 2014
Billion Orient Holdings Ltd. B R 1%E5T 100.00% F&PEmy
20142 H 3 H US$1 Investment
British Virgin Islands holding
3 February 2014
Elite Bond Investments Ltd. PIBAEE R 15T 100.00% RF&EfEhs
20142 H7H USs$1 Investment
British Virgin Islands holding
7 February 2014
Express Capital Enterprise Inc. B R 13T 100.00% RF&EfERs
20142 H 3 H USs$1 Investment
British Virgin Islands holding
3 February 2014
Express Charm Holdings Corp. PIBAEE R 15T 100.00% FF&EfERS
2014 2H7H USs$1 Investment
British Virgin Islands holding

7 February 2014
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AT HIBAT (&)  Subsidiaries of the Bank (continued)

A B
R FHA
Place and date of EETRAR FEEY

B incorporation/ Issued FiE1#2%  Principal

Name operation share capital Interest held activities

Express Shine Assets Holdings Corp. B T EEE 1370 100.00% F&E&EER:
20141 H3H USs$1 Investment
British Virgin Islands holding
3 January 2014

Express Talent Investment Ltd. B T EEE 17T 100.00% F&EE&EER:
201442 H 13 H USs$1 Investment
British Virgin Islands holding
13 February 2014

Gold Medal Capital Inc. B TS 17T 100.00% F&EE&EER:
20141 H3H US$1 Investment
British Virgin Islands holding
3 January 2014

Gold Tap Enterprises Inc. B R 15T 100.00% RF&EfEps
20142 H 13 H USs$1 Investment
British Virgin Islands holding
13 February 2014

Maxi Success Holdings Ltd. B T EEE 1%E5T 100.00% FE&7Emy
2014FE2H7H USs$1 Investment
British Virgin Islands holding
7 February 2014

Smart Linkage Holdings Inc. B TR 1370 100.00% F&EE&EER:
201442 H 13 H USs$1 Investment
British Virgin Islands holding
13 February 2014

Smart Union Capital Investments Ltd. B TS 1370 100.00% FEE&EER:
20141 H3H USs$1 Investment
British Virgin Islands holding
3 January 2014

Success Trend Development Ltd. B TS 17T 100.00% F&EE&ER:
20142 H18 H US$1 Investment
British Virgin Islands holding
18 February 2014

Wise Key Enterprises Corp. B EEE 15T 100.00% FFE&EfEps
201442 H 18 H US$1 Investment
British Virgin Islands holding

18 February 2014

* R B R S R SRR (SR T A TR A ] * BOCI-Prudential Trustee Limited is a subsidiary of a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank and,
BARIITE N —%IEEEREL accordingly, is accounted for as a subsidiary by virtue of the Bank’s control over it.
FIHT AT BREAR T
A EIHIPERIRE » RN TR R A
HATHIM A E] o
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Definitions

In this Annual Report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms shall have the meanings set out below:

Terms Meanings

“ALCO” the Asset and Liability Management Committee

“AT1” Additional Tier 1

“ATM” Automated Teller Machine

“BOC” Bank of China Limited, a joint stock commercial bank with limited liability established
under the laws of the PRC, the H shares and A shares of which are listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange respectively

“BOCHK (Holdings)” BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of Hong

Kong

“BOCHK” or “the Bank”

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of Hong
Kong and a wholly-owned subsidiary of BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited

“BOCI-Prudential Manager”

BOCI-Prudential Asset Management Limited, a company incorporated under the laws
of Hong Kong, in which BOCI Asset Management Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of BOC International Holdings Limited, and Prudential Corporation Holdings Limited
hold equity interests of 64% and 36% respectively

“BOCI-Prudential Trustee”

BOCI-Prudential Trustee Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of Hong
Kong, in which BOC Group Trustee Company Limited and Prudential Corporation
Holdings Limited hold equity interests of 64% and 36% respectively

“BOC Malaysia”

Bank of China (Malaysia) Berhad, a wholly-owned subsidiary of BOCHK

“BOC Thailand”

Bank of China (Thai) Public Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of BOCHK

“Board” or “Board of Directors”

the Board of Directors of the Bank

“CE” Chief Executive

“CET1” Common Equity Tier 1

“CFO” Chief Financial Officer

“CIC” China Investment Corporation
“CRO” Chief Risk Officer

“CVA” Credit Valuation Adjustment
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Definitions (continued)

Terms

Meanings

“Central Huijin”

Central Huijin Investment Ltd.

“Chiyu” Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of Hong
Kong

“DCE” Deputy Chief Executive

“‘DVA” Debit Valuation Adjustment

“ECL” Expected Credit Loss

“‘EV” Economic Value Sensitivity Ratio

“FCC” the Financial Crime Compliance Department

“FIRB” Foundation Internal Ratings-based

“FvocCI” Fair value through other comprehensive income

“FVPL” Fair value through profit or loss

“HKAS” Hong Kong Accounting Standard

“HKFRS” Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard

“HKICPA” Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

“HKMA” Hong Kong Monetary Authority

“Hong Kong” or “Hong Kong SAR”

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

“ICAAP” Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process

“IFRS” International Financial Reporting Standard

“IMM” Internal Models

“LCO” the Legal & Compliance and Operational Risk Management Department

“LCR” Liquidity Coverage Ratio

“Listing Rules” the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited
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Definitions (continued)

Terms Meanings
“mC” the Management Committee
“MPF” Mandatory Provident Fund

“MPF Schemes Ordinance”

the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong
Kong, as amended

“mainland” or “Mainland of China”

the mainland of the PRC

“N/A” Not applicable
“NII” Net Interest Income Sensitivity Ratio
“NSFR” Net Stable Funding Ratio

“ORSO schemes”

the Occupational Retirement Schemes under Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance, Chapter 426 of the Laws of Hong Kong

“‘oTC” Over-the-counter
“PRC” the People’s Republic of China
“PVBP” Price Value of a Basis Point

“RMB” or “Renminbi”

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

“RMC” the Risk Committee

“RMD” the Risk Management Department
“RWA” Risk-weighted Assets

“SME” Small and Medium-sized Enterprise
“STC” Standardised (Credit Risk)

“STM” Standardised (Market Risk)

“STO” Standardised (Operational Risk)

“Standard & Poor’s”

Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services

“Stock Exchange” or “Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

“the Group” the Bank and its subsidiaries collectively referred as the Group
“us” the United States of America
“VAR” Value at Risk
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